
RULEMAKING & REGULATION
SUBCOMMITTEE

MEETING

Friday, February 3, 2012

9:00 A.M. -10:00 A.M.

306 House Office Building

Dean Cannon
Speaker

Chris Dorworth
Chair



Committee Meeting Notice
HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES

Rulemaking &. Regulation Subcommittee

Start Date and Time:

End Date and Time:

Location:

Duration:

Friday, February 03, 2012 09:00 am

Friday, February 03, 2012 10:00 am

306 HOB

1.00 hrs

Consideration of the following bill(s):

HB 347 College Credit for Military Training and Education Courses by Harrell
CS/HB 355 Public Meetings by Government Operations Subcommittee, Kiar
CS/HB 529 Adult Day Care Centers by Health & Human Services Access Subcommittee, Corcoran
CS/HB 643 Title Insurance by Insurance & Banking Subcommittee, Moraitis
CS/HB 1191 Parent Empowerment in Education by K-20 Innovation Subcommittee, Bileca
CS/HB 1261 State Employment by Government Operations Subcommittee, Mayfield

02/01/2012 1:48:49PM Leagis ® Page 1 of 1



FLORIDA HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES
Dean Cannon, Speaker

Rules & Calendar Committee
Rulemaking & Regulation Subcommittee

Chris Dorworth
Chair

AGENDA
Friday, February 3, 2012
9:00 A.M. -10:00 A.M.

Room 306 House Office Building

Opening Remarks by Chair Dorworth

Roll Call by Sonja Thompson, CAA

Consideration of the following bill(s):

317 The Capitol
(850) 488-0608

• HB 347 College Credit for Military Training and Education Courses by
Harrell

• CSIHB 355 Public Meetings by Government Operations Subcommittee, Kiar

• CSIHB 529 Adult Day Care Centers by Health & Human Services Access
Subcommittee, Corcoran

• CS/HB 643 Title Insurance by Insurance & Banking Subcommittee, Moraitis

• CSIHB 1191 Parent Empowerment in Education by K-20 Innovation
Subcommittee, Bileca

• CS/HB 1261 State Employment by Government Operations Subcommittee,
Mayfield

Closing Remarks

Meeting Adjourned





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: HB 347 College Credit for Military Training and Education Courses
SPONSOR(S): Harrell and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 532

REFERENCE

1) K-20 Innovation Subcommittee

ACTION

11 Y, 0 N

ANALYST

Thomas

STAFF DIRECTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

Sherry

2) Rulemaking & Regulation Subcommittee

3) Higher Education Appropriations Subcommittee

4) Education Committee

Miller

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill requires the Board of Governors to adopt regulations and the State Board of Education to adopt rules
that enable eligible members of the United States Armed Forces to earn academic college credit at public
postsecondary educational institutions for college-level training and education acquired in the military.

The bill requires that the regulations and rules include procedures for credential evaluation and the award of
academic college credit, including but not limited to, equivalency and alignment of military course work with
appropriate college courses, course descriptions, type and amount of college credit that may be awarded, and
transfer of credit.

The bill does not appear to have a fiscal impact.

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2012.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0347b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 2

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

Currently, the Board of Governors and State Board of Education are not required to adopt regulations
or rules to enable United States Armed Forces servicemembers to earn college credit for college-level
training and education acquired in the military. However, all public postsecondary institutions have
established procedures to evaluate how military training and experience may be awarded for equivalent
college credit. Florida's public postsecondary institutions consult with the American Council on
Education (ACE) and Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges (SOC) when evaluating and awarding
academic credit for military training and experience.1

American Council on Education (ACE)
Since 1945, the American Council on Education (ACE) has provided a collaborative link between the
U.S. Department of Defense and higher education through the review of military training and
experiences for the award of equivalent college credits for members of the U.S. Armed Forces.2 ACE
has established a rigid process in evaluating military services courses to determine the appropriate
amount and level of academic credit that should be awarded by postsecondary institutions. ACE
maintains the Guide to the Evaluation of Educational Experiences in the Armed Services which has
been the standard reference for recognizing learning acquired in the military. ACE provides guidance
to servicemembers, civilians, military education centers, and colleges and universities interpreting
military transcripts and documents.3

More than 2,300 colleges and universities recognize these ACE endorsed transcripts as official
documentation of military experience and accurate records of applicable ACE credit
recommendations.4

According to the Board of Governors, institutions consult with and follow the ACE Military Guide Online5

to determine how military training and experience might be awarded for equivalent course credit.
Military courses that are recommended by the ACE Military Guide for college credit would be
considered first to determine if they meet degree requirements, and second to determine if they can
fulfill any electives. Some types of military training, such as the Advanced Helicopter Pilot Training 1
course, may not be accepted at a state university because there is no equivalent course and it is more
vocational in nature than academic credit.6

Each branch of service provides transcripts for current and former servicemembers as an official record
of military education, training, and experience. Postsecondary institutions using the ACE Military Guide
evaluate an individual's military transcript according to the ACE standard for recommended college
credit. The following is a breakdown of the service-specific transcripts available to current and former
servicemembers:

• U.S. Army: Army/American Council on Education Registry Transcript System (AARTS)
• U.S. Navy/U.S. Marine Corps: Sailor/Marine American Council on Education Registry

Transcript (SMART)

I Board of Governors, Legislative Bill Analysis for HB 347 (2011), Department of Education, Legislative Bill Analysis for SB 532
(2011).
2 American Council on Education, ACE Military Programs, available at
~1ttp://www.acenet.edu/AM/Template.ctin?Section=Mi1itaryPrograms (last visited Dec. 8,2011).

fd.
4 Id.

5 American Council on Education, ACE Military Guide Online, available at http://militaryguides.acenet.edu (last visited Jan. 19
2012). ' ,
6 Board ofGovernors, Legislative Bill Analysisfor HB 347 (2011).
STORAGE NAME: h0347b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 3

• U.S Air Force: Community College of the Air Force (CCAF)
• U.S. Coast Guard: U.S. Coast Guard Institute (CGI)7

Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges (SOC)
The organization known as Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges (SOC) was created in 1972 to
provided educational opportunities to servicemembers who, because they frequently moved from place
to place, had trouble completing college degrees. SOC functions in cooperation with 15 higher
education associations, the Department of Defense, and Active and Reserve Components of the
Military Services to expand and improve voluntary postsecondary education opportunities for
servicemembers worldwide.8 SOC supports a consortium of approximately 1,900 colleges and
universities that have pledged to support the higher education needs of military personnel. SOC works
with civilian and military educators to overcome obstacles associated with obtaining a college education
when pursued though traditional means.

Among the SOC Consortium key goals is the award of credit for military training and experience. All
SOC Consortium institutions provide processes to determine credit awards and learning acquired for
specialized military training and occupational experience when applicable to a servicemember's degree
program. In doing so, SOC Consortium members recognize and use the ACE Military Guide to evaluate
and award academic credit for military training and experience. Other key features of the SOC
Consortium include:

• Reasonable Transfer of Credit;
• Reduced Academic Residency; and
• Credit for Nationally-Recognized Testing Programs.9

Florida has high representation within the SOC Consortium in that 25 of the 28 Florida College System
institutions and 9 of the 11 State University System institutions are members.10

Effect of Proposed Changes

Currently, each Florida public postsecondary institution evaluates college-level training and education
for United States Armed Forces servicemembers on an individual basis, using American Council on
Education (ACE) or Servicemembers Opportunity Colleges (SOC) as a guideline in determining the
amount of college credit to award. By requiring the Board of Governors to adopt regulations and the
State Board of Education to adopt rules, the bill may result in a more uniform approach to evaluating
and awarding college credit across institutions.

The bill requires that the regulations and rules include procedures for credential evaluation and the
award of academic college credit, including but not limited to, equivalency and alignment of military
course work with appropriate college courses, course descriptions, type and amount of college credit
that may be awarded, and transfer of credit.

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2012.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Creates s. 1004.096, F.S., relating to college credit for military training and education
courses - requiring the Board of Governors of the State University System and the State Board of
Education to adopt regulations and rules, respectively, that enable United States Armed Forces
servicemembers to earn college credit for college-level training and education acquired in the military.

Section 2. Provides an effective date of July 1,2012.

7 American Council on Education, A Transfer Guide: Understanding Your Military Transcript and ACE Credit Recommendations
r;vail~ble at http://w.ww.acenet.edu/Content/NavigationMenuiProgramsServices/MilitaryPrograms/TransferGuide Updated20 II.pdf.
9Serv~ces Opportun~ty Colleges, http://www.soc.aascu.org (last visited Dec. 8,2011).
I~ervlcesOpportUnIty Colleges, http://www.soc.aascu.orgisocconsortium/Default.html(last visited Dec. 8,2011).

ld
STORAGE NAME: h0347b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

By requiring the Board of Governors to adopt regulations and the State Board of Education to adopt
rules to enable United Sates Armed Forces servicemembers to earn college credit for college-level
training and education, the bill could decrease the amount of time and cost for servicemembers to
receive a postsecondary degree.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

According to the Board of Governors and the State Board of Education, the bill has no fiscal impact to
the State University System or the Florida College System.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not Applicable. This bill does not appear to affect county or municipal governments.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill requires the Board of Governors to adopt regulations and the State Board of Education to adopt
rules that enable the United States Armed Forces servicemembers to earn college credit for college
level training and education acquired in the military.

A rule is an agency statement of general applicability which interprets, implements, or prescribes law or
policy, inclUding the procedure and practice requirements of an agency, as well as certain types of
forms. 11 Rulemaking authority is delegated by the Legislature12 through statute and authorizes an

II Section 120.52(16), F.S.; Florida Department ofFinancial Services v. Capital Collateral Regional Counsel-Middle Region, 969 So.
2d 527, 530 (Fla. 1sl DCA 2007).
12 Southwest Florida Water Management District v. Save the Manatee Club, Inc., 773 So. 2d 594 (Fla. 1SI DCA 2000).
STORAGE NAME: h0347b.RRS.DOCX PAGE: 4
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 5

agency to "adopt, develop, establish, or otherwise create,,13 a rule. Agencies do not have discretion
whether to engage in rulemaking. 14 To adopt a rule an agency must have an express grant of authority
to implement a specific law by rulemaking. 15 The grant of rulemaking authority itself need not be
detailed. 16 The specific statute being interpreted or implemented through rulemaking must provide
specific standards and guidelines to preclude the administrative agency from exercising unbridled
discretion in creating policy or applying the law. 17

The State Board of Education is authorized to adopt rules implementing its duties conferred by
statute.18 The Board of Governors must follow the rulemaking requirements of the APA19 when
adopting rules to implement powers conferred by statute.20 The bill identifies specific issues required to
be included in the rules to be adopted. This specificity appears to provide sufficient standards and
guidelines for rulemaking.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

IV. AMENDMENTSI COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

None.

13 Section 120.52(17), F.S.
14 Section 120.54(1)(a), F.S.
15 Section 120.52(8) & s. 120.536(1), F.S.
16 Save the Manatee Club, Inc., supra at 599.
17 Sloban v. Florida Board ofPharmacy, 982 So. 2d 26,29-30 (Fla. 151 DCA 2008); Board ofTrustees ofthe Internal Improvement
r;:ust Fund v. Day Cruise Association, Inc., 794 So. 2d 696, 704 (Fla. 151 DCA 200 I).

Section 1001.02(1), F.S.
19 Section 120.54, F.S.
20 Section 1001.706(2), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h0347b.RRS.DOGX
DATE: 2/1/2012



FLORIDA

HB347

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to college credit for military

3 training and education courses; creating s. 1004.096,

4 F.S.; requiring the Board of Governors of the State

5 University System and the State Board of Education to

6 adopt regulations and rules, respectively, that enable

7 United States Armed Forces servicemembers to earn

8 college credit for college-level training and

9 education acquired in the military; providing an

10 effective date.

11

12 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

13

14 Section 1. Section 1004.096, Florida Statutes, is created

15 to read:

16 1004.096 College credit for military training and

17 education courses.-The Board of Governors shall adopt

18 regulations and the State Board of Education shall adopt rules

19 that enable eligible members of the United States Armed Forces

20 to earn academic college credit at public postsecondary

21 educational institutions for college-level training and

22 education acquired in the military. The regulations and rules

23 shall include procedures for credential evaluation and the award

24 of academic college credit, including, but not limited to,

25 equivalency and alignment of military coursework with

26 appropriate college courses, course descriptions, type and

27 amount of college credit that may be awarded, and transfer of

28 credit.

Page 1of2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0347-00



FLORIDA

HB347

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

29 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2012.

Page 2of2

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0347-00



n
VI
.......
:::c
o:l
w
U'1
U'1



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: CS/HB 355 Public Meetings
SPONSOR(S): Kiar and others
TIED BILLS: IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: CS/SB 206

REFERENCE

1) Government Operations Subcommittee

ACTION

14 Y, 0 N, As CS

ANALYST

Williamson

STAFF DIRECTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

Williamson

2) Rulemaking & Regulation Subcommittee

3) State Affairs Committee

Rubotto

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The State Constitution and the Florida Statutes set forth the state's public policy regarding access to
government meetings; however, both are silent concerning whether citizens have a right to be heard at a
public meeting. To date, Florida courts have heard two cases concerning whether a member of the public
has a right to be heard at a meeting when he or she is not a party to the proceedings. In both cases, the
court found that while Florida law requires meetings to be open to the public, it does not give the public the
right to speak.

The bill requires members of the public to be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on a proposition
before a board or commission. However, the opportunity to be heard does not have to occur at the same
meeting at which the board or commission takes official action if certain requirements are met. The bill
also provides that the opportunity to be heard is not required at certain meetings of a board or commission.

The bill provides that the opportunity to be heard is subject to reasonable rules or policies adopted by the
board or commission. It limits the scope of the rules and policies and requires each board or commission
subject to the Administrative Procedure Act (APA) to adopt the rules under provisions in the APA. Only
boards or commissions subject to the APA are authorized to adopt the limited rules and policies.
Consequently, most local boards and commissions would not have authority to adopt rules implementing
the law.

Finally, if a board or commission adopts rules or policies in compliance with the law and follows the rules or
policies when providing an opportunity for the public to speak, it is presumed that the board or commission
is acting in compliance with the requirement that citizens be given the opportunity to be heard.

The bill could have a negative fiscal impact on state and local governments.

This bill may be a county or municipality mandate. See Section 1I1.A.1. of the analysis.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0355b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 2

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Background

State Constitution: Open Meetings
Article I, s. 24(b) of the State Constitution sets forth the state's public policy regarding access to
government meetings. The section requires that all meetings of any collegial public body of the
executive branch of state government or of any collegial public body of a county, municipality, school
district, or special district, at which official acts are to be taken or at which public business of such body
is to be transacted or discussed, be open and noticed to the public.

The Legislature is authorized by Article I, s. 24(c), to provide exemptions from the open records and
open meeting requirements upon a 2/3 vote of both legislative chambers, in a bill that specifies the
public necessity giving rise to the exemption.

Government in the Sunshine Law
Public policy regarding access to government meetings also is addressed in the Florida Statutes.
Section 286.011, F.S., also known as the "Government in the Sunshine Law" or "Sunshine Law," further
requires that all meetings of any board or commission of any state agency or authority or of any agency
or authority of any county, municipal corporation, or political subdivision, at which official acts are to be
taken be open to the public at all times. 1 The board or commission must provide reasonable notice of
all public meetings.2 Public meetings may not be held at any location that discriminates on the basis of
sex, age, race, creed, color, origin or economic status or which operates in a manner that unreasonably
restricts the public's access to the facility.3 Minutes of a public meeting must be promptly recorded and
be open to public inspection.4

Right to Speak at Meetings
The State Constitution and the Florida Statutes are silent concerning whether citizens have a right to be
heard at a public meeting. To date, Florida courts have heard two cases concerning whether a
member of the public has a right to be heard at a meeting when he or she is not a party to the
proceedings. 5

In Keesler v. Community Maritime Park Associates, Inc} the plaintiffs sued the Community Maritime
Park Associates, Inc., (CMPA) alleging that the CMPA violated the Sunshine Law by not prOViding the
plaintiffs with the opportunity to speak at a meeting concerning the development of certain waterfront
property. The plaintiffs argued that the phrase "open to the public" granted citizens the right to speak at
public meetings. The First District Court of Appeal held:

1 Section 286.011(1), F.S.
2/d

3 Section 286.011(6), F.S.
4 Section 286.ot 1(2), F.S.
5 Florida courts have heard numerous cases regarding Sunshine Law violations; however, only two appear to be on point regarding the
public's right to speak at a public meeting. Other cases have merely opined that the public has an inalienable right to be present and to
be heard. The courts have opined that "boards should not be allowed, through devious methods, to 'deprive the public of this
inalienable right to be present and to be heard at all deliberations wherein decisions affecting the public are being made. '" See, e.g.,
Board ofPublic Instruction ofBroward County v. Doran, 224 So.2d 693, 699 (Fla. 1969) (specified boards and commissions ...
should not be allowed to deprive the public of this inalienable right to be present and to be heard at all deliberations wherein decisions
affecting the public are being made); Krause v. Reno, (366 So.2d 1244, 1250 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1979) ("citizen input factor" is an
i~portan~ aspect ofp~blic meetings); Homestead-Miami Speedway, LLC v. City ofMiami, 828 So.2d 411 (Fla. 3rd DCA 2002) (city
dId not VIolate Sunshme Law when there was public participation and debate in some but not all meetings regarding a proposed
contract).
632 So.3d 659 (Fla. 1st DCA 2010).
STORAGE NAME: h0355b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 3

Relying on the language in Marston,? the trial court determined that, although the
Sunshine Law requires that meetings be open to the public, the law does not give
the public the right to speak at the meetings. Appellants have failed to point to
any case construing the phrase "open to the public" to grant the public the right to
speak, and in light of the clear and unambiguous language in Marston (albeit
dicta), we are not inclined to broadly construe the phrase as granting such a right
here.8

The second case, Kennedy v. Sf. Johns Water Management District, 9 was argued before the Fifth
District Court of Appeal on October 13, 2011. At a meeting of the St. Johns Water Management District
(District), the overflow crowd was put in other rooms and provided a video feed of the meeting.
Additionally, the District limited participation in the meeting by members of a group called ''The St.
Johns Riverkeeper." Only the St. Johns Riverkeeper representative and attorney were allowed to
address the District board. Mr. Kennedy, who wanted to participate in the discussion, sued arguing that
the Sunshine Law requires that citizens be given the opportunity to be heard. Mr. Kennedy also
alleged that the District violated the Sunshine Law by failing to have a large enough facility to allow all
who were interested in attending the meeting to be present in the meeting room. On October 25, 2011,
the Fifth District Court of Appeal affirmed the trial court's ruling that the District did not violate the
Sunshine Law as alleged.

Effect of Bill

The bill creates a new section of law governing the opportunity for the public to be heard at pUblic
meetings of a board or commission. The bill does not define a board or commission for purposes of the
new requirements. For example, the Sunshine Law provides that it applies to all meetings of any board
or commission of any state agency or authority or of any agency or authority of any county, municipal
corporation, or political subdivision.

The bill requires members of the public to be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard on a
proposition before a board or commission. However, the opportunity to be heard does not have to
occur at the same meeting at which the board or commission takes official action if the opportunity:

• Occurs at a meeting that meets the same notice reqUirements as the meeting at which the
board or commission will take official action on the item;

• Occurs at a meeting that is during the decisionmaking process; and
• Is within reasonable prOXimity before the meeting at which the board or commission takes

official action.

It is unclear what is meant by "reasonable prOXimity" because the term is not defined.

The opportunity to be heard is not required when a board or commission is considering:
• An official act that must be taken to deal with an emergency situation affecting the public health,

welfare, or safety, when compliance with the requirements would cause an unreasonable delay
in the ability of the board or commission to act;

• An official act involving no more than a ministerial act; or
• A meeting in which the board or commission is acting in a quasi-judicial capacity with respect to

the rights or interests of a person, except as otherwise provided by law.

It is unclear what is considered an "unreasonable delay" when deciding if the public's opportunity to be
heard should be usurped.

7 In Wood v Marston, the Florida Supreme Court held that the University of Florida improperly closed meetings of a committee
ch.arged.~ith s?liciting and .screen~ng applicants for the deanship of the college of law. However, the Marston court noted "nothing in
thIS decIsIOn gIves the pubhc the nght to be more than spectators. The public has no authority to participate in or to interfere with the
~ecision-making process." Wood v. Marston, 442 So.2d 934,941 (Fla. 1983).

Keesler at 660-661.
9 2011 WL 5124949 (Fla. 5th DCA 2011).
STORAGE NAME: h0355b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



The bill authorizes a board or commission to adopt reasonable rules or policies to ensure the orderly
conduct of public meetings. Boards or commissions subject to the Administrative Procedure Act10 must
adopt rules under ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54, F.S., governing the opportunity to be heard. The bill
provides that rules or policies of a board or commission may:

• Limit the time that an individual has to address the board or commission;
• Require, at meetings in which a large number of individuals wish to be heard, that a

representative of a group or faction on an item, rather than all of the members of the group or
faction, address the board or commission; or

• Prescribe procedures or forms for an individual to use in order to inform the board or
commission of a desire to be heard.

The bill provides that the opportunity to be heard is subject to reasonable rules or policies adopted by
the board or commission to ensure the orderly conduct of a public meeting. However, the bill limits the
scope of the rules and policies and requires each board or commission subject to the Administrative
Procedure Ace 1 to adopt the rules under ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54, F.S. Rules or policies adopted by
the board or commission are limited to rules or policies that:

• Designate a specified period of time for public comment;
• Limit the time an individual has to address the board or commission;
• Require, at meetings in which a large number of individuals wish to be heard, that

representatives of groups or factions on an item, rather than all of the members of the groups or
factions, address the board or commission; or

• Prescribe procedures or forms for an individual to use in order to inform the board or
commission of a desire to be heard, to indicate his or her support, opposition, or neutrality on a
proposition, and to indicate his or her designation of a representative to speak for him or her or
his or her group on a proposition if he or she so chooses.

Only boards or commissions subject to the Administrative Procedure Act are authorized to adopt the
limited rules and policies. As a result, most local boards and commissions would not be authorized to
adopt rules to implement the law.

Finally, if a board or commission adopts rules or policies in compliance with the law and follows the
rules or policies when providing an opportunity for the public to speak, it is presumed that the board or
commission is acting in compliance with the requirement that citizens be given the opportunity to be
heard. A presumption in the law may be overcome. Some presumptions are overcome by the
presentation of reliable evidence inconsistent with the fact presumed. Other presumptions are
overcome by clear and convincing evidence. As the bill does not specify the meaning of the
presumption, the courts would determine the force of the presumption. A true safe harbor principle
would make it clear that if the conditions were met, that the actor meeting the conditions would be
deemed in compliance as a matter of law.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 creates s. 286.0114, F.S., prOViding that the public be provided with a reasonable opportunity
to be heard at public meetings.

Section 2 provides an effective date of JUly 1, 2012.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

10 See chapter 120, F.S.
II See chapter 120, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h0355b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 4



2. Expenditures:

See FISCAL COMMENTS.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See FISCAL COMMENTS.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

Governmental entities could incur additional meeting related expenses because longer and more
frequent meetings could be required when considering items of great public interest. As a result, it is
likely staff would have to be compensated, security would have to be provided, and other expenses
related to the meeting and meeting facility would be incurred. The amount of those potential expenses
is indeterminate and would vary depending on the magnitude of each issue and the specific associated
meeting requirements. 12

In addition, the uncertainties in the bill would generate numerous lawsuits over its meaning and
application to particular situations. The cost of defending such suits would also be indeterminate.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

The mandates provision of Art. VII, s. 18 of the State Constitution may apply because this bill could
cause counties and municipalities to incur additional expenses associated with longer meetings or
increased meetings due to the new requirement that the public be provided with the opportunity to
speak at such meetings; however, an exemption may apply if the bill results in an insignificant fiscal
impact to county or municipal governments. The exceptions to the mandates provision of Art. VII, s.
18, of the Florida Constitution appear to be inapplicable because the bill does not articulate a
threshold finding of serving an important state interest.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill authorizes a board or commission to adopt reasonable rules or policies to ensure the orderly
conduct of public meetings. Boards or commissions SUbject to the Administrative Procedure Act (APA)
must adopt rules under ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54, F.S., governing the opportunity to be heard. The
bill provides guidelines regarding the rules or policies that may be adopted by a board or commission
subject to the APA. Boards and commissions SUbject to the APA include state agencies, school boards

12 A~cording to the Com~ission on Ethics, "the only potential concern would be an increase in the length of the meetings and the
posslbl.e ~eed, and ~scallmpact, ?fCommission members extending their stay in Tallahassee." Analysis ofHB 355 (2012) by the
Commission on EthiCS (on file with the Government Operations Subcommittee).
STORAGE NAME: h0355b.RRS.DOCX PAGE: 5
DATE: 2/1/2012



and local boards and commissions having a jurisdiction extending beyond one county, as well as other
entities that are expressly made subject to eh APA by law or judicial decision. Thus, most local boards
and commissions are not covered by the APA and would not have authority under the bill to adopt rules
implementing the law. Some of those boards and commissions may have rulemaking authority
sufficient to organize their own meetings, but would not likely have authority to define what a
reasonable time might be for a person to testify at such meetings. Thus the bill leaves a great gap
between the rulemaking authority necessary to implement the law and the actual authority such boards
and commissions actually possess.

For boards and commissions governed by the APA, the bill provides guidance for rulemaking.
However, the bill authorizes limitations on time each individual may speak, but not limitations on total
time allotted for public comment. The bill requires that representatives of factions or groups address the
board, but does not allow rulemaking to govern the manner of selecting such representatives. Neither
does the bill define factions or groups. It also does not provide for rulemaking for the division of time
between those addressing the board or commission.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

Placement in Law
The bill creates s. 286.0114, F.S., to provide provisions governing the opportunity for the public to be
heard at a public meeting of a board or commission. It is suggested that the provisions be created in s.
286.0110, F.S., in order to ensure that the provisions are placed in law behind the Sunshine Law. As
currently drafted, the opportunity to speak provisions would be placed in law behind exemptions to the
Sunshine Law.

Boards and Commissions
The bill governs the opportunity for the public to be heard at public meetings of a board or commission.
The bill does not define a board or commission for purposes of the new requirements. It is suggested
that the bill be amended to clarify that it applies to "any board or commission of any state agency or
authority or of any agency or authority of any county, municipal corporation, or political subdivision" as
provided in the Sunshine Law.

Exceptions
The bill provides three exceptions: emergencies that do not permit unreasonable delay; ministerial acts;
an administrative hearing adjudicating the rights or interests of a person.. However, the bill does not
exempt meetings that have been properly exempted from the open meeting law pursuant to the
constitution. 13 For instance, current law exempts from the open meetings requirements, those meetings
that would reveal a security system plan or portion thereof that is confidential and exempt from the
open records law. 14 Thus, the bill would require a board or commission to permit public comment on
confidential matters that involve sensitive public security information. It would also allow public
comment on closed meetings involving competitive negotiations15 and litigation. 16 The bill may,
therefore, invite public advocacy on such confidential matters and could undermine the public necessity
that justified the exemption from the open meeting and/or open records requirements.

Rules and Procedures
The bill provides that the opportunity to be heard is sUbject to reasonable rules or policies adopted by
the board or commission. It limits the scope of the rules and policies and requires each board or
commission sUbject to the Administrative Procedure Act (APA) to adopt the rules under ss. 120.536(1)
and 120.54, F.S. As currently drafted, the bill only authorizes boards or commissions sUbject to the
APA to adopt the limited rules and policies. Local governments generally are not sUbject to the APA.
As such, the bill could be interpreted in three ways:

13 A~. I, s. 24(c), Fl. Const., provides that the Legislature may enact exemptions from public records and public meetings
requirements.
14 Section 286.01 13(1).
15 See S. 286.01 13(2).
16 See S. 286.01 1(8).
STORAGE NAME: h0355b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012 PAGE: 6



1. Local boards and commissions would not be afforded the same opportunity to adopt the limited
rules and policies;

2. Local boards and commissions would not be limited in the rules and policies they could adopt;
or

3. Local boards and commissions would have to adopt rules and policies under ss. 120.536(1) and
120.54, F.S., if they wanted to adopt any rules or policies.

As such, it is suggested that the bill be amended to clarify the authorization to adopt rules or policies.
Also, as described under B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY, above, the bill could more comprehensively
address practical matters necessary to ensure orderly meetings when public participation is required.

IV. AMENDMENTSI COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On January 18, 2012, the Government Operations Subcommittee adopted a strike-all amendment and
reported the bill favorably as a committee substitute. The strike-all amendment removes placement of the
provisions from the Sunshine Law and, instead, places the provisions in a new s. 286.0114, F.S. It also
removes the fines, penalties, and attorney's fees. The bill removes the provision providing that if the board
or commission violates the provisions governing the right to speak, then the actions of the board or
commission are nullified. Finally, it removes the public meeting exemption.

The analysis is drafted to the committee substitute as passed by the Government Operations
Subcommittee.

STORAGE NAME: h0355b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 7



FLORIDA

CS/HB 355

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to public meetings; creating s.

3 286.0114, F.S.; requiring that a member of the public

4 be given a reasonable opportunity to be heard before a

5 board or commission takes official action on a

6 proposition before the board or commission; providing

7 that the opportunity to be heard is subject to rules

8 or policies adopted by the board or commission;

9 specifying certain exceptions; providing requirements

10 for rules or policies governing the opportunity to be

11 heard; providing that compliance with the requirements

12 of the act is presumed under certain circumstances;

13 requiring that a board or commission that is subject

14 to ch. 120, F.S., adopt rules; providing an effective

15 date.

16

17 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

18

19 Section 1. Section 286.0114, Florida Statutes, is created

20 to read:

21 286.0114 Public meetings; reasonable opportunity to be

22 heard.-

23 (1) Members of the public shall be given a reasonable

24 opportunity to be heard on a proposition before a board or

25 commission. The opportunity to be heard need not occur at the

26 same meeting at which the board or commission takes official

27 action on the item, if the opportunity occurs at a meeting that

28 meets the same notice requirements as the meeting at which the

Page 1of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0355-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 355

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

29 board or commission takes official action on the item, occurs at

30 a meeting that is during the decisionmaking process, and is

31 within reasonable proximity before the meeting at which the

32 board or commission takes the official action. The opportunity

33 to be heard is subject to reasonable rules or policies adopted

34 by the board or commission to ensure the orderly conduct of a

35 public meeting, as provided in subsection (3).

36 (2) The requirements in subsection (1) do not apply to:

37 (a) An official act that must be taken to deal with an

38 emergency situation affecting the public health, welfare, or

39 safety, when compliance with the requirements would cause an

40 unreasonable delay in the ability of the board or commission to

41 act;

42 (b) An official act involving no more than a ministerial

43 act; or

44 (c) A meeting in which the board or commission is acting

45 in a quasi-judicial capacity with respect to the rights or

46 interests of a person. This paragraph does not affect the right

47 of a person to be heard as otherwise provided by law.

48 (3) Rules or policies of a board or commission adopted

49 under subsection (5) must be limited to rules or policies that:

50 (a) Designate a specified period of time for public

51 comment;

52 (b) Limit the time an individual has to address the board

53 or commission;

54 (c) Require, at meetings in which a large number of

55 individuals wish to be heard, that representatives of groups or

56 factions on an item, rather than all of the members of the

Page 2of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0355-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 355

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

57 groups or factions, address the board or commission; or

58 (d) Prescribe procedures or forms for an individual to use

59 in order to inform the board or commission of a desire to be

60 heard, to indicate his or her support, opposition, or neutrality

61 on a proposition, and to indicate his or her designation of a

62 representative to speak for him or her or his or her group on a

63 proposition if he or she so chooses.

64 (4) If a board or commission adopts rules or policies in

65 compliance with this section and follows such rules or policies

66 when providing an opportunity for members of the public to be

67 heard, it is presumed that the board or commission is acting in

68 compliance with this section.

69 (5) Each board or commission that is subject to chapter

70 120 shall adopt rules under ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to

71 administer this section.

72 Section 2. This act shall take effect July 1, 2012.

Page 3of 3

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0355-01-c1



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 1

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 355 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Watson offered the following:

4

5 Amendment (with title amendment)

6 Remove everything after the enacting clause and insert:

7 Section 1. Section 286.011, Florida Statutes, is amended

8 to read:

9 286.011 Public meetings and records; public inspection;

10 criminal and civil penalties.-

11 (1) All meetings of any board or commission of any state

12 agency or authority or of any agency or authority of any county,

13 municipal corporation, or political subdivision, or of any

14 entity created under general, special or local law, except as

15 otherwise provided in the Constitution, at which official acts

16 are to be taken are declared to be public meetings open to the

17 public at all times, and no resolution, rule, ordinance, code,

18 or formal action shall be considered binding except as taken or

095665 - h0355-strike-l.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:38:08 PM

Page 1 of 7



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 355 (2012)

Amendment No. 1
19 made at such meeting. The following requirements shall apply as

20 to all meetings formal or informal:

21 ~The board, entity or commission must provide reasonable

22 notice and the matters to be agendaed with all attachments no

23 less than three days prior to ~ all such meetings, unless

24 emergency in nature then it shall be no less than 24 hours. The

25 agenda may be amended thereafter when necessary. At least two

26 copies of the agenda with all attachments shall be available for

27 public inspection the day of each meeting.

28 (b) Citizens or other persons shall have the right to speak

29 within no less than three minutes, at the discretion of

30 presiding officer such may me extended, on any matter within

31 purview of the board, commission, or entity at the beginning of

32 the meeting either after the call to order or pledge and

33 invocation segment of the agenda as shown in the order printed.

34 (c) Citizens or other persons shall have the right to speak

35 within no less than three minutes, at the discretion of

36 presiding officer such may me extended, on all agenda items

37 which effect appointment of public officers, land use, taxes,

38 fees, rates, fines, rights, and interests of any given citizens,

39 persons or businesses such matters shall not be placed as

40 consent items on the agenda. All other matters such as awards,

41 presentations, reports, minutes, announcements, and internally

42 or solely administrative and ministerial or emergency in nature

43 cited on the agenda shall be at the discretion of the presiding

44 officer to allow public comment.

45 (d) On all matters listed on the agenda for public hearing

46 citizens or other persons shall have the right to speak within
095665 - h0355-strike-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:38:08 PM

Page 2 of 7



I111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 355 (2012)

Amendment No. 1
47 no less than three minutes, at the discretion of the presiding

48 officer such may me extended, whether they are proponents,

49 opponents or undecided on the item pending for action.

50 (e) Questions where clearly asked by citizens or other

51 persons shall be responded to either at the meeting publicly or

52 by some form of correspondence within ten days of the inquiry

53 which answer shall be recorded with the minutes of the meeting

54 for public inspection.

55 (f) At the discretion of the presiding officer over any

56 meetings as prescribed in this section in which a large number

57 of individuals wish to be heard, it may be required that

58 representatives of groups or factions on an item, rather than

59 all of the members of the groups or factions, address the board,

60 entity, or commission.

61 (2) The minutes of a meeting of any such board or

62 commission of any such state agency or authority, or entity

63 shall be promptly recorded, and such records shall be open to

64 public inspection. The circuit courts of this state shall have

65 jurisdiction to issue injunctions to enforce the purposes of

66 this section upon application by any citizen of this state or

67 other person.

68 (3) (a) Any public officer who violates any provision of

69 this section is guilty of a noncriminal infraction, punishable

70 by fine not exceeding $500.

71 (b) Any person who is a member of a board or commission or

72 of any state agency or authority of any county, municipal

73 corporation, or political subdivision, or of any entity created

74 under general, special or local law who knowingly violates the
095665 - h0355-strike-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:38:08 PM

Page 3 of 7



1I1I111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 355 (2012)

Amendment No. 1
75 provisions of this section by attending a meeting not held in

76 accordance with the provisions hereof is guilty of a misdemeanor

77 of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s.

78 775.083.

79 (c) Conduct which occurs outside the state which would

80 constitute a knowing violation of this section is a misdemeanor

81 of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s.

82 775.083.

83 (4) Whenever an action has been filed against any board or

84 commission of any state agency or authority or any agency or

85 authority of any county, municipal corporation, or political

86 subdivision, or of any entity created under general, special or

87 local law to enforce the provisions of this section or to

88 invalidate the actions of any such board, entity, commission,

89 agency, or authority, which action was taken in violation of

90 this section, and the court determines that the defendant or

91 defendants to such action acted in violation of this section,

92 the court shall assess a reasonable attorney's fee against such

93 agency, and may assess a reasonable attorney's fee against the

94 individual filing such an action if the court finds it was filed

95 in bad faith or was frivolous. Any fees so assessed may be

96 assessed against the individual member or members of such board

97 or commission; provided, that in any case where the board or

98 commission seeks the advice of its attorney and such advice is

99 followed, no such fees shall be assessed against the individual

100 member or members of the board, entity or commission. However,

101 this subsection shall not apply to a state attorney or his or

095665 - h0355-strike-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:38:08 PM

Page 4 of 7



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 355 (2012)

Amendment No. 1
102 her duly authorized assistants or any officer charged with

103 enforcing the provisions of this section.

104 (5) Whenever any board or commission of any state agency

105 or authority or any agency or authority of any county, municipal

106 corporation, er-political subdivision, or of any entity created

107 under general, special or local law appeals any court order

108 which has found said board, entity, commission, agency, or

109 authority to have violated this section, and such order is

110 affirmed, the court shall assess a reasonable attorney's fee for

111 the appeal against such board, entity, commission, agency, or

112 authority. Any fees so assessed may be assessed against the

113 individual member or members of such board, entity or

114 commission; provided, that in any case where the board, entity

115 or commission seeks the advice of its attorney and such advice

116 is followed, no such fees shall be assessed against the

117 individual member or members of the board, entity or commission.

118 (6) All persons subject to subsection (1) are prohibited

119 from holding meetings at any facility or location which

120 discriminates on the basis of sex, age, race, creed, color,

121 origin, or economic status or which operates in such a manner as

122 to unreasonably restrict public access to such a facility.

123 (7) Whenever any member of any board or commission of any

124 state agency or authority or any agency or authority of any

125 county, municipal corporation, er-political subdivision, or of

126 any entity created under general, special or local law is

127 charged with a violation of this section and is subsequently

128 acquitted, the board, entity or commission is authorized to

095665 - h0355-strike-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:38:08 PM

Page 5 of 7



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 355 (2012)

Amendment No. 1
129 reimburse said member for any portion of his or her reasonable

130 attorney's fees.

131 (8) Notwithstanding the provisions of subsection (1), any

132 board or commission of any state agency or authority or any

133 agency or authority of any county, municipal corporation, or

134 political subdivision, or of any entity created under general,

135 special or local law, and the chief administrative or executive

136 officer of the governmental entity, may meet in private with the

137 entity's attorney to discuss pending litigation to which the

138 entity is presently a party before a court or administrative

139 agency, provided that the following conditions are met:

140 (a) The board, entity or commission entity's attorney

141 shall advise the entity at a public meeting that he or she

142 desires advice concerning the litigation.

143 (b) The subject matter of the meeting shall be confined to

144 settlement negotiations or strategy sessions related to

145 litigation expenditures.

146 (c) The entire session shall be recorded by a certified

147 court reporter. The reporter shall record the times of

148 commencement and termination of the session, all discussion and

149 proceedings, the names of all persons present at any time, and

150 the names of all persons speaking. No portion of the session

151 shall be off the record. The court reporter's notes shall be

152 fully transcribed and filed with the entity's clerk within a

153 reasonable time after the meeting.

154 (d) The board, entity or commission entity shall give

155 reasonable public notice of the time and date of the attorney

156 client session and the names of persons who will be attending
095665 - h0355-strike-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:38:08 PM

Page 6 of 7



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 355 (2012)

Amendment No. 1
157 the session. The session shall commence at an open meeting at

158 which the persons chairing the meeting shall announce the

159 commencement and estimated length of the attorney-client session

160 and the names of the persons attending. At the conclusion of the

161 attorney-client session, the meeting shall be reopened, and the

162 person chairing the meeting shall announce the termination of

163 the session.

164 (e) The transcript shall be made part of the public record

165 upon conclusion of the litigation.

166 (9) This section shall preempt all other laws on public

167 meetings unless stated otherwise by the constitution or general

168 law and shall be supplementary to the constitution, general law

169 or court precedent which are not in conflict herewith.

170 Section 2. The bill shall take effect July 1, 2012

171

172

173 -----------------------------------------------------

174 TIT LEA MEN D MEN T

175 Remove the entire title and insert:

176

095665 - h0355-strike-l.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:38:08 PM

Page 7 of 7



n
Vl
........
:J:
OJ
U1
N
-.0



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

Bill #: CS/HB 529 Adult Day Care Centers
SPONSOR(S): Health & Human Services Access Subcommittee; Corcoran
TIED BillS: IDEN./SIM. BillS: CS/CS/SB 694

REFERENCE

1) Health & Human Services Access
Subcommittee

ACTION

14 Y, 0 N, As CS

ANALYST

Guzzo

STAFF DIRECTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

Schoolfield

2) Rulemaking & Regulation Subcommittee

3) Health Care Appropriations Subcommittee

4) Health & Human Services Committee

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

The bill creates the "Specialized Alzheimer's Services Adult Day Care Act"(Act). The act imposes
increased standards by creating a specialty license for adult day care centers (ADCCs) wishing to hold
themselves out to the public as providing specialized care for individuals with Alzheimer's disease or other
dementia related disorders. Adult day care centers currently advertising as providing specialty care for
Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders will be required to obtain the specialty license or
cease advertising as providing these specialty services. Under the Act, ADCCs wishing to obtain the
specialty license will be required to meet certain standards of care and provide a program for dementia
specific, therapeutic activities.

The bill requires additional staff, increased monitoring, and training in order to hold an adult day care
license for a center specializing in Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders. The bill also
increases the requirements to become an operator of an ADCC specializing in Alzheimer's disease or other
dementia-related disorders.

The bill appears to have an insignificant fiscal impact (See fiscal comments).

The bill has an effective date of July 1, 2012.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012



FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Current Situation

Alzheimer's Disease

There is an estimated 5.4 million people in the United States with Alzheimer's disease, including 5.2
million people aged 65 and older and 200,000 individuals under age 65 who have younger-onset
Alzheimer's disease. 1 In addition, there is an estimated 459,806 individuals suffering from Alzheimer's
disease in the state of Florida.2

By 2030, the segment of the United States population aged 65 years and older is expected to double;
and the estimated 71 million older Americans will make up approximately 20 percent of the total
population. 3 By 2050, the number of people aged 65 and older with Alzheimer's disease is expected
to triple to a projected 16 million people.4

Adult Day Care Centers - General

Adult day care centers (ADCCs) are regulated by the Agency for Health Care Administration (AHCA)
pursuant to part II of chapter 408, F.S., and part III of chapter 429, F.S. An adult day care center is
defined as "any building, buildings, or part of a building, whether operated for profit or not, in which is
provided through its ownership or management, for a part of a day, basic services to three or more
persons who are 18 years of age or older, who are not related to the owner or operator by blood or
marriage, and who require such services.,,5

Nearly half of all patients in adult day care centers in the United States suffer from Alzheimer's disease
or another form of dementia. Currently, there are 202 licensed ADCCs in the State of Florida.6 Section
429.90, F.S., directs AHCA to develop, establish, and enforce basic standards for ADCCs in order to
assure that a program of therapeutic social and health activities and services is provided to adults who
have functional impairments. Section 429.929, F.S., authorizes the Department of Elder Affairs, in
conjunction with AHCA, to adopt rules to implement the provisions of part III of chapter 429, F.S.

Each center must offer a planned program of varied activities and services promoting and maintaining
the health of participants and encouraging leisure activities, interaction and communication among
participants on a daily basis. Such activities and services must be available during at least sixty
percent of the time the center is open?

Participant Eligibility

Participant eligibility in ADCCs is limited to adults with functional impairments in need of a protective
environment and a program of therapeutic social and health activities and services. Centers are
prohibited from accepting participants who require medication during the time spent at the center and
who are incapable of self-administration of medications, unless there is a person to provide this service

1 Alzheimer's Association, 2011 Alzheimer's Disease Fact and Figures, located at
http://www.alz.org/alzheimers disease facts and figures.asp
2 Florida Department of Elder Affairs, 2011 Florida State Profile, located at
http://elderaffairs.state.fl.us/english/pubs/stats/County 2011 Projections/Florida Map.html
3 Alzheimer's Association, 2011 Alzheimer's Disease Fact and Figures, located at
http://www.alz.org/alzheimers disease facts and figures.asp
4 1d.

s S. 429.901(1), F.S.
~ AHCA, StaffAnalysis and Economic Impact, House Bill Number 529 (December 15, 2011).

Rule 58A-6.008(1), FAC.
STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012

PAGE: 2



who is licensed to administer medications.s Participants are required to provide a statement within
forty-five days prior to admission signed by a physician documenting freedom from tuberculosis and
freedom from signs and symptoms of other communicable diseases.9 Participants shall not be
admitted or retained in a center if the required services are beyond those that the center is licensed to
provide. 10

Staffing Requirements

Adult day care centers are required to have one staff member for every six participants, and at no time
maya center have less than two staff members present. 11 Staffing must be maintained at all times to
meet the needs of the participants as required by the participant file. 12 The owner or operator may be
counted as one of the required staff members if they provide direct services and are included in the
work schedule for the center. 13

Optional Supportive Services

Adult day care centers may choose to provide optional supportive services. If provided, such services
must be administered by staff qualified to provide such services. One of the optional supportive
services that an ADCC may choose to provide is adult day health care services for disabled adults or
aged persons. If an ADCC chooses to provide this service it must comply with certain standards
relating to the operation of the center. 14 The center must have a registered nurse or licensed practical
nurse (LPN) on site. If the center chooses an LPN, the LPN must be supervised in accordance with
chapter 464, F.S. To be considered a qualified operator of an ADCC, providing optional supportive
services, the operator must: 15

• Hold a minimum of a Bachelor's degree in a health or social services or related field with one
year of supervisory experience in a social or health service setting; or

• Hold a registered nurse license with one year of supervisory experience; or
• Have five years of supervisory experience in a social or health service setting.

Adult Day Care Centers-Alzheimer's Specific Requirements

Adult day care centers are required to provide the following Alzheimer's specific staff training: 16

• Each employee must receive basic written information about interacting with participants who
have Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders;

• Personnel whose responsibilities require them to have direct contact with participants who have
Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders must complete initial training of at least
one hour within the first three months of employment; and

• Employees who will be providing direct care to a participant who has Alzheimer's disease or
other dementia-related disorders must complete an additional three hours of training within the
first nine months of employment.

Current law requires ADCCs who claim to provide special care for individuals with Alzheimer's disease
or other related disorders to disclose in its advertisements or in a separate document those services
that distinguish the care as being applicable to such persons.17 At the time of survey, AHCA reviews

8 Rule 58A-6.006(1)(a), FAG.
9 1d.
10 1d.

11 Rule 58A-6.006(8), FAG.
12 1d.
13 1d.
14

Rule 58A-6.010(6), FAG.
15 Rule 58A-6.010(6){c), FAG.
16 S. 429.917(1), F.S.
17 S. 429.917(2), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012

PAGE: 3



documentation and advertisements relating to specialty care provided at the ADCC. 18 There are no
additional requirements placed on a center wishing to hold itself out as an ADCC providing such
specialized services. 19

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill creates the "Specialized Alzheimer's Services Adult Day Care Act". The bill provides for an
adult day care specialty license for ADCCs wishing to hold themselves out to the public as providing
specialized care for individuals with Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders. The bill
requires additional staff, increased monitoring, and training in order to hold an adult day care license for
a center specializing in Alzheimer's or other dementia-related disorders.

The bill does not prohibit ADCCs who do not have the specialty license from advertising that they
provide Alzheimer's services, but it does prohibit them from claiming to be licensed to provide
specialized Alzheimer's services unless they receive the specialty license..

Adult day care centers seeking the specialty license must meet the following additional requirements
beyond the standards contained in Part III of Chapter 429, Florida.Statutes:

• Have a mission statement that includes a commitment to providing dementia-specific services;
• Disclose in the center's advertisements or in a separate document the services that distinguish

the care as being suitable for a person who has Alzheimer's disease or a dementia-related
disorder;

• Provide a program for dementia-specific, therapeutic activities;
• Maintain a staff-to-participant ratio of one staff member who provides direct services for every

five participants. This is an increase from the current staff to patient ratio requirement of one
staff member for every six participants under Rule 58A-6.006(8)(a), F.A.C.;

• Provide a program for therapeutic activity at least seventy-percent of the time that the center is
open. This is an increase from the current requirement of sixty-percent under Rule 58A-6.008,
F.A.C.;

• Provide hands-on assistance with activities of daily living, inclusive of the provision of urinary
and bowel incontinence care;

• Use assessment tools that identify the participant's cognitive deficits and identify the specialized
and individualized needs of the participant and the caregiver. This assessment must be
conducted upon the participants admission to the center and must be updated when the
participant experiences a significant change, but no less frequently than annually;

• Create an individualized plan of care for each participant, which addresses the dementia
specific needs of the participant and the caregiver. The plan of care must be established upon
the participants admission to the center and must be reviewedquarterly;

• Conduct a monthly health assessment of the participant;
• Complete a monthly narrative in the participant's file regarding their status or progress toward

meeting the goals indicated on the individualized plan of care;
• Assist in the referral or coordination of other dementia-specific services and resources needed

by the participant or caregiver;
• Offer, facilitate, or provide referrals to a support group for caregivers; and
• Have a registered nurse or licensed practical nurse on site daily for at least seventy-five-percent

of the time that the center is open.
• Pr~vide de~entia-specific educational materials regularly to participants, as appropriate, and

their caregivers;
• Routinely conduct and document a count of all participants present in the center throughout

each day;

18 AHCA, StaffAnalysis and Economic Impact House Bill Number 529 (December 15 2011)
19 1d. ' , .

STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012

PAGE: 4



• Be a secured unit or have workingalarm or security devices installed on every door that i~

accessible to the participant and provides egress from the center or areas of the center
designated for the provision of adult day care specialized Alzheimer's services;

• Not allow a participant to administer their own medication; and
• Not allow a participant to drive to or from the center.

The bill requires participant files to contain a data sheet, which must be completed within 45 days
before or within 24 hours after admission to the ADCC. The data sheet must contain information
regarding the status of the participant's enrollment in an identification or wandering-prevention
program, including the name of the program and a current photograph of the participant.

The bill requires an ADCC to give to each participant or the participant's caregiver a copy of the
participant's plan of care, and a copy of the policies and procedures of the center, which must include
information pertaining to driving for those persons affected by Alzheimer's disease or dementia,
available technology on wandering-prevention devices and identification devices, the Silver Alert
program, and dementia-specific safety interventions and strategies that can be use in the home setting.

Training Requirements

Currently, ADCC staff must meet the following Alzheimer's specific training requirements: 2o

• Personnel whose responsibilities require them to have direct contact with participants who have
Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders must complete initial training of at least
one hour within the first three months of employment; and

• Employees who will be providing direct care to a participant who has Alzheimer's disease or
other dementia-related disorders must complete an additional three hours of training within the
first nine months of employment.

The bill requires ADCC staff, hired on or after July 1, 2012, I of facilities who hold the Alzheimer's
specialty license to meet the following Alzheimer's specific training requirements:

• Personnel whose responsibilities require them to have direct contact with participants who have
Alzheimer's disease or dementia-related disorders must complete four hours of dementia
specific training within the first three months of employment.

• Each employee who provides direct care to participants will be required to complete an
additional four hours of dementia-specific training within the first six months of employment.

The bill requires the Department of Elderly Affairs or its designee to approve the training and adopt
rules to establish standards for employees who are subject to this training, for trainers, and for the
training itself.

Upon completing the required training the employee shall be issued a certificate that includes the name
of the training provider, the topics covered, and the date and signature of the training provider. The
certificate is evidence of completion of training in the identified topics, and the employee is not required
to repeat training in those topics if the employee changes employment to a different ADCC.

Currently, ADCC staff members are required to be trained to implement the policies and procedures
specified in the orientation and training plan.21 The orientation and training plan is a written plan
developed and reviewed at least annually and implemented throughout the year which describes a
coordinated program for staff training for each service and for orientation of each new staff member on
center policies, procedures, assigned duties and responsibilities, which must begin no later than the
first day of employment.

22
The bill requires staff orientation to include procedures to locate a participant

who has wandered from the center which must be reviewed regularly with all direct care staff;

20 S. 429.917, F.S.
2\ Rule 58A-6.007(2), F.A.C.
22 Rule 58A-6.002(o), F.A.C.
STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012 PAGE: 5



information on the Silver Alert program; and information regarding available products or programs used
to identify participants or prevent them from wandering away from the center, their home, or other
locations.

Operator Requirements

Currently, operators of ADCCs are not required to meet any educational or background experience
requirements to qualify as an operator. In order to obtain the Alzheimer's specialty license, the bill
requires ADCC operators who are hired on or after July 1, 2012 to meet the educational and
experience requirements that are currently only applicable to ADCCs who chose to provide optional
supportive services for disabled adults or aged persons. Adult day care center operators, or their
designees, will be required to have a Bachelors degree in health care services, social services, or a
related field, one year of supervisory experience in a social services or health care service setting, and
have a minimum of one-year of experience in providing dementia-specific services. A person may also
qualify to be an operator if they possess a license as a registered or practical nurse, have one year of
supervisory experience in a social services or health care services setting, and have a minimum of one
year of experience in providing dementia-specific services. Lastly, a person may qualify as an operator
if they have five years of supervisory experience in social services or health care services, and a
minimum of three years of experience in providing dementia-specific services.

Participant Eligibility

The bill creates additional admission requirements for participants seeking admittance in an ADCC
holding the Alzheimer's specialty license. The additional admission requirements would prohibit a
center having the specialty license from being able to admit participants other than those meeting the
specific admission requirements. These specialty centers would not be able to service populations
other than those participants.23 The bill requires potential ADCC participants to meet the following pre
admission requirements:

• Require ongoing supervision to maintain the highest level of medical or custodial functioning
and have a demonstrated need for a responsible party to oversee his or her care;

• Must not actively demonstrate aggressive behavior that places themselves or others at risk of
harm; and

• Provide additional medical documentation signed by a licensed physician or a health care
provider, which must include:

o Any physical, health, or emotional conditions that require medical care;
o A listing of the current prescribed and over-the-counter medications and dosages, diet

restrictions, mobility restrictions, and other physical limitations; and
o Proof that the person is free of the communicable form of tuberculosis and free of signs

and symptoms of other communicable diseases.

The bill also requires the ADCC to make certain determinations regarding the centers ability to treat the
potential participant before admission. The ADCC must determine whether:

• The medical, psychological, safety, and behavioral support and intervention required by the
person can be provided by the center; and

• The resources required to assist with the person's acuity of care and support needed can be
provided or coordinated by the center.

The bill requires ADCCs to coordinate and execute appropriate discharge procedures for participants
who have had their enrollment involuntarily terminated due to medical or behavioral reasons.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

23 AHCA, Staff Analysis and Economic Impact, House Bill Number 529 (December 15, 2011).
STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012

PAGE: 6



Section 1. Amends s. 429.917, F.S., relating to patients with Alzheimer's disease or other related
disorders;
Section 2. Creates s. 429.918, F.S., relating to the Specialized Alzheimer's Services License;
Section 3. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2012.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

See fiscal comments section.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

The bill will require more and different staff and expenses for adult day care centers wishing to obtain
the Adult Day Care Specialized Alzheimer's Services License.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

The Agency for Health Care Administration expects this legislation to result in annual recurring
expenditures of $94,204. Licensure fees from the creation of the specialty license may be used to
cover the cost of licensure and required surveys if increased appropriately.24 The Agency for Health
Care Administration can absorb the impact of this increase within their existing resources.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not applicable. This bill does not appear to affect county or municipal governments.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill authorizes the Department of Elderly Affairs to adopt rules.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

24 1d.

STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012

PAGE: 7



None.

IV. AMENDMENTSI COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On January 17, 2012, the Health and Human Services Access Subcommittee adopted a strike-all
amendment to HB 529. The amendment:

• Prohibits an adult day care center from claiming to be licensed to provide specialized Alzheimer's
services unless it receives the specialty license;

• Defines the term "ADRD participant";
• States that the licensure created by the bill is voluntary;
• Requires an adult day care center with the specialty license to provide ADRD participants with

hands-on assistance with activities of daily living, inclusive of the provision of urinary and bowel
incontinence care;

• Provides that only operators hired on or after July 1, 2012, have to meet the specified educational
and experience requirements;

• Provides that a registered nurse or licensed practical nurse must be on site daily for at least
seventy-five-percent of the time that the center is open, rather than during all hours of operation;

• Provides that only staff hired on or after July 1, 2012, have to complete the additional training
requirements;

• Requires the Department of Elderly Affairs to approve the training required under the bill and
provides rulemaking authority to the department to do so;

• Provides that employees must receive a certificate upon completion of the required training;
• Requires every employee to receive basic written information about interacting with ADRD

participants;
• Clarifies that the bill does not prohibit an adult day care center that chooses not to become licensed

from providing adult day care services to persons who have Alzheimer's disease or other dementia
related disorders; and

• Makes technical changes.

The bill was reported favorably as a Committee Substitute. This analysis reflects the Committee
Substitute.

STORAGE NAME: h0529d.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 1/31/2012

PAGE: 8



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to adult day care centers; amending s.

429.917, F.S.; prohibiting an adult day care center

from claiming to be licensed to provide specialized

Alzheimer's services under certain circumstances;

creating s. 429.918, F.S.; providing a short title;

providing definitions; providing for the voluntary

licensure of adult day care centers that provide

specialized Alzheimer's services; requiring an adult

day care center seeking such licensure to meet

specified criteria; providing educational and

experience requirements for the operator of an adult

day care center seeking licensure to provide

specialized Alzheimer's services; providing criteria

for staff training and supervision; requiring that the

Department of Elderly Affairs approve the staff

training; requiring the department to adopt rules;

requiring that the employee be issued a certificate

upon completion of the staff training; providing

requirements for staff orientation; providing

requirements for admission into such an adult day care

center; requiring that a participant's file include a

data sheet, which shall be completed within a certain

timeframe; requiring that certain information be

included in the data sheet; requiring that dementia

specific services be documented in a participant's

file; requiring that a participant's plan of care be

reviewed quarterly; requiring that certain notes be

Page 1of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

29 entered into a participant's file; requiring the

30 participant to provide the adult day care center with

31 updated medical documentation; requiring the center to

32 give each person who enrolls as a participant, or the

33 caregiver, a copy of the participant's plan of care

34 and safety information; requiring that the center

35 coordinate and execute discharge procedures with a

36 participant who has a documented diagnosis of

37 Alzheimer's disease or a dementia-related disorder and

38 the caregiver if the participant's enrollment in the

39 center is involuntarily terminated; providing that the

40 act does not prohibit an adult day care center that

41 does not become licensed to provide specialized

42 Alzheimer's services from providing adult day care

43 services to persons who have Alzheimer's disease or

44 other dementia-related disorders; authorizing the

45 Department of Elderly Affairs to adopt rules;

46 providing an effective date.

47

48 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the state of Florida:

49

50 Section 1. Subsection (2) of section 429.917, Florida

51 Statutes, is amended to read:

52 429.917 Patients with Alzheimer's disease or other related

53 disorders; staff training requirements; certain disclosures.-

54 (2) A center licensed under this part which claims that it

55 provides special care for persons who have Alzheimer's disease

56 or other related disorders must disclose in its advertisements

Page 2of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

57 or in a separate document those services that distinguish the

58 care as being especially applicable to, or suitable for, such

59 persons. The center must give a copy of all such advertisements

60 or a copy of the document to each person who requests

61 information about the center and must maintain a copy of all

62 such advertisements and documents in its records. The agency

63 shall examine all such advertisements and documents in the

64 center's records as part of the license renewal procedure. An

65 adult day care center may not claim to be licensed to provide

66 specialized Alzheimer's services unless it has been licensed

67 pursuant to s. 429.918.

68 Section 2. Section 429.918, Florida Statutes, is created

69 to read:

70 429.918 Specialized Alzheimer's services licensure.-

71 (1) This section may be cited as the "Specialized

72 Alzheimer's Services Adult Day Care Act."

73 (2) As used in this section, the term:

74 (a) "ADRD participant" means a participant who has a

75 documented diagnosis of Alzheimer's disease or a dementia-

76 related disorder (ADRD) from a licensed physician or a health

77 care provider who is under the direct supervision of a licensed

78 physician.

79 (b) "Dementia" means the loss of at least two intellectual

80 functions, such as thinking, remembering, and reasoning, which

81 is severe enough to interfere with a person's daily function.

82 The term does not describe a disease, but describes a group of

83 symptoms that may accompany certain diseases or physical

84 conditions.

Page 3of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

85 (c) "Specialized Alzheimer's services" means therapeutic,

86 behavioral, health, safety, and security interventions; clinical

87 care; support services; and educational services that are

88 customized for the specialized needs of an ADRD participant's

89 caregiver and the participant who is affected by Alzheimer's

90 disease or an irreversible, degenerative condition resulting in

91 dementia.

92(3) In addition to the standards required for licensure as

93 an adult day care center under this part, an adult day care

94 center may seek voluntary licensure under this section as a

95 specialized Alzheimer's services licensee.

96 (4) An adult day care center seeking licensure under this

97 section must:

98 (a) Have a mission statement that includes a commitment to

99 proving dementia-specific services and disclose in the center's

100 advertisements or in a separate document the services that

101 distinguish the care as being suitable for a person who has

102 Alzheimer's disease or a dementia-related disorder.

103 (b) Provide ADRD participants with a program for dementia

104 specific, therapeutic activities, including, but not limited to,

105 physical, cognitive, and social activities appropriate for the

106 ADRD participant's age, culture, and level of function.

107 (c) Maintain at all times a minimum staff-to-participant

108 ratio of one staff member who provides direct services for every

109 five ADRD participants.

110 (d) Provide ADRD participants with a program for

111 therapeutic activity at least 70 percent of the time that the

112 center is open.

Page 4of 11

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

113 (e) Provide ADRD participants with hands-on assistance

114 with activities of daily living, inclusive of the provision of

115 urinary and bowel incontinence care.

116 (f) Use assessment tools that identify the ADRD

117 participant's cognitive deficits and identify the specialized

118 and individualized needs of the ADRD participant and the

119 caregiver. This assessment shall be conducted when the ADRD

120 participant is initially admitted into the center and shall be

121 updated when the ADRD participant experiences a significant

122 change, but no less frequently than annually.

123 (g) Create an individualized plan of care for each ADRD

124 participant which addresses the identified, dementia-specific

125 needs of the ADRD participant and the caregiver. The plan of

126 care shall be established when the ADRD participant is initially

127 admitted into the center and reviewed at least quarterly.

128 (h) Conduct a monthly health assessment of each ADRD

129 participant which includes, but is not limited to, the ADRD

130 participant's weight, vital signs, and level of assistance

131 needed with activities of daily living.

132 (i) Complete a monthly update in each ADRD participant's

133 file regarding the ADRD participant's status or progress toward

134 meeting the goals indicated on the individualized plan of care.

135 (j) Assist in the referral or coordination of other

136 dementia-specific services and resources needed by the ADRD

137 participant or the caregiver, such as medical services,

138 counseling, medical planning, legal planning, financial

139 planning, safety and security planning, disaster planning,

140 driving assessment, transportation coordination, or wandering

Page 5of 11

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

141 prevention.

142 (k) Offer, facilitate, or provide referrals to a support

143 group for persons who are caregivers to ADRD participants.

144 (1) Provide dementia-specific educational materials

145 regularly to ADRD participants, as appropriate, and their

146 caregivers.

147 (m) Routinely conduct and document a count of all ADRD

148 participants present in the center throughout each day. This

149 count must be compared to each ADRD participant's attendance

150 record in order to ensure that an ADRD participant is not

151 missing from the center.

152 (n) Be a secured unit or have working alarm or security

153 devices installed on every door that is accessible to the ADRD

154 participants and provides egress from the center or areas of the

155 center designated for the provision of specialized Alzheimer's

156 adult day care services.

157 (0) Not allow an ADRD participant to administer his or her

158 own medication.

159 (p) Not allow an ADRD participant to drive himself or

160 herself to or from the center.

161 (5) The operator of an adult day care center licensed

162 under this section, and the operator's designee, as applicable,

163 hired on or after July 1, 2012, shall:

164 (a) Have at least a bachelor's degree in health care

165 services, social services, or a related field, at least 1 year

166 of supervisory experience in a social services or health care

167 services setting, and at least 1 year of experience in providing

168 services to persons who have dementia;

Page 6of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

169 (b) Be a registered or practical nurse licensed in this

170 state, have at least 1 year of supervisory experience in a

171 social services or health care services setting, and have at

172 least 1 year of experience in providing services to persons who

173 have dementia; or

174 (c) Have at least 5 years of supervisory experience in a

175 social services or health care services setting and at least 3

176 years of experience in providing services to persons who have

177 dementia.

178 (6) (a) An adult day care center licensed under this

179 section must provide the following staff training and

180 supervision:

181 1. A registered nurse or licensed practical nurse must be

182 on site daily for at least 75 percent of the time that the

183 center is open to ADRD participants. Each licensed practical

184 nurse who works at the center must be supervised in accordance

185 with chapter 464.

186 2. Upon beginning employment with the center, each

187 employee must receive basic written information about

188 interacting with ADRD participants.

189 3. In addition to the information provided in subparagraph

190 2., every employee hired on or after July 1, 2012, who has

191 direct contact with ADRD participants shall complete 4 hours of

192 dementia-specific training within 3 months after beginning

193 employment.

194 4. In addition to the requirements of subparagraphs 2. and

195 3., each employee hired on or after July 1, 2012, who provides

196 direct care to ADRD participants shall complete an additional 4

Page 7of 11

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

197 hours of dementia-specific training within 6 months after

198 beginning employment.

199 (b) The Department of Elderly Affairs or its designee

200 shall approve the training required under this section. The

201 department shall adopt rules to establish standards for

202 employees who are subject to this training, for trainers, and

203 for the training required in this section.

204 (c) Upon completing any training described in this

205 section, the employee shall be issued a certificate that

206 includes the name of the training provider, the topics covered,

207 and the date and signature of the training provider. The

208 certificate is evidence of completion of training in the

209 identified topics, and the employee is not required to repeat

210 training in those topics if the employee changes employment to a

211 different adult day care center.

212 (d) Each employee hired on or after July 1, 2012, who

213 provides direct care to ADRD participants, must receive an

214 orientation plan that includes, at a minimum:

215 1. Procedures to locate an ADRD participant who has

216 wandered from the center. These procedures shall be reviewed

217 regularly with all direct care staff.

218 2. Information on the Silver Alert program in this state.

219 3. Information regarding available products or programs

220 used to identify ADRD participants or prevent them from

221 wandering away from the center, their homes, or other locations.

222 (7) (a) An ADRD participant admitted to an adult day care

223 center licensed under this section must:

224 1. Require ongoing supervision to maintain the highest

Page 8of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

225 level of medical or custodial functioning and have a

226 demonstrated need for a responsible party to oversee his or her

227 care.

228 2. Not actively demonstrate aggressive behavior that

229 places himself, herself, or others at risk of harm.

230 3. Provide the following medical documentation signed by a

231 licensed physician or a health care provider who is under the

232 direct supervision of a licensed physician:

233 a. Any physical, health, or emotional condition that

234 requires medical care.

235 b. A listing of the ADRD participant's current prescribed

236 and over-the-counter medications and dosages, diet restrictions,

237 mobility restrictions, and other physical limitations.

238 4. Provide documentation signed by a health care provider

239 licensed in this state which indicates that the ADRD participant

240 is free of the communicable form of tuberculosis and free of

241 signs and symptoms of other communicable diseases.

242 (b) Before admitting an ADRD participant to an adult day

243 care center licensed under this section, the center shall

244 determine whether:

245 1. The medical, psychological, safety, and behavioral

246 support and intervention required by the ADRD participant can be

247 provided by the center.

248 2. The resources required to assist with the ADRD

249 participant's acuity level of care and support needed can be

250 provided or coordinated by the center.

251 (8) (a) An ADRD participant's file must include a data

252 sheet, which must be completed within 45 days before or within

Page 9of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

253 24 hours after admission to an adult day care center licensed

254 under this section. The data sheet must contain:

255 1. Information regarding the status of the ADRD

256 participant's enrollment in an identification or wandering

257 prevention program, including the name of the program; and

258 2. A current photograph of the ADRD participant.

259 (b) Dementia-specific services shall be documented in the

260 ADRD participant's file.

261 (c) An ADRD participant's plan of care must be reviewed at

262 least quarterly. Notes regarding services provided to the ADRD

263 participant must be entered at least monthly in the ADRD

264 participant's file, and must indicate the ADRD participant's

265 status or progress toward achieving identified goals. Additional

266 notes must be entered more frequently if indicated by the ADRD

267 participant's condition.

268 (d) An ADRD participant shall annually provide the center

269 with updated medical documentation required under subparagraphs

270 (7) (a)3. and 4., and the center must place that documentation in

271 the ADRD participant's file.

272 (9) An adult day care center licensed under this section

273 must give to each person who enrolls as an ADRD participant in

274 the center, or the caregiver, a copy of the ADRD participant's

275 plan of care, as well as information regarding resources to

276 assist in ensuring the safety and security of the ADRD

277 participant, which must include, but need not be limited to,

278 information pertaining to driving for those persons affected by

279 dementia, available technology on wandering-prevention devices

280 and identification devices, the Silver Alert program in this

Page 10 of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 529

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

281 state, and dementia-specific safety interventions and strategies

282 that can be used in the home setting.

283 (10) If an ADRD participant's enrollment in the center is

284 involuntarily terminated due to medical or behavioral reasons,

285 the center shall coordinate and execute appropriate discharge

286 procedures with the ADRD participant and the caregiver.

287 (11) This section does not prohibit an adult day care

288 center that does not become licensed under this section from

289 providing adult day care services to persons who have

290 Alzheimer's disease or other dementia-related disorders.

291 (12) The Department of Elderly Affairs may adopt rules to

292 administer this section.

293 Section 3. This act shall take effect July 1, 2012.

Page 11 of 11

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0529-01-c1





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: CS/HB 643 Title Insurance
SPONSOR(S): Insurance & Banking Subcommittee and Moraitis, Jr.
TIED BILLS: HB 645 IDEN./SIM. BILLS: SB 1404

REFERENCE

1) Insurance & Banking Subcommittee

2) Rulemaking & Regulation Subcommittee

3) Government Operations Appropriations
Subcommittee

4) Economic Affairs Committee

ACTION

13Y,1 N,AsCS

ANALYST

Reilly

Miller

STAFF DIRECTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

Cooper

#-Rubottom

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

Title insurance insures owners of real property (owner's policy) or others having an interest in real property
against loss by encumbrance, defective title, invalidity, or adverse claim to title. The bill requires title insurers
and title insurance agencies to submit to the Office of Insurance Regulation (OIR), by March 31 of each year,
data that have been identified as necessary to assist in the analysis of premium rates, title search costs, and
the condition of Florida's title insurance industry. The Financial Services Commission is authorized to
promulgate rules governing the collection and analysis of such data. The Department of Financial Services is
required to take adverse action against title insurance agents or agencies that fail to timely file the required
data, including suspension or revocation of authority.

Under current law, title insurance agents must complete 10 hours of continuing education (CE) every 2 years
on any insurance products sold in Florida. However, these agents are authorized to sell only title insurance
products and no other lines of insurance. The bill amends CE requirements for title insurance agents,
specifying that the credit hours must be earned in title insurance and escrow management courses specific
to Florida and approved by the Department of Financial Services. At least 1.5 of the CE hours must be in
ethics, rules, or compliance with state and federal regulations relating to title insurance and closing services.

The bill requires attorneys who serve as title insurance or real estate settlement agents to deposit and
maintain funds received in connection with such transactions into a separate trust account, unless
maintaining funds in the separate account for a particular client would violate rules of the Florida Bar. Such
attorneys are also required to permit title insurers for whom they hold funds to audit the separate account.

The bill also requires the OIR to:

• Approve or disapprove forms filed by title insurers within 180 days after receipt and, when approving a
form, to determine if the current rate applies or if the coverages require the adoption of rules.

• Expeditiously approve filed forms that contain identical coverages, rates, and approved deviations to a
form the OIR has approved for another title insurer to prevent a competitive advantage in the
marketplace.

The OIR is authorized to revoke approval of any form after prOViding 180 days notice to the title insurer.

To the extent that the bill provides timeframes for the approval/disapproval of title insurance forms and
annual review of title insurance data by the OIR, it will permit title insurers to respond more quickly to
changes in the marketplace and ensure that the premiums charged are appropriate.

The bill is effective July 1, 2012.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h0643a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 2

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Overview of Title Insurance

Title insurance insures owners of real property (owner's policy) or others having an interest in real
property against loss by encumbrance, defective title, invalidity, or adverse claim to title.1 Title
insurance is a policy issued by a title insurer that, after performing a search of title, represents the state
of that title and insures the accuracy of its search against claims of title defects. It is usually taken out
by the purchaser of property or an entity that is loaning money on a mortgage.

Purchasers of real property and lenders utilize title insurance to protect themselves against claims by
others that claim to be the rightful owner of the property. Most lenders require title insurance when they
underwrite loans for real property. Title insurance provides a duty to defend related to adverse claims
against title, and also promises to indemnify the policyholder for damage to the lender's security
interest created by a cloud on title, unmarketable title, or adverse title that was not discovered by the
insurer.2

Regulation in Florida

Historically, a single regulatory entity, the Department of Insurance, promulgated title insurance rates
and regUlated title insurance agents in Florida. Under current law, two entities provide regUlatory
oversight of the title insurance industry: the Department of Financial Services (DFS), which regulates
title agents, and the Office of Insurance RegUlation (OIR), which regulates title insurers, including
licensing and promulgation of rates. Title insurance forms must be filed and approved by the OIR prior
to usage3

,4 and rates and premiums charged by title insurers are specified by rule by the Financial
Services Commission (FSC).5 Title insurers may deviate from the proscribed rates by petitioning the
OIR for an order authorizing a specific deviation from the adopted premium.6

Title insurers operate on a monoline basis, meaning that the insurer can only transact title insurance
and cannot transact any other type of insurance? Pursuant to s. 627.782, F.S., the FSC is mandated to
adopt by rule and specify a premium to be charged by title insurers for the respective types of title
insurance contracts and, for policies issued through agents or agencies, the percentage of such
premium required to be retained by the title insurer, which shall not be less than 30%. The FSC must
review the premium not less than once every three years. Also, the FSC may by rule require insurers to
submit statistical information, including loss and expense data, as it determines to be necessary to
analyze premium rates. 8 This rulemaking is not mandatory under the present statute.

Title Insurance Agencies and Agents

1 Section 624.608, F.S. Title insurance is also insurance of owners and secured parties as to the existence, attachment, perfection
and priority of a security interest in personal property under the Uniform Commercial Code.

2 See, e.g., the website of the American Land Title Association, http://www.alta.org (last visited January 7,2012). ALTA is the
national trade association of the abstract and title insurance industry. There are currently six basic ALTA policies of title insurance:
Lenders, Lenders Leasehold, Owners, Owners Leasehold, Residential, and Construction Loan Policies.
3 Section 627.777, F.S.

4 According to the OIR, there is currently no timeframe within which it is required to approve or disapprove filed title insurance
forms.
5 Section 627.782, F.s.
6 Section 627.783, F.S.
7 Section 627.786, F.S.
8 Section 627.782(8), F.s.
STORAGE NAME: h0643a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 3

Title insurance agencies must apply for and be licensed by the DFS, and are separately appointed9 by
each title insurer they represent.

To be licensed as a title insurance agent, a person must qualify for and pass a written examination
given by the DFS. The examination must test the applicant's ability, competence, and knowledge of title
insurance and real property transactions and the duties and responsibilities of licensees. In addition to
title insurance, topics to be covered on the test include abstracting, title searches, examination of title,
closing procedures, and escrow handling.

Prior to taking the test, an applicant must complete 40 hours of classroom work in title insurance in the
4 years immediately preceding the application date, or have had 12 months experience working in the
title insurance industry as a substantially full-time employee. Licensed title insurance agents are
required to take 10 hours of continuing education courses every 2 years10 on any insurance products
sold in Florida, and must be separately appointed by each insurer they represent.

Effect of the Bill

The bill makes changes to title insurance regulation as follows.

Title Insurance Forms

The bill requires OIR to approve or disapprove filed title insurance forms within 180 days of receipt.
(Currently, there are no timeframes within which filed forms must be approved or disapproved.) When
approving a form, the OIR must determine if the current rate applies or if the coverages require
rulemaking. To prevent a competitive advantage to an insurer that has received approval of a filed form,
the OIR is required to expeditiously approve forms filed by other insurers that contain identical
coverages, rates, and approved deviations as the approved form.

Submission of Data to the OIR

Title insurers, their direct or retail businesses in the state, and title agencies will be required to submit to
the OIR, on or before March 31 of each year, revenue, loss, and expense data for the most recently
concluded year that are determined necessary to assist in the analysis of premium rates, title search
costs, and the condition of the Florida title insurance industry. The Financial Services Commission is
authorized to adopt rules to assist in data analysis and collection. Failure to submit the required data
timely to OIR will constitute grounds for DFS to take disciplinary action against the licensed or
appointment of the title insurance agent or agency. Possible sanctions include suspension or
revocation of a license or appointment. The bill creates a safe harbor for non-compliance if the data
reporting rule is subject to a rule challenge under s. 120.56, F.S.,11 contesting the form or substance of
the data that must be submitted.

Separate Escrow Account for Specified Funds Held by Attorneys

Attorneys who serve as title insurance or real estate settlement agents will be required to deposit and
maintain funds received in connection with such transactions into a separate trust account, unless
maintaining funds in the separate account for a particular client would violate rules of the Florida Bar.
Attorneys are required to allow insurers for whom they hold funds to audit the separate account.

Continuing Education Requirements for Title Insurance Agents

While the number of continuing education (CE) hours title insurance agents must complete every 2
years remains unchanged (10 hours), the bill requires that the credits be earned in title insurance and

:oAn appointment is the authority given by an insurer to a licensee to transact insurance on its behalf.
Section 626.2815(3)(d), F.S.

11 The section of the Administrative Procedure Act (APA) under which a party may challenge a rule as an invalid exercise of delegated
authority.
STORAGE NAME: h0643a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 4

escrow management courses specific to Florida, and which have been approved by the DFS. At least
1.5 of these hours must be in ethics, rules, or compliance with state and federal regulations relating to
title insurance and closing services.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 626.2815, F.S., to revise continuing education requirements for title insurance
agents.

Section 2. Amends s. 626.8437, F.S., to require the Department of Financial Services to deny,
suspend or revoke the authority of title insurance agents and agencies that do not timely submit annual
data to the 01R.

Section 3. Amends s. 626.8473, F.S., to require attorneys who serve as title or real estate settlement
agents to deposit funds received in connection with these transactions in a separate account, unless
such deposit as to a particular client would violate rules of the Florida Bar.

Section 4. Amends s. 627.777, F.S., relating to approval or disapproval of title insurance forms filed
with the 01R.

Section 5. Amends s. 627.782, F.S., to require title insurers, their affiliated businesses in Florida, and
title agents to submit certain financial data annually to the OIR; mandates penalties for failure to timely
submit required data.

Section 6. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2012.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

Requiring title insurers to annually submit data for analysis to the OIR, establishing timeframes within
which filed forms must be approved or disapproved, and requiring a determination of whether current
rates apply to newly approved forms, will allow the title insurance industry to be more responsive to
changes in the title insurance market and ensure proper review of premium charges.

Title i~~urers an? title agencies may have to invest in technology and expand the programming
capaCities of their current computer systems to collect and provide the OIR with data based upon the
bill's requirement for rulemaking by the Financial Services Commission. As it is likely that the regulatory

STORAGE NAME: h0643a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



cost of such rule will exceed $1 million in the aggregate over 5 years, the OIR will be required to submit
the rule to the Legislature for ratification before it takes effect pursuant to s. 120.541 (3), F.S.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

See comments in Section II.C.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not applicable. This bill does not appear to: require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take
an action requiring the expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have
to raise revenues in the aggregate; or, reduce the percentage of a state tax shared with counties or
municipalities.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill directs the Financial Services Commission to promulgate rules governing the submission and
collection of certain financial data from title insurers.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

The bill makes failure to timely submit certain financial data a violation of the statute for which DFS may
impose sanctions against an applicant, licensee, or appointee. However, if the rule establishing the
form and type of data to be reported is subject to a pending challenge the reporting requirement
apparently would not apply. By attempting to provide a safe harbor from sanctions, the bill creates
uncertainty as to how this exception would be applied. The bill could provide that the reporting
requirement would be suspended only for the party who files a proper rule challenge until the entry of a
final order on the petition.

IV. AMENDMENTSI COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

None.

STORAGE NAME: h0643a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 5



FLORIDA

CS/HB 643

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to title insurance; amending s.

3 626.2815, F.S.; specifying continuing education

4 requirements for title insurance agents; amending s.

5 626.8437, F.S.; specifying additional grounds to deny,

6 suspend, revoke, or refuse to renew or continue the

7 license or appointment of a title insurance agent or

8 agency; amending s. 626.8473, F.S.; requiring an

9 attorney serving as a title or real estate settlement

10 agent to deposit and maintain certain funds in a

11 separate trust account and permit the account to be

12 audited by the applicable title insurer, unless

13 prohibited by the rules of The Florida Bar; amending

14 s. 627.777, F.S.; providing procedures and

15 requirements relating to the approval or disapproval

16 of title insurance forms by the Office of Insurance

17 Regulation; amending s. 627.782, F.S.; requiring title

18 insurance agencies and certain insurers to submit

19 specified information to the office to assist in the

20 analysis of title insurance premium rates, title

21 search costs, and the condition of the title insurance

22 industry; requiring the Financial Services Commission

23 to adopt rules; providing an effective date.

24

25 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

26

Page 1of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0643-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 643

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

27 Section 1. Paragraph (d) of subsection (3) of section

28 626.2815, Florida Statutes, is amended, and paragraph (1) is

29 added to that subsection, to read:

30 626.2815 Continuing education required; application;

31 exceptions; requirements; penalties.-

32 (3)

33 (d) Any person who holds a license as a customer

34 representative, limited customer representative, title agent,

35 motor vehicle physical damage and mechanical breakdown insurance

36 agent, crop or hail and multiple-peril crop insurance agent, or

37 as an industrial fire insurance or burglary insurance agent and

38 who is not a licensed life or health insurance agent, must shall

39 be required to complete 10 hours of continuing education courses

40 every 2 years.

41 (1) Any person who holds a license as a title insurance

42 agent must complete a minimum of 10 hours of continuing

43 education courses every 2 years in title insurance and escrow

44 management specific to this state and approved by the

45 department, which shall include at least 1.5 hours of continuing

46 education on the subject matter of ethics, rules, or compliance

47 with state and federal regulations relating to title insurance

48 and closing services.

49 Section 2. Subsection (11) is added to section 626.8437,

50 Florida Statutes, to read:

51 626.8437 Grounds for denial, suspension, revocation, or

52 refusal to renew license or appointment.-The department shall

53 deny, suspend, revoke, or refuse to renew or continue the

54 license or appointment of any title insurance agent or agency,

Page 2of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0643-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 643

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

55 and it shall suspend or revoke the eligibility to hold a license

56 or appointment of such person, if it finds that as to the

57 applicant, licensee, appointee, or any principal thereof, any

58 one or more of the following grounds exist:

59 (11) Failure to timely submit data as required by s.

60 627.782, unless a rule challenge has been filed pursuant to s.

61 120.56 as to the form or substance of data to be provided.

62 Section 3. Subsection (8) is added to section 626.8473,

63 Florida Statutes, to read:

64 626.8473 Escrow; trust fund.-

65 (8) An attorney shall d~posit and maintain all funds

66 received in connection with transactions in which the attorney

67 is serving as a title or real estate settlement agent into a

68 separate trust account that is maintained exclusively for funds

69 received in connection with such transactions and permit the

70 account to be audited by its title insurers, unless maintaining

71 funds in the separate account for a particular client would

72 violate applicable rules of The Florida Bar.

73 Section 4. Section 627.777, Florida Statutes, is amended

74 to read:

75 627.777 Approval of forms.-

76 ill A title insurer may not issue or agree to issue any

77 form of title insurance commitment, title insurance policy,

78 other contract of title insurance, or related form until it is

79 filed with and approved by the office. The office may not

80 disapprove a title guarantee or policy form on the ground that

81 it has on it a blank form for an attorney's opinion on the

82 title.

Page 3of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0643-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 643

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

83 (2) The office shall approve or disapprove a form filed

84 for approval within 180 days after receipt.

85 (3) When the office approves any form, it shall determine

86 if the current rate in effect applies or if the coverages

87 require the adoption of a rule pursuant to s. 627.782.

88 (4) The office may revoke approval of any form after

89 providing 180 days' notice to the title insurer.

90 (5) An insurer may not achieve a competitive advantage

91 over any other insurer, agency, or agent as to rates or forms.

92 If a form or rate is approved for an insurer, the office shall

93 expeditiously approve the forms of .other insurers who apply for

94 approval if those forms contain identical coverages, rates, and

95 deviations which have been approved under s. 627.783.

96 Section 5. Subsection (8) of section 627.782, Florida

97 Statutes, is amended to read:

98 627.782 Adoption of rates.-

99 (8) Each title insurance agency and insurer licensed to do

100 business in this state and each insurer's direct or retail

101 business in this state shall maintain and submit information,

102 including revenue, loss, and expense data, as the office

103 determines necessary to assist in the analysis of title

104 insurance premium rates, title search costs, and the condition

105 of the title insurance industry in this state. This information

106 must be transmitted to the office annually by March 31 of the

107 year after the reporting year. The commission shall adopt rules

108 to assist in the collection and analysis of the data from the

109 title insurance industry. The commission may, by rule, require

110 licensees under this part to annually submit statistical

Page 4of5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0643-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 643

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

111 infon-Ration, including loss and C}{pense data, as the department

112 determines to be necessary to analyze premium rates, retention

113 rates, and the condition of the title insurance industry.

114 Section 6. This act shall take effect July 1, 2012.

Page 5of 5

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb0643-01-c1



n
Vl
........
:c
OJ
............
-e......



HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

Bill #: CS/HB 1191 Parent Empowerment in Education
SPONSOR(S): K-20 Innovation Subcommittee, Bileca and others
TIED BillS: IDEN.lSIM. BillS: CS/SB 1718

REFERENCE

1) K-20 Innovation Subcommittee

ACTION

11 Y, 3 N, As CS

ANALYST

Beagle

STAFF DIRECTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

Sherry

2) Rulemaking & Regulation Subcommittee

3) PreK-12 Appropriations Subcommittee

4) Education Committee

Rubotto

SUMMARY ANALYSIS
The bill enables parents, by petitioning the school district, to request implementation of a parent-selected
turnaround option when a school does not sufficiently improve in the initial year of implementing a district
selected turnaround option. The turnaround option requested by parents must be considered for
implementation by the district school board at a publicly noticed meeting if the petition is signed and dated by a
majority of the parents of eligible students, i.e., students enrolled in the school or students who are scheduled
for assignment to the school in the following school year.

The district school board may adopt the turnaround option selected by parents or a different option selected by
the school board. If the district school board does not adopt the parent-selected option, it must include that
option with the implementation plan submitted to the State Board of Education. The state board may approve
the district's plan or, if it determines that the parent-selected option is more likely to improve student
performance at the school, require the school board to submit a plan for implementing the parent-selected
option.

Florida's system of school improvement provides the lowest performing schools with the most comprehensive
interventions. If such a school does not sufficiently improve during the first two years of intervention, the school
district must implement a school turnaround option at the beginning of the next school year. If the school does
not sufficiently improve during the first year of implementing a turnaround option, the school district must
submit a plan for implementing a different option at the beginning of the next school year. No process presently
exists that requires school districts to consider implementation of a parent-selected turnaround option.

The bill also adds several new requirements related to the assignment of students to classroom teachers. The
bill prohibits school districts from assigning a student in consecutive school years to a classroom teacher with
an annual performance evaluation rating of unsatisfactory or needs improvement; authorizes a parent to
request from the school district the performance evaluation of any classroom teacher assigned to his or her
child; and requires that parents of students assigned to an out-of-field or chronically low-performing teacher be
informed of the availability of virtual instruction delivered by an in-field, high-performing teacher.

Florida law does not prohibit school districts from assigning a student in consecutive years to a low-performing
teacher. School districts must notify each parent when his or her child is assigned to an out-of-field teacher or
chronically low performing teacher; however, notification that virtual instruction is avaifable as an alternative to
such teacher assignments is not required. School districts are not expressly required to provide a teacher's
performance evaluation to parents who request it; however, such evaluations become public records after one
year, at which time the evaluation must be furnished to any parent or member of the public who requests it.

The bill does not have a fiscal impact on state or local governments.

The bill takes effect JUly 1, 2012.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1191a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 2

FULL ANALYSIS

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

Present Situation

School Improvement and Intervention

Florida's system of school improvement interventions is known as "differentiated accountability." Low
performing schools are categorized according to the causes and severity of low student achievement. A
school's categorization determines the type and intensity of school improvement interventions and
whether interventions are directed by the school, school district, or state. 1 The lowest performing
schools receive the most comprehensive interventions.2 If such a school does not sufficiently improve
during the first year of intervention, the school district must submit a plan to the State Board of
Education proposing to implement a school turnaround option at the beginning of the next school year.
The school district may select one of the following turnaround options:

• Convert the school to a district-managed turnaround school;
• Reassign students to another school and monitor the progress of each reassigned student;
• Close the school and reopen it as one or more charter schools, each with a governing board

with a demonstrated record of effectiveness; or
• Contract with an outside entity that has a demonstrated record of effectiveness to operate the

school.

The turnaround option must be implemented if the school does not sufficiently improve during that
school year.3 If the school does not sUfficiently improve during the first year of implementing the
turnaround option, the school district must submit another plan for implementing a different option at
the beginning of the next school year. The plan is subject to state board approval. In considering the
plan, the state board has discretion to allow the school district to continue implementing the existing
turnaround option, if it finds that the school is likely to improve with additional time. No process exists
that requires school districts to consider implementation of a parent-selected turnaround option.4

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill enables parents, by petition, to request that the school district implement a parent-selected
turnaround option if a school in the lowest performing category does not improve performance in the
initial year of implementing a turnaround option selected by the school district. The turnaround option
requested by parents must be considered for implementation by the district school board at a publicly
noticed meeting if the petition is signed and dated by a majority of the parents5 of eligible students, Le.,
students enrolled in the school or students who are scheduled for assignment to the school in the
following school year.

Within 30 days of receiving notice from the Department of Education (DOE) that the school did not
improve performance under the preceding turnaround option, each school district must notify parents
that they may submit a petition requesting that a parent-selected turnaround option be implemented for
the school in the following school year. The notice by the school district must include:

• A description of each available turnaround option and the process for implementing turnaround
options;

I Section 1008.33(3)(b) and (4), F.S.; rule 6A-1.099811(3), F.A.C.
2 Section 1008.33(2)(b) and (4), F.S.
3 Section 1008.33(5)(a), F.S.; rule 6A-1.099811(8)(b), F.A.C.
4 Section 1008.33(5)(b), F.S.

5 The law defines "parent" as either or both parents ofa student, any guardian ofa student, any person in a parental relationship to a
student, or any person exercising supervisory authority over a student in place of the parent. Section 1000.21(5), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1191a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 3

• The date and location for submission of the petition and the publicly noticed district school board
meeting at which the petition will be considered; and

• School district contact information for assistance with questions.

Only one parent per eligible student may sign the petition. One signature may be given by the parent for
each child who is an eligible student. A parent must date the petition on the day it is signed and identify
the eligible student on the petition. If the school district chooses to verify signatures on the petition, the
district must use existing student enrollment documentation or other records containing parent
signatures. A majority is achieved when signatures are collected for more than one-half of the parents
who are eligible to sign the petition. The petition must be submitted before the school district selects a
turnaround option. The bill does not specify whether the parents "eligible to sign the petition" are limited
to one per eligible student. The bill provides no provision respecting a parent of more than one child
who is an eligible student, nor to a student who has step-siblings in the same school. Such factors
create uncertainty regarding how many parents are to be counted and whether or how all of them may
sign or object to the petition.

The district school board may adopt the parent-selected turnaround option or a different option selected
by the school board. If the district school board does not adopt the parent-selected option, it must
include that option with the implementation plan submitted to the state board. If the state board
determines that the turnaround option selected by parents is more likely to improve the academic
performance of students at the school, the school board must resubmit a plan implementing the parent
selected option.

The bill enables parents of students attending a low-performing school to playa larger role in improving
the school's performance. Likewise, the petition process may result in increased parental involvement
in school affairs, which research identifies as a key component of school improvement.6

The bill is unclear whether parents may sign multiple petitions or how long the petitions are to operate.
However, in light of the relevant statues, it may be inferred that the petition affects only one year's
process in adopting a school improvement plan.

Educator Performance and Student Assignments

Research indicates that teacher effectiveness is the most important school-level variable influencing
student learning. Students who are taught by ineffective teachers perform at much lower levels than
students demonstrating comparable ability taught by high-performing teachers. Students taught by an
ineffective teacher for even one year experience long-term negative impacts on achievement?

In Florida, the performance of classroom teachers8 is annually evaluated based upon student
performance and instructional practice criteria. Student performance must comprise at least 50 percent
of the performance evaluation and must be measured in terms of student learning growth on statewide

6 The PEW Center on the States, Engaged Families, Effective Pre-K: State Policies that Bolster Student Success, at 1 (June 2010),
available at http://www.pewcenteronthestates.org/uploadedFiles/PkN Family Engagement FINAL.pdf?n=4141; Southwest
Educational Development Laboratory, A New Wave ofEvidence: The Impact ofSchool, Family, and Community Connections on
Student Achievement, at 24 (2002), available at http://www.sedLorglcgi
bin/pdfexit.cgi?url=http://www.sedLorgiconnections/resources/evidence.pdf (review of research regarding parental involvement and
student success).
7 Sanders and Rivers, Cumulative and Residual Effects ofTeachers on Future Student Achievement, at 6-8 (Nov. 1996), available at
http://www.mccsc.edu/~curriculum/cumulative%20and%20residual%20effects%20ofOIo20teachers.pdf.Sanders and Rivers found that
standardized mathematics assessment scores for students who were taught by a low-performing teacher for three consecutive years
were 53 percentile points lower than those of students who were taught by a high-performing teacher for three consecutive years. Id. at
3.
8 Classroom teachers are a sub-set of the larger personnel class known as "instructional personneL" Instructional personnel and school
administrators are evaluated annually. Instructional personnel also include guidance counselors, social workers, career specialists,
school psychologists, librarians and media specialists, learning resource specialists, instructional trainers, adjunct educators, and
education paraprofessionals. Section 1012.01(2)(a)-(e), F.S. School administrators are school principals, school directors, career center
directors, and assistant principals. Section 1012.0 I(3)(a), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1191a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 4

assessments or, for subjects and grades not tested by statewide assessments, school district-selected
assessments.9 Measurement of student learning growth for classroom teachers must be based upon
students assigned to the employee over the course of three school years.10

Instructional practice criteria for classroom teachers are based upon the state board adopted Florida
Educator Accomplished Practices (FEAP). The FEAPs include such essential teaching skills as subject
matter knowledge, classroom management, and lesson planning and delivery. These criteria are
primarily evaluated through classroom observation. 11

Each classroom teacher is assigned one of four performance ratings:

• Highly effective;
• Effective;
• Needs improvement, or for classroom teachers in their first three years of employment who

need improvement, developing; or
• Unsatisfactory.

Performance evaluation results must be used as a basis for professional development, compensation,
retention, transfers, and promotions. The law authorizes a school principal to refuse the placement or
transfer of a classroom teacher who is not rated effective or highly effective. However, the law does not
prohibit a school district from assigning a student in consecutive school years to a classroom teacher
rated unsatisfactory or needs improvement. 12

Information regarding educator performance evaluations is provided to the public annually. School
districts must annually report to DOE educator performance evaluation ratings. DOE must annually post
on its website the percentage of classroom teachers, other instructional personnel, and school
administrators receiving each performance rating by school district and school. 13

Additionally, school districts must annually report to parents the fact that their child is assigned to a
classroom teacher whose performance evaluations indicate chronic low-performance, i.e., teachers
who have two consecutive unsatisfactory performance evaluations, two unsatisfactory evaluations in a
three-year period, or three consecutive evaluations of needs improvement or any combination of needs
improvement and unsatisfactory.14 School districts are not expressly required to provide a teacher's
performance evaluation to parents who request it; however, such evaluations become public records
after one year, at which time the evaluation must be furnished to any parent or member of the pUblic
who requests it. 15

Each district school board must adopt a plan for assisting teachers teaching subject matter outside their
certification area, minor field of study, or a subject area in which the teacher has demonstrated
sufficient expertise. The plan must provide such teachers with priority consideration in professional
development activities and require their participation in a certification or staff development program that
addresses the competencies required for the assigned duties. The assistance plan must include duties
of administrative personnel and other instructional personnel for assisting out-of-field teachers. The law

9 Section 1o12.34(3)(a) and (7), F.S. Newly hired teachers must be evaluated at least twice in the first year of teaching. Section
IOI2.34(3)(a), F.S. School districts may request approval by the Department of Education to use a student achievement measure or a
combination of student learning growth and achievement when such measures are appropriate. Likewise, districts may request
approval to determine appropriate measures based upon course characteristics and personnel assignments. Section 1012.34(2)(d) and
(7)(c)-(d), F.S.
10 Section 10 12.34(3)(a) l.a.-b., F.S. Exceptions apply based upon personnel classification or availability of data. ld
II Section IOI2.34(3)(a), F.S.
12 Sections IOI2.22(1)(e) and 1012.34(2)(b), F.S.
13 Section I 012.34(I)(c), F.S.
14 Section IOI2.2315(5)(b), F.S.
15 Section 1012.3 1(3)(a)2., F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1191a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 5

requires each district school board to notify in writing the parents of students who are assigned to an
out-of-field teacher. 16

Effect of Proposed Changes

The bill authorizes a parent to request from the school district the performance evaluation of any
classroom teacher assigned to his or her child. Current law requiring that educator performance
evaluations remain confidential until the end of the school year immediately following the school year in
which the evaluation was conducted applies to such requests. 17

Additionally, the bill expands parental notification regarding a child's assignment to classroom teachers
teaching out-of-field to also require that the parent of the child be informed of the availability of virtual
instruction delivered by an in-field teacher with an annual performance evaluation rating of effective or
highly effective. Likewise, notification sent to parents regarding a child's assignment to a classroom
teacher whose performance evaluations indicate chronic low-performance18 must also inform the
parent that virtual instruction from a teacher with an annual performance evaluation rating of effective
or highly effective is available. These changes will better inform parents of their options when their child
is assigned to out-of-field or low-performing teachers.

The bill adds provisions prohibiting a school district from assigning a student in consecutive school
years to a classroom teacher of the same subject who is evaluated as unsatisfactory or needs
improvement. This will decrease the likelihood of long-term negative impacts on a student's
achievement resulting from repeated assignments to low-performing teachers.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1. Amends s. 1001.10, F.S., relating to Commissioner of Education powers and duties;
corrects a cross reference.
Section 2. Amends s. 1002.20, F.S., relating to K-12 student and parent rights; authorizes parents to
petition the school district to implement of a school turnaround option; authorizes a parent to request
from the school district the performance evaluation of a classroom teacher assigned to his or her child;
and requires that parents of students assigned to an out-of-field or chronically low-performing teacher
be informed of the availability of virtual instruction delivered by an in-field, high-performing teacher.
Section 3. Amends s. 1002.32, F.S., relating to developmental research lab schools; corrects a cross
reference.
Section 4. Creates s. 1003.07, F.S., relating to parent empowerment; establishes a petition process
enabling parents to request implementation of a school turnaround option; provides for consideration of
the petition by the school board; specifies requirements regarding the petition process; provides for
review of proposed turnaround options by the state board.
Section 5. Amends s. 1008.33, F.S., authority to enforce public school improvement; authorizes
parents to petition the school district to implement of a school turnaround option.
Section 6. Amends s. 1012.2315, F.S., relating to assignment of teachers; authorizes a parent to
request from the school district the performance evaluation of a classroom teacher assigned to his or
her child; requiring parental notification regarding assignment of a student to a low-performing or out-of
field teacher; requires that parents of students assigned to an out-of-field or chronically low-performing
teacher be informed of the availability of virtual instruction delivered by an in-field, high-performing
teacher; and prohibits school districts from assigning a student in consecutive school years to a
classroom teacher with an annual performance evaluation rating of unsatisfactory or needs
improvement.
Section 7. Repeals s. 1012.42, F.S., relating to teacher teaching out of field.

16 Section 1012.42(1) and (2), F.S. This reporting requirement applies to teachers who are teaching subject matter that is outside the
field. in which the teacher is certified, outside the field that was the applicant's minor field of study, or outside the field in which the
~.pphcant has demonstrated sufficient subject area expertise. Section 1012.42(2), F.S.

Section 1012.3 I(3)(a)2., F.S.
18 This reporting requirement applies to a classroom teacher who has two consecutive unsatisfactory performance evaluations two
unsatisfactory evaluations in a three-year period, or three consecutive evaluations of needs improvement or any combination ~fneeds
improvement and unsatisfactory. Section 10 l2.2315(5)(b), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1191a. RRS. DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



Section 8. Provides an effective date of July 1, 2012.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

None.

2. Expenditures:

None

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

None.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not Applicable. This bill does not appear to affect county or municipal governments.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

The bill requires the State Board of Education to adopt rules establishing a model parent petition
format, petition submission process, standards for verifying signatures, and timelines for school board
consideration of a petition at a publicly noticed meeting.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

None.

STORAGE NAME: h1191a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 6



IV. AMENDMENTSI COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On January 24, 2012, the K-20 Innovation Subcommittee reported the proposed committee substitute (PCS)
for HB 1191 favorably as a committee substitute. The PCS differs from the house bill in the following ways:

• Limits application of the parent petition process to schools that must implement a different turnaround
option after the previously implemented option fails to improve the school's performance. The bill
allowed a petition to be filed in the initial year in which turnaround options are required for a school.

• Requires the school board to consider the turnaround option selected by parents at a publicly noticed
meeting; however, the school board has discretion to adopt or reject the parent-selected option. The bill
required the school board to adopt the parent-selected turnaround option.

• Clarifies the petition process, including which parents may sign the petition and the number of
signatures that constitute a majority of parents.

• Requires notification of parents of students assigned to out-of-field teachers that virtual instruction is
available from an in-field teacher to also specify that the teacher has a performance evaluation rating of
effective or highly effective.

STORAGE NAME: h1191a.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 7



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1 A bill to be entitled

2 An act relating to parent empowerment in education;

3 amending s. 1001.10, F.S.; conforming a cross-

4 reference; amending s. 1002.20, F.S.; authorizing

5 parents of students who are assigned to certain

6 underperforming public schools to submit a petition to

7 the school district requesting implementation of a

8 school turnaround option; requiring a school district,

9 upon request, to provide a parent with a performance

10 evaluation for each classroom teacher assigned to his

11 or her child; requiring notification to the parent of

12 each student who is assigned to a classroom teacher

13 who is teaching out-of-field or who has received

14 unsatisfactory performance evaluations and of the

15 availability of virtual instruction; amending s.

16 1002.32, F.S.; correcting a cross-reference; creating

17 s. 1003.07, F.S., the Parent Empowerment Act;

18 requiring each school district to notify parents of

19 students attending a lowest-performing school that has

20 been unable to improve performance after

21 implementation of a school turnaround option;

22 authorizing parents to submit a petition requesting

23 implementation of an available school turnaround

24 option; providing requirements for a petition and its

25 consideration and adoption by the district school

26 board; requiring rulemaking; amending s. 1008.33,

27 F.S.; identifying the options for improving a school

28 identified in the lowest-performing category as school

Page 1of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

29 turnaround options; authorizing parents to submit a

30 petition to the school district to implement a

31 specified school turnaround option; amending s.

32 1012.2315, F.S.; requiring that each district school

33 board adopt rules to implement an assistance plan for

34 out-of-field classroom teachers and requiring their

35 participation in certain programs; requiring that the

36 school district annually notify the parent of each

37 student assigned to an out-of-field classroom teacher

38 or an underperforming classroom teacher and of the

39 availability of virtual instruction; requiring that a

40 school district, upon request, provide a parent with

41 the performance evaluation of each classroom teacher

42 assigned to his or her child; prohibiting the

43 consecutive assignment of students to classroom

44 teachers who receive certain performance evaluations;

45 repealing s. 1012.42, F.S., relating to teachers

46 teaching out-of-field; providing an effective date.

47

48 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

49

50 Section 1. Subsection (3) of section 1001.10, Florida

51 Statutes, is amended to read:

52 1001.10 Commissioner of Education; general powers and

53 duties.-

54 (3) To facilitate innovative practices and to allow local

55 selection of educational methods, the State Board of Education

56 may authorize the commissioner to waive, upon the request of a

Page 2of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

57 district school board, state board of Education rules that

58 relate to district school instruction and school operations,

59 except those rules pertaining to civil rights, and student

60 health, safety, and welfare. The Commissioner of Education is

61 not authorized to grant waivers for any provisions in rule

62 pertaining to the allocation and appropriation of state and

63 local funds for public education; the election, compensation,

64 and organization of school board members and superintendents;

65 graduation and state accountability standards; financial

66 reporting requirements; reporting of out-of-field teaching

67 assignments under s. 1012.2315(5) 1012.42; public meetings;

68 public records; or due process hearings governed by chapter 120.

69 No later than January 1 of each year, the commissioner shall

70 report to the Legislature and the State Board of Education all

71 approved waiver requests in the preceding year.

72 Section 2. Paragraph (d) is added to subsection (21) of

73 section 1002.20, Florida Statutes, and subsections (24) and (25)

74 are added to that section, to read:

75 1002.20 K-12 student and parent rights.-Parents of public

76 school students must receive accurate and timely information

77 regarding their child's academic progress and must be informed

78 of ways they can help their child to succeed in school. K-12

79 students and their parents are afforded numerous statutory

80 rights including, but not limited to, the following:

81 (21) PARENTAL INPUT AND MEETINGS.-

82 (d) Parent empowerment.-Parents of students who are

83 assigned to a public school that does not improve performance

84 following implementation of a school turnaround option under s.

Page 3of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

85 1008.33(5) (a) may submit a petition to the school district

86 requesting implementation of a school turnaround option pursuant

87 to s. 1003.07.

88 (24) PERSONNEL EVALUATION REPORTS.-Upon request by the

89 parent of a public school student, the school district must

90 provide the parent with the performance evaluation for each

91 classroom teacher assigned to his or her child, pursuant to s.

92 1012.3l.

93 (25) ASSIGNMENT TO TEACHERS.-

94 (a) Each school district shall annually notify the parent

95 of each public school student assigned to a classroom teacher

96 who is teaching out-of-field regarding such assignment. The

97 notification must inform the parent that virtual instruction

98 from a certified in-field teacher with an annual performance

99 evaluation rating of effective or highly effective is available

100 pursuant to s. 1012.2315 (5).

101 (b) When a student is assigned to a classroom teacher who

102 has received two consecutive annual performance evaluation

103 ratings of unsatisfactory, two annual performance evaluation

104 ratings of unsatisfactory within a 3-year period, or three

105 consecutive annual performance evaluation ratings of needs

106 improvement or a combination of needs improvement and

107 unsatisfactory under s. 1012.34, the school district shall

108 notify the parent regarding the performance evaluation rating of

109 the classroom teacher. The notification must inform the parent

110 that virtual instruction from a teacher with an annual

111 performance evaluation rating of effective or highly effective

112 is available pursuant to s. 1012.2315(7).

Page 4of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

113 Section 3. Paragraph (c) of subsection (7) of section

114 1002.32, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

115 1002.32 Developmental research (laboratory) schools.-

116 (7) PERSONNEL.-

117 (c) Lab school faculty members shall meet the

118 certification requirements of ~ ~ 1012.32 and 1012.42.

119 Section 4. Section 1003.07, Florida Statutes, is created

120 to read:

121 1003.07 Parent empowerment.-

122 (1) This section may be cited as the "Parent Empowerment

123 Act. "

124 (2) Each school district must provide written notification

125 to the parents of eligible students, as defined in paragraph

126 (3) (b), when a public school has been unable to improve

127 performance following implementation of a school turnaround

128 option and must implement a different option, as required under

129 s. 1008.33(5). The written notification shall inform parents

130 that they may, by petition, request implementation of a school

131 turnaround option by the school in the following school year.

132 The notification shall be provided to parents within 30 calendar

133 days after the school district receives notice from the

134 Department of Education that the school must implement a

135 different school turnaround option. The notification by the

136 school district shall include:

137 (a) A description of each school turnaround option

138 available for selection under s. 1008.33 (5) (a) ;

139 (b) A description of the process for implementing school

140 turnaround options, including the date by which the school

Page 5of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

141 district must submit its implementation plan to the State Board

142 of Education;

143 (c) The date and location for submission of the petition;

144 (d) The date and location of the publicly noticed district

145 school board meeting, required under paragraph (4) (a), at which

146 the school board will consider the petition; and

147 (e) School district contact information for additional

148 questions.

149 (3) (a) Prior to the school district's selection and

150 implementation of a different school turnaround option for the

151 following school year, parents may submit a petition selecting

152 an available school turnaround option, as described in the

153 notification provided pursuant to paragraph (2) (a), for

154 consideration by the district school board.

155 (b) Only one parent per eligible student may sign the

156 petition. An eligible student is a student enrolled in the

157 school in which the school turnaround option will be implemented

158 or a student who is scheduled, the following school year, for

159 assignment to the school in which the school turnaround option

160 will be implemented, according to the district school board's

161 enrollment policies.

162 (c) A parent must date the petition on the day it is

163 signed and identify the eligible student on the petition.

164 (d) If the school district chooses to verify signatures on

165 the petition, the district shall use existing student enrollment

166 documentation or other records containing parent signatures.

167 (4) (a) The school turnaround option selected by parents

168 must be considered for implementation by the district school

Page 6of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

169 board at a publicly noticed school board meeting if the petition

170 is signed and dated by a majority of the parents of eligible

171 students. A majority is more than one-half of the parents who

172 are eligible to sign the petition pursuant to paragraph (3) (b) .

173 (b) The district school board may adopt the school

174 turnaround option selected by parents or a different school

175 turnaround option selected by the school board. If the district

176 school board does not adopt the school turnaround option

177 selected by parents, it must include that option with the

178 implementation plan submitted to the State Board of Education

179 under s. 1008.33(5) (b). If the state board determines that the

180 school turnaround option selected by parents is more likely to

181 improve the academic performance of students at the school, it

182 shall remand the district school board's implementation plan to

183 the school board. The district school board shall submit to the

184 state board an implementation plan for the school turnaround

185 option selected by parents.

186 (5) The State Board of Education shall adopt rules

187 pursuant to ss. 120.536(1) and 120.54 to establish a model

188 petition format, petition submission process, standards for

189 verifying signatures, and timelines for district school board

190 consideration of a petition at a publicly noticed meeting.

191 Section 5. Subsection (5) of section 1008.33, Florida

192 Statutes, is amended to read:

193 1008.33 Authority to enforce public school improvement.-

194 (5) (a) In the school year after a school is initially

195 identified as a school in the lowest-performing category, the

196 school district must submit a plan, which is subject to approval

Page 7of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

197 by the State Board of Education, for implementing one of the

198 following school turnaround options at the beginning of the next

199 school year. The plan must be implemented unless the school

200 moves from the lowest-performing category:

201 1. Convert the school to a district-managed turnaround

202 school by means that include implementing a turnaround plan

203 approved by the Commissioner of Education which shall become the

204 school's improvement plan;

205 2. ~eassign students to another school and monitor the

206 progress of each reassigned student;

207 3. Close the school and reopen the school as one or more

208 charter schools, each with a governing board that has a

209 demonstrated record of effectiveness; or

210 4. Contract with an outside entity that has a demonstrated

211 record of effectiveness to operate the school.

212 (b) If a school does not move from the lowest-performing

213 category during the initial year of implementing one of the

214 school turnaround options in paragraph (a), the school district

215 must submit a plan, which is subject to approval by the State

216 Board of Education, for implementing a different option in

217 paragraph (a) at the beginning of the next school year, unless

218 the State Board of Education determines that the school is

219 likely to move from the lowest-performing category if additional

220 time is provided to implement intervention and support

221 strategies. The State Board of Education shall determine whether

222 a school district may continue to implement a school turnaround

223 ~ option beyond 1 year while a school remains in the lowest

224 performing category. Parents of students who are assigned to a

Page 8of 12

CODING: Words striGI~en are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

225 public school that is required to implement a different school

226 turnaround option may petition the school district to implement

227 a school turnaround option selected by the parents pursuant to

228 s.1003.07.

229 Section 6. Section 1012.2315, Florida Statutes, is amended

230 to read:

231 1012.2315 Assignment of teachers.-

232 (1) LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS AND INTENT.-The Legislature finds

233 disparities between teachers assigned to teach in a majority of

234 schools that do not need improvement and schools that do need

235 improvement pursuant to s. 1008.33. The disparities may be found

236 in the assignment of temporarily certified teachers, teachers in

237 need of improvement, and out-of-field teachers and in the

238 performance of the students. It is the intent of the Legislature

239 that district school boards have flexibility through the

240 collective bargaining process to assign teachers more equitably

241 across the schools in the district.

242 (2) ASSIGNMENT TO SCHOOLS CATEGORIZED AS IN NEED OF

243 IMPROVEMENT.-School districts may not assign a higher percentage

244 than the school district average of temporarily certified

245 teachers, teachers in need of improvement, or out-of-field

246 teachers to schools in one of the three lowest-performing

247 categories under s. 1008.33 (3) (b). Each school district shall

248 annually certify to the Commissioner of Education that this

249 requirement has been met. If the commissioner determines that a

250 school district is not in compliance with this subsection, the

251 State Board of Education shall be notified and shall take action

252 pursuant to s. 1008.32 in the next regularly scheduled meeting

Page 9of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

253 to require compliance.

254 (3) SALARY INCENTIVES.-District school boards may are

255 authorized to provide salary incentives to meet the requirement

256 of subsection (2). A district school board may not sign a

257 collective bargaining agreement that precludes the school

258 district from providing sufficient incentives to meet this

259 requirement.

260 (4) COLLECTIVE BARGAINING.-Notwithstanding provisions of

261 chapter 447 relating to district school board collective

262 bargaining, collective bargaining provisions may not preclude a

263 school district from providing incentives to high-quality

264 teachers and assigning such teachers to low-performing schools.

265 (5) ASSISTANCE TO OUT-OF-FIELD TEACHERS.-

266 (a) Each district school board shall adopt rules for

267 implementing an assistance plan for each. classroom teacher who

268 is teaching out-of-field. The assistance plan must provide

269 teachers who are teaching out-of-field with priority

270 consideration in professional development activities and require

271 such teachers to participate in a certification or staff

272 development program that provides the competencies required for

273 the assigned duties. The assistance plan must also include

274 duties of administrative personnel and other instructional

275 personnel for assisting a teacher who is teaching out-of-field

276 in providing instructional services to students.

277 (b) The school district shall annually notify the parent

278 of each student who is assigned to a classroom teacher who is

279 teaching subject matter that is:

280 1. Outside the field in which the teacher is certified;

Page 10 of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

281 2. Outside the field that was the teacher's minor field of

282 study; or

283 3. Outside the field in which the teacher has demonstrated

284 sufficient subject area expertise, as determined by district

285 school board policy in the subject area to be taught.

286

287 The notification must inform the parent that virtual instruction

288 from a certified in-field teacher with an annual performance

289 evaluation rating of effective or highly effective under s.

290 1012.34 is available to his or her child through the virtual

291 instruction options listed under s. 1002.321(4).

292 l£l+e+ REPORT.-

293 +a+ By July 1, 2012, the Department of Education shall

294 annually report on its website, in a manner that is accessible

295 to the public, the performance rating data reported by district

296 school boards under s. 1012.34. The report must include the

297 percentage of classroom teachers, instructional personnel, and

298 school administrators receiving each performance rating

299 aggregated by school district and by school.

300 (7) ASSIGNMENT OF TEACHERS BASED UPON PERFORMANCE

301 EVALUATIONS .-

302 ~+et Notwithstanding the provisions of s.

303 1012.31 (3) (a) 2., each school district shall annually notify

304 report to the parent of any student who is assigned to a

305 classroom teacher or school administrator having two consecutive

306 annual performance evaluation ratings of unsatisfactory under s.

307 1012.34, two annual performance evaluation ratings of

308 unsatisfactory within a 3-year period under s. 1012.34, or three

Page 11 of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1191

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

309 consecutive annual performance evaluation ratings of needs

310 improvement or a combination of needs improvement and

311 unsatisfactory under s. 1012.34. The notification must inform

312 the parent that virtual instruction from a teacher with a

313 performance evaluation rating of highly effective or effective

314 under s. 1012.34 is available to his or her child through the

315 virtual instruction options listed under s. 1002.321(4).

316 (b) Upon request by the parent of a public school student,

317 the school district shall provide the parent with the

318 performance evaluation for each classroom teacher assigned to

319 his or her child, pursuant to s. 1012.31.

320 (c) If a student is currently taught by a classroom

321 teacher who receives, in that school year, a performance

322 evaluation rating of needs improvement or unsatisfactory under

323 s. 1012.34, the student may not be assigned the following school

324 year to a classroom teacher, in the same subject area, who

325 received a performance evaluation rating of needs improvement or

326 unsatisfactory in the preceding school year.

327 Section 7. Section 1012.42, Florida Statutes, is repealed.

328 Section 8. This act shall take effect July 1, 2012.

Page 12 of 12

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1191-01-c1



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 1

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED (Y/N)

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION (Y/N)

FAILED TO ADOPT (Y/N)

WITHDRAWN (Y/N)

OTHER

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Randolph offered the following:

4

5 Amendment (with title amendment)

6 Between lines 118 and 119, insert:

7 Section 4. Paragraph (b) of subsection (16) of section

8 1002.33, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

9 1002.33 Charter schools.-

10 (16) EXEMPTION FROM STATUTES.-

11 (b) Additionally, a charter school shall be in compliance

12 with the following statutes:

13 1. Section 286.011, relating to public meetings and

14 records, public inspection, and criminal and civil penalties.

15 2. Chapter 119, relating to public records.

16 3. Section 1002.20(24) and (25), relating to K-12 student

17 and parent rights relating to personnel evaluation reports and

18 assignment to teachers.

870251 - hl191-line 118-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:40:29 PM

Page 1 of 2



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

Amendment No. 1
19 4.~ Section 1003.03, relating to the maximum class size,

20 except that the calculation for compliance pursuant to s.

21 1003.03 shall be the average at the school level.

22 5.4-. Section 1012.22 (1) (c), relating to compensation and

23 salary schedules.

24 6. Section 1012.2315(5) and (7), relating to assistance to

25 out-of-field teachers and assignment of teachers based upon

26 performance evaluation.

27

28

7.~ Section 1012.33(5), relating to workforce reductions.

8.~ Section 1012.335, relating to contracts with

29 instructional personnel hired on or after July 1, 2011.

30 9.~ Section 1012.34, relating to the substantive

31 requirements for performance evaluations for instructional

32 personnel and school administrators.

33

34

35

36

37 TITLE AMENDMENT

38 Remove line 16 and insert:

39 1002.32, F.S.; correcting a cross-reference; amending s.

40 1002.33, F.S.; requiring charter schools to be in compliance

41 with provisions relating to notification to parents of'teachers

42 teaching out-of-field and low-performing teachers; creating

43

870251 - hl191-line 118-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:40:29 PM

Page 2 of 2



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 2

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Randolph offered the following:

4

5

6

7

8

9

Amendment (with title amendment)

Remove lines 155-166 and insert:

(b) Only one eligible parent of an eligible student may

sign the petition. An eligible parent may sign the petition one

time only. An eligible parent is a parent whose signature

10 appears on an official school enrollment or emergency contact

11 document, student immunization record, or pertinent parental

12 contact information against which the signature may be verified.

13 An eligible student is a student who will be enrolled in the

14 school in which the school turnaround option will be implemented

15 or a student who is scheduled for the following school year for

16 enrollment, according to the district school board's enrollment

17 policies.

18 (c) A parent must date the petition on the day it is

19 signed and identify the eligible student on the petition.

385347 - hl191-line 155-2.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:41:49 PM

Page 1 of 3



11I1111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

Amendment No. 2
20 (d) The school district must certify that the petition

21 signatures meet the criteria of paragraph (4) (a) or may choose

22 to verify signatures on the petition using documents outlined in

23 paragraph (b) and certify that the petition signatures meet the

24 criteria of paragraph (4) (a). A signed petition is valid only

25 during the school year in which it is signed.

26 (e) A parent, student, or representative of an outside

27 entity may not solicit or accept anything of value to the

28 recipient, including a gift, loan, reward, promise of future

29 employment, favor, or service, based upon an understanding that

30 the petition signature would be influenced thereby. A person who

31 violates this paragraph commits a misdemeanor of the first

32 degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.

33 (f) It is unlawful for any person or outside entity to

34 knowingly and willfully provide invalid, misleading, or untrue

35 data or information regarding the performance results or

36 performance history of any program or school turnaround option.

37 A person who violates this paragraph commits a misdemeanor of

38 the first degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s.

39 775.083.

40

41

42

43 -------------------------------------------------- _

44 TIT LEA MEN D MEN T

45 Remove line 26 and insert:

46 board; prohibiting certain actions that may influence a petition

47 signature or provide invalid information regarding performance
385347 - hl191-line 155-2.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:41:49 PM

Page 2 of 3



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

AIDendment No. 2
48 results and providing penalties therefor; requiring rulemaking;

49 amending s. 1008.33,

50

385347 - h1191-line 155-2.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:41:49 PM

Page 3 of 3



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 3

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Randolph offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove lines 170-172 and insert:

7 is signed and dated by 60 percent of the eligible parents of

8 eligible students pursuant to paragraph (3) (b) .

9

692473 - hl191-line 170-3.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:44:54 PM

Page 1 of 1



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 4

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Randolph offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove line 172 and insert:

7 are eligible to sign the petition pursuant to paragraph (3) (b) .

8 To rescind their selection of a school turnaround option,

9 parents shall use the petition process required under this

10 section.

11

079227 - hl191-line 172-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:46:13 PM

Page 1 of 1



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 5

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Randolph offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove line 185 and insert:

7 option selected by parents. If the district school board or the

8 State Board of Education accepts the school turnaround option

9 selected by parents, all eligible students of eligible parents

10 who signed the petition shall be assigned to the turnaround

11 school until the student graduates or articulates to the next

12 school level.

13

656089 - hl191-line 185-5.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:49:32 PM

Page 1 of 1



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 6

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Randolph offered the following:

4

5 Amendment (with title amendment)

6 Remove line 211 and insert:

7 record of the effectiveness to operate the school. An outside

8 entity must:

9 a. Certify that it is nonsectarian in its programs,

10 admission policies, employment practices, and operations;

11 b. Provide evidence of an administrative office located in

12 the state and require its administrative staff to be state

13 residents;

14 c. Submit to the school district a detailed plan

15 describing how the school curriculum and course content will

16 conform to the Next Generation Sunshine State Standards or the

17 common core standards;

18 d. Submit to the school district an annual financial plan

19 for each year of operation of the school for a minimum of 2

178211 - hl191-line 185-6.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:50:47 PM

Page 1 of 2



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1191 (2012)

Amendment No. 6
20 years. The plan must contain anticipated fund balances based on

21 revenue projections, a spending plan based on projected revenues

22 and expenses, and a description of controls that will safeguard

23 finances and projected enrollment trends; and

24 e. Provide evidence-based demonstration of a proven track

25 record of improving student performance of a substantially

26 similar student population.

27
28

29

30

31 TITLE AMENDMENT

32 Remove line 29 and insert:

33 turnaround options; specifying requirements for the school

34 turnaround option of contracting with an outside entity to

35 operate the school; authorizing parents to submit a

36

178211 - hl191-line 185-6.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:50:47 PM

Page 2 of 2





HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES STAFF ANALYSIS

BILL #: CS/HB 1261 State Employment
SPONSOR(S): Mayfield
TIED BILLS: IDEN.lSIM. BILLS: SB 2084

REFERENCE

1) Government Operations Subcommittee

ACTION

13 Y, 1 N, As CS

ANALYST

Naf

STAFF DIRECTOR or

BUDGET/POLICY CHIEF

Williamson

2) Rulemaking & Regulation Subcommittee

3) Appropriations Committee

4) State Affairs Committee

Miller ~~ubotto

SUMMARY ANALYSIS

This bill makes substantive and organizational changes to the statutes governing public employees and
officers.

The bill makes changes to improve efficiency and to clean up statutory language. Those changes include,
but are not limited to:

• Reorganization of statutory provisions;
• Changes in terminology;
• Removal of obsolete provisions and references; and
• Streamlining of the rule development and modification process.

Substantive changes include, but are not limited to:
• Authorization of the Department of Management Services to charge a state governmental entity

outside of the state personnel system for use of services from the People First system;
• Revision of language pertaining to state employee furloughs to allow the provision to be used;
• Creation of a monetary cap on bonus payments to an employee in a fiscal year; and
• Removal of the annual hourly cap for other-personal-services employees.

The bill requires the Department of Management Services to provide a proposal to restructure and
modernize the leave benefits of state personnel by a date certain.

The bill provides an effective date of July 1, 2012.

The bill may have an indeterminate fiscal impact to state government due to the changes in bonuses,
telework, and People First, and due to streamlining processes.

This document does not reflect the intent or official position of the bill sponsor or House of Representatives.
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



PAGE: 2

I. SUBSTANTIVE ANALYSIS

A. EFFECT OF PROPOSED CHANGES:

STATUTES GOVERNING PUBLIC EMPLOYEES AND OFFICERS, GENERALLY

Background: Chapter 110, F.S., State Employment

General Provisions
Part I of chapter 110, F.S., consists of general provisions applying to state employment, such as those
relating to:

• Education and training;
• Employee wage deductions;
• Paid holidays;
• Sick leave pool;
• Terminal pay for accumulated sick leave;
• Health insurance;
• Meritorious service awards program;
• Child care services;
• Other-personal-services temporary employment; and
• The Florida State Employees Charitable Campaign contribution program.

Career Service System
Florida has a civil service system for public employees not deemed to be executive or managerial. The
State Constitution mandates such a system be created by the Legislature1 and authorizes a system for
the collective bargaining of wages, hours, and terms of conditions of employment by public employees
with their public employer.2

Part II of chapter 110, F.S., establishes the Career Service System. It requires the Department of
Management Services (DMS) to:

• Develop and maintain a uniform classification and equitable pay plan applicable to all positions
in the Career Service System;

• Determine guidelines for employee recruitment and selection to be used by employing
agencies;

• Adopt rules and procedures for the suspension, reduction in pay, transfer, layoff, demotion, and
dismissal of employees; and

• Develop uniform rules, in consultation with affected agencies and pursuant to the approval of
the Administration Commission, regarding employee appointment, promotion, demotion,
reassignment, separation, status, attendance, and leave.3

The DMS, however, is prohibited from adopting layoff' rules, which include a "bumping" system, except
with regard to law enforcement or correctional officers, firefighters, or professional health care
providers. "Bumping" is defined to mean "any system whereby a career service employee with greater
seniority has the option of selecting a different position not being eliminated, but either vacant or
already occupied by an employee of less seniority, and taking that position."s The DMS must develop

I See art. III, s. 14 of the Fla. Const.
2 See art. I, s. 6 of the Fla. Const.
3Sees.110.201,F.S.

4 Section 110.107(23), F.S., defines "layoff' to mean "termination ofemployment due to a shortage of funds or work, or a material
change in the duties or organization ofan agency, including the outsourcing or privatization of an activity or function previously
performed by career service employees."
5 Section 110.227(2)(a), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



rules that mandate agencies to consider "comparative merit, demonstrated, skills, and the employee's
experience.,,6

Current law does not define the terms "career service" and "career service employee." A "career
service employee" may be a short-term or long-term employee. The rules distinguish among
probationary, overlap, temporary, trainee, and permanent status.7 The rules further provide that an
employee who has been appointed in accordance with chapter 110, F.S., and granted probationary
status attains permanent status in a class upon successful completion of the designated probationary
period for the class.8

Current law provides that an employee who has satisfactorily completed at least a 1-year probationary
period may only be suspended or dismissed for cause.9 Cause includes negligence, inefficiency or
inability to perform assigned duties, insubordination, willful violation of the provisions of law or agency
rules, conduct unbecoming a public employee, misconduct, habitual drug abuse, or conviction of any
crime involving moral turpitude.10

Senior Management Service System
Part III of chapter 110, F.S., establishes the Senior Management Service System (SMS), which is a
separate system of personnel administration for positions in the executive branch. The duties and
responsibilities are primarily and essentially policymaking or managerial in nature.11 The DMS is
charged with adopting rules that provide for a system for employing, promoting, or reassigning
managers that is responsive to organizational or program needs. 12

Volunteers
Part IV of chapter 110, F.S., provides requirements for departments and agencies that use volunteers.

Selected Exempt Service System
Part V of chapter 110, F.S., creates the Selected Exempt Service System (SES). The SES is a
separate system of personnel administration that includes those positions that are exempt from the
Career Service System. The DMS is required to designate all positions included in the SES as
managerial/policymaking, professional, or nonmanagerial/nonpolicymaking. 13 Employees in the SES
serve at the pleasure of the agency head and are subject to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay,
demotion, transfer, or other personnel action at the discretion of the agency head. 14

Background: Chapter 112, F.S., Public Officers and Employees

General Provisions
Part I of chapter 112, F.S., consists of general provisions applying to public employment, such as those
relating to:

• Discrimination;
• Retirement and pensions; and
• Insurance.

Interchange of Public Employees between Governments
Part II of chapter 112, F.S., provides authority and requirements for the temporary assignment of public
employees to other governmental entities.

61d.
7 See rule 50L-33.003, F.A.C.
8 1d.
9 Section 110.227(1), F.S.
101d.

11 See s. 110.402, F.S.
12 See s. 110.403, F.S.
13 See s. 110.602, F.S.
14 See s. 110.604, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 3



Code of Ethics
Part III of chapter 112, F.S., sets out ethics requirements for public officers and employees and creates
the Commission on Ethics.

Supplemental Retirement Act for Retired Members of State Retirement Systems
Part IV of chapter 112, F.S., authorizes a supplement to the monthly retirement benefits of members
retired under specified retirement systems and of specified disabled members.

Suspension, Removal, or Retirement of Public Officers
Part V of chapter 112, F.S., governs the suspension, removal, or retirement of a public officer.

Law Enforcement and Correctional Officers
Part VI of chapter 112, F.S., includes the law enforcement officers' bill of rights and requirements for
the discipline of such officers.

Actuarial Soundness of Retirement Systems
Part VII of chapter 112, F.S., implements state constitutional requirements relating to the actuarial
soundness of public retirement systems.

Firefighters
Part VIII of chapter 112, F.S., specifies rights of firefighters.

Background: "Service First" Legislation
The most recent set of significant changes to the statutes governing the state employment system
occurred during the 2001 legislative session. That year, the Le~islature enacted numerous changes to
chapters 110 and 112, F.S., through the Service First initiative.1 Those changes removed designated
positions from the civil service; increased benefit compensation for named, exempt positions; banned
political considerations in civil service actions; altered appellate rights in personnel disciplinary cases;
and made retention decisions during reduction in force actions a function of overall fitness
considerations rather than of longevity of prior employment. 16

Effect of Proposed Changes
The bill significantly reorganizes provisions relating to public employees and officers and makes
conforming and drafting changes.

The bill revises terminology as follows:
• Changes the title of chapter 110, F.S., from "State Employment" to "State Personnel System."
• Replaces references to "Career Service" with "Civil Service" to comport with the language in

the Florida Constitution.17

• Updates definitions for "state agency or agency," "classification plan," "salary schedule,"
"position number," "reclassification," "promotion," "demotion," and "reassignment."

• Adds definitions for "state employee or employee," "State Personnel System," "position
description," "other personal services," "telework," "merit status," and "lateral transfer."

The bill makes changes to clean up statutory language and to improve efficiency. Those changes
include, but are not limited to:

• Removal of obsolete references.
• Creation of a definition for "State Personnel System."
• Revision of provisions relating to telework to reflect current technological practices.
• Streamlining of the rule development and modification process.

15 See ch. 2001-43, L.O.F.
16 !d.
17 See art. III, s. 14 of the Fla. Const.
STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 4



ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS
The state maintains a personnel information program for human resources. 18 Costs of operating the
program are divided among specified state agencies. 19 The bill authorizes the DMS to charge other
governmental entities that use the program services for associated costs without requiring separate
agreements between DMS and the other entities.

EMPLOYEE COMPENSATION

Bonus Awards
Current law allows state department heads to award bonuses to exemplary employees if specified
conditions are meeD It also authorizes department heads to spend up to $100 on tokens of recognition
for certain employees.21 There is no limit on the total amount one employee may receive in a year.

The bill provides that an exemplary employee may receive up to $1,000 in a single bonus award, but
limits the amount an employee may receive in total bonuses in a year to $1,000.

Pay Additives
Current law authorizes agencies to use pay additives. Pay additives include shift differentials, on-call
fees, hazardous-duty pay, salary increase and decrease corrections, lead-worker pay, temporary
special duties pay, trainer-additive pay, competitive area differentials, and critical market pay.22 The
pay additives must be consistent with the DMS's guidelines and the directions of the Legislature
contained in the General Appropriations Act.23

The employing agency must notify the DMS, the Executive Office of the Governor, and the Legislature,
in writing, of the plan to implement any pay additives before any scheduled start date of such
additives.24 Agencies may not implement any pay additives unless the Legislature has specifically
authorized them and unless implementation of the pay additives does not conflict with any collective
bargaining agreements.25

The bill provides a process by which a necessary change to an approved plan during the fiscal year
may be approved and authorizes an agency to implement salary increases and decrease corrections
due to administrative errors.

EMPLOYEE LEAVE

Administrative Leave for Military Service-Connected Disability
Current law provides that a state employee who has been determined by the U.S. Department of
Veterans Affairs (DVA) or its predecessor to have incurred a service-connected disability and has been
scheduled by the DVA to be reexamined or treated for the disability is entitled to administrative leave
for the reexamination or treatment without loss of payor benefits.26 Such administrative leave is limited
to 6 calendar days a year.

The bill reduces such administrative leave to 48 hours a year.

Compensatory Leave Transfer
Compensatory leave is earned by career service employees for time worked in excess of the standard
40-hour week.27 As a result of the 2001 Service First legislation, several thousand Career Service

18 See s. 110.125, F.S. The current personnel information program is People First.
19 ld.
20 See s. 110.1245, F.S.
21 See s. 110.1245(4), F.S.
22 Section 11O.2035(6)(c), F.S.
23 ld
24 ld
25 ld
26 See s. 110.119(1), F.S.
27 See rule 60L-34.0031, F.A.C.
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 5



employees had their positions involuntarily moved from the Career Service to the Selected Exempt
Service. To prevent such employees from losing compensatory leave, the Legislature provided that if a
career service employee was transferred or otherwise moved into the Selected Exempt Service, all the
employee's unused annual leave, unused sick leave, and unused compensatory leave would carry
forward with the employee.28

The provision was intended to be a temporary measure during the Service First implementation. The
result, however, is that the compensatory leave could be paid at a later, potentially higher rate instead
of one based on the employee's rate of pay when the compensatory leave was actually earned.

The bill repeals the provision requiring the transfer of such leave with an employee who moves from a
Career Service to a Selected Exempt Service position.

Proposal for Changes to Employee Leave
The bill requires the OMS to create a proposal to restructure and modernize the leave benefits of the
State Personnel System. The proposal must consider current leave policies of the state's private
sector employers and provides recommendations that will more closely align the state's leave benefits
with those of the private sector, ensure better management of benefits, and leverage leave benefit
expenditures to maximize the state's return on investment to competitively recruit and retain a high
performing workforce. The DMS must provide the proposal to the Executive Office of the Governor, the
President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives on or before December 31,
2012.

OTHER-PERSONAL-SERVICES EMPLOYEES

Limitation on Hours Worked
Current law authorizes agencies to hire individuals in other-personal-services (OPS) temporary
employment when certain vacancies exist.29 Each OPS employee may work no more than 1,040 hours
annually. Any extension beyond the 1,040 hour limitation for each individual requires a
recommendation by the agency head and approval by the Executive Office of the Governor. 30 The
DMS must perform an annual review to assess agencies for the regUlation of other personal services
employment. 31

The bill eliminates the current 1,040 hour annual limit for OPS employees, but requires agencies to
review and document the mission-critical need for any continuing OPS position by June 30 of each
year.

Social Security Program Alternatives
Current law authorizes the DMS to contract for the implementation of an alternative retirement income
security program for OPS employees, upon approval of the Governor.32

The bill transfers the on-going administration of the program to the Department of Financial Services.

EMPLOYEE FURLOUGHS

A furlough is a temporary reduction in the regular hours of employment in a pay period, or temporary
leave without pay for one or more pay periods, with a commensurate reduction in pay.33

Current law allows the Administration Commission34 to present a state employee furlough plan to the
Legislature when a deficit is projected by the Revenue Estimating Conference35 in any fund that

28 See s. 110.205(7), F.S.
29 See s. 110.131(2), F.S.
30ld.
31 Section 110.131(7), F.S.
32Sees.llO.1315,F.S.
33 Section 110.107(3), F.S.

34 The Administration Commission is composed ofthe Governor and the members of the Cabinet. See s. 14.202, F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 6



PAGE: 7

supports salary and benefit appropriations.36 The Legislature must approve or disapprove such plan.
The plan must identify all affected positions and ensure that all affected employees are subject to the
same reduction of hours for the same number of pay periods with a commensurate reduction in pay. 37

Because the Florida Constitution requires the Legislature to create a balanced bUdget,38 the bill
removes the requirement that a deficit be projected by the Revenue Estimating Conference. It also
makes additional changes to the process for and entities involved in approving a furlough. The bill
provides that if a deficit is projected in any state agency fund that supports salary and benefits
appropriations, then the agency may, upon approval by the Governor or the Chief Justice of the
Supreme Court, propose a furlough plan to the Legislative Budget Commission, which must approve or
disapprove such plan. The bill specifies that all affected employees within a budget entity are subject
to the same reduction of hours for the same number of pay periods with a commensurate reduction in
pay.

The bill also authorizes the Legislature to address anticipated short-term shortfalls to funds that support
salary and benefit appropriations for a specified fiscal year by directing an agency to impose furloughs
pursuant to the General Appropriations Act.

PERFORMANCE STANDARDS FOR PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES
Current law provides procedures for the suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, layoff,
transfer, or grievance of a career service employee.39 In 2008, the Legislature amended the
procedures to provide that a permanent career service employee who is promoted is subject to the one
year probationary period required for new career service employees and may not be removed from the
promotional position without cause, but is entitled to return to his or her former position (or the
equivalent) if such position is available (hereinafter "2008 provision,,).4o

An employee who is dismissed during his or her probationa~ period is not entitled to hearing rights
before the Public Employee Relations Commission (PERC). 1 However, the First District Court of
Appeal has ruled that the effect of the 2008 provision is that in some circumstances, an employee who
is fired during the probationary period subsequent to a promotion is entitled to hearing rights before the
PERC.42

The bill clarifies that the 2008 provision does not grant PERC hearing rights.

FLORIDA STATE EMPLOYEES' CHARITABLE CAMPAIGN
Current law requires the DMS to conduct the Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign, an annual
fundraising drive directed toward state employees.43 Multiple charitable organizations may participate
in the campaign.44 A contributing employee may choose to donate to the fund without specifying a
recipient from among the participating charitable organizations, but such a decision requires the state
to manage designation of the donation.45

35 The Revenue Estimating Conference develops official information relating to anticipated state and local government revenues for
state planning and budgeting. See s. 216.136(3), F.S.
36 See s. 110.1225, F.S.
371d.
38 See art. 111, s. 19(a), and art. VII, s. (1 )(d), Fla. Const.
39 See s. 110.227, F.S.
40 Chapter 2008-126, L.O.F. (CS/CS/HB 887).
4\ See 110.227(1), F.S. The PERC processes charges of unfair labor practices and charges relating to a public employee or employee
organization. It handles public sector cases (unfair labor practice charges, representation petitions, amendments to certification,
petitions to revoke certifications, and labor organizations registration), career service appeals, Drug-Free Workplace appeals,
whistleblower appeals, veterans' preference appeals, attorneys' fees appeal, back pay appeals, mediations, and district court appeals.
See s. 447.207, F.S.
42 Pesta v. Department a/Corrections, Case No.1 D09-6489 (Fla. 1st DCA 2011).
43 See s. 110.181 (1 )(a), F.S.
44 See s. 11O.181(1)(c),F.S.
45Sees.lI0.181,F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



The bill requires a contributing employee to designate a charitable organization.

CHILD CARE
Current law requires the DMS to approve, administer, and coordinate child care services for state
employees' children or dependents.46 Its duties include, but are not limited to, reviewing and approving
requests from state agencies for child care services; providing technical assistance on child care
program startup and operation; and assisting other agencies in conducting needs assessments,
designing centers, and selecting service providers.47

The bill eliminates DMS's administrative role and instead grants authority to establish, administer, and
coordinate child care services to any state agency.

ADMINISTRATION COMMISSION'S RULE ApPROVAL AUTHORITY
The Administration Commission (commission) is composed of the Governor and members of the
Cabinet.48 The commission is required to adopt rules to implement provisions of law conferring duties
upon it.49 Current law requires a variety of personnel-related rules developed by the DMS to be
approved by the commission. Such rules include, but are not limited to, those pertaining to
affirmative action plans;50 pretax benefits programs;51 administration of the classification plan;52 shared
employment;53 and attendance and leave.54 The commission must also approve any exception to
uniform personnel rules promulgated by the DMS.55

The bill preserves the authority of the commission to approve exceptions to the uniform personnel
rules, but removes the authority of the commission to approve certain personnel-related rules before
they become effective.

Incorporation of Parts IX and XI of Chapter 112 as Applied to the State Personnel System

The bill restructures and renumbers numerous sections of the present statutes to form new parts IX
and XI of chapter 112, F.S. Section 8 of the bill creates s. 110.1065, F.S., that states general policies
and incorporates by reference the provisions of parts IX and XI, making them applicable to the State
Personnel System. Although DMS does not have rulemaking authority generally for new parts IX and
XI, the bill expressly provides DMS with authority to adopt rules implementing the provisions of parts IX
and XI as applied to chapter 110, F.S.

B. SECTION DIRECTORY:

Section 1 requests that the Division of Statutory Revision rename ch. 110, F.S., as "State Personnel
System."

Section 2 requests that the Division of Statutory Revision rename part I of ch. 110, F.S., as
"General Provisions."

Section 3 amends s. 110.105, F.S., relating to the establishment and administration of the State
Personnel System.

Section 4 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.107, F.S., as s. 110.1054, F.S., relating to
definitions for the State Personnel System.

46 See s. 110.151, F.S.
47 Id.
48 See s. 14.202, F.S.
49 Id.
50 See s. I 10.1 12(2)(a), F.S.
5! See s. 110.161(5), F.S.
52 See s. 110.2035(1)(e), F.S.
53 See s. 110.21(5), F.S.
54 See s. 110.219(5), F.S.
55 See s. 110.201 (I)(a), F.S.
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 8



Section 5 amends s. 110.1055, F.S., relating to personnel rules and records.

Section 6 creates s. 110.1056, F.S., relating to audits of agency records.

Section 7 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.405, F.S., as s. 110.106, F.S., relating to advisory
committees.

Section 8 creates s. 110.1065, F.S., relating to general employment policies and requirements for the
State Personnel System. Parts IX and XI of chapter 112, created by the bill, are incorporated by
reference and made applicable to the State Personnel System, and DMS is authorized to adopt rules
implementing those parts of chapter 112 in the administration of chapter 110.

Section 9 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.233, F.S., as s. 110.1075, F.S., relating to
prohibited political activities and unlawful acts.

Section 10 amends s. 110.1099, F.S., relating to elective education and professional development
certain state employees.

Section 11 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.235, F.S., as s. 110.1115, F.S., relating to training
and professional development of state employees.

Section 12 amends s. 110.112, F.S., relating to equal employment opportunity.

Section 13 creates s. 110.1135, F.S., relating to attendance and leave records.

Section 14 amends s. 110.116, F.S., relating to the human resource information system and payroll
procedures.

Section 15 amends s. 110.1245, F.S., relating to bonus payments and other awards.

Section 16 amends s. 110.125, F.S., relating to administrative costs.

Section 17 amends s. 110.126, F.S., relating to oaths, testimony, and records.

Section 18 amends s. 110.127, F.S., relating to penalties for violation of the chapter or associated
rules.

Section 19 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.2037, F.S., as s. 110.182, F.S., relating to tax
sheltered annual leave and sick leave payments and special compensation payments.

Section 20 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.201, F.S., as s. 110.183, F.S., relating to
collective bargaining.

Section 21 creates s. 110.184, F.S., relating to a workforce report.

Section 22 requests that the Division of Statutory Revision rename part II of ch. 110, F.S., as "Civil
Service."

Section 23 creates s. 110.202, F.S., relating to the establishment of the Civil Service.

Section 24 amends s. 110.205, F.S., relating to Civil Service positions.

Section 25 creates s. 110.208, F.S., relating to a classification system for Civil Service positions.

Section 26 creates s. 110.2085, F.S., relating to the Civil Service pay plan.

STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 9



Section 27 amends s. 110.211, F.S., relating to recruitment.

Section 28 amends s. 110.213, F.S., relating to selection of employees.

Section 29 amends s. 110.2135, F.S., relating to veterans' preference in employment.

Section 30 amends s. 110.215, F.S., relating to assessments of disabled persons.

Section 31 amends s. 110.217, F.S., relating to appointment actions and status.

Section 32 amends s. 110.219, F.S., relating to attendance and leave general policies.

Section 33 amends s. 110.221, F.S., relating to family medical leave.

Section 34 amends s. 110.224, F.S., relating to employee evaluations.

Section 35 amends s. 110.227, F.S., relating to suspension, dismissal, or pay reductions of Civil
Service employees.

Section 36 requests that the Division of Statutory Revision renumber part V of ch. 110, F.S., as part III
of that chapter, and rename that part as "Selected Exempt Service."

Section 37 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.601, F.S., as s. 110.302, F.S., relating to the
declaration of policy for Selected Exempt Service employees.

Section 38 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.602, F.S., as s 110.3021, F.S., relating to the
establishment of the Selected Exempt Service.

Section 39 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.605, F.S., as s. 110.3022, F.S., relating to DMS's
administration of and duties for the Selected Exempt Service.

Section 40 creates s. 110.3023, F.S., relating to recruitment of Selected Exempt Service employees.

Section 41 requests that the Division of Statutory Revision renumber part III of ch. 110, F.S., as part IV
of that chapter, and rename that part as "Senior Management Service."

Section 42 amends s. 110.401, F.S., relating to a declaration of policy for Senior Management Service
employees.

Section 43 amends s. 110.402, F.S., relating to establishment of the Senior Management Service.

Section 44 amends s. 110.403, F.S., relating to administration of the Senior Management Service.

Section 45 creates s. 110.4035, F.S., relating to recruitment of Senior Management Service employees.

Section 46 requests that the Division of Statutory Revision create part IX of ch. 112, F.S., to be entitled
"State Employment."

Section 47 creates s. 112.906, F.S., relating to definitions for the "State Employment" part.

Section 48 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.131, F.S., as s. 112.907, F.S., relating to other
personal-services employees.

Section 49 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1315, F.S., as s. 112.908, F.S., relating to
alternative benefits for other-personal-services employees.

Section 50 transfers and renumbers s. 110.1128, F.S., as s. 112.909, F.S.

STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 10



PAGE: 11

Section 51 creates s. 112.910, F.S., relating to state policy for equal employment opportunity.

Section 52 creates s. 112.911, F.S., relating to nondiscrimination in state employment.

Section 53 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1221, F.S., as s. 112.912, F.S., relating to the
sexual harassment policy for the state.

Section 54 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.122, F.S., as s. 112.913, F.S., relating to
accumulation and use of, and terminal payment of, annual and sick leave.

Section 55 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.121, F.S., as s. 112.914, F.S., relating to agency
sick leave pools.

Section 56 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.119, F.S., as s. 112.915, F.S., relating to
administrative leave for military service-connected disability.

Section 57 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.120, F.S., as s. 112.916, F.S., relating to
administrative leave for disaster service volunteers.

Section 58 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1091, F.S., as s. 112.917, F.S., relating to
employee assistance programs.

Section 59 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.151, F.S., as s. 112.918, F.S., relating to child
care services.

Section 60 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.181, F.S., as s. 112.919, F.S., relating to the
Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign.

Section 61 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1225, F.S., as s. 112.920, F.S., relating to
furloughs.

Section 62 transfers and renumbers s. 110.1155, F.S., as s. 112.921, F.S.

Section 63 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.191, F.S., as s. 112.922, F.S., relating to state
employee leasing.

Section 64 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1082, F.S., as s. 112.923, F.S., relating to
telephone voice mail and menu systems.

Section 65 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1165, F.S., as s. 112.924, F.S., relating to
executive branch personnel errors.

Section 66 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.113, F.S., as s. 112.925, F.S., relating to pay
periods and direct deposit.

Section 67 transfers and renumbers s. 110.114, F.S., as s. 112.926, F.S.

Section 68 creates s. 112.027, F.S., relating to the human resource information system.

Section 69 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1127, F.S., as s. 112.928, F.S., relating to
employee background screening and investigations.

Section 70 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.117, F.S., as s. 112.929, F.S., relating to paid
holidays and personal days.

Section 71 creates s. 112.930, F.S., relating to telework policies.

STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



Section 72 creates s. 112.931, F.S., relating to savings sharings programs.

Section 73 transfers and renumbers s. 110.1156, F.S., as s. 112.932, F.S.

Section 74 creates s. 112.933, F.S., relating to penalties for violation of that part.

Section 75 requests the Division of Statutory Revision to create part X of ch. 112, F.S., to be entitled
"State Administered Benefits."

Section 76 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1227, F.S., relating to the Florida Employee Long
Term-Care Plan Act.

Section 77 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1228, F.S., as s. 112.942, F.S., relating to
participation of certain local governments in the state group health insurance program.

Section 78 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.123, F.S., as s. 112.942, F.S., relating to the state
group insurance program.

Section 79 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.12301, F.S., as s. 112.943, F.S., relating to
competitive procurement of postpayment claims review services by the Division of State Group
Insurance.

Section 80 transfers and renumbers s. 110.12302, F.S., as s. 112.944, F.S.

Section 81 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.12312, F.S., as s. 112.945, F.S., relating to the
health insurance open enrollment period for retirees.

Section 82 transfers and renumbers s. 110.12315, F.S., as s. 112.946, F.S.

Section 83 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.1232, F.S., as s. 112.947, F.S., relating to health
insurance coverage for persons retired under state-administered retirement systems before a date
certain.

Section 84 transfers and renumbers s. 110.1234, F.S., as s. 112.948, F.S.

Section 85 transfers and renumbers s. 110.1238, F.S., as s. 112.949, F.S.

Section 86 transfers and renumbers s. 110.1239, F.S., as s. 112.950, F.S.

Section 87 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.161, F.S., as s. 112.951, F.S., relating to the
pretax benefits program for state employees.

Section 88 creates s. 112.952, F.S., relating to penalties for a violation of that part.

Section 89 requests that the Division of Statutory Revision renumber part IV of ch. 110, F.S., as part XI
of ch. 112, F.S., and rename that part as "State Volunteer Services."

Section 90 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.501, F.S., as s. 112.961, F.S., relating to
definitions for "State Volunteer Services."

Section 91 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.502, F.S., as s. 112.962, F.S., relating to state
volunteers.

Section 92 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.503, F.S., as s. 112.963, F.S., relating to
responsibilities of agencies using volunteers.

STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 12



Section 93 amends, transfers, and renumbers s. 110.504, F.S., as s. 112.964, F.S., relating to
volunteer benefits.

Section 94 creates s. 112.965, F.S., relating to penalties for a violation of that part.

Section 95 repeals the following sections of the Florida Statutes: 110.115, 110.118, 110.124, 110.129,
110.1521,110.1522,110.1523,110.171,110.2035, 110.21, 110.406, 110.603, 110.604, and 110.606.

Section 96 amends s. 11.13, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 97 amends s. 20.055, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 98 amends s. 20.21, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 99 amends s. 20.23, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 100 amends s. 20.255, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 101 amends s. 24.105, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 102 amends s. 24.122, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 103 amends s. 30.071, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 104 amends s. 43.16, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 105 amends s. 104.31, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 106 amends s. 106.24, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 107 amends s. 112.044, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 108 amends s. 112.0805, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 109 amends s. 112.313, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 110 amends s. 112.3145, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 111 amends s. 112.363, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 112 amends s. 121.021, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 113 amends s. 121.051, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 114 amends s. 121.055, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 115 amends s. 121.35, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 116 amends s. 145.19, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 117 amends s. 216.011, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 118 amends s. 216.181, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 119 amends s. 260.0125, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 120 amends s. 287.175, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 13



Section 121 amends s. 295.07, F.S., to make conforming changes.

Section 122 amends s. 295.09, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 123 amends s. 296.04, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 124 amends s. 296.34, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 125 amends s. 381.00315, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 126 amends s. 381.85, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 127 amends s. 394.47865, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 128 amends s. 402.3057, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 129 amends s. 402.55, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 130 amends s. 402.7305, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 131 amends s. 402.731, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 132 amends s. 409.1757, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 133 amends s. 409.9205, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 134 amends s. 414.37, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 135 amends s. 427.012, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 136 amends s. 440.102, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 137 amends s. 447.203, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 138 amends s. 447.207, F.S., to make conforming changes.

Section 139 amends s. 447.209, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 140 amends s. 447.401, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 141 amends s. 456.048, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 142 amends s. 551.116, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 143 amends s. 570.07, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 144 amends s. 601.10, F.S., to make drafting and conforming changes.

Section 145 amends s. 624.307, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 146 amends s. 624.437, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 147 amends s. 627.6488, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 148 amends s. 627.649, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 14



Section 149 amends s. 627.6498, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 150 amends s. 627.6617, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 151 amends s. 627.6686, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 152 amends s. 849.086, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 153 amends s. 943.0585, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 154 amends s. 943.059, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 155 amends s. 945.043, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 156 amends s. 946.525, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 157 amends s. 985.045, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 158 amends s. 1001.705, F.S., to make conforming changes.

Section 159 amends s. 1001.706, F.S., to make conforming changes.

Section 160 amends s. 1002.36, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 161 amends s. 1012.62, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 162 amends s. 1012.79, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 163 amends s. 1012.88, F.S., to make conforming and drafting changes.

Section 164 amends s. 1012.96, F.S., to make a conforming change.

Section 165 requires the DMS to create a proposal to restructure and modernize state employee leave.

Section 166 provides an effective date of July 1, 2012.

II. FISCAL ANALYSIS & ECONOMIC IMPACT STATEMENT

A. FISCAL IMPACT ON STATE GOVERNMENT:

1. Revenues:

The bill authorizes no new revenue sources and existing revenues would not be increased.

2. Expenditures:

There is likely to be an indeterminate reduction in state expenditures due to procedural efficiencies
in the bill and due to changes to employee leave carry-over.

The changes to bonus authorizations, telework, provisions involving People First, and the
streamlining of other processes may have an indeterminate fiscal impact.

B. FISCAL IMPACT ON LOCAL GOVERNMENTS:

1. Revenues:

The bill authorizes no new revenue sources and existing revenues would not be increased.

2. Expenditures:
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 15



PAGE: 16

None.

C. DIRECT ECONOMIC IMPACT ON PRIVATE SECTOR:

None.

D. FISCAL COMMENTS:

The cost of the research and study necessary to prepare the report required by s. 165 of the bill is
indeterminate. A somewhat similar study in Florida during 1999-2000 cost approximately $90,000 and a
similar study recently completed in Utah is believed to have cost approximately $300,000.

III. COMMENTS

A. CONSTITUTIONAL ISSUES:

1. Applicability of Municipality/County Mandates Provision:

Not applicable. This bill does not appear to require counties or municipalities to spend funds or take
action requiring the expenditure of funds; reduce the authority that counties or municipalities have to
raise revenues in the aggregate; or reduce the percentage of state tax shared with counties or
municipalities.

2. Other:

None.

B. RULE-MAKING AUTHORITY:

A rule is an agency statement of general applicability that interprets, implements, or prescribes law or
policy, including the procedure and practice requirements of an agency as well as certain types of
forms.56 Rulemaking authority is delegated by the Legislature through statute and authorizes an
agency to "adopt, develop, establish, or otherwise create" a rule. Because legislative power involves
the exercise of policy-related discretion over the content of law,57 any discretion given an agency to
implement a law must be "pursuant to some minimal standards and guidelines ascertainable by
reference to the enactment establishing the program."58

The bill transfers, consolidates, and modifies grants of rulemaking authority relating to implementation
of the statutes governing public employees. In part, the bill:

• Transfers some rulemaking authority from the DMS to the agency implementing the provision;
• Removes the Administration Commission's approval authority for certain DMS rules; and
• Changes some rulemaking authority for the DMS from mandatory to permissive.

C. DRAFTING ISSUES OR OTHER COMMENTS:

In several sections the bill "requests" the Division of Statutory Revision to rename a chapter, part, or
section of the statutes. This may create some uncertainty which would be resolved by changing the
name directly in the bill.

Section 5 of the bill amends and restates the authority of DMS to adopt rules necessary to implement
the provisions of chapter 110, F.S. Separate sections of the bill then provide authority for DMS to adopt
rules to implement specific sections of the statute. The addition of these separate rulemaking provisions
is not necessary. Because the separate sections of statute appear to provide the specific, substantive
law to be implemented by rulemaking, additional grants of authority to adopt rules are redundant to the
provisions in section 5 of the bill and may be deleted for greater clarity.

56 See s. 120.52(16), F.S.; Sioban v. Florida Board ofPharmacy, 982 So.2d 26 (Fla. 1st DCA 2008); Board ofTrustees ofthe Internal
;'[lprovement Trust Fundv. Day Cruise Association, Inc., 794 So.2d 696 (Fla. 1st DCA 2001).
58 See State ex rei. Taylor v. City ofTallahassee, 177 So.2d 719 (Fla. 1937).

See Askew v. Cross Key Waterways, 372 So.2d 913 (Fla. 1978).
STORAGE NAME: h1261b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012



IV. AMENDMENTSI COMMITTEE SUBSTITUTE CHANGES

On January 25, 2012, the Government Operations Subcommittee adopted a strike-all amendment and
passed HB 1261 as a committee substitute. The amendment made technical and organizational changes,
as well as the following substantive changes to the originally-filed bill:

• Removes the requirement that a governmental entity outside the State Personnel System must
enter into a mutual agreement with the OMS in order to be charged for the People First services it
receives, but allows the OMS to charge the governmental entity for such services;

• Removes the elimination of lump sum sick leave and annual leave payouts for leave earned after a
date certain;

• Removes the elimination of authorization for agency child care programs;
• Removes the elimination of Florida personal and family medical leave provisions;
• Removes the requirement that the OMS conduct a pay cycle study; and
• Adds a requirement that the OMS provide a proposal to restructure and modernize leave benefits

for state employees by a date certain.

The analysis is drafted to the committee substitute as passed by the Government Operations
Subcommittee.

STORAGE NAME: h1261 b.RRS.DOCX
DATE: 2/1/2012

PAGE: 17



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

9

10

11

12

13

14

15

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

26

27

28

A bill to be entitled

An act relating to state employment; providing

directives to the Division of Statutory Revision;

amending s. 110.105, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to the establishment of the State Personnel

System; transferring, renumbering, reordering, and

amending s. 110.107, F.S.; revising definitions

relating to ch. 110, F.S.; amending s. 110.1055, F.S.;

revising the rulemaking authority of the Department of

Management Services; creating s. 110.1056, F.S.;

providing for agency audits to determine compliance

with laws and rules; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.405, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to the appointment of ad hoc advisory

committees; creating s. 110.1065, F.S.; providing the

employment policies of the State Personnel System;

authorizing the department to adopt rules;

transferring, renumbering, and amending s. 110.233,

F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the

act; authorizing the department to adopt rules;

amending s. 110.1099, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to educational opportunities for employees;

transferring, renumbering, and amending s. 110.235,

F.S.; revising provisions relating to training

employees; authorizing the department to adopt rules;

amending s. 110.112, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to equal employment opportunities;

authorizing the department to adopt rules; creating s.

Page 1of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

29

30

31

32

33

34

35

36

37

38

39

40

41

42

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

52

53

54

55

56

110.1135, F.S.; requiring state agencies to keep

accurate records of work performed and leave; amending

s. 110.116, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

maintaining human resource information; authorizing

the department to adopt rules; amending s. 110.1245,

F.S.; revising provisions relating to bonuses and

other awards; authorizing the department to adopt

rules; amending s. 110.125, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to payment for the administrative costs of

operating the personnel program; authorizing the

department to adopt rules; amending s. 110.126, F.S.;

revising provisions relating to the department's

authority to administer oaths; authorizing the

department to adopt rules; amending s. 110.127, F.S.;

revising provisions relating to penalties; authorizing

the department to adopt rules; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.2037, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to tax-sheltered and special

compensation benefits; authorizing the department to

adopt rules; transferring, renumbering, and amending

s. 110.201, F.S., relating to personnel rules,

records, and reports; deleting provisions requiring

the department, in consultation with affected

agencies, to develop certain personnel rules,

guidelines, records, and reports relating to employees

and positions in the career service; creating s.

110.184, F.S.; revising provisions relating to the

department's annual workforce report; providing a

Page 2of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

57

58

59

60

61

62

63

64

65

66

67

68

69

70

71

72

73

74

75

76

77

78

79

80

81

82

83

84

directive to the Division of Statutory Revision;

creating s. 110.202, F.S.; providing a declaration of

policy with respect to the establishment of the Civil

Service; amending s. 110.205, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to the list of positions that are

exempted from the Civil Service; authorizing the

department to adopt rules; creating s. 110.208, F.S.;

providing for a uniform classification system for

civil service positions; creating s. 110.2085, F.S.;

providing a pay plan for civil service positions;

authorizing the department to adopt rules; amending s.

110.211, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

recruitment; authorizing the department to adopt

rules; amending s. 110.213, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to selecting a candidate for employment;

authorizing the department to adopt rules; amending s.

110.2135, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

veterans' preference; authorizing the department to

adopt rules; amending s. 110.215, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to employing persons with

disabilities; authorizing the department to adopt

rules; amending s. 110.217, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to a change in an employee's position status;

amending s. 110.219, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to attendance and leave policies; amending s.

110.221, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made

by the act; authorizing the department to adopt rules;

amending s. 110.224, F.S.; revising provisions

Page 3 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

85

86

87

88

89

90

91

92

93

94

95

96

97

98

99

100

101

102

103

104

105

106

107

108

109

110

111

112

relating to employee evaluation; amending s. 110.227,

F.S.; revising provisions relating to employee

grievances; authorizing the department to adopt rules;

providing a directive to the Division of Statutory

Revision; transferring, renumbering, and amending s.

110.601, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

selected exempt service policy; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.602, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to the creation of the Selected

Exempt Service; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.605, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to the powers and duties of the department;

creating s. 110.3023, F.S.; providing for the

recruitment of selected exempt service staff;

providing a directive to the Division of Statutory

Revision; amending s. 110.401, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to policies for senior management

employees; amending s. 110.402, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to the establishment of the Senior

Management Service; amending s. 110.403, F.S.;

revising provisions relating to the duties of the

department with respect to the Senior Management

Service; creating s. 110.4035, F.S.; providing

recruitment requirements for senior management service

employees; providing a directive to the Division of

Statutory Revision; creating s. 112.906, F.S.;

providing definitions for part IX of ch. 112, F.S.,

relating to state employment; transferring,

Page 4of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

113

114

115

116

117

118

119

120

121

122

123

124

125

126

127

128

129

130

131

132

133

134

135

136

137

138

139

140

renumbering, and amending s. 110.131, F.S.; revising

the duties of state agencies with respect to the

employment of other-personal-services employees;

authorizing state agencies having rulemaking authority

with respect to the conditions of employment to adopt

rules; transferring, renumbering, and amending s.

110.1315, F.S.; revising a provision relating to

other-personal-services employment; authorizing the

Department of Financial Services to adopt rules;

transferring and renumbering s. 110.1128, F.S.,

relating to selective service registration; creating

s. 112.910, F.S.; providing for equal employment

opportunity; creating s. 112.911, F.S.; providing for

nondiscrimination in employment; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.1221, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to the state sexual harassment

policy; transferring, renumbering, and amending s.

110.122, F.S.; revising provisions relating to payment

for sick leave; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.121, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to the sick leave pool; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.119, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to administrative leave for a

service-connected disability; transferring,

renumbering, and amending ss. 110.120 and 110.1091,

F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the

act; transferring, renumbering, and amending s.

110.151, F.S.; revising provisions relating to child

Page 5of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

141

142

143

144

145

146

.147

148

149

150

151

152

153

154

155

156

157

158

159

160

161

162

163

164

165

166

167

168

care services provided by a state agency;

transferring, renumbering, and amending s. 110.181,

F.S.; revising provisions relating to the Florida

State Employees' Charitable Campaign; requiring state

officers and employees to designate a charitable

organization to receive certain charitable

contributions; deleting provisions relating to the

establishment of local steering committees and the

distribution of funds; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.1225, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to agency furloughs; transferring and

renumbering s. 110.1155, F.S., relating to travel to

certain countries lacking diplomatic relations with

the United States; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.191, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to state employee leasing; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.1082, F.S.; revising

provisions related to telephone use; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.1165, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to executive branch personnel

errors; transferring, renumbering, and amending s.

110.113, F.S.; revising provisions relating to pay

periods; requiring state employees to participate in

the direct deposit program; transferring and

renumbering s. 110.114, F.S., relating to employee

wage deductions; creating s. 112.927, F.S.;

authorizing the Department of Management Services to

use its human resource information system for resource

Page 6of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

169

170

171

172

173

174

175

176

177

178

179

180

181

182

183

184

185

186

187

188

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

functionality; transferring, renumbering, and amending

s. 110.1127, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

background screening; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.117, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to an employee's personal holiday; creating

s. 112.930, F.S.; providing a telework program;

creating s. 112.931, F.S.; providing requirements for

the savings sharing program; transferring and

renumbering s. 110.1156, F.S., relating to the export

of goods to countries that support terrorism; creating

s. 112.933, F.S.; providing penalties for violations

relating to state employment; providing a directive to

the Division of Statutory Revision; transferring,

renumbering, and amending ss. 110.1227 and 110.1228,

F.S.; conforming cross-references; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.123, F.S., relating

to the state group insurance program; conforming

terminology and making editorial changes;

transferring, renumbering, and amending s. 110.12301,

F.S.; conforming a cross-reference; transferring and

renumbering s. 110.12302, F.S., relating to costing

options for state group insurance plans; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.12312, F.S.;

conforming cross-references; transferring and

renumbering s. 110.12315, F.S., relating to the state

employees' prescription drug program; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.1232, F.S.;

conforming cross-references; transferring and

Page 7of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207

208

209

210

211

212

213

214

215

216

217

218

219

220

221

222

223

224

renumbering s. 110.1234, F.S., relating to health

insurance for retirees under the Florida Retirement

System; transferring and renumbering s. 110.1238,

F.S., relating to state group health insurance plans;

transferring and renumbering s. 110.1239, F.S.,

relating to funding for the state group health

insurance program; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.161, F.S.; conforming a cross

reference; creating s. 112.952, F.S.; providing for

penalties; providing a directive to the Division of

Statutory Revision; transferring, renumbering,

reordering, and amending s. 110.501, F.S.; revising

definitions relating to state volunteer services;

transferring, renumbering, and amending s. 110.502,

F.S.; revising provisions relating to volunteer

status; transferring, renumbering, and amending s.

110.503, F.S.; revising provisions relating to state

agency responsibilities; transferring, renumbering,

and amending s. 110.504, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to volunteer benefits; creating s. 112.965,

F.S.; providing for penalties; repealing s. 110.115,

F.S., relating to employees of historical commissions;

repealing s. 110.118, F.S., relating to administrative

leave for athletic competitions; repealing s. 110.124,

F.S., relating to the termination or transfer of

employees 65 years of age or older; repealing s.

110.129, F.S., relating to technical personnel

assistance to political subdivisions; repealing s.

Page 8of 203

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

225 110.1521, F.S., relating to a short title; repealing

226 s. 110.1522, F.S., relating to a model rule

227 establishing family support personnel policies;

228 repealing s. 110.1523, F.S., relating to the adoption

229 of the model rule; repealing s. 110.171, F.S.,

230 relating to telecommuting; repealing s. 110.2035,

231 F.S., relating to the classification and compensation

232 program for employment positions; repealing s. 110.21,

233 F.S., relating to shared employment; repealing s.

234 110.406, F.S., relating to senior management service

235 data collection; repealing s. 110.603, F.S., relating

236 to a classification plan and pay bands for selected

237 exempt service positions; repealing s. 110.604, F.S.,

238 relating to certain personnel actions for selected

239 exempt service employees; repealing s. 110.606, F.S.,

240 relating to selected exempt service data collection;

241 amending ss. 11.13, 20.055, 20.21, 20.23, 20.255,

242 24.105, 24.122, 30.071, 43.16, 104.31, 106.24,

243 112.044, 112.0805, 112.313, 112.3145, 112.363,

244 121.021, 121.051, 121.055, 121.35, 145.19, 216.011,

245 216.181, 260.0125, 287.175, 295.07, 295.09, 296.04,

246 296.34, 381.00315, 381.85, 394.47865, 402.3057,

247 402.55, 402.7305, 402.731, 409.1757, 409.9205, 414.37,

248 427.012, 440.102, 447.203, 447.207, 447.209, 447.401,

249 456.048, 551.116, 570.07, 601.10, 624.307, 624.437,

250 627.6488, 627.649, 627.6498, 627.6617, 627.6686,

251 849.086, 943.0585, 943.059, 945.043, 946.525, 985.045,

252 1001.705, 1001.706, 1002.36, 1012.62, 1012.79,

Page 9of 203

CODING: Words stricl<eA are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

253 1012.88, and 1012.96, F.S.; conforming provisions to

254 changes made by the act; requiring the department to

255 provide a proposal to restructure and modernize the

256 leave benefits of the State Personnel System to the

257 Executive Office of the Governor, the President of the

258 Senate, and the Speaker of the House of

259 Representatives; providing an effective date.

260

261 Be It Enacted by the Legislature of the State of Florida:

262

263 Section 1. The Division of Statutory Revision is requested

264 to rename chapter 110, Florida Statutes, as "State Personnel

265 System."

266 Section 2. The Division of Statutory Revision is requested

267 to rename part I of chapter 110, Florida Statutes, as "General

268 Provisions. "

269 Section 3. Section 110.105, Florida Statutes, is amended

270 to read:

271 110.105 Establishment of the State Personnel System

272 Employment policy of the state.-

273 (1) It is The purpose of this chapter is to establish the

274 State Personnel a System of personnel management. The~

275 system shall provide ~ means for maintaining to recruit, select,

276 train, develop, and maintain an effective and responsible

277 workforce and include shall include policiesL ~ proceduresL

278 and guidelines for employee hiring and advancement, training and

279 career development, position classification, salary

280 administration, benefits, attendance and leave, discipline,

Page 10 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

281 dismissal discharge, employee performance evaluations,

282 affirmative action, and other related activities.

283 (2) All appointments, terminations, assignments and

284 maintenance of status, compensation, privileges, and other terms

285 and conditions of employment in state government shall be made

286 Hithout regard to age, sm<, race, religion, national origin,

287 political affiliation, marital status, or handicap, mwept '"hen

288 a specific se)<, age, or physical requirement constitutes a bona

289 fide occupational qualification necessary to proper and

290 efficient administration.

291 (3) E)wept as m<pressly proTJided by laH, there shall be no

292 Florida residence requirement for any person as a condition

293 precedent to employment by the state} hOHever, preference may be

294 given to Florida residents in hiring.

295 ~+4t This chapter contains the requirements and guides

296 for establishing and maintaining a system of personnel

297 administration on a merit basis. The system of personnel

298 administration shall be implemented so as to ensure that the

299 permit state agencies participating in the State Personnel

300 System are to be eligible for to receive federal funds.

301 (5) Nothing in this chapter shall be construed either to

302 infringe upon or to supersede the rights guaranteed public

303 employees under chapter 447.

304 Section 4. Section 110.107, Florida Statutes, is

305 transferred, renumbered as section 110.1054, Florida Statutes,

306 reordered, and amended to read:

307 110.1054 110.107 Definitions.-As used in this chapter, the

308 term:

Page 11 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

309 ill+» "Department" means the Department of Management

310 Services.

311 (30)-+-2+ "Secretary" means the Secretary of Management

312 Services.

313 (3) "Furlough" means a temporary reduction in the regular

314 hours of emploj'fRent in a pay period, or temporary leave r,Jithout

315 pay for one or more pay periods, Hith a COffiffiensurate reduction

316 in pay, necessitated by a projected deficit in any fund that

317 supports salary and benefit appropriations. The deficit must be

318 projected by the Revenue Estimating Conference pursuant to s.

319 216.136(3).

320 .il1.l+4+ "State agency" or "agency" means any entity within

321 the State Personnel System offieial, officer, cOffiffiission, board,

322 authority, council, cOffiffiittee, or department of the enecutive

323 branch or the judicial branch of state government as defined in

324 chapter 216.

325 (32) "State employee" or "employee" means an employee of a

326 state agency.

327 (33) "State Personnel System" means the system of

328 personnel administration for authorized civil service, selected

329 exempt service, and senior management service positions and

330 other personal services employment within the following state

331 agencies and organizational units of such agencies as specified

332 by law:

333 (a) Agency for Enterprise Information Technology.

334 (b) Agency for Health Care Administration.

335 (c) Agency for Persons with Disabilities.

336 (d) Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services.

Page 12 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

337 (e) Department of Business and Professional Regulation.

338 (f) Department of Children and Family Services.

339 (g) Department of Citrus.

340 (h) Department of Corrections.

341 (i) Department of Economic Opportunity.

342 (j) Department of Education.

343 (k) Department of Elderly Affairs.

344 (1) Department of Environmental Protection.

345 (m) Department of Financial Services.

346 (n) Department of Health.

347 (0) Department of Highway Safety and Motor Vehicles.

348 (p) Department of Juvenile Justice.

349 (q) Department of Law Enforcement.

350 (r) Department of Legal Affairs.

351 (s) Department of Management Services.

352 (t) Department of Military Affairs.

353 (u) Department of Revenue.

354 (v) Department of State.

355 (w) Department of Transportation.

356 (x) Department of Veterans' Affairs.

357 (y) Executive Office of the Governor.

358 (2) Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.

359 (aa) Florida Public Service Commission.

360 (bb) Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.

361 (cc) Parole Commission.

362 ~-f-§+ "Position" means the work, consisting of duties

363 and responsibilities, assigned to be performed by an officer or

364 employee.

Page 13 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

365 (23) "Position description" means the document that

366 accurately describes the assigned duties, responsibilities, and

367 other pertinent information, including licensure, certification,

368 or registration requirements, of a position and that serves as

369 the official record of the work and other requirements of the

370 position.

371 J.lQl-t6+ "Full-time position" means a position authorized

372 for the entire normally established work period, whether daily,

373 weekly, monthly, or annually.

374 Q2.l+++ "Part-time position" means a position authorized

375 for less than the entire normally established work period,

376 whether daily, weekly, monthly, or annually.

377 Jl.§l+8+ "Occupation" means all positions that 'Jhich are

378 sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills, and abilitiesT and

379 sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of work.

380 J.1..2l-f-9+ "Occupational group" means a group of occupations

381 which are sufficiently similar in the kind of work performed to

382 warrant the use of the same performance factors in determining

383 the level of complexity for all occupations in that occupational

384 group.

385 (18) "Other personal services" means temporary employment

386 as provided in s. 112.907.

387 ill+±-e+ "Classification system ~" means a formal

388 description of the concepts, rules, job family definitions,

389 occupational group characteristics, ~ occupational profilesL

390 and broadband levels used to classify in the classification of

391 positions.

392 Ql.l+±-±+ "Pay plan" means a formal description of the

Page 14 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

393 philosophy, methods, procedures, and salary schedules for

394 competitively compensating employees at market-based rates for

395 work performed.

396 Q21~ "Salary schedule" means an official document that

397 vJhich contains a complete list of occupation titles, broadband

398 level codes, ~ pay bands, and other related information.

399 ill-f-±-3+ "Authorized position" means a position included in

400 an approved budget. In counting the number of authorized

401 positions, part-time positions may be converted to full-time

402 equivalents.

403 ill+±-4+ "Established position" means an authorized

404 position that Hhich has been 'classified in accordance with a

405 classification system and pay plan as provided by law.

406 (24)+±-§+ "Position number" means the identification number

407 assigned to an established position or other-personal-services

408 employment position.

409 ~+±-6+ "Reclassification" means changing an established

410 position in one broadband level in an occupational group to a

411 higher or lower broadband level within 4fi the same occupation or

412 changing an established position to a different occupation,

413 either of which is the result of a change in the duties and

414 responsibilities of the position occupational group or to a

415 broadband level in a different occupational group.

416 J1..§l+±-++ "Promotion" means moving a civil service employee

417 to a higher broadband level within an occupation, or moving an

418 employee to an occupation that has a broadband level having

419 changing the classification of an employee to a broadband level

420 having a higher maximum salary; or the changing of the

Page 15 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

421 classification of an employee to a broadband level having the

422 same or a lmJer mmdmum salary but a higher level of

423 responsibility.

424 ill+±-8+ "Demotion" means moving a civil service changing

425 the classification of an employee to a lower broadband level

426 within an occupation, or moving an employee to an occupation

427 that has a broadband level having a lower maximum salary; or the

428 changing of the classification of an employee to a broadband

429 level having the same or a higher mmdmum salary but a lmvcr

430 level of responsibility.

431 .Jl2l+±-9+ "Transfer" means moving a civil service af'l-

432 employee from one geographic location of the state to a

433 different geographic location that is more than in excess of 50

434 highway miles from the employee's current work location. The

435 mileage shall be calculated using an official Department of

436 Transportation map.

437 Q2.L+2-8+ "Reassignment" means moving a civil service af'l-

438 employee from a position in an occupation to a position in the

439 same occupation and efle broadband level which has different

440 duties; or to a different position in a different occupation

441 that has a the same broadband level with the same maximum

442 salary; or to a position in the same occupation and different

443 broadband level regardless of the duties, but in a different

444 agency having the same mmdmum salary.

445 J...§l+2-±+ "Dismissal" means a disciplinary action taken by

446 an agency pursuant to s. 110.227 against a civil service af'l

447 employee which results resulting in the termination of his or

448 her employment.

Page 16 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

449 (34)-f-2-2+ "Suspension" means a disciplinary action taken by

450 an agency against a civil service employee pursuant to s.

451 110.227 which against an employee to temporarily relieves

452 relieve the employee of his or her duties and places place him

453 or her on leave without pay.

454 ~~ "Layoff" means termination of employment due to a

455 shortage of funds or work, or a material change in the duties or

456 organization of an agency, including the outsourcing or

457 privatization of an activity or function previously performed by

458 civil career service employees.

459 (15) "Merit status" means the status attained by a civil

460 service employee in his or her current position upon

461 successfully completing the required probationary period by

462 demonstrating competency in performing the duties and

463 responsibilities of that position.

464 l2l~ "Employing agency" means any agency authorized to

465 employ personnel to carry out the responsibilities of the agency

466 pursuant to under the provisions of chapter 20 or other law

467 statutory authority.

468 (25) "Shared employffient" ffieans part time career employffient

469 Hhereby the duties and responsibilities of a full time position

470 in the career service are divided affiong part tiffie employees 'n'ho

471 are eligible for the position and who receive career service

472 benefits and ..'ages pro rata. In no case shall "shared

473 effip1 oyffient " include the emploYffient of persons paid froffi other

474 personal services funds.

475 ill--f-2--6+ "Firefighter" means a firefighter certified under

476 chapter 633.

Page 17 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

477 J....!ll-\-2-++ "Law enforcement or correctional officer" means a

478 law enforcement officer, special agent, correctional officer,

479 correctional probation officer, or institutional security

480 specialist required to be certified under chapter 943.

481 ~-f-2-8+ "Professional health care provider" means

482 registered nurses, physician's assistants, dentists,

483 psychologists, nutritionists or dietitians, pharmacists,

484 psychological specialists, physical therapists, and speech and

485 hearing therapists.

486 J..l:..!l~ "Job family" means a defined grouping of one or

487 more similar occupational groups.

488 (12) "Lateral" means moving a civil service employee

489 within an agency to a different position that is in the same

490 occupation, that is at the same broadband level with the same

491 maximum salary, and that has substantially the same duties and

492 responsibilities.

493 J1..Ql-f-&G+ "Pay band" means the minimum salary, the maximum

494 salary, and intermediate rates that '.vhieh are payable for work

495 in a specific broadband level.

496 illB-3+ "Broadband level" means all positions that v;rhieh

497 are sufficiently similar in knowledge, skills, and abilitiesL

498 the, and sufficiently similar as to kind or subject matter of

499 work; ther level of difficulty or responsibility;

500 responsibilities, and qualification requirements of the Hork so

501 as to warrant the same treatment with respect ft& to title, pay

502 band, and other personnel transactions.

503 Section 5. Section 110.1055, Florida Statutes, is amended

504 to read:

Page 18 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

505 110.1055 Rules; records and rulemaking authority.-

506 ill The department of Nanagement SePJiees shall adopt

507 rules as necessary to carry out its statutory duties effectuate

508 the provisions of this chapter, as amended by this act, and in

509 accordance 'dith the authority granted to the department in this

510 chapter. All enisting rules relating to this chapter are

511 statutorily repealed January 1, 2002, unless othendse

512 readopted.

513 (2) In consultation with the state agencies, the

514 department shall develop uniform per:sonnel rules, guidelines,

515 records, and reports relating; to empl0::iees .inthe State

516 Personnel Sy:stem. The department may adopt rules that provide

517 alternative requirements.

518 (3) Upon adoption,. the uniformper:sonnel rules constitute

519 the personnelrule:s for each state ag;enc::i'

520 (a) Eachag;enc::i mustcomplwwith the uniform rules unless:

521 1. The Administration Commission has g;ranted an exception

522 to a specific rule. An agency may request an exception to the

523 uniform personnel rules by filing a petition with the

524 commission .. The. commission shall approve an exception if the

525 exception is. necessary to conform to any requirement imposed as

526 a condi tionprecedent to receipt of·federal funds or to permit

527 persons in this. :state to receive tax benefits under federal law,

528 or if required for the most efficient operation of the ag;ency as

529 determined by the commission. The reasons for the exception must

530 be published in the Florida Administrative Weekly. Ag;ency rules

531 that provide exceptions to the uniform rules may not be adopted

532 unless approved by the commission.

Page 19 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

HO US E o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

533 2. The agency must comply with a statutory provision that

534 conflicts with the uniform rules.· In such case, the agency shall

535 notify the department,the Administration Commission, the

536 Administrative Procedures Committee, and· the appropriate

537 standing committees of the Legislature and advise· the standing

538 committees if theagencyrecornn'Lendsrevisionofthe statute to

539 conform it to the uniform rules; Agencies are encouraged to

540 propose methods for conforming statutory provisions to the

541 uniform rules.

542 (b). Ana.g~nCYt.ha.t.a.gqEt.$ ;r:\.ll~$t.ha.t.prgvig~ a.nexception

5 43 to the unifQrtn:pq.lesQrt.h.at.qg:tnP.lYWcLt.n.St.a.tUt.g:pyr~g\.lcL:pem~nts

544 that conflictwiththeunifgrmrul$~mq.!St.b.aY~..a.!Sep.a:p.at~

545 chapter published in the Florida Administrative Code. The

546 chaPt.er mt.:t$tcl.~a:p.lY d~lcLne.atet.heI:?rgvisi(jn$g:ft.bea.g~ncy's

547 rules which provide aneXCePt.i(jnorwbcLCh.;i:pe based ona

548 conflictcLng $tatl:tt.o:pyr~9.l:tiretn~nt..:eJa.ch.alte;r:na.t.ivechosen from

549 thosea.uthorized lqy the<uniformirulesmustbe $p~¢ilied. Each

550

551 rules.

552 (c) Any xuleagoEteg by a.nagencywhi<::his.an i~xceptigntQ

553 the uniform rules or which is basedl:tpgp.a<::Qnflicting statut.ory

554 provision may not p:pescribepersonnelpolicies inconsistent with

555 the provisions of this chapter. Suchirules may not· include.;iny

556 benefits for StatePersonnelSystem~rnplQyees.which .are in

557 addition to, or exceed, those authorized by this chapter a.nd

558 must comply with all federal· regulations necessary to allow· the

559 agency to receive federal funds.

560 (4) The department may develop uniform forms and

Page 20 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

561 instructions relating to personnel transactions as the

562 department determines necessary.

563 (5) The agency is responsible for maintaining up-to-date

564 personnel records and reports in accordance with applicable

565 rules and laws.

566 Section 6. Section 110.1056, Florida Statutes, is created

567 to read:

568 110.1056 Agency audits.-The department may periodically

569 audit agency records to determine compliance with this chapter

570 and department rules.

571 Section 7. Section 110.405, Florida Statutes, is

572 transferred, renumbered as section 110.106, Florida Statutes,

573 and amended to read:

574 110.106 110.405 Advisory committees.-The secretary ~

575 !!anagement Serviees may at any time appoint an ad hoc or

576 continuing advisory committee consisting of members of the

577 Senior Management Service or other persons knowledgeable in the

578 field of personnel management. Advisory committees Any Such

579 cOHlffiittee shall consist of not more than nine members, 'dho shall

580 serve at the pleasure of and meet at the call of the secretary

581 and, at the request of the s~cretary, provide consultation and

582 advice, to advise and consult ',lith the secretary on -s-ueh- matters

583 affecting the State Personnel System Senior Hanagement Service

584 as the secretary requests. Members shall serve without

585 compensationT but are shall be entitled to receive reimbursement

586 for travel expenses as provided in s. 112.061. The secretary may

587 periodically hire a consultant who has~ expertise in

588 personnel administration management to advise him or her with

Page 21 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

589 respect to the administration of the State Personnel System

590 Senior Hanagement Serviee.

591 Section 8. Section 110.1065, Florida Statutes, is created

592 to read:

593 110.1065 General employment policies and requirements.-

594 (1) It is the policy of the State Personnel System:

595 (a) That all appointments, terminations, assignments, and

596 maintenance of status, compensation, privileges, and other terms

597 and conditions of employment in the State Personnel System be

598 made without regard to age, sex, race, color, religion, national

599 origin, political affiliation, marital status, disability, or

600 genetic information, unless a specific requirement constitutes a

601 bona fide occupational qualification.

602 (b) That sexual harassment is a form of discrimination

603 and, therefore, is prohibited and shall be defined in a manner

604 consistent with federal law.

605 (c) To support employees in balancing their personal needs

606 and work responsibilities. This policy is designed to enhance

607 the employee's ability to blend the competing demands of work

608 and personal life and produce a more skilled, accountable, and

609 committed workforce for the State Personnel System. Provisions

610 may include, but need not be limited to, flexible work

611 schedules, telework, part-time employment, and leaves of absence

612 with or without pay.

613 (d) To adopt and comply with the federal Family and

614 Medical Leave Act, except for those provisions that.do not

615 specifically apply to state government employers. With regard to

616 those provisions, the sovereign immunity of the state is not

Page 22 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

617 waived and the rules of the department relating to leave

618 control.

619 (2) Except as expressly provided by law, Florida residency

620 may not be required for any person as a condition precedent to

621 employment; however, preference in hiring may be given to state

622 residents.

623 (3) State agencies that use other personal services

624 employment must comply with s. 112.907.

625 (4) Employees of the State Personnel System may be

626 furloughed pursuant to s. 112.920.

627 (5) This chapter may not be construed to infringe upon or

628 supersede the rights guaranteed public employees under chapter

629 447.

630 (6) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

631 this section.

632 (7) Parts IX and XI of chapter 112 are applicable to the

633 State Personnel System. The department may adopt rules necessary

634 to administer those parts.

635 Section 9. Section 110.233, Florida Statutes, is

636 transferred, renumbered as section 110.1075, Florida Statutes,

637 and amended to read:

638 110.1075 110.233 Political activities and unlawful acts

639 prohibited.-

640 (1) No person shall be appointed to, demoted, or dismissed

641 from any position in the Civil eareer Service, or in any way

642 favored or discriminated against with respect to employment in

643 the Civil eareer Service, because of raee, eolor, national

644 origin, se}{, handieap, religious ereed, or political opinion or

Page 23 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

645 affiliation.

646 (2) No person may shall use or promise to use, directly or

647 indirectly, any official authority or influence, whether

648 possessed or anticipated, to secure or attempt to secure for any

649 person an appointment or advantage in appointment to a position

650 in the Civil career Service, or an increase in payor other

651 advantage in employment in any such position, for the purpose of

652 influencing the vote or political action of any person or for

653 any consideration~7However, letters of inquiry,

654 recommendations, and references by public employees or public

655 officials are shall not Be considered political pressure unless

656 they contain any such letter contains a threat, intimidation, or

657 irrelevant, derogatory, or false information. For the purposes

658 of this section, the term "political pressure," in addition to

659 any appropriate meaning that 'dhich may be ascribed thereto by

660 lawful authority, includes the use of official authority or

661 influence in any manner prohibited by this chapter.

662 (3) No person may shall, directly or indirectly, give,

663 render, pay, offer, solicit, or accept any money, service, or

664 other valuable consideration for or on account of any

665 appointment, proposed appointment, promotion or proposed

666 promotion to, or any advantage inT a position in the Civil

667 career Service. The provisions of This subsection does '$ not

668 apply to a private employment agency if licensed pursuant to the

669 provisions of chapter 449 '",hen the services of the -s-u-efi private

670 employment agency are requested by a state agency, board,

671 department, or commission and neither the state nor any

672 political subdivision pays the private employment agency for

Page 24 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

673 such services.

674 (4) As an individual, each employee retains all rights and

675 obligations of citizenship provided in the Constitution and laws

676 of the state and the Constitution and laws of the United States.

677 However, an ft6 employee in the Civil eareer Service may not

678 shall:

679 (a) Hold, or be a candidate for, public office while in

680 the employment of the state or take an -aT.l:Y active part in a

681 political campaign while on duty or within any period of time

682 during which the employee is expected to perform services for

683 which he or she receives compensation from the state. However,

684 if whefl authorized by his or her agency head and approved by the

685 department as not involving an ft6 interest that ""hich conflicts

686 or activity that which interferes with his or her state

687 employment, an employee in the Civil career Service may be a

688 candidate for or hold local public office. The department shall

689 prepare and make available to all affected personnel who make

690 such request a definite set of rules and procedures consistent

691 with this paragraph the provisions herein.

692 (b) Use the authority of his or her position to secure

693 support for, or oppose, any candidate, party, or issue in a

694 partisan election or affect the results thereof.

695 (5) No State Personnel System employee or official may

696 shall use any promise of reward or threat of loss to encourage

697 or coerce any employee to support or contribute to any political

698 issue, candidate, or party.

699 (6) The department shall adopt by rule procedures for

700 State Personnel Career Service System employees which~

Page 25 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

701 require disclosure to the agency head of any application for or

702 offer of employment, gift, contractual relationship, or

703 financial interest with any individual, partnership,

704 association, corporation, utility, or other organization,

705 whether public or private, doing business with or subject to

706 regulation by the agency.

707 (7) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

708 this section.

709 Section 10. Section 110.1099, Florida Statutes, is amended

710 to read:

711 110.1099 Elective education and professional development

712 and training opportunities for state employees.-

713 (1) The education and professional development of

714 employees training are afi integral components oomponent in

715 improving the delivery of services to the public. Recognizing

716 that the application of productivity-enhancing technology and

717 practice demands continuous educational and professional

718 development training opportunities, an a state employee may Be

719 authoriEed to receive a voucherL er grant, or tuition

720 reimbursement for matriculation feesT to attend work-related

721 courses at public community colleges, public career centers, er

722 public universities, or other accredited postsecondary

723 educational institutions. The department may implement the

724 provisions of this seotion from funds appropriated to the

725 department for this purpose. In the event insuffioient funds are

726 appropriated to the department, Each state agency may supplement

727 these funds to support the educational and professional

728 development training and eduoation needs of its employees from

Page 26 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

729 funds appropriated to the agency.

730 (2) The department, in conjunction with the agencies,

731 shall request that public universities provide evening and

732 ',wekend programs for state employees. When evening and Vieekend

733 training and educational programs are not available, an employee

734 may be authoriEed to take paid time off during his or her

735 regular ",'orking hours for training and career development, as

736 provided in s. 110.105(1), if such training benefits the

737 employer as determined by that employee's agency head.

738 l£l+3t An employee who exhibits superior aptitude and

739 performance may be authorized by his or her that employee's

740 agency head to take a paid educational leave of absence for up

741 to 1 academic year at a time, for specific approved work-related

742 education and professional development training. The~

743 employee must enter into a contract to return to the agency

744 granting the leave state employment for a period of time equal

745 to the length of the leave of absence or refund the salary and

746 benefits paid during the his or her educational leave of

747 absence.

748 11l+4+ As a precondition to approving an employee's

749 training request for an educational, professional development,

750 or training program, an agency or the judicial branch may

751 require the aft employee to enter into an agreement which

752 provides that, if the employee voluntarily terminates employment

753 or is dismissed from the agency within a specified period of

754 time, not to exceed 2 years after the conclusion of the program,

755 requires the employee must ~ reimburse the agency or judicial

756 branch for up to the total cost of fees and associated expenses

Page 27 of 203

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

757 for the program if the registration fee or similar C2fpense for

758 any training or training series "hen the total cost of the fee

759 or similar expense exceeds $1,000 if the employee voluntarily

760 terminates employment or is discharged for cause from the agency

761 or judicial branch within a specified period of time not to

762 C2weed 4 years after the conclusion of the training. This

763 subsection does not apply to any training program or course that

764 an agency or the judicial branch requires an employee to attend.

765 An agency or the judicial branch may pay the outstanding balance

766 then due and owing on behalf of an a state employee under this

767 subsection in connection with the recruitment and hiring of such

768 state employee.

769 ill-f-§+ The department may of Hanagement Services, in

770 consultation ~lith the agencies and, to the entent applicable,

771 T",ith Florida's public cOffiffiunity colleges, public career centers,

772 and public universities, shall adopt rules necessary to

773 administer this section.

774 Section 11. Section 110.235, Florida Statutes, is

775 transferred, renumbered as section 110.1115, Florida Statutes,

776 and amended to read:

777 110.1115 110.235 Training and professional development of

778 employees.-

779 (1) State agencies shall implement training and

780 professional development programs that encompass modern

781 management principlesT and that provide the framework to develop

782 human resourcesL through empmwrment, training, and reT,lards for

783 productivity enhancement; to continuously improve the quality of

784 servicesLT and to satisfy the expectations of the public.

Page 28 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

785 (2) Each state employing agency shall provide the

786 department with training information as requested for the

787 purpose of analyzing statewide training needs annually evaluate

788 and report to the department the training it has implemented and

789 the progress it has made in the area of training.

790 (3) As approved by the Legislature by lml, Each state

791 employing agency may use a portion specified percentage of its

792 salary budget to implement training programs.

793 (4) In order to promote the development of managerial,

794 executive, or administrative skills among employees, each agency

795 may establish and administer a training program that may

796 include, but need not be limited to:

797 (a) Improving the performance of individuals and groups of

798 employees.

799 (b) Relating the efforts of employees to the goals of the

800 agency.

801 (c) Strategic planning.

802 (d) Team leadership.

803 (5) The department is responsible for ensuring that

804 appropriate state agency personnel are adequately trained in the

805 proper administration of State Personnel System policies and

806 procedures, compliance with all applicable federal and state

807 workforce regulations, and the promotion of efficient and

808 equitable employment practices. The department may host

809 workshops, conferences, and other professional development

810 activities that focus on the training needs of agency staff who

811 are responsible for human resource management, training and

812 development, and benefits administration.

Page 29 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

813 (a) The department may coordinate with the appropriate

814 business units of the state universities or community colleges

815 for the purpose of sponsoring conferences and expositions that

816 provide continuing professional development to the agencies in

817 the areas of human resource management, payroll and benefits

818 administration, and other topics critical to the proper

819 administration of the state workforce.

820 (b) For the purposes of leveraging resources and promoting

821 best practices, the department may open such conferences to all

822 state and local public employers who have shared interests in

823 public-sector human resource management and related topics.

824 (6) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

825 this section.

826 Section 12. Section 110.112, Florida Statutes, is amended

827 to read:

828 110.112 Affirmative aotion} Equal employment opportunity.-

829 (1) It is shall be the policy of the State Personnel

830 System to assist in ensuring providing the assuranoe of equal

831 employment opportunity through programs of affirmative and

832 positive action that w-i-l-± allow full utilization of women and

833 minorities.

834 (2)+a+ The head of each state G}fCoutive agency shall

835 develop and implement an affirmative action plan in accordance

836 with this section and applicable state and federal laws rules

837 adopted by the department and approved by a majority vote of the

838 Administration COffiffiission before their adoption.

839 M -t-e+ Each G}fCoutive agency shall establish annual goals

840 for ensuring the full utilization of groups underrepresented in

Page 30 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

841 its workforce as compared to the relevant labor market, as

842 defined by the agency. Each eJwcutive agency shall design its

843 affirmative action plan to meet its established goals.

844 lel+et An equal affirmative action equal employment

845 opportunity officer shall be appointed by the head of each

846 mwcutive agency. The affirmative action equal eFl'lployment

847 opportunity officer's responsibilities must include determining

848 annual goals, monitoring agency cOFl'lpliance, and providing

849 consultation to managers regarding progress, deficiencies, and

850 appropriate corrective action.

851 ~~ The department shall report information in its

852 annual workforce report relating to the demographic composition

853 of the workforce of the State Personnel System as compared to

854 the relevant state labor market implementation, continuance,

855 updating, and results of each executive agency's affirmative

856 action plan for the previous fiscal year. The agencies shall

857 provide the department with the information nocessary to comply

858 with this paragraph.

859 (e) The department shall provide to all supervisory

860 personnel of the mwcutive agencies training in the principles

861 of equal eFl'lploYffient opportunity and affirmative action, the

862 development and iFl'lplementation of affirmative action plans, and

863 the establishment of annual affirmative action goals. The

864 department may contract for training services, and each

865 participating agency shall reimburse the department for costs

866 incurred through such contract. After the department approves

867 the contents of the training program for the agencies, the

868 department may delegate this training to the eJwcutive agencies.

Page 31 of 203

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

869 (3) Each state attorney and public defender shall:

870 (a) Develop and implement an affirmative action plan.

871 (b) Establish annual goals for ensuring full utilization

872 of groups underrepresented in its 'n'orkforce as compared to the

873 relevant labor market in this state. The state attorneys' and

874 public defenders' affirmative action plans must be designed to

875 meet the established goals.

876 (c) Appoint an affirmative action equal employment

877 opportunity officer.

878 (d) Report annually to the Justice Administrative

879 Commission on the implementation, continuance, updating, and

880 results of his or her affirmative action program for the

881 previous fiseal year.

882 J1l~ Each ~ state agency, its agencies and officers

883 shall ensure freedom from discrimination in employment in

884 accordance with applicable state and federal laws as provided by

885 the Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, by s. 112.044, and by this

886 chapter.

887 (4) All recruitment literature that references State

888 Personnel System position vacancies must contain the phrase "An

889 Equal Opportunity Employer. " .

890 (5) An Afiy individual claiming to be aggrieved by an

891 unlawful employment practice may file a complaint with the

892 Florida Commission on Human Relations as provided by s. 760.11.

893 (6) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

894 shall reviC'JJ and monitor e}{CcutiTJe agency actions in carrying

895 out the rules adopted by the department pursuant to this

896 section.

Page 32 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

897 Section 13. Section 110.1135, Florida Statutes, is created

898 to read:

899 110.1135 Attendance and leave records.-Each state agency

900 shall keep an accurate record of all hours of work performed by

901 each employee, as well as a complete and accurate record of all

902 authorized leave. The ultimate responsibility for the accuracy

903 and proper maintenance of all attendance and leave records is

904 with the agency head.

905 Section 14. Section 110.116, Florida Statutes, is amended

906 to read:

907 110.116 Human resource Personnel information system;

908 payroll procedures.-

909 ill The department of Hanagement Serviees shall establish

910 and maintain, in coordination with the payroll system of the

911 Department of Financial Services, a complete human resource

912 personnel information system for all authorized and established

913 positions in the State Personnel System serviee, with the

914 mweption of effiPloyees of the Legislature, unless the

915 Legislature ehooses to partieipate. The department may contract

916 with a vendor to provide the human resource personnel

917 information system. The specifications shall be developed in

918 conjunction with the payroll system of the Department of

919 Financial Services and in coordination with the Auditor General.

920 The Department of Financial Services shall determine that the

921 position occupied by each employee has been authorized and

922 established in accordance with the provisions of s. 216.251. The

923 human resource information system must include Department of

924 Hanagement Serviees shall develop and maintain a position

Page 33 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

925 numbering system that identifies h'ill identify each established

926 position, and such information shall be a part of the payroll

927 system of the Department of Financial Services. The With the

928 exception of employees of the Legislature, unless the

929 Legislature chooses to participate, this system must shall

930 include all civil career service positions and those positions

931 exempted from the Civil career Service provisions,

932 notwithstanding the funding source of the salary payments, and

933 information regarding persons receiving salary payments from

934 other sources. Necessary revisions shall be made in the

935 personnel and payroll procedures of the state to avoid

936 duplication insofar as is feasible to do so. The information in

937 the system must A list shall be organized by budget entity to

938 show the employees or vacant positions within each budget

939 entity. The information This list shall be made available to the

940 Speaker of the House of Representatives and the President of the

941 Senate upon request.

942 (2) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

943 this section.

944 Section 15. Section 110.1245, Florida Statutes, is amended

945 to read:

946 110.1245 Savings sharing program} Bonus payments; other

947 awards.-

948 (1) (a) The Department of Hanagement Services shall adopt

949 rules that prescribe procedures and promote a savings sharing

950 program for an individual or group of employees \Jho propose

951 procedures or ideas that are adopted and that result in

952 eliminating or reducing state expenditures, if such proposals

Page 34 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

953 are placed in effect and may be implemented under current

954 statutory authority.

955 (b) Each agency head shall recommend employees

956 individually or by group to be mmrded an amount of money, '",hich

957 amount shall be directly related to the cost savings realized.

958 Each proposed mmrd and amount of money must be approved by the

959 Legislative Budget Commission.

960 (c) Each state agency, unless other-dse provided by Imi',

961 may participate in the program. The Chief Justice shall have the

962 authority to establish a savings sharing program for employees

963 of the judicial branch 'dithin the parameters established in this

964 section. The program shall apply to all employees 'dithin the

965 Career Service, the Selected EJwmpt Service, and comparable

966 employees Hithin the judicial branch.

967 (d) The department and the judicial branch shall submit

968 annually to the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the

969 House of Representatives information that outlines each agency's

970 level of participation in the savings sharing program. The

971 information shall include, but is not limited to!

972 1. The nuFflber of proposals made.

973 2. The nuFflber of dollars and mmrds made to employees or

974 groups for adopted proposals.

975 3. The actual cost savings realized as a result of

976 implementing employee or group proposals.

977 lll~ State agencies may pay In June of each year,

978 bonuses shall be paid to employees from funds authorized by the

979 Legislature in an appropriation specifically for bonuses.

980 Bonuses shall be distributed in accordance with the criteria and

Page 35 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

981

982

983

984

985

986

987

988

989

990

991

992

993

994

995

996

997

998

999

1000

1001

1002

1003

1004

1005

1006

1007

1008

instructions provided in the General Appropriations Act. Eaefi

agency shall develop a plan for mwrding lump SUfR bonuses, \;,hich

plan shall be submitted no later than September 15 of each year

and approved by the Office of Policy and Budget in the E}cecutive

Office of the Governor. Such plan shall include, at a minimum,

but is not limited to:

(a) A statement that bonuses are subject to specific

appropriation by the Legislature.

(b) Eligibility criteria as follmw:

1. The employee must have been employed prior to July 1 of

that fiscal year and have been continuously employed through the

date of distribution.

2. The employee must not have been on leave Hithout pay

consecutively for more than 6 months during the fiscal year.

3. The employee must have had no sustained disciplinary

action during the period beginning July 1 through the date the

bonus checks are distributed. Disciplinary actions include

~Jritten reprimands, suspensions, dismissals, and involuntary or

voluntary demotions that \Jere associated with a disciplinary

action.

4. The employee must have demonstrated a commitment to the

agency mission by reducing the burden on those served,

continually improving the Hay business is conducted, producing

results in the form of increased outputs, and Horking to improve

processes.

5. The employee fRust have defRonstrated initiative in ',.'ork

and have euceeded normal job eupectations.

6. The employee fRust have fRodeled the Hay for others by

Page 36 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1009

1010

1011

1012

1013

1014

1015

1016

1017

1018

1019

1020

1021

1022

1023

1024

1025

1026

1027

1028

1029

1030

1031

1032

1033

1034

1035

1036

displaying agency values of fairness, cooperation, respect,

commitment, honesty, excellence, and teaffiVwrk.

(c) A periodic evaluation process of the employee's

performance.

(d) A process for peer input that is fair, respectful of

employees, and affects the outcome of the bonus distribution.

(e) A division of the agency by '..'ork unit for purposes of

peer input and bonus distribution.

(f) A limitation on bonus distributions equal to 35

percent of the agency's total authorized positions. This

requirement may be \iaived by the Office of Policy and Budget in

the E}wcutive Office of the Governor upon a sho'ding of

exceptional circumstances.

~~ Consistent with the requirements of s. 215.425(3),

and limited to the funds provided in the agency's approved

operating budget for salaries and benefits, each agency head may

provide bonus awards to department head is authorized to incur

m{penditures to mmrd suitable framed certificates, pins, and

other tokens of recognition to retiring state employees based on

exemplary performance or ""hose service with the state has been

satisfactory, in appreciation of their role in the achievement

of the agency's mission, values, or goals and recognition of

such service.

(a) Each award Such mmrds may not exceed $1,000 cost in

e}wess of $100 each plus applicable taxes. No employee may

receive awards totaling more than $1,000 plus applicable taxes

per fiscal year.

(b) By September 1, agencies shall report to the Governor,

Page 37 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

1037

1038

1039

1040

1041

1042

1043

1044

1045

1046

1047

1048

1049

1050

1051

1052

1053

1054

1055

1056

1057

1058

1059

1060

1061

1062

1063

1064

the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of

Representatives the dollar value and number of such bonus awards

given in the previous fiscal year.

11l~ Each agency department head may is authoriEed to

incur expenditures to award suitable framed certificates, pins,

and er other noncash tokens of recognition. Each token to state

employees Hho demonstrate satisfaetory service in the agency or

to the state, in appreciation and recognition of such service.

Such mmrds may not cost more than $150 in e}wess of $100 each

plus applicable taxes. Such tokens may be awarded to:

(a) Current employees, in appreciation and recognition of

their service to the state.

(b) Retiring employees, in appreciation and recognition of

their service to the state.

(c) An appointed member of a state board or commission, in

appreciation and recognition of his or her service to the state

upon the expiration of the member's final term in such position.

(4) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

(5) Each department head is authoriEed to incur

e}cpenditures not to mweed $100 each plus applicable tmws for

suitable framed certificates, plaques, or other tokens of

recognition to any appointed member of a state board or

commission \Jhose service to the state has been satisfactory, in

appreciation and recognition of such service upon the e}cpiration

of such board or commission member's final term in such

position.

Section 16. Section 110.125, Florida Statutes, is amended

Page 38 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1065

1066

1067

1068

1069

1070

1071

1072

1073

1074

1075

1076

1077

1078

1079

1080

1081

1082

1083

1084

1085

1086

1087

1088

1089

1090

1091

1092

to read:

110.125 Administrative costs.-

ill The administrative expenses and costs of operating the

State Personnel System program established by this chapter shall

be paid by the state various agencies of the state government,

and each such agency shall include in its budget estimates its

pro rata share of such cost as determined by the department ~

Management Serviees.

~ To establish an equitable division of ~ costs, the

amount to be paid by each agency shall be based on the number of

authorized full-time equivalent positions appropriated to the

agency, the average number of other-personal-services employees

paid by the agency, and the total administrative expenses and

costs of operating the State Personnel System determined in sueh

proportion as the serviee rendered to eaeh ageney bears to the

total serviee rendered under the provisions of this ehapter. ~

amounts paid to the Department of Management Serviees Hhieh are

attributable to positions within the Senior Management Serviee

and the Seleeted Professional Serviee shall be used for the

administration of sueh serviees, training aetivities for

positions Hithin those services, and the development and

implementation of a database of pertinent historieal information

on eJWffipt positions.

(b) If a Should any state agency is beeome more than 90

days delinquent in paying payment of this obligation, the

department shall certify to the Chief Financial Officer the

amount due and the Chief Financial Officer shall transfer that

~ amount due to the department from any available debtor

Page 39 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

1093

1094

1095

1096

1097

1098

1099

1100

1101

1102

1103

1104

1105

1106

1107

1108

1109

1110

1111

1112

1113

1114

1115

1116

1117

1118

1119

1120

agency funds available.

(2) A governmental entity outside the State Personnel

System which receives or uses services of more than a de minimis

value from the personnel system shall pay the department for the

administrative expenses and costs associated with those services

as determined by the department. Each such entity shall include

such cost in its budget estimates. If a governmental entity

becomes more than 90 days delinquent in paying this obligation,

the department shall certify to the Chief Financial Officer the

amount due and the Chief Financial Officer shall transfer that

amount from any available debtor entity funds.

(3) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

Section 17. Section 110.126, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.126 Oaths, testimony, records; penalties.-

ill The department may shall have pO'der to administer

oaths, subpoena witnesses, and compel the production of booksL

~ papers, or other records, in written or electronic form,

relevant pertinent to any investigation of personnel practices

or hearing authorized by this chapter. Any person who fails

shall fail to appear in response to a subpoena or to answer any

question or produce any booksL er papers, or other records

relevant pertinent to aflY such investigation or hearing or who

shall knowingly gives~ false testimony commits therein shall

be guilty of a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable as

provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083.

(2) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

Page 40 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1121

1122

1123

1124

1125

1126

1127

1128

1129

1130

1131

1132

1133

1134

1135

1136

1137

1138

1139

1140

1141

1142

1143

1144

1145

1146

1147

1148

this section.

Section 18. Section 110.127, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.127 Penalties.-

(1) Any person who willfully violates any provision of

this chapter or of any rules adopted pursuant to this chapter

commits the authority herein granted is guilty of a misdemeanor

of the second degree, punishable as provided in s. 775.082 or s.

775.083.

(2) The provisions of s. 112.011 to the contrary

Notwithstanding s. 112.011, any person who is convicted of a

misdemeanor under this chapter is shall be, for a period of 5

years, ineligible for appointment to or employment in a state

position for 5 years in the state service and, if an employee of

the state, must shall forfeit his or her position.

(3) Imposition of the penalties provided in this section

may shall not be in lieu of any action that vvhich may be taken

or penalties that Vlhich may be imposed pursuant to part III of

chapter 112.

(4) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

Section 19. Section 110.2037, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 110.182, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

110.182 110.2037 Alternative benefits} Tax-sheltered

annual leave and sick leave payments and special compensation

payments.-

(1) The department may of Hanagement Services has

Page 41 of 203

CODING: Words striel(sn are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1149

1150

1151

1152

1153

1154

1155

1156

1157

1158

1159

1160

1161

1162

1163

1164

1165

1166

1167

1168

1169

1170

1171

1172

1173

1174

1175

1176

authority to adopt tax-sheltered plans under s. 401(a) of the

Internal Revenue Code for state employees who are eligible for

payment for accumulated leave. The department, Upon adoption of

the plans, the department shall contract for a private vendor or

vendors to administer the plans.

~ These plans are shall be limited to state employees

who are over age 55 and who are+ eligible for accumulated leave

and special compensation payments and separating from employment

with 10 years of service in accordance with the Internal Revenue

Code, or who are participating in the Deferred Retirement Option

Program on or after July 1, 2001.

lQl The plans must provide benefits in a manner that

minimizes the tax liability of the state and participants.

~ The plans must be funded by employer contributions of

payments for accumulated leave or special compensation payments,

or both, as specified by the department.

~ The plans must have received all necessary federal and

state approval as required by law, must not adversely impact the

qualified status of the Florida Retirement System defined

benefit or defined contribution plans or the pretax benefits

program, and must comply with the provisions of s. 112.65.

Adoption of any plan is contingent on: the department receiving

appropriate favorable rulings from the Internal Revenue Service;

the department negotiating under the provisions of chapter 447,

where applicable; and the Chief Financial Officer making

appropriate changes to the state payroll system.

~ The department's request for proposals by vendors for

such plans may require that ~ vendors provide market-risk or

Page 42 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1177

1178

1179

1180

1181

1182

1183

1184

1185

1186

1187

1188

1189

1190

1191

1192

1193

1194

1195

1196

1197

1198

1199

1200

1201

1202

1203

1204

volatility ratings from recognized rating agencies for each of

their investment products.

J!l The department shall provide ~ a system of

continuous quality assurance oversight to ensure that the

program objectives are achieved and that the program is

prudently managed.

(2) Within 30 days after termination of employment, an

employee may eleet to withdraw the moneys and no Hithout penalty

may be assessed by the plan administrator. If an -a-RY employee is

adversely affected by payment of an excise tax or an -a-RY

Internal Revenue Service penalty by withdrawing eleeting to

HithdrmJ funds within 30 days, the plan must shall include a

provision that provides '",hieh Hill provide the employee with no

less cash than if the employee had not participated in the plan.

(3) These contracts may be used by any other pay plans or

personnel systems in the executive, legislative, or judicial

branches of government upon approval of the appropriate

administrative authority.

(4) Notwithstanding the terminal pay provisions of s.

112.913 110.122, the department may contract for a tax-sheltered

plan for leave and special compensation pay for employees who

are terminating over age 55 and have~ 10 years of serviceL

and for employees participating in the Deferred Retirement

Option Program on or after July 1, 2001, aftd who are over age

55. The frequency of payments into the plan shall be determined

by the department or as provided in the General Appropriations

Act. This plan must or plans shall provide the greatest tax

benefits to the employees and maximize the savings to the state.

Page 43 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

1205

1206

1207

1208

1209

1210

·1211

1212

1213

1214

1215

1216

1217

1218

1219

1220

1221

1222

1223

1224

1225

1226

1227

1228

1229

1230

1231

1232

CS/HB 1261 2012

(5) The department shall determine by rule the design of

the plans and the eligibility of participants.

(6) Hothing in This section does not shall be eonstrued to

remove plan participants from the scope of s. 112.913(5)

110.122 (5) .

(7) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

Section 20. Section 110.201, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 110.183, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

110.183 110.201 Collective bargaining Personnel rules,

reeords, and reports.-

(1) (a) The department, in eonsultation ',;rith ageneies that

must comply 'dith these rules, shall develop uniform personnel

rules, guidelines, records, and reports relating to employees

and positions in the career service. Agencies must comply ;lith

the uniform rules, eJ{cept as provided in this section. The

department may adopt rules that provide alternative

requirements. Upon filing Hith the Department of State, the

appropriate uniform rules ;;ill constitute the personnel rules

for each agency subject to this act unless the Administration

CO'ffl'fflission grants an eJ{ception to a specific rule to an agency

upon the agency I s request or unless the agency must comply h'ith

a statutory provision that conflicts lJith the uniform rules. If

an agency must comply Hith a statutory provision that conflicts

lJith the uniform rules, the agency must notify the

Administration COffi'fflission, the Administrative Procedures

COffi'fflittee, and the appropriate standing eO'ffl'fflittees of the

Page 44 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1233

1234

1235

1236

1237

1238

1239

1240

1241

1242

1243

1244

1245

1246

1247

1248

1249

1250

1251

1252

1253

1254

1255

1256

1257

1258

1259

1260

Legislature and advise the standing committees v;hether the

agency recommends revision of the statute to conform it to the

uniform rules. Agencies are encouraged to propose methods of

conforming statutory provisions to the uniform personnel rules.

(b) An agency may request an e}(ception to the uniform

personnel rules by filing a petition v;ith the Administration

Commission. The Administration Commission shall approve an

enception 'dhen the e}weption is necessary to conform to any

requirement imposed as a condition precedent to receipt of

federal funds or to permit persons in this state to receive ta}(

benefits under federal lav;, or as required for the most

efficient operation of the agency as determined by the

Administration Commission. The reasons for the eJfception must be

published in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

(c) Agency rules that provide e}(ceptions to the uniform

personnel rules may not be filed vdth the Department of State

unless the Administration Commission has approved the

e}weptions. Each agency that adopts rules that provide

enceptions to the uniform rules or that must comply ',lith

statutory requirements that conflict vlith the uniform rules must

have a separate chapter published in the Florida Administrative

Code \;hich clearly delineates the provisions of the agency's

rules which provide eJfceptions or are based upon a conflicting

statutory requirement. Each alternative chosen from those

authoriEed by the uniform rules must be specified. Each chapter

must be organiEed in the same manner as the uniform rules.

(d) The department shall develop uniform forms and

instructions to be used in reporting transactions which involve

Page 45 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1261

1262

1263

1264

1265

1266

1267

1268

1269

1270

1271

1272

1273

1274

1275

1276

1277

1278

1279

1280

1281

1282

1283

1284

1285

1286

1287

1288

changes in an employee's salary, status, performance, leave,

fingerprint record, loyalty oath, payroll change, appointment

action, or any additional transactions as the department may

determine appropriate.

(e) It is the responsibility of the employing agency to

maintain these records and all other records and reports

prescribed in applicable rules on a current basis.

(2) Each employing agency shall operate lJithin the uniform

personnel rules promulgated by the department under this

chapter. Any rule adopted by an employing agency that is an

eJEception to the uniform personnel rules or that is based upon a

statutory provision that an agency must folIo'", but ""hich

conflicts ~?iththe uniform personnel rules may not prescribe any

personnel policies inconsistent ~?ith the provisions of this

chapter. Heither the rules of the department nor the rules of an

employing agency may include any benefits for career service

employees )thich are in eJwess of, or in addition to, those

authorized by this chapter.

(3) The rules adopted by the department and each employing

agency under this part shall comply with all federal regulations

necessary to permit the state agencies to be eligible to receive

federal funds.

+4t The department shall coordinate with the Governor and

the state agencies consult Hith the Administration Commission on

personnel matters falling within the scope of collective

bargaining and shall represent the Governor in collective

bargaining negotiations and other collective bargaining matters

as may be necessary. All discussions relative to collective

Page 46 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1289

1290

1291

1292

1293

1294

1295

1296

1297

1298

1299

1300

1301

1302

1303

1304

1305

1306

1307

1308

1309

1310

1311

1312

1313

1314

1315

1316

bargaining between the department and the Governor, afi4 between

the department and the Administration Commission or agency

heads, or between any of their respective representatives areT

relative to collective bargaining, shall be exempt from ~

provisions of s. 286.011, and all work products relative to

collective bargaining developed in conjunction with such

discussions are shall be confidential and exempt from ~

provisions of s. 119.07(1).

(5) The department shall develop a wor]cforce report that

contains data representative of the state's human resources. The

report should identify trends for planning and improving the

management of the state's human resources. The department shall

submit this report annually to the Governor, the President of

the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives.

Section 21. Section 110.184, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

110.184 Workforce report.-The department shall prepare a

workforce report on human resources in the State Personnel

System. The report shall provide data and identify trends for

planning and improving the management of the State Personnel

System. The department shall annually submit the report to the

Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of the

House of Representatives.

Section 22. The Division of Statutory Revision is

requested to rename part II of chapter 110, Florida Statutes, as

"Civil Service."

Section 23. Section 110.202, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

Page 47 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1317

1318

1319

1320

1321

1322

1323

1324

1325

1326

1327

1328

1329

1330

1331

1332

1333

1334

1335

1336

1337

1338

1339

1340

1341

1342

1343

1344

110.202 Declaration of policy.-This part creates the Civil

Service System within the State Personnel System as required by

s. 14, Art. III of the State Constitution.

Section 24. Section 110.205, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.205 Civil Career Service; exemptions.-

(1) CIVIL SERVICE CAREER POSITIONS.-The Civil eareer

Service to Hhieh this part applies includes all positions within

the State Personnel System not specifically exempted by this

section ~, notwithstanding any other provisions of law ~

Florida Statutes to the eontrary notwithstanding.

(2) EXEMPT POSITIONS.-The eJEeFRpt positions that are not

eovered by this part inelude the following positions are

exempted from the Civil Service:

(a) Elected officers.-All officers of the executive branch

elected by popular vote and persons appointed to fill vacancies

in such offices. Unless otherwise fixed by law, the salary and

benefits for an any sueh officer who serves as the head of an

agency a department shall be set by the department in accordance

with the rules of the Senior Management Service.

(b) Legislative branch.-All members, officers, and

employees of the legislative branch, except for the members,

officers, and employees of the Florida Public Service

Commission.

(c) Judicial branch.-All members, officers, and employees

of the judicial branch.

(d) State universities.-All officers and employees of the

state universities and the aeademic personnel and academic

Page 48 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1345

1346

1347

1348

1349

1350

1351

1352

1353

1354

1355

1356

1357

1358

1359

1360

1361

1362

1363

1364

1365

1366

1367

1368

1369

1370

1371

1372

administrative personnel of the Florida School for the Deaf and

the Blind. In accordance vJith the provisions of s. 1002.36, the

salaries for academic personnel and academic administrative

personnel of the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind shall

be set by the board of trustees for the school, subject only to

the approval of the State Board of Education.

(e) The Chief Information Officer in the Agency for

Enterprise Information Technology. Unless othenJise fined by

lavJ, the Agency for Enterprise Information Technology shall set

the salary and benefits of this position in accordance with the

rules of the Senior Management Service.

~~ Members of boards and commissions.-All members of

state boards and commissions, however selected. Unless otherwise

fixed by law, the salary and benefits for any full-time board or

commission member shall be set by the department in accordance

with the rules of the Senior Management Service.

(g) Judges, referees, and receivers.

(h) Patients or inmates in state institutions.

J!l~ Time-limited positions.-All positions that are

established for a limited period of time for the purpose of

conducting a special study, project, or investigation and any

person paid from an other-personal-services appropriation.

Unless otherwise fixed by law, the salaries for such positions

and persons shall be set in accordance with rules established by

the employing agency for other-personal-services payments

pursuant to s. 112.907 110.131.

~~ Executive-level positions.-The appointed

secretaries and the State Surgeon General, assistant

Page 49 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1373

1374

1375

1376

1377

1378

1379

1380

1381

1382

1383

1384

1385

1386

1387

1388

1389

1390

1391

1392

1393

1394

1395

1396

1397

1398

1399

1400

secretaries, deputy secretaries, and deputy assistant

secretaries of all agencies departments; the executive

directors, assistant executive directors, deputy executive

directors, and deputy assistant executive directors of all

agencies departments; the directors of all divisions and those

positions determined by the department to have managerial

responsibilities comparable to such positions, including Hhieh

positions include, but are not limited to, program directors,

assistant program directors, district administrators, deputy

district administrators, general counsels, chief cabinet aides,

public information administrators or comparable positions for a

cabinet officer, inspectors general, or legislative affairs

directors; and the Director of Central Operations Services of

the Department of Children and Family Services, the State

Transportation Development Administrator, the State Public

Transportation and Modal Administrator, district secretaries,

district directors of transportation development, transportation

operations, and transportation support, -aTrEi the managers of the

Department of Transportation offices specified in s.

20.23(4) (b), the county health department directors and county

health department administrators of the Department of Health,

and the one additional position that may be designated by each

agency and that reports directly to the agency head or to a

position in the Senior Management Service and whose additional

costs are absorbed from the existing budget of that agency ~

the Department of Transportation. Unless otherwise fixed by law,

the department shall set the salary and benefits of these

positions in accordance with the rules of the Senior Management

Page 50 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1401

1402

1403

1404

1405

1406

1407

1408

1409

1410

1411

1412

1413

1414

1415

1416

1417

1418

1419

1420

1421

1422

1423

1424

1425

1426

1427

1428

Service; and the county health department directors and county

health department administrators of the Department of Health.

(]c) The personal secretary to the incumbent of each

position C}wRlpted in paragraphs (a), (e), and (j). Unless

othendse fi}wd by 1a r
.... , the department shall set the salary and

benefits of these positions in accordance vvith the rules of the

Selected E}wRlpt Service.

lbl+±+ Executive Office of the Governor.-All officers and

employees in the office of the Governor, including all employees

at the Governor's mansion, and employees within each separate

budget entity, as defined in chapter 216, assigned to the

Governor. Unless otherwise fixed by law, the salary and benefits

of these positions shall be set by the department as follows:

1. The chief of staff, ~ assistant or deputy chief of

staff, general counsel, Director of Legislative Affairs, chief

inspector general, Director of Cabinet Affairs, Director of

Press Relations, Director of Planning and Budgeting, Director of

Administration, director of state-federal relations, Director of

Appointments, Director of External Affairs, Deputy General

Counsel, Governor's liaison for community development, chief of

staff for the Lieutenant Governor, deputy director of planning

and budgeting, policy coordinators, and ~ director of each

separate budget entity shall have their salaries and benefits

set established by the department in accordance with the rules

of the Senior Management Service.

2. The salaries and benefits of positions not established

in subparagraph 1. sub subparagraph a. shall be set by the

employing agency. Salaries and benefits of employees whose

Page 51 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1429

1430

1431

1432

1433

1434

1435

1436

1437

1438

1439

1440

1441

1442

1443

1444

1445

1446

1447

1448

1449

1450

1451

1452

1453

1454

1455

1456

professional training is comparable to that of licensed

professionals under paragraph ~ +rtr or whose administrative

responsibility is comparable to a bureau chief shall be set by

the rules of the Selected Exempt Service. The department shall

make the comparability determinations. Other employees shall

have benefits set comparable to legislative staff, except leave

shall be comparable to civil career service as if career service

employees.

l!l~ Upper-management positions.-AII assistant division

director, deputy division director, and bureau chief positions

in any agency department, and those positions determined by the

department to have managerial responsibilities comparable to

such positions. Unless otherwise fixed by law, the salaries of

benefits of these positions shall be set by the department in

accordance with the rules of the Selected Exempt Service. These

positions, 'dhich include, but are not limited to:

1. Positions in the Department of Health and the

Department of Children and Family Services which~ are

assigned primary duties of serving as the superintendent or

assistant superintendent of an institution.

2. Positions in the Department of Corrections which~

are assigned primary duties of serving as the warden, assistant

warden, colonel, or major of an institution or which~ are

assigned primary duties of serving as the circuit administrator

or deputy circuit administrator.

3. Positions in the Department of Transportation which

~ are assigned primary duties of serving as regional toll

managers and managers of offices, as defined in s. 20.23 (4) (b)

Page 52 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1457

1458

1459

1460

1461

1462

1463

1464

1465

1466

1467

1468

1469

1470

1471

1472

1473

1474

1475

1476

1477

1478

1479

1480

1481

1482

1483

1484

and (5) (c) .

4. Positions in the Department of Environmental Protection

which~ are assigned the duty of an environmental

administrator or program administrator.

5. Positions in the Department of Health which~ are

assigned the duties of environmental administrator, assistant

county health department director, and county health department

financial administrator.

6. Positions in the Department of Children and Family

Services which are assigned the duties of staff director,

assistant staff director, district program manager, district

program coordinator, district administrator, district

administrative services director, district attorney, and deputy

director of central operations services.

Unless otherwise fiJfed bylaw, the department shall set the

salary and benefits of the positions listed in this paragraph in

accordance ',dth the rules established for the Selected EjJW'ffipt

Service.

lil+H+ Other managerial or policymaking positions.-

1.e. In addition to those positions exempted by other

paragraphs of this subsection, each agency department head may

designate a maximum of 20 policymaking or managerial positions,

as defined by the department and approved by the Administration

Commission, as being exempt from the Civil Career Service

System. Civil Career service employees who occupy a position

designated as a position in the Selected Exempt Service under

this paragraph may shall have the right to remain in the Civil

Page 53 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1485

1486

1487

1488

1489

1490

1491

1492

1493

1494

1495

1496

1497

1498

1499

1500

1501

1502

1503

1504

1505

1506

1507

1508

1509

1510

1511

1512

Career Service System by opting to serve in a position not

exempted by the employing agency. Unless otherwise fixed by law,

the department shall set the salary and benefits of these

positions in accordance with the rules of the Selected Exempt

Service} provided, hO~Jever, that if the agency head determines

that the general counsel, chief Cabinet aide, public information

administrator or comparable position for a Cabinet officer,

inspector general, or legislative affairs director has both

policymaking and managerial responsibilities and if the

department determines that any such position has both

policymaking and managerial responsibilities, the salary and

benefits for each such position shall be established by the

department in accordance Vi'ith the rules of the Senior Hanagement

Service.

b. In addition, each department may designate one

additional position in the Senior Hanagement Service if that

position reports directly to the agency head or to a position in

the Senior Management Service and if any additional costs are

absorbed from the mdsting budget of that department.

2. If otherwise exempt from the Civil Service, employees

of the Public Employees Relations Commission, the Commission on

Human Relations, and the Unemployment Appeals Commission, upon

the certification of their respective commission heads, may~

otherwise qualified, be provided for under this paragraph as

members of the Senior Management Service, if othendse

qualified. However, the deputy general counsel of the Public

Employees Relations Commission shall be compensated in

accordance with the rules as members of the Selected Exempt

Page 54 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1513

1514

1515

1516

1517

1518

1519

1520

1521

1522

1523

1524

1525

1526

1527

1528

1529

1530

1531

1532

1533

1534

1535

1536

1537

1538

1539

1540

Service.

(k) Specialized managerial positions.-

1. The department shall set the salary and benefits for

the following positions in accordance with the rules of the

Selected Exempt Service:

a. Pursuant to s. 447.203(4), managerial employees who

perform jobs that are not of a routine, clerical, . or ministerial

nature and require theexercis.e of independent judgment in the

performanc~ofsuchjobs.andtowhom one or more of· the

followinga,pplies:formulate or assist in formulating policies

applici3.bleto hargainin.9\unite.m.ployeesiass:ist in the

preparation for the conduct of collective bargaining

negot iations; •• a,dm:inis teragreem.ents resultingfromcollective

bargaining negotiations;hayeasignificantrolein personnel

administrationi>haveasignificant.role:in.ernJ2loyee relationsi

or 11,a,cv~asi9nificant.role. in the preparation or administration

of thef:inal pudgetforanypublicagency ./or institution or

subdivision, includinghavin9 theautho:rit¥ to select and

approve amonga,lternativeexpenditures'itJhen necessary.

b. Pursuanttos. 447.203(5), .. employeeswho act. in a

confidentiaL capacity to assist or aid. managerial employees who

are perfo:rming Wo:rkandWhohave access to information that

would provide an employee labor organization with an advantage

at the bargaining table or·in the administration of collective

bargaining·· agreements •

c. All supervisory employees, including supervisors,

administrators, and directors, who customarily and regularly

plan and direct the work of two or more full-time employees or

Page 55 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1541

1542

1543

1544

1545

1546

.1547

1548

1549

1550

1551

1552

1553

1554

1555

1556

1557

1558

1559

1560

1561

1562

1563

1564

1565

1566

1567

1568

the equivalent, and who communicate with, motivate, train, and

evaluate employees, and who have the authority to hire,

transfer, suspend, layoff, recall, promote, discharge, assign,

reward, or discipline subordinate employees or, effectively, to

recommend such action.

2. The exemptions provided in this paragraph are not

applicable to the following:

a. Managerial and supervisory employees who are designated

as special risk or special risk administrative support;

b. Attorneys who serve as administrative law judges

pursuant to s. 120.65 or for hearings conducted pursuant to s.

120.57(l)(a); or

c. Professional health care providers as defined in s.

110.1054, unless otherwise collectively bargained.

lll~ Public Service Commission.-The executive director,

deputy executive director, general counsel, inspector general,

official reporters, and division directors within the Public

Service Commission and the personal secretary and personal

assistant to each member of the Public Service Commission.

Unless otherwise fixed by law, the salary and benefits of the

executive director, deputy executive directors, general counsel,

inspector general, and directors of all divisions and those

positions determined to have managerial responsibilities

comparable to such positions Direetor of Administration,

Direetor of Appeals, Direetor of Auditing and Finaneial

Analysis, Direetor of COffiffiunieations, Direetor of Consumer

~ffairs, Direetor of EleetriG and Gas, DireGtor of Information

ProGessing, DireGtor of Legal ServiGes, DireGtor of ReGords and

Page 56 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1569

1570

1571

1572

1573

1574

1575

1576

1577

1578

1579

1580

1581

1582

1583

1584

1585

1586

1587

1588

1589

1590

1591

1592

1593

1594

1595

1596

Reporting, Director of Research, and Director of Water and Sewer

shall be set by the department in accordance with the rules of

the Senior Management Service. The salary and benefits of the

personal secretary and the personal assistant of each member of

the commission and the official reporters shall be set by the

department in accordance with the rules of the Selected Exempt

Service, not'dithstanding any salary limitations imposed by laH

for the official reporters.

(m)~ Department of Military Affairs.-

1. All military personnel of the Department of Military

Affairs. Unless otherwise fixed by law, the salary and benefits

for~ military personnel shall be set by the Department of

Military Affairs in accordance with the appropriate military pay

schedule.

2. The salary and benefits of military police chiefs,

military police officers, firefighter trainers, firefighter

rescuers, and electronic security system technicians shall be

have salary and benefits the same as civil career service

employees.

(q) The staff directors, assistant staff directors,

district program managers, district program coordinators,

district subdistrict administrators, district administrative

services directors, district attorneys, and the Deputy Director

of Central Operations Services of the Department of Children and

Family SePJices. Unless otheni'ise fi}wd by lavi', the Department

shall establish the pay band and benefits for these positions in

accordance .vith the rules of the Selected E;nempt SePJice.

~+rt Professional licensure.-All positions not otherwise

Page 57 of 203

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1597

1598

1599

1600

1601

1602

1603

1604

1605

1606

1607

1608

1609

1610

1611

1612

1613

1614

1615

1616

1617

1618

1619

1620

1621

1622

1623

1624

exempt under this subsection which require as a prerequisite to

employment: licensure as a physician pursuant to chapter 458~T

licensure as an osteopathic physician pursuant to chapter 459~T

licensure as a chiropractic physician pursuant to chapter 460,

including those positions that Hhich are occupied by employees

who are exempted from licensure pursuant to s. 409.352;

licensure as an engineer pursuant to chapter 471, which are

supervisory positions; or for 12 calendar months, which require

as a prerequisite to employment that the employee have received

the degree of Bachelor of Laws or Juris Doctor from a law school

accredited by the American Bar Association and thereafter

membership in The Florida Bar, except for any attorney who

serves as an administrative law judge pursuant to s. 120.65 or

for hearings conducted pursuant to s. 120.57(1) (a). Unless

otherwise fixed by law, the department shall set the salary and

benefits for these positions in accordance with the rules of

established for the Selected Exempt Service.

iQl+e+ Statewide prosecutor.-The statewide prosecutor in

charge of the Office of Statewide Prosecution of the Department

of Legal Affairs and all employees in the office. The Department

of Legal Affairs shall set the salary of these positions.

lEl~ Executive directors of regulatory boards and

commissions.-The executive director of each board or commission

established within the Department of Business and Professional

Regulation or the Department of Health. Unless otherwise fixed

by law, the Department of Management Services shall set

establish the salary and benefits for these positions in

accordance with the rules of established for the Selected Exempt

Page 58 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1625

1626

1627

1628

1629

1630

1631

1632

1633

1634

1635

1636

1637

1638

1639

1640

1641

1642

1643

1644

1645

1646

1647

1648

1649

1650

1651

1652

Service.

Jgl+B+ State Board of Administration.-All officers and

employees of the State Board of Administration. The State Board

of Administration shall set the salary salaries and benefits of

these positions.

(v) Positions that are leased pursuant to a state employee

lease agreement eJ{pressly authorized by the Legislature pursuant

to s. 110.191.

(w) Hanagerial employees, as defined in s. 447.203(4),

confidential employees, as defined in s. 447.203(5), and

supervisory employees T'i'ho spend the maj ority of their time

communicating vJith, motivating, training, and evaluating

employees, and planning and directing employees' worle, and T,Jho

have the authority to hire, transfer, suspend, layoff, recall,

promote, discharge, assign, reward, or discipline subordinate

employees or effectively recommend such action, including all

employees serving as supervisors, adffiinistrators, and directors.

EJwluded are employees also designated as special risk or

special risk administrative support and attorneys T'i'ho serve as

administrative lavJ judges pursuant to s. 120.65 or for hearings

conducted pursuant to s. 120.57(1) (a). Additionally, registered

nurses licensed under chapter 464, dentists licensed under

chapter 466, psychologists licensed under chapter 490 or chapter

491, nutritionists or dietitians licensed under part X of

chapter 468, pharmacists licensed under chapter 465,

psychological specialists licensed under chapter 491, physical

therapists licensed under chapter 486, and speech therapists

licensed under part I of chapter 468 are mwluded, unless

Page 59 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1653

1654

1655

1656

1657

1658

1659

1660

1661

1662

1663

1664

1665

1666

1667

1668

1669

1670

1671

1672

1673

1674

1675

1676

1677

1678

1679

1680

othendoe collectively bargained.

lEl+*t Justice Administration Commission and similar

entities.-AII officers and employees of the Justice

Administrative Commission, Office of the State Attorney, Office

of the Public Defender, regional offices of capital collateral

counsel, offices of criminal conflict and civil regional

counsel, and Statewide Guardian Ad Litem Office, including the

circuit guardian ad litem programs and the Florida Clerks of

Court Operations Corporation.

(s) Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.-In

accordance with s. 1002.36, the salaries for academic personnel

and academic administrative personnel of the Florida School for

the Deaf and the Blind shall be set by the board of trustees for

the school, subject only to the approval of the State Board of

Education.

(t) Miscellaneous positions.-

1. The Chief Information Officer in the Agency for

Enterprise Information Technology. Unless otherwise fixed by

law, the agency shall set the salary and benefits of this

position in accordance with the rules of the Senior Management

Service.

2. The chief inspector of the boiler inspection program of

the Department of Financial Services. The pay band of this

position shall be set by the Department of Management Services

in accordance with the classification and pay plan established

for the Selected Exempt Service.

3. The personal assistant to the incumbent of each

position exempted in subparagraph 1., paragraph (a), or

Page 60 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1681

1682

1683

1684

1685

1686

1687

1688

1689

1690

1691

1692

1693

1694

1695

1696

1697

1698

1699

1700

1701

1702

1703

1704

1705

1706

1707

1708

paragraph (g). Unless otherwise fixed by law, the department

shall set the salary and benefits of these positions in

accordance with the rules of the Selected Exempt Service.

4. Positions that are leased pursuant to a state employee

lease agreement expressly authorized by the Legislature pursuant

to s. 112.922.

5. Judges, referees, and receivers of the executive

branch.

6. Positions held by patients or inmates in state

institutions.

(3) PARTIAL EXEHPTION OF DEPARTHEWT OF LAW ENFORCEHEl'JT.

Employees of the Departffient of Lav; Enforceffient shall be subject

to the provisions of s. 110.227, eJfCept in ffiatters relating to

transfer.

(4) DEFINITION OF DEPARTHENT. When used in this section,

the terffi "departffient" shall ffiean all departffients and cOffiffiissions

of the eJwcuti7e branch, ,...hether created by the State

Constitution or chapter 20; the office of the G07ernor; and the

Public Service COffiffiissionl hOHe7er, the terffi "departffient" shall

ffiean the Departffient of Hanageffient Services ,...hen used in the

content of the authority to establish pay bands and benefits.

J1l~ POSITIONS EXEMPTED BY OTHER STATUTES.-If any

position is exempted from the Civil career Service by any other

statute and the personnel system to which that position is

assigned is not specifically included in the statute, the

position shall be placed in the Selected Exempt Service, and the

department shall set establish the pay band and benefits for

that position in accordance with the rules of the Selected

Page 61 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1709

1710

1711

1712

1713

1714

1715

1716

1717

1718

1719

1720

1721

1722

1723

1724

1725

1726

1727

1728

1729

1730

1731

1732

1733

1734

1735

1736

Exempt Service.

(4) RULES.-The department may adopt rules necessary to

administer this section.

(6) EXEHPTIOH OF CHIEF IHSPECTOR OF BOILER SAFETY PROGRAH,

DEPARTHEHT OF FIHAHCIAL SERVICES. In addition to those positions

e:nempted from this part, there is hereby eJEeFflPted from the

Career Service System the chief inspector of the boiler

inspection program of the Department of Financial Services. The

pay band of this position shall be established by the Department

of Hanagement Services in accordance with the classification and

pay plan established for the Selected E:neFflPt Service.

(7) CARRYIHG LEAVE FORWARD. If an employee is transferred

or otheHi'ise moves from the Career Service System into the

Selected E:neFflPt Service, all of the eFflPloyee's unused annual

leave, unused sick leave, and unused compensatory leave shall

Garry fOHmrd r,vith the eFflPloyee.

Section 25. Section 110.208, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

110.208 Classification system.-The department shall

establish and maintain a uniform classification system

applicable to all positions in the Civil Service and shall be

responsible for the overall coordination, review, and

maintenance of the system. A position may not be filled until it

has been classified in accordance with the system.

(1) The system must include:

(a) A position clasaification system using job families,

occupational groups, and a broadband level structure for each

occupation within an occupational group.

Page 62 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1737

1738

1739

1740

1741

1742

1743

1744

1745

1746

1747

1748

1749

1750

1751

1752

1753

1754

1755

1756

1757

1758

1759

1760

1761

1762

1763

1764

(b) A pay plan that provides broad-based pay bands for

each occupational group.

(2) In establishing and administering the system, the

department:

(a) Shall develop occupation profiles necessary for the

establishment of new occupations or for the revision of existing

occupations and shall establish the appropriate occupation title

and broadband level code for each occupation. The occupation

profiles, titles, and codes are not rules as defined in s.

120.52.

(b) Shall be responsible for conducting periodic studies

and surveys to ensure that the classification system is

maintained on a current basis.

(c) May review in a postaudit capacity the action taken by

an agency in classifying or reclassifying a position.

(d) Shall effect a classification change on any

classification or reclassification action taken by an agency if

the action taken by the agency was not based on the duties and

responsibilities officially assigned the position as they relate

to the concepts and description contained in the official

occupation profile and the level definition provided in the

occupational group characteristics adopted by the department.

(e) Shall adopt rules necessary to administer the

classification system.

(3) Each state agency is responsible for the day-to-day

application of the classification system established by the

department. The agency:

(a) Shall maintain an up-to-date position description for

Page 63 of 203

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1765

1766

1767

1768

1769

1770

1771

1772

1773

1774

1775

1776

1777

1778

1779

1780

1781

1782

1783

1784

1785

1786

1787

1788

1789

1790

1791

1792

each authorized and established position assigned to the agency.

The position description must include an accurate description of

assigned duties and responsibilities and other pertinent

information relating to a position and serves as a record of the

official assignment of duties to the position. The description

shall be used to compare positions in order to ensure the

uniformity of classifications.

(b) May classify positions authorized by the Legislature

or pursuant to s. 216.262, classify positions that are added in

lieu of positions deleted pursuant to s. 216.262, and reclassify

established positions. Classification and reclassification

actions taken by an agency must be within the classification

system occupations established by the department, shall be

funded within the limits of currently authorized appropriations,

and must be in accordance with the uniform procedures

established by the department.

Section 26. Section 110.2085, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

110.2085 Pay plan.-

(1) The department shall establish and maintain an

equitable pay plan that applies to all positions in the Civil

Service and shall be responsible for the overall review,

coordination,and administration of the pay plan.

(2) The department shall provide market-based pay bands

for occupational groups and establish guidelines for state

agencies to use when moving employees through such pay bands.

(a) The agencies may determine the appropriate salary

within the pay bands using the guidelines developed by the

Page 64 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1793

1794

1795

1796

1797

1798

1799

1800

1801

1802

1803

1804

1805

1806

1807

1808

1809

1810

1811

1812

1813

1814

1815

1816

1817

1818

1819

1820

department. Such pay bands, and the assignment of broadband

levels to positions, are not rules as defined in s. 120.52.

(b) The department, in consultation with the Executive

Office of the Governor and the legislative appropriations

committees, shall conduct compensation surveys as necessary for

the purpose of achieving an equitable, competitive, market-based

pay policy.

(3) The department shall establish rules for the

administration of pay additives and shall delegate to the state

agencies, where appropriate, the authority to implement pay

additives. The agency must use pay additives, as appropriate,

within the guidelines established by the department and

consistent with directions contained in the General

Appropriations Act.

(a) The following pay additives are authorized:

1. Shift differentials.

2. On call.

3. Hazardous duty.

4. Lead-worker duty.

5. Temporary special duties, general.

6. Temporary special duties, absent coworker.

7. Trainer duties.

8. Competitive area differentials.

9. Critical market pay.

(b) Each state agency shall include in its annual

legislative budget request a proposed written plan for

implementing general temporary special duty pay additives during

the next fiscal year. Proposed revisions to an approved plan

Page 65 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1821

1822

1823

1824

1825

1826

1827

1828

1829

1830

1831

1832

1833

1834

1835

1836

1837

1838

1839

1840

1841

1842

1843

1844

1845

1846

1847

1848

which become necessary during the fiscal year must be submitted

by the agency to the department for review and recommendation to

the Executive Office of the Governor. Such revisions may be

implemented only after approval by the Executive Office of the

Governor. A proposed revision is deemed to be action subject to

s. 216.177.

(c) A new competitive area differential or a new critical

market pay additive may not be implemented unless the department

has reviewed and recommended such action and the Legislature has

provided express authority to implement such action. This

applies to an increase in the level of competitive area

differentials and critical market pay additives and to the

initial establishment and implementation of a competitive area

differential or critical market pay additive not in effect as of

January 1, 2012.

(d) An agency may implement the pay additives set forth in

subparagraphs (a)l., 2., 3., 4., 6., and 7. as necessary to

accomplish the mission of the agency and in accordance with

department rules, instructions contained in the General

Appropriations Act, and applicable collective bargaining

agreements.

(e) The department shall annually provide to the Executive

Office of the Governor and the Legislature a summary report of

the pay additives implemented pursuant to this section.

(4) A state agency may implement salary increase and

decrease corrections due to administrative errors.

(5) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

Page 66 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1849

1850

1851

1852

1853

1854

1855

1856

1857

1858

1859

1860

1861

1862

1863

1864

1865

1866

1867

1868

1869

1870

1871

1872

1873

1874

1875

1876

Section 27. Section 110.211, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.211 Recruitment.-

(1) Recruiting shall be planned and carried out to ensure

in a manner that assures open competition based upon current and

projected employing agency needs, taking into consideration the

number and types of positions to be filled and the labor market

conditions, with special emphasis placed on recruiting efforts

that ~ attract minorities, women, or other groups that are

underrepresented in the workforce of a state the employing

agency.

(2) Recruiting efforts to fill current or projected

vacancies shall be carried out in the sound discretion of the

agency head.

(3) Recruiting shall seele efficiency in advertising and

may be assisted by a contracted vendor responsible for

maintenance of the personnel data.

(4) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section. ~ll recruitment literature involving state

position vacancies shall contain the phrase "An Equal

Opportunity Employer/Affirmative Action Employer."

Section 28. Section 110.213, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.213 Selection.-

(1) Selection for appointment from among the~

qualified candidates is shall be the sole responsibility of the

state employing agency. Prll nmJ employees must successfully

complete at least a 1 year probationary period before attainment

Page 67 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1877

1878

1879

1880

1881

1882

1883

1884

1885

1886

1887

1888

1889

1890

1891

1892

1893

1894

1895

1896

1897

1898

1899

1900

1901

1902

1903

1904

of permanent status.

(2) Selection shall reflect efficiency and simplicity in

hiring procedures. The agency head or ~ his or her designee

shall be required to document the qualifications of the selected

candidate to ensure that the candidate meets the position

miniffium requirements afr specified by the employing agencY~T

meets the licensure, certification, or registration

requirements, if any, afr specified by statute~T and possesses

the requisite knowledge, skills, and abilities for the position.

No other documentation or justification is shall be required

before prior to selecting a candidate for a position.

(3) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

Section 29. Section 110.2135, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.2135 Veterans' preference in employment, reemployment,

promotion, and retention.-

(1) Preference in employment, reemployment, promotion, and

retention shall be given to an eligible veteran pursuant to ss.

295.07, 295.08, 295.085, and 295.09 if as long as the veteran

meets the minimum eligibility requirements and has the

knowledge, skills, and abilities required for the particular

position.

(2) A disabled veteran employed as the result of being

placed at the top of the appropriate employment list under ~

provisions of s. 295.08 or s. 295.085 shall be appointed for a

probationary period of 1 year. At the end of such period, if the

work of the veteran has been satisfactorily performed, the

Page 68 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

1905

1906

1907

1908

1909

1910

1911

1912

1913

1914

1915

1916

1917

1918

1919

1920

1921

1922

1923

1924

1925

1926

1927

1928

1929

1930

1931

1932

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1933

1934

1935

1936

1937

1938

1939

1940

1941

1942

1943

1944

1945

1946

1947

1948

1949

1950

1951

1952

1953

1954

1955

1956

1957

1958

1959

1960

for any employment decision by an agency.

(3) An applicant for employment within the Civil State

Career Service System who has a disability that impairs sensory,

speaking, or manual skills may require an agency to administer

an aftY examination to him or her in a format and manner that

does not require use of an impaired skill, unless the test is

designed to measure that skill. An applicant may request a

reasonable accommodation in a test format on the basis of a

disability.

(4) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

Section 31. Section 110.217, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.217 Appointment actions and status Appointments and

promotion.-

(1 H-a+ The department, in consultation 'dith agencies that

must cOl'Rply h'ith these rules, shall develop uniform rules

regarding original appointment, promotion, demotion,

reassignment, lateral action, separation, and status which must

be used by state el'Rploying agencies. Such rules must be approved

by the Administration Commission before their adoption by the

department.

(b) El'Rploying agencies may seek eJweptions to these

uniform rules by filing a petition vJith the Administration

Commission. The Administration Commission shall approve an

eJwcption 'dhen the GJweption is necessary to conform to any

requirement il'Rposed as a condition precedent to receipt of

federal funds or to permit persons in this state to receive taJ{

Page 70 of 203

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

1961

1962

1963

1964

1965

1966

1967

1968

1969

1970

1971

1972

1973

1974

1975

1976

1977

1978

1979

1980

1981

1982

1983

1984

1985

1986

1987

1988

benefits under federal laH, or as required for the most

efficient operation of the agency as determined by the

Administration Commission. The reasons for the eJfception must be

published in the Florida Administrative Weekly.

(c) Agency rules that provide CJweptions to the uniform

rules may not be filed with the Department of State unless the

Administration Commission has approved the eJfceptions. Each

agency that adopts rules that provide euceptions to the uniform

rules or that must comply Hith statutory requirements that

conflict Hith the uniform rules must have a separate chapter

published in the Florida Administrative Code that delineates

clearly the provisions of the agency's rules which provide

euceptions or are based upon a conflicting statutory

requirement. Each alternative chosen from those authorized by

the uniform rules must be specified. Each chapter must be

organized in the same manner as the uniform rules.

(2) An employee appointed on probationary status shall

attain merit status in his or her current position upon

successful completion of at least a 1-year probationary period.

An employee who has not attained merit status in his or her

current position serves at the pleasure of the agency head and

may be dismissed at the discretion of the agency head.

(3) If an employee who has received an internal agency

promotion from a position in which the employee held merit

status is to be dismissed from the promotional position for

failure to meet the established performance standards of the

promotional position while in probationary status, the agency,

before dismissal, shall attempt to return the employee to his or

Page 71 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

1989

1990

1991

1992

1993

1994

.1995

1996

1997

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

2008

2009

2010

2011

2012

2013

2014

2015

2016

her former position, or to a position with the same duties and

responsibilities as the former position, if such a position is

vacant. Such determinations by an agency are not appealable and

this subsection does not apply to dismissals for any other

reason.

(2) Eaeh employing ageney shall have the responsibility

for the establishffient and ffiaintenanee of rules and guidelines

for deterffiining eligibility of applieants for appointffient to

positions in the career service.

(3) Eligibility shall be based on possession of required

ffiiniffiuffi qualifications for the job class and any required entry

level JmoHledge, skills, and abilities, and any certification

and licensure required for a particular position.

(4) The employing agency shall be responsible for

developing an employee career advanceffient prograffi vvhich shall

assure consideration of qualified perffianent employees in the

agency or career service ",,'ho apply. Hmwver, such prograffi shall

also include provisions to bring persons into the career service

through open cOffipetition. Proffiotion appointffients shall be

subject to postaudit by the departffient.

(5) The departffient shall adopt any rules necessary to

iffipleffient the provisions of this section. The rules ffiUSt be

approved by a ffiajority vote of the Adffiinistration Commission

prior to their adoption by the departffient.

Section 32. Section 110.219, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.219 Attendance and leave; general policies.-

(1) The workday for each full-time state employee shall be

Page 72 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2017

2018

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

2025

2026

2027

2028

2029

2030

2031

2032

2033

2034

2035

2036

2037

2038

2039

2040

2041

2042

2043

2044

8 hours or as otherwise authorized justified by the agency head.

(2) Overtime may be required for any employee.

(3) The granting of any leave of absence, with or without

pay, shall be in accordance with applicable state or federal

laws and the rules of the State Personnel System writing and

shall be approved by the ageney head. Those employees who, at

the discretion of the agency, are An employee ~Jho is granted ~

leave of absence remain employees of the agency Hith or 'dithout

pay shall be an employee of the state while on such leave and

shall be returned to the same or comparable position er-a

different position in the same elass and same 'dork loeation upon

termination of the approved leave of absence in accordance with

the rules of the State Personnel System. The ageney head and the

employee may agree in Hriting to other eonditions and terms

under whieh the leave is to be granted.

(4) Eaeh agency shall keep an accurate record of all hours

of 'dork performed by each employee, as Hell as a complete and

accurate record of all authorized leave ~Jhich is approved. The

ultimate responsibility for the accuracy and proper maintenance

of all attendance and leave records shall be ~Jith the agency

head.

l!L(5) Rules shall be adopted by The department shall

adopt rules necessary to administer in eooperation and

consultation Hith the agencies to implement the provisions of

this section, hmJever, such rules must be approved by the

Administration Commission prior to their adoption. Sucb rules

must provide for, but need not be limited to:

(a) The maximum responsibility and authority resting with

Page 73 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2045

2046

2047

2048

2049

2050

2051

2052

2053

2054

2055

2056

2057

2058

2059

2060

2061

2062

2063

2064

2065

2066

2067

2068

2069

2070

2071

2072

each agency head to administer attendance and leave matters in

the agency within the parameters of the rules adopted by the

department.

(b) Creditable serviee in ,[hieh 1 month of Service credit

as it relates to the accrual and payment of leave is mmrded for

eaeh calendar month that the employee is on the payroll of a

state ageney or during ,vhieh the employee is on authorized leave

without pay.

(c) Holidays as provided in s. 112.929 110.117.

(d) Overtime provisions.

(e) Annual leave provisions.

(f) Sick leave provisions.

(g) Parental leave provisions.

(h) Family medical leave provisions.

(i) Disability leave provisions.

(j) Compulsory disability leave provisions.

(k) Administrative leave provisions.

(1) Military leave provisions.

(m) Educational leave with pay provisions.

(n) Leave of absence without pay provisions.

(6) The leave benefits provided to Senior Hanagement

Serviee employees shall not eJreeed those provided to employees

in the Seleeted EJrempt Serviee.

~~ Subject to available funds, each December, a civil

permanent career service employee who has merit status or who

currently has probationary status due to a promotion that was

preceded by the attainment of merit status is entitled shall be

entitled, subjeet to available funds, to a payout of up to 24

Page 74 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2073

2074

2075

2076

2077

2078

2079

2080

2081

2082

2083

2084

2085

2086

2087

2088

2089

2090

2091

2092

2093

2094

2095

2096

2097

2098

2099

2100

hours of unused annual leave if the as follO'Ji'S:

(al A permanent career service employee has must have an

annual leave balance of at least no less than 24 hoursT after

the payout, in order to qualify for this benefit.

ill-fB+- A civil No permanent career service employee may

not shall receive a payout of greater than 240 hours over the

course of the employee's career within~ the Civil Service

state, including any leave received at the time of separation.

Section 33. Section 110.221, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.221 Parental or family medical leave.

(1) As used in this section, the term~

~ "Family" means a child, parent, or spouse..:.., and the

ill "Family medical leave" means leave requested by an

employee for a serious family illness including an accident,

disease, or condition that poses imminent danger of death,

requires hospitalization involving an organ transplant, limb

amputation, or other procedure of similar severity, or any

mental or physical condition that requires constant in-home

care. The term

ls:l "Parental leave" means leave for the father or mother

of a child who is born to or adopted by that parent.

(2) The state may shall not:

(a) Terminate the employment of a civil service aftY

employee in the career service because of the pregnancy of the

employee or the employee's spouse or the adoption of a child by

that employee.

Page 75 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2101

2102

2103

2104

2105

2106

2107

2108

2109

2110

2111

2112

2113

2114

2115

2116

2117

2118

2119

2120

2121

2122

2123

2124

2125

2126

2127

2128

(b) Refuse to grant to a civil career service employee

parental or family medical leave without pay for a period not to

exceed 6 months. Such leave commences shall COffiffience on a date

that is determined by the employee in consultation with the

attending physician following notification to the employer in

writingr and that is approved by the employer.

(c) Deny a civil career service employee the use of and

payment for annual leave credits for parental or family medical

leave. Such leave commences shall COffiffience on a date determined

by the employee in consultation with the attending physician

following notification to the employer in writing.

(d) Deny a civil career service employee the use of and

payment for accrued sick leave or family sick leave for any

reason deemed necessary by a physician or as established by

policy.

(e) Require that a civil career service employee take a

mandatory parental or family medical leave.

(3) Upon returning at the end of parental or family

medical leave of absence, such employee shall be reinstated to

the same job or ~ an equivalent position that has ~

equivalent pay and~ seniority, retirement, fringe benefits,

and other service credits accumulated before prior to the leave

period. If any portion of the parental or family medical leave

is paid leave, the employee is shall be entitled to accumulate

all benefits granted under paid leave status.

(4) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

Section 34. Section 110.224, Florida Statutes, is amended

Page 76 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2129

2130

2131

2132

2133

2134

2135

2136

2137

2138

2139

2140

2141

2142

2143

2144

2145

2146

2147

2148

2149

2150

2151

2152

2153

2154

2155

2156

to read:

110.224 Public Employee performance evaluation system.-An

A public employee performance evaluation system shall be

established as a basis for evaluating and improving the

performance of the state's workforce, to inform employees of

strong and weak points in the employee's performance, to

identify training needs, and to award lump sum bonuses and other

performance-based incentives in accordance with s. 110.1245 or

other provisions of law 110.1245(2).

(1) Upon original appointment, promotion, demotion, or

reassignment, a job description of the assigned position

assigned must be made available to the civil career service

employee. The job description may be made available in an

electronic format.

(2) Each employee shall~ have a performance evaluation

conducted at least annually which involves both, and the

employee must receive an oral and written assessment of his or

her performance evaluation. The performance evaluation may

include a plan of action for improvement of the employee's

performance based on the work expectations or performance

standards applicable to the position as determined by the agency

head.

(3) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section the public employee performance evaluation system

which establish procedures for performance evaluation, review

periods, and forms.

Section 35. Section 110.227, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

Page 77 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2157

2158

2159

2160

2161

2162

2163

2164

2165

2166

2167

2168

2169

2170

2171

2172

2173

2174

2175

2176

2177

2178

2179

2180

2181

2182

2183

2184

110.227 Suspensions, dismissals, reductions in pay,

demotions, layoffs, transfers, and grievances.-

(1) An Afiy employee who has satisfactorily completed at

least a I-year probationary period in his or her current

position may be suspended or dismissed only for cause. Cause

includes shall inGlude, but is not limited to, poor performance,

negligence, inefficiency or inability to perform assigned

duties, insubordination, violation of the provisions of law or

agency rules, conduct unbecoming a public employee, misconduct,

habitual drug abuse, or conviction of any crime. The agency head

shall ensure that all employees of the agency have reasonable

access to the agency's personnel policies and procedures manual.

(2)+a+ The department shall establish rules and procedures

for the suspension, reduction in pay, transfer, layoff,

demotion, and dismissal of employees in the Civil Gareer

Service.

~ Except with regard to law enforcement or correctional

officers, firefighters, or professional health care providers,

rules regarding layoff procedures may shall not include any

provision system whereby a civil Gareer service employee with

greater seniority has the option of selecting a different

position not being eliminated, but either vacant or already

occupied by an employee who has ~ less seniority, and taking

that position, commonly referred to as "bumping."

(b) For the implementation of layoffs as defined in s.

110.1054 110.107, the department shall develop rules requiring

retention of the agency's employees based upon objective

measures that give consideration to comparative merit,

Page 78 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2185

2186

2187

2188

2189

2190

2191

2192

2193

2194

2195

2196

2197

2198

2199

2200

2201

2202

2203

2204

2205

2206

2207

2208

2209

2210

2211

2212

demonstrated skills, the employee's experience, and the

employee's length of service in the Civil Service. Such rules

shall be approved by the Administration Commission before their

adoption by the department.

(3)+crt With regard to law enforcement or correctional

officers, firefighters, or professional health care providers~T

whef:r

(a) If a layoff becomes necessary, such layoff shall be

conducted within the competitive area identified by the agency

head and approved by the department of Hanagement Services. Such

competitive area shall be established taking into consideration

the similarity of work; the organizational unit, which may be by

agency, department, division, bureau, or other organizational

unit; and the commuting area for the affected work affected.

(b) With regard to law enforcement or correctional

officers, firefighters, or professional health care providers,

Layoff procedures shall be developed to establish the relative

merit and fitness of employees and must shall include a formula

for uniform application among all employees in the competitive

area, taking into consideration the type of appointment, the

length of service, and the evaluations of the employee's

performance within the last 5 years of employment.

(4) A grievance process shall be available to civil career

service employees who have satisfactorily completed at least a

1-year probationary period in their current positions. A

grievance is defined as the dissatisfaction that occurs when an

employee believes that any condition affecting the employee is

unjust, inequitable, or a hindrance to the effective performance

Page 79 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2213

2214

2215

2216

2217

2218

2219

2220

2221

2222

2223

2224

2225

2226

2227

2228

2229

2230

2231

2232

2233

2234

2235

2236

2237

2238

2239

2240

of his or her job duties operation. Claims of discrimination and

sexual harassment or claims related to suspensions, reductions

in pay, demotions, and dismissals are not subject to the civil

eareer service grievance process. The following procedures shall

apply to any grievance filed pursuant to this subsection, except

that all timeframes may be extended in writing by mutual

agreement:

(a) Step One.-The employee must may submit a signed,

written grievance on a form provided by the agency to his or her

supervisor within 14 calendar days following the occurrence of

the event giving rise to the grievance. The supervisor must meet

with the employee to discuss the grievance and provide a written

response to the employee within 7 business days following

receipt of the grievance.

(b) Step Two.-If the employee is dissatisfied with the

response of his or her supervisor, the employee must may submit

the written grievance to the agency head or his or her designee

within 7 business days following receipt of the supervisor's

written response. The agency head's head or his or her designee

may~ meet with the employee to discuss the grievance within

5 business days following receipt of the grievance. The agency

head or his or her designee must respond in writing to the

employee within 5 business days following receipt of the

grievance or the meeting. The written decision of the agency

head or designee is shall be the final and binding authority for

all grievances filed pursuant to this subsection. Such

grievances may not be appealed beyond Step Two.

(5)+a+ A civil career service employee who has

Page 80 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2241

2242

2243

2244

2245

2246

2247

2248

2249

2250

2251

2252

2253

2254

2255

2256

2257

2258

2259

2260

2261

2262

2263

2264

2265

2266

2267

2268

satisfactorily completed at least a I-year probationary period

and attained merit status in his or her current position and who

is subject to a suspension, reduction in pay, demotion,

involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, or

dismissal shall receive written notice of such action at least

10 calendar days before prior to the date such action is to be

taken.

~ Subsequent to such notice, and before prior to the

date the action is to be taken, the affected employee shall be

given an opportunity to appear before a designated agency

official to rebut the agency or official taking the action to

answer orally and in writing the charges against him or her

orally or in writing. The notice to the employee required by

this paragraph may be delivered to the employee personally or

may be sent by certified mail with return receipt requested.

Such actions are shall be appealable to the Public Employees

Relations Commission as provided in subsection (6). Written

notice of afTY' such appeal shall be filed by the employee with

the commission within 21 calendar days after the date on which

the notice of suspension, reduction in pay, demotion,

involuntary transfer of more than 50 miles by highway, or

dismissal is received by the employee.

(b) In extraordinary situations such as when the retention

of a civil career service employee who has satisfactorily

completed at least a I-year probationary period in his or her

current position may Hould result in damage to state property,

may \Jould be detrimental to the best interest of the state, or

may v>'Quld result in harm injury to the employee, a fellow

Page 81 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2269

2270

2271

2272

2273

2274

2275

2276

2277

2278

2279

2280

2281

2282

2283

2284

2285

2286

2287

2288

2289

2290

2291

2292

2293

2294

2295

2296

employee, or some other person, such employee may be suspended

or dismissed without 10 calendar days' prior notice if, provided

~ written or oral notice of such action, including evidence

~ the reasons therefor, and an opportunity to rebut the charges

are furnished to the employee before prior to such dismissal or

suspension. Such notice may be delivered to the employee

personally or may be sent by certified mail with return receipt

requested. Agency compliance vlith the foregoing procedure

requiring notice, evidence, and an opportunity for rebuttal must

be substantiated. Any employee who is suspended or dismissed

pursuant to the provisions of this paragraph may appeal to the

Public Employees Relations Commission as provided in subsection

(6). Written notice of afiY such appeal shall be filed with the

commission by the employee within 21 calendar days after the

date on which the notice of suspension, reduction in pay,

demotion, or dismissal is received by the employee.

(c) Merit status that was attained in a previous position

does not give rise to appeal rights under this section.

(6) The following procedures shall apply to appeals filed

pursuant to subsection (5) with the Public Employees Relations

Commission, hereinafter referred to as the commission:

(a) The commission must conduct a hearing within 60

calendar days following the filing of a notice of appeal. An He

extension of time for the hearing may not exceed 30 calendar

days, absent exceptional circumstances, and no e}{tension of time

may not be granted without the consent of all parties. Discovery

may be granted only upon the showing of extraordinary

circumstances. A party requesting discovery must shall

Page 82 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2297

2298

2299

2300

2301

2302

2303

2304

2305

2306

2307

2308

2309

2310

2311

2312

2313

2314

2315

2316

2317

2318

2319

2320

2321

2322

2323

2324

demonstrate a substantial need for the information requested and

an inability to obtain relevant information by other means.

Except where inconsistent with the requirements of this

subsection, the provisions of s. 447.503(4) and (5) and chapter

120 apply to proceedings held pursuant to this subsection.

(b) A person may represent himself or herself in

proceedings before the commission or may be represented by legal

counselor by an ~ individual who qualifies as a

representative pursuant to rules adopted by the commission.

(c) If the commission finds that cause did not exist for

the agency action, the commission shall reverse the decision of

the agency head and the employee shall be reinstated with or

without back pay. If the commission finds that cause existed for

the agency action, the commission shall affirm the decision of

the agency head. The commission may not reduce the penalty

imposed by the agency head, except in the case of law

enforcement or correctional officers, firefighters, and

professional health care providers, if the commission makes

specific written findings of mitigation.

(d) A recommended order shall be issued by the hearing

officer within 30 days following the hearing. Exceptions to the

recommended order must shall be filed within 15 days after the

recommended order is issued. The final order shall be filed by

the commission within no later than 45 calendar days after the

hearing or after the filing of exceptions or oral arguments if

granted.

(e) Final orders issued by the commission pursuant to

paragraph (d) are shall be reviewable as provided in s. 447.504.

Page 83 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2325

2326

2327

2328

2329

2330

2331

2332

2333

2334

2335

2336

2337

2338

2339

2340

2341

2342

2343

2344

2345

2346

2347

2348

2349

2350

2351

2352

(7) Other than for law enforcement or correctional

officers, firefighters, and professional health care providers,

each suspension, dismissal, demotion, or reduction in pay must

be reviewed without consideration of any other case or set of

facts.

(8) Employees of the Department of Law Enforcement are

subject to this section, except in matters relating to transfer.

(9) The department may adopt rules necessary to administer

this section.

(8) A eareer serviee employee ',,'ho is serving a

probationary period in a position to Hhich he or she has been

promoted may be removed from that promotional position at any

time during the probationary period but must be returned to his

or her former position,· or a comparable position, if such a

position is vacant. If such a position is not available, before

dismissal, the agency shall make a reasonable effort to retain

the employee in another vacant position. This subsection does

not apply to terminations for cause as described in subsection

(1), nor does it create a right to "bump" an employee from an

occupied position as described in paragraph (2) (a) .

Section 36. The Division of Statutory Revision is

requested to renumber part V of chapter 110, Florida Statutes,

as part III of that chapter, consisting of SST 110.302-110.3023,

Florida Statutes, and to rename that part as "Selected Exempt

Service."

Section 37. Section 110.601, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 110.302, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

Page 84 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2353

2354

2355

2356

2357

2358

2359

2360

2361

2362

2363

2364

2365

2366

2367

2368

2369

2370

2371

2372

2373

2374

2375

2376

2377

2378

2379

2380

110.302 110.601 Declaration of policy.-This part creates a

system of personnel administration for management the purpose of

delivering which is to deliver high-quality performance by

selected exempt service those employees in the State Personnel

System select exempt classifications by facilitating the state's

ability to attract and retain qualified personnel in these

positions, while also providing sufficient management

flexibility to ensure that the workforce is responsive to agency

needs. The Legislature recognizes that the public interest is

best served by developing and refining the technical and

managerial skills of these its selected exempt service

employees, and, to this end, technical training and management

development programs are regarded as a major administrative

function Hithin agencies.

Section 38. Section 110.602, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 110.3021, Florida Statues,

and amended to read:

110.3021 110.602 Selected Exempt Service; creationT

coverage.-

ill The Selected Exempt Service is created as a separate

system of personnel administration for select exempt positions

in the State Personnel System. Such positions shall include, and

shall be limited to, those positions which are exempt from the

Civil Gareer Service System pursuant to s. 110.205(2) and (5)

and for which the salaries and benefits are set by the

department in accordance with the rules of the Selected Exempt

Service. The department shall designate all positions included

in the Selected EJwmpt Service as either

Page 85 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2381

2382

2383

2384

2385

2386

.2387

2388

2389

2390

2391

2392

2393

2394

2395

2396

2397

2398

2399

2400

2401

2402

2403

2404

2405

2406

2407

2408

managerial/polic"y'making, professional, or

nonmanagerial/nonpolic"y'making.

(2) Employees in the Selected Exempt Service shall serve

at the pleasure of the agency head and are subject to personnel

actions at the discretion of the agency head. Personnel actions

that are tantamount to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay,

demotion, or transfer are exempt from chapter 120 .

Section 39. Section 110.605, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 110.3022, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

110.3022 110.605 Powers and duties; personnel rules,

records, reports, and performance appraisal.-The department is

responsible for the policy administration of the Selected Exempt

Service. In carrying out that function, the department shall:

(1) Provide broad, market-based pay bands for occupations

within the Selected Exempt Service and establish guidelines that

allow state agencies flexibility to move employees through the

pay bands. The agencies may determine the appropriate salary

within the bands using the guidelines adopted by the department.

The pay bands, and the assignment of bands to positions, do not

constitute rules as defined in s. 120.52.

(2) Establish a classification system and a salary and

benefit plan for the Selected Exempt Service which provide for

greater pay and benefits overall than are provided for the Civil

Service and less pay and benefits overall than are provided for

the Senior Management Service.

(3) In consultation with the Executive Office of the

Governor and the appropriations committees of the Legislature,

Page 86 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2409

2410

2411

2412

2413

2414

2415

2416

2417

2418

2419

2420

2421

2422

2423

2424

2425

2426

2427

2428

2429

2430

2431

2432

2433

2434

2435

2436

conduct compensation surveys as necessary for achieving an

equitable, competitive, market-based compensation policy for

selected exempt service employees.

(4) Establish a performance evaluation system for selected

exempt service employees which takes into consideration

individual and organizational efficiency, productivity, and

effectiveness.

(5) Establish a system for documenting department actions

taken on agency requests for the approval of position exemptions

and pay increases for selected exempt service employees.

J£l(l) The department shall Adopt and administer uniform

personnel rules, records, and reports relating to employees and

positions in the Selected Exempt Service, as well as any other

rules and procedures relating to personnel administration which

are necessary to carry out the purposes of this part.

(a) The rules adopted by the department must comply with

all federal regulations necessary to permit the agencies to

receive federal funds.

(b) Each agency shall operate within the uniform personnel

rules adopted by the department pursuant to this part.

(c) Each agency shall maintain up-to-date records and

reports required by applicable rules.

(d)~ The department may shall develop uniform forms and

instructions to be used for personnel in reporting transactions

;;hieh involve changes in an employee's salary, status,

performance, leave, fingerprint record, loyalty oath, payroll

change, or appointment action or any additional transactions as

the department deems may deem appropriate.

Page 87 of 203

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2437

2438

2439

2440

2441

2442

2443

2444

2445

2446

2447

2448

2449

2450

2451

2452

2453

2454

2455

2456

2457

2458

2459

2460

2461

2462

2463

2464

(b) 1he department shall develop a uniform performanoe

appraisal system for employees and positions in the Seleoted

BJEempt Service covered by a collective bargaining agreement.

Baoh employing agenoy shall develop a performanoe appraisal

system for all other employees and positions in the Selected

BJECmpt System. Suoh agency system shall take into oonsideration

individual and organi~ational efficienoy, produotivity, and

effectiveness.

(c) 1he employing agency must maintain, on a ourrent

basis, all reoords and reports required by applioable rules. 1he

department shall periodically audit employing agency records to

determine oompliance vvith the provisions of this part and the

rules of the department.

(d) 1he department shall develop a program of affirmative

and positive actions that \lill ensure full utili~ation of women

and minorities in Seleoted BJECmpt Service positions.

(2) Baoh employing agenoy shall operate ;;ithin the uniform

personnel rules adopted by the department pursuant to the

provisions of this part. Baoh employing agency may adopt rules

as neoessary to implement the provisions of this part, but such

rules shall not presoribe any personnel policies inconsistent

\;ith the provisions of this part or the rules of the department.

(3) 1he rules adopted by the department and eaoh employing

agency under this part shall comply ;;ith all federal regulations

necessary to permit the state agenoies to be eligible to reoeive

federal funds.

(4) 1he department shall adopt by rule procedures for

Seleoted BJECmpt Servioe employees that require disolosure to the

Page 88 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2465

2466

2467

2468

2469

2470

2471

2472

2473

2474

2475

2476

2477

2478

2479

2480

2481

2482

2483

2484

2485

2486

2487

2488

2489

2490

2491

2492

agency head of any application for or offer of emploYffient, gift,

contractual relationship, or financial interest \lith any

individual, partnership, association, corporation, utility, or

other organization, \lhether public or private, doing business

with or subject to regulation by the agency.

(5) The secretary may periodically hire a consultant 'Jith

e}cpertise in personnel management to advise him or her 'n'ith

respect to the administration of the Selected E}cempt Service.

Section 40. Section 110.3023, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

110.3023 Recruitment.-

(1) Each state agency is responsible for establishing a

process for employing, advancing, and deploying selected exempt

service staff to meet agency needs.

(2) If normal recruitment efforts of the agency through

the use of the department's designated human resource

information system, trade journals, or magazines are

unsuccessful, the agency may contract with a person or firm to

conduct a multistate search for hard-to-fill professional

positions. The contracted search person or firm must satisfy the

following criteria:

(a) Willingness to accept contingency contracts with fees

of up to 30 percent of the annual salary of the applicant, to be

paid upon employment of an applicant produced by the search.

(b) Demonstrated capacity to perform effectively at

competitive industry prices.

(c) Evidence of successful placements in the public sector

by level and type of placement.

Page 89 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2493

2494

2495

2496

2497

2498

2499

2500

2501

2502

2503

2504

2505

2506

2507

2508

2509

2510

2511

2512

2513

2514

2515

2516

2517

2518

2519

2520

(d) Agreement for the delivery of services within 90

calendar days after the date of the requested search by the

agency, unless an extension is granted by the agency.

(e) Ability to attract minorities and women as evidenced

by applicant pools generated for previous clients.

Section 41. The Division of Statutory Revision is

requested to renumber part III of chapter 110, Florida Statutes,

as part IV of that chapter, consisting of ss. 110.401-110.4035,

Florida Statutes, and to rename that part as "Senior Management

Service."

Section 42. Section 110.401, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.401 Declaration of policy.-This part creates a uniform

system of personnel administration for attracting, retaining,

and developing highly competent, executive-level senior level

managers within the State Personnel System at the highest

executive management level ageney positions in order for the

highly eomple)( programs and ageneies of state government to

funetion effeetively, effieiently, and produetively. The

Legislature recognizes that executive-level senior level

management is an established profession and that the public

interest is best served by developing and refining the

management skills of its senior management service employees.

Aeeordingly, training and management development programs are

regarded as a major administrative funetion ~.ithin ageneies.

Section 43. Section 110.402, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.402 Senior Management Service; creation, eoverage.

Page 90 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2521

2522

2523

2524

2525

2526

2527

2528

2529

2530

2531

2532

2533

2534

2535

2536

2537

2538

2539

2540

2541

2542

2543

2544

2545

2546

2547

2548

(1) The Senior Management Service is created as a separate

system of personnel administration for positions in the State

Personnel System which perform eueeutive branch the duties and

responsibilities that of ~vhich are primarily and essentially

policymaking or managerial in nature.

~ Such positions are The Senior Hanagement Service shall

be limited to those positions that ...'hich are exempt from the

Civil Career Service under System by s. 110.205~ and for which

the salaries and benefits are set by the department in

accordance with the rules of the Senior Management Service.

(2) Employees in the Senior Management Service shall serve

at the pleasure of the agency head and are subject to personnel

actions at the discretion of the agency head. Personnel actions

that are tantamount to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay,

demotion, or transfer are exempt from chapter 120.

Section 44. Section 110.403, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

110.403 Powers and duties of the department.-The

department is responsible for the policy administration of the

Senior Management Service. In carrying out that function, the

department shall:

(1) In order to implement the purposes of this part, the

Department of Hanagement Services, after approval by the

Administration COffiffiission, shall adopt and amend rules providing

.f.&F+

Jll+crt Establish a system for employing, advancing, and

deploying senior management service employees which promoting,

or reassigning managers that is responsive to organizational or

Page 91 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2549

2550

2551

2552

2553

2554

2555

2556

2557

2558

2559

2560

2561

2562

2563

2564

2565

2566

2567

2568

2569

2570

2571

2572

2573

2574

2575

2576

program needs. In no event shall The number of positions

included in the Senior Management Service may not exceed 1.0

percent of the total full-time equivalent positions in the Civil

career Service. The department may not approve the establishment

of shall deny approval to establish any position within the

Senior Management Service which exceeds \lould exceed the

limitation established in this subsection paragraph. The

department shall report that the limitation has been reached to

the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the Speaker of

the House of RepresentativesT as soon as practicable after it

such event occurs. EffiPloyees in the Senior Hanagement Service

shall serve at the pleasure of the agency head and shall be

subject to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion,

transfer, or other personnel action at the discretion of the

agency head. Such personnel actions are eJfOffiPt from the

provisions of chapter 120.

(2) Provide broad, market-based pay bands for occupations

within the Senior Management Service and establish guidelines

that allow state agencies flexibility to move employees through

the pay bands. The agencies may determine the appropriate salary

within the bands using the guidelines established by the

department. Such pay bands and the assignment of bands to

positions do not constitute rules as defined in s. 120.52.

(b) A performance appraisal system 'ilhich shall take into

consideration individual and organizational efficiency,

productivity, and effectiveness.

J1l+e+ Establish a classification system plan and a salary

and benefit plan for senior management service employees which

Page 92 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2577

2578

2579

2580

2581

2582

2583

2584

2585

2586

2587

2588

2589

2590

2591

2592

2593

2594

2595

2596

2597

2598

2599

2600

2601

2602

2603

2604

provide that provides appropriate incentives for the recruitment

and retention of outstanding management personnel and provide

provides for salary increases based on performance.

(4) In consultation with the Executive Office of the

Governor and the appropriations committees of the Legislature,

conduct compensation surveys as necessary for the purpose of

achieving an equitable, competitive, market-based compensation

policy for senior management service employees.

(5) Establish a performance evaluation system for senior

management service employees which takes into consideration

individual and organizational efficiency, productivity, and

effectiveness.

(d) A system of rating duties and responsibilities for

positions within the Senior Management Service and the

qualifieations of eandidates for those positions.

j£l+e+ Establish a system for documenting actions taken on

agency requests for approval of position exemptions and special

pay increases for senior management service employees.

(7) Adopt and administer personnel rules, records, and

reports relating to employees and positions in the Senior

Management Service, as well as any other rules or procedures

relating to personnel administration which are necessary for

carrying out the purposes of this part.

(a) The rules adopted by the department must comply with

all federal regulations necessary for state agencies to receive

federal funds.

(b) Each agency shall operate within the personnel rules

adopted by the department pursuant to this part.

Page 93 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2605

2606

2607

2608

2609

2610

2611

2612

2613

2614

2615

2616

2617

2618

2619

2620

2621

2622

2623

2624

2625

2626

2627

2628

2629

2630

2631

2632

(c) Each agency shall maintain up-to-date records and

reports required by applicable rules.

(d) The department may develop uniform forms and

instructions to be used in connection with personnel

transactions as the department deems appropriate.

(f) Requireffients regarding recordkeeping by agencies Hith

respect to Senior Hanageffient Service positions. Such records

shall be audited periodically by the Departffient of Hanageffient

Services to determine agency cOffipliance ~Jith the provisions of

this part and the rules of the Departffient of Hanageffient

Services.

(g) Other procedures relating to personnel adffiinistration

to carry out the purposes of this part.

(h) A prograffi of affirffiative and positive action that Hill

ensure full utilization of HOffien and ffiinorities in Senior

Hanageffient Service positions.

(2) The pOHers, duties, and functions of the departffient of

Hanageffient Services shall include responsibility for the policy

adffiinistration of the Senior Hanageffient Service.

(3) The departffient shall have the following additional

responsibilities:

(a) To establish and administer a professional developffient

prograffi that shall provide for the systeffiatic development of

ffianagerial, CJwcutive, or adffiinistrative skills. Such a prograffi

shall include the following topics:

1. Improving the performance of individual employees. This

topic provides skills in understanding and ffiotivating individual

perforffiance, providing effective and tiffiely evaluations of

Page 94 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2633

2634

2635

2636

2637

2638

2639

2640

2641

2642

2643

2644

2645

2646

2647

2648

2649

2650

2651

2652

2653

2654

2655

2656

2657

2658

2659

2660

employees, and making recommendations on performance incentives

and disincentives.

2. Improving the performance of groups of employees. This

topic provides skills in creating and maintaining productive

'dorkgroups and making recommendations on performance incentives

and disincentives.

3. Relating the efforts of employees to the goals of the

organization. This topic provides skills in linking the 'dork of

individual employees to the goals of the agency program,

service, or activity.

4. Strategic planning. This topic provides the skills for

defining agency business processes, measuring performance of

such processes, and reengineering such processes for improved

efficiency and effectiveness.

5. Team leadership. This topic provides skills in

effective group processes for organizational motivation and

productivity based on proven business and military applications

that emphasize respect for and courtesy to the public.

(bJ To promote public understanding of the purposes,

policies, and programs of the Senior Management Service.

. (cJ To approve contracts of employing agencies 'dith

persons engaged in the business of conducting multistate

eJwcutive searches to identify qualified and available

applicants for Senior Management Service positions for. Hhich the

department sets salaries in accordance YJith the classification

and pay plan. Such contracts may be entered by the agency head

only after completion of an unsuccessful in house search. The

department shall establish, by rule, the minimum qualifications

Page 95 of 203

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2661

2662

2663

2664

2665

2666

.2667

2668

2669

2670

2671

2672

2673

2674

2675

2676

2677

2678

2679

2680

2681

2682

2683

2684

2685

2686

2687

2688

for persons desiring to conduct e}{ecutive searches, including a

requirement for the use of contingency contracts. These rules

shall ensure that such persons possess the requisite capacities

to perform effectively at competitive industry prices. These

rules shall also comply ',lith state and federal lmw and

regulations governing equal opportunity employment .

(4) All policies and procedures adopted by the department

regarding the Senior Hanagement Service shall comply ',Jith all

federal regulations necessary to permit the state agencies to be

eligible to receive federal funds.

(5) The department shall adopt, by rule, procedures for

Senior ~4anagement Service employees that require disclosure to

the agency head of any application for or offer of employment,

gift, contractual relationship, or financial interest ~Jith any

individual, partnership, association, corporation, utility, or

other organiEation, whether public or private, doing business

',Jith or subj ect to regulation by the agency.

Section 45. Section 110.4035, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

110.4035 Recruitment.-

(1) Each state agency is responsible for establishing a

process for employing, advancing, and deploying executive-level

managers to meet agency needs.

(2) If normal recruitment efforts are unsuccessful, the

agency may contract with a person or firm to conduct a

multistate search for executive-level managers. The contracted

search person or firm must satisfy the following criteria:

(a) Willingness to accept contingency contracts with fees

Page 96 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2689

2690

2691

2692

2693

2694

2695

2696

2697

2698

2699

2700

2701

2702

2703

2704

2705

2706

2707

2708

2709

2710

2711

2712

2713

2714

2715

2716

that do not exceed 30 percent of the annual salary of the

applicant, to be paid upon employment of the applicant produced

by the search.

(b) Demonstrated capacity to perform effectively at

competitive industry prices.

(c) Evidence of successful placements in the public sector

by level and type of placement.

(d) Agreement for the delivery of services within 90

calendar days after the date of the requested search by the

agency, unless an extension is granted by the agency.

(e) Ability to attract minorities and women as evidenced

by applicant pools generated for previous clients.

Section 46. The Division of Statutory Revision is

requested to create part IX of chapter 112, Florida Statutes,

consisting of ss. 112.906-112.933, Florida Statutes, to be

entitled "State Employment."

Section 47. Section 112.906, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.906 Definitions.-As used in this part, the term:

(1) "Department" means the Department of Management

Services.

(2) "Other personal services" has the same meaning as in

s. 216.011(1).

(3) "State agency" or "agency" means any official,

officer, commission, board, authority, council, committee, or

department of the executive branch or judicial branch of state

government as defined in chapter 216, unless otherwise exempted

by law.

Page 97 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

2717

2718

2719

2720

2721

2722

2723

2724

2725

2726

2727

2728

2729

2730

2731

2732

2733

2734

2735

2736

2737

2738

2739

2740

2741

2742

2743

2744

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261.

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2745

2746

2747

2748

2749

2750

2751

2752

2753

2754

2755

2756

2757

2758

2759

2760

2761

2762

2763

2764

2765

2766

2767

2768

2769

2770

2771

2772

the agency head and approval by the E}{ecutive Office of the

Governor. Approval of e}{tensions shall be made in accordance

with criteria established by the department. Each agency shall

maintain employee information as specified by the department

regarding each extension of other personal services temporary

employment. The time limitation established by this subsection

does not apply to board members; consultants; seasonal

employees; institutional clients employed as part of their

rehabilitation; bona fide, degree-seeking students in accredited

secondary or postsecondary educational programs; employees hired

to deal with an emergency situation that affects the public

health, safety, or welfare; or employees hired for a project

that is identified by a specific appropriation or time-limited

grant.

(2) Unless specifically provided by law, other-persona1

services employees are not eligible for any form of paid leave,

paid holidays, a paid personal day, participation in state group

insurance or retirement·benefits, or any other state employee

benefit. Other-personal-services employees may be included in

that part of an agency's recognition and reward program that

recognizes and rewards employees who submit innovative ideas

that increase productivity, eliminate or reduce state

expenditures, improve operations, or generate additional revenue

or who meet or exceed the agency's established criteria for a

project or goal.

(3) Each agency that is authorized to adopt rules

governing the terms and conditions of employment may adopt rules

necessary to administer this section. The department shall adopt

Page 99 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2773

2774

2775

2776

2777

2778

2779

2780

2781

2782

2783

2784

2785

2786

2787

2788

2789

2790

2791

2792

2793

2794

2795

2796

2797

2798

2799

2800

rules providing that other personal services teffiPorary

effiPloyment in an employer effiPloyee relationship shall be used

for short terffi tasks. Such rules shall specify the employment

categories, terffis, conditions, rate of pay, and frequency of

other personal services teffiPorary effiployFRent and the duration

for 'dhich such effiPloyffient ffiay last} specify criteria for

approving eJftensions beyond the tiffie limitation provided in

subsection (2)} and prescribe recordkeeping and reporting

requireffients for other personal services effiPloyffient.

(4) The departffient shall prepare written ffiaterial

mrplaining the terms and conditions of other personal services

effiPloyffient and shall provide master copies to each agency. Bach

agency shall provide each of its applicants for such effiPloyment

\lith a copy thereof at the time af application and shall discuss

the information contained thereon 'dith each applicant at the

tiffie of intervie'", or effiPloymcnt cOffiffiencement, HhichC':er occurs

sooner.

(5) The department shall maintain inforffiation relating to

other personal services employffient for each agency. Such

inforffiation shall include:

(a) The total affiount of cOffiPcnsation for other personal

services personnel, by effiPloyFRent category, for the preceding

fiscal year.

(b) The naffie, social security numbcr, effiPloyffient category,

employment COffiffienceffient date, and number of hours Horked for

each individual \lhose initial other personal scrvices teffiPorary

effiPloyment began before the start of the preceding fiscal year

and '",ho Has still effiployed as an other personal ser:ices

Page 100 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2801

2802

2803

2804

2805

2806

2807

2808

2809

2810

2811

2812

2813

2814

2815

2816

2817

2818

2819

2820

2821

2822

2823

2824

2825

2826

2827

2828

temporary employee at the end of the preceding fiscal year.

(6) (a) The provisions of subsections (2), (3), and (4) do

not apply to any employee for "thom the Board of Governors of the

State University System, or the board's designee, or the Board

of Trustees of the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind is

the employer as defined in s. 447.203 (2); CJwept that, for

purposes of subsection (5), the Board of Trustees of the Florida

School for the Deaf and the Blind shall comply 'dith the

recordkeeping and reporting requirements adopted by the

department pursuant to subsection (3) "Jith respect to those

other personal servioes employees eHempted by this subseotion.

(b) The provisions of subseotions (2), (3), and (4) do not

apply to any employee of the Division of Blind Servioes Library

for the Blind and Physioally Handioapped for "Jhom the Division

of Blind Services is the employer as defined in s. 447.203(2);

eJfCept that, for purposes of subseotion (5), the Division of

Blind Servioes shall oomply '.:ith the reoordkeeping and reporting

requirements adopted by the department pursuant to subseetion

(3) "Jith respect to those other personal servioes employees

exempted by this subsection.

(c) Notwithstanding the provisions of this section, the

agenoy head or his or her designee may eHtend the other

personal services employment of a health care practitioner

licensed pursuant to chapter 45g, chapter 459, chapter 460,

chapter 461, chapter 463, part I of chapter 464, chapter 466,

chapter 46g, chapter 4g3, chapter 4g6, or chapter 490 beyond

2,OgO hours and may employ such practitioner on an hourly or

other basis.

Page 101 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2829

2830

2831

2832

2833

2834

.2835

2836

2837

2838

2839

2840

2841

2842

2843

2844

2845

2846

2847

2848

2849

2850

2851

2852

2853

2854

2855

2856

(7) The Department of P4anagement Services shall annually

assess agencies for the regulation of other personal services on

a pro rata share basis not to e]{ceed an amount as provided in

the General Appropriations Act.

Section 49. Section 110.1315, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.908, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.908 110.1315 Alternative retirement benefits; other

personal-services employees.-

J!l Upon review and recommendation of the department and

approval of the Executive Office of the Governor, the Department

of Financial Services shall provide may contract for the

implementation of an alternative retirement income security

program for eligible temporary and seasonal employees of the

state who are compensated from appropriations for other personal

services. The Department of Financial Services may contract with

may provide for a private vendor or vendors to administer the

program under a defined-contribution plan under ss. 401(a) and

403(b) or s. 457 of the Internal Revenue Code, and the program

must provide retirement benefits as required under s.

3121(b) (7) (F) of the Internal Revenue Code. The Department of

Financial Services may develop a request for proposals and

solicit qualified vendors to compete for the award of the

contract. A vendor shall be selected on the basis of the plan

that best serves the interest of the participating employees and

the state. The proposal must comply with all necessary federal

and state laws and rules.

(2) The Department of Financial Services may adopt rules

Page 102 of 203

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2857

2858

2859

2860

2861

2862

2863

2864

2865

2866

2867

2868

2869

2870

2871

2872

2873

2874

2875

2876

2877

2878

2879

2880

2881

2882

2883

2884

necessary to administer this section.

Section 50. Section 110.1128, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.909, Florida Statutes.

Section 51. Section 112.910, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.910 Equal employment opportunity.-

(1) It is the policy of this state to assist in ensuring

equal employment opportunity through programs of affirmative and

positive action which allow full utilization of women and

minorities.

(2) The head of each executive agency shall develop and

implement an affirmative action plan in accordance with this

section and applicable state and federal laws.

(a) Each executive agency shall establish annual goals for

ensuring the full utilization of groups underrepresented in its

workforce as compared to the relevant labor market as defined by

the agency and shall design its affirmative action plan to meet

those goals.

(b) The head of each executive agency shall appoint an

equal employment opportunity officer.

(c) By October 1 of each year, each executive agency that

is not part of the State Personnel System shall report to the

Executive Office of the Governor information relating to the

implementation, continuance, updating, and results of the

agency's affirmative action plan for the previous fiscal year.

(3) Each state attorney and ppblic defender shall:

(a) Develop and implement an affirmative action plan.

(b) Establish annual goals for ensuring the full

Page 103 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2885

2886

2887

2888

2889

2890

.2891

2892

2893

2894

2895

2896

2897

2898

2899

2900

2901

2902

2903

2904

2905

2906

2907

2908

2909

2910

2911

2912

utilization of groups underrepresented in its workforce as

compared to the relevant labor market in this state and design

its affirmative action plan to meet those goals.

(c) Appoint an affirmative action equal employment

opportunity officer.

(d) Report annually to the Justice Administrative

Commission on the implementation, continuance, updating, and

results of his or her affirmative action program for the

previous fiscal year.

(4) An individual claiming to be aggrieved by an unlawful

employment practice may file a complaint with the Florida

Commission on Human Relations as provided under s. 760.11.

Section 52. Section 112.911, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.911 Nondiscrimination in employment.-

(1) It is the policy of the state that all appointments,

terminations, assignments, and maintenance of status,

compensation, privileges, and other terms and conditions of

employment be made without regard to age, sex, race, color,

religion, national origin, political affiliation, marital

status, disability, or genetic information unless a specific

requirement constitutes a bona fide occupational qualification.

(2) The state, its agencies, and its officers shall ensure

freedom from discrimination in employment as provided by the

Florida Civil Rights Act of 1992, s. 112.044, and this chapter.

Section 53. Section 110.1221, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.912, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

Page 104 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2913

2914

2915

2916

2917

2918

2919

2920

2921

2922

2923

2924

2925

2926

2927

2928

2929

2930

2931

2932

2933

2934

2935

2936

2937

2938

2939

2940

112.912 110.1221 Sexual harassment policy, executive

agency rules.-It is the policy of the state that sexual

harassment is a form of discrimination. Each agency that has

authority to adopt rules governing the terms and conditions of

employment The department shall adopt uniform sexual harassment

rules applicable to all eJfecutive agencies. Such ~ rules must

define the term "sexual harassment" in a manner consistent with

the federal definition.

Section 54. Section 110.122, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.913, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.913 110.122 Terminal payment for accumulated sick

leave.-

(1) All state branches, departments, and agencies that are

authorized ''''hich hmle the authority to establish or approve

personnel policies for employees and to employ personnel and

establish the conditions of their employment shall establish

policies that ~ provide terminal ~incentive~ pay for

accumulated and unused sick leave to each employee upon normal

or regular retirement for reason other than disability or upon

termination of employment, or to the employee's beneficiary if

service is terminated by death, if provided such retirement,

termination, or death occurs after 10 years of creditable state

employment.

(2) Each entity that is authorized to adopt rules

governing the terms and conditions of employment The employing

entity shall establish and publish rules governing the

accumulation and use of sick leave. The employing entity shall

Page 105 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2941

2942

2943

2944

2945

2946

2947

2948

2949

2950

2951

2952

2953

2954

2955

2956

2957

2958

2959

2960

2961

2962

2963

2964

2965

2966

2967

2968

~ maintain accurate and reliable records showing the amount of

sick leave that ',Jhieh has accumulated and is unused by the

employee at the time of retirement, death, or termination.

(3) The payments authorized by this section shall be

determined by using the rate of pay received by the employee at

the time of retirement, termination, or death, applied to the

sick leave time for which the employee is qualified to receive

terminal ~incentive~ pay under the rules adopted by the

department pursuant to the provisions of this section. The rules

and policies must provide adopted pursuant to this section shall

permit terminal pay for sick leave equal to one-fourth eRe

eighth of all unused sick leave credit accumulated prior to

October 1, 1973, plus one fourth of all unused sick leave

aceumulated on or after October 1, 1973. However, terminal pay

allowable for unused sick leave may accumulated on or after

October 1, 1973, shall not exceed a maJdmum of 480 hours of

actual payment. Employees shall be required to use all sick

leave accumulated prior to October 1, 1973, before using sick

leave accumulated on or after October 1, 1973.

(4) The payments made pursuant to this section are shall

not salary payments be considered in any state-administered

retirement system as salary payments and may shall not be used

in determining the average final compensation of an employee in

any state-administered retirement system.

(5) All rights and benefits provided under this section

shall be forfeited by an aflY employee:

(a) Who is found guilty in a court of competent

jurisdiction of committing, aiding, or abetting any embezzlement

Page 106 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2969

2970

2971

2972

2973

2974

2975

2976

2977

2978

2979

2980

2981

2982

2983

2984

2985

2986

2987

2988

2989

2990

2991

2992

2993

2994

2995

2996

or theft from the employee's employer or bribery in connection

with the employment, committed before prior to retirement or lQ

years of 10 year normal creditable state employment termination;

(b) Whose employment is terminated by reason of the

employee having admitted committing, aiding, or abetting an

embezzlement or theft from his or her employer or by reason of

bribery;

(c) Who, prior to 10 years of 10 year normal creditable

state employment termination or retirementL is adjudged by a

court of competent jurisdiction to have violated any state law

against strikes by public employees; or

(d) Who has been found guilty by a court of competent

jurisdiction of violating any state law prohibiting strikes by

public employees, shall forfeit all rights and benefits under

this seetion.

l£l An employee whose employment terminates as a result of

an act committed subject to~ subsection (5) may shall not be

given credit for unused sick leave accumulated before prior to

termination if should the employee is ee reemployed at a later

date.

Section 55. Section 110.121, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.914, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.914 110.121 Sick leave pool.-Each entity that

department or ageney of the state vJhieh has authority to adopt

rules governing the accumulation and use of sick leave for

employeesL and that v;rhieh maintains accurate and reliable

records showing the amount of sick leave that \Jhieh has been

Page 107 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

2997

2998

2999

3000

3001

3002

3003

3004

3005

3006

3007

3008

3009

3010

3011

3012

3013

3014

3015

3016

3017

3018

3019

3020

3021

3022

3023

3024

accumulated and is unused by employeesL may, in accordance Hith

guidelines ',,'hich shall be established by the Department of

~4anagement Services, adopt rules establishing for the

establishment of a plan that allows allo\iing participating

employees to pool and use sick leave and allo',,'ing any sick leave

thus pooled to be used by any participating employee Hho has

used all of the sick leave that has been personally accrued by

him or her. Although not limited to the folloHing, Such rules

must shall provide, but need not be limited to:

(1) Minimum eligibility criteria That employees shall be

eligible for participation in the sick leave pool after 1 year

of employment vvith the state or agency of the state; provided

that such employee has accrued a minimum amount of unused sick

leave, \ihich minimum shall be established by rule.

(2) That participation in the sick leave pool is shall, at

all times, be voluntary on the part of the employees.

(3) That any sick leave pooled shall be removed from the

personally accumulated sick leave balance of the employee

contributing such leave.

(4) That any sick leave in the pool which leave is used by

a participating employee is shall be used only for the

employee's personal illness, accident, or injury.

(5) That a participating employee may shall not Be

eligible to use sick leave accumulated in the pool until all of

his or her personally accrued sick, annual, and compensatory

leave and personal day have flfrfr been used.

(6) The A maximum number of hours etty& of sick leave in

the pool which anyone employee may use.

Page 108 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3025

3026

3027

3028

3029

3030

3031

3032

3033

3034

3035

3036

3037

3038

3039

3040

3041

3042

3043

3044

3045

3046

3047

3048

3049

3050

3051

3052

(7) That a participating employee who uses sick leave from

the pool is shall not Be required to recontribute such sick

leave to the pool, except as otherwise provided in this section.

(8) That an employee who cancels his or her membership in

the sick leave pool may shall not be eligible to withdraw the

hours ~ of sick leave contributed by that employee to the

pool.

(9) That an employee who moves transfers from ~ eRe

position in one agency state governffient to ~ another position in

another agency state governffient may transfer from one pool to

another if the eligibility criteria of the pools are cOffiParable

eT the administrators of the pools have agreed on the a forffiula

~ transfer of credits.

(10) That alleged abuse of the use of the sick leave pool

shall be investigated, and, on a finding of wrongdoing, the

employee must shall repay all of the sick leave credits drawn

from the sick leave pool and is shall be subject to such other

disciplinary action as is determined by the agency head.

(11) That sick leave credits may be drawn from the sick

leave pool by a part-time employee on a pro rata basis.

Section 56. Section 110.119, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.915, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.915 110.119 Administrative leave for military-service

connected ree1{affiination or treatffient with respect to service

connected disability.-

+±+ An AHy employee of the state who has been rated by the

United States Department of Veterans Affairs or its predecessor

Page 109 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3053

3054

3055

3056

3057

3058

.3059

3060

3061

3062

3063

3064

3065

3066

3067

3068

3069

3070

3071

3072

3073

3074

3075

3076

3077

3078

3079

3080

to have incurred a service-connected disability and has been

scheduled by the United States Department of Veterans Affairs to

be reexamined or treated for the disability shall be granted

administrative leave for such reexamination or treatment without

loss of payor benefits. However, such In no event shall the

paid leave may not under this section exceed 48 hours per ~

calendar days a year.

(2) The department may adopt any rule necessary to carry

out the purpose of this section.

Section 57. Section 110.120, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.916, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.916 110.120 Administrative leave for disaster service

volunteers.-

(1) SHORT TITLE .-This section shall be lmo'dn and may be

cited as the "Florida Disaster Volunteer Leave Act."

(2) DEFINITIONS.-As used in this section, the following

terms shall apply:

(a) "State agency" means any official, officer,

commission, board, authority, council, committee, or department

of the executive branch of state government.

(b) "Disaster" includes disasters designated at level II

and above in the American National Red Cross regulations and

procedures.

(3) LEAVE OF ABSENCE.-An employee of a state agency who is

a certified disaster service volunteer of the American Red Cross

may be granted a leave of absence with pay for up to not more

~ 15 working days in any 12-month period to participate in

Page 110 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3081

3082

3083

3084

3085

3086

3087

3088

3089

3090

3091

3092

3093

3094

3095

3096

3097

3098

3099

3100

3101

3102

3103

3104

3105

3106

3107

3108

specialized disaster relief services for the American Red Cross.

Such leave of absence may be granted upon the request of the

American Red Cross and upon the approval of the employer

employee's employing ageney. An employee granted leave under

this section may shall not be deemed to be an employee of the

state for purposes of workers' compensation. Leave under this

section ~ may be granted only for services related to a

disaster occurring within the boundaries of the State of

Florida, except that, with the approval of the Governor and

Cabinet, leave may be granted for services in response to a

disaster occurring within the boundaries of the United States.

Section 58. Section 110.1091, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.917, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.917 110.1091 Employee assistance programs; public

records exemption.-

(1) ~ An employing state agency may provide a counseling,

therapeutic, or other professional treatment program to assist a

~ state employee who has a behavioral disorder, medical

disorder, or substance abuse problem or who has an emotional

difficulty that affects the employee's job performance. The Eaeh

employing state agency may designate community diagnostic and

referral resources as necessary to implement the provisions of

this subsection.

(2) A state employee's personal identifying information

contained in records held by ~ an employing state agency

relating to an employee's participation in an employee

assistance program is confidential and exempt from ~

Page 111 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3109

3110

3111

3112

3113

3114

.3115

3116

3117

3118

3119

3120

3121

3122

3123

3124

3125

3126

3127

3128

3129

3130

3131

3132

3133

3134

3135

3136

provisions of s. 119.07(1) and s. 24(a), Art. I of the State

Constitution.

Section 59. Section 110.151, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.918, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.918 110.151 State offieers' and employees' Child care

services.-

(1) A state agency may establish The Department of

Hanagement Serviees shall approve, administer, and coordinate

child care services for state officers' and employees' children

or dependents. Duties shall include, but not be limited to,

reviewing and approving requests from state agencies for child

care services] providing technical assistance on child care

program startup and operation} and assisting other agencies in

conducting needs assessments, designing centers, and selecting

service providers. Primary emphasis for child care services

shall be given to children who are not subject to compulsory

school attendance pursuant to part II of chapter 1003, and, to

the extent possible, emphasis shall be placed on child care for

children aged 2 and under.

(2) Child care programs may be located in state-owned

office buildings, educational facilities and institutions,

custodial facilities and institutions, and, with the consent of

the President of the Senate and the Speaker of the House of

Representatives, 4ft buildings or spaces used for legislative

activities. In addition, centers may be located in privately

owned buildings conveniently located to the place of employment

of those officers and employees to be served by the centers. If

Page 112 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3137

3138

3139

3140

3141

3142

3143

3144

3145

3146

3147

3148

3149

3150

3151

3152

3153

3154

3155

3156

3157

3158

3159

3160

3161

3162

3163

3164

a child care program is located in a state-owned office

building, educational facility or institution, or custodial

facility or institution, or in a privately owned building leased

by the state, a portion of the service provider's rental fees

for child care space may be waived by the sponsoring agency in

accordance with the rules of the department's Facilities Program

Department of Hanagement Serviees. Additionally, the sponsoring

state agency may be responsible for the maintenance, utilities,

and other operating costs associated with the child care center.

(3) Except as otherwise provided in this section, the cost

of child care services shall be offset by fees charged to

employees who use the child care services. Requests for

proposals may provide for a sliding fee schedule based on, Hith

fees charged on the basis of the employee's household income.

(4) The provider of proposed child care services shall be

selected by competitive contract. Requests for proposals shall

be developed ;vith the assistance of, and subject to the approval

of, the Department of Hanagement Services. Management of the

contract with the service provider is shall be the

responsibility of the sponsoring state agency.

(5) An operator selected to provide services must comply

with all state and local standards for the licensure and

operation of child care facilities, maintain adequate liability

insurance coverage, and assume financial and legal

responsibility for the operation of the program. Neither The

operator of and fief any personnel employed by or at a child care

facility may not shall be deemed to be employees of the state.

However, the sponsoring state agency may be responsible for the

Page 113 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3165

3166

3167

3168

3169

3170

.3171

3172

3173

3174

3175

3176

3177

3178

3179

3180

3181

3182

3183

3184

3185

3186

3187

3188

3189

3190

3191

3192

operation of the child care center if ~:

(a) A second request for proposals fails to procure a

qualified service provider; or

(b) The service provider's contract is canceled and

attempts to procure another qualified service provider are

unsuccessful-r

and plans for direet operation are approved by the Department of

Hanagement SePJiees.

(6) In the areas where the state has an insufficient

number of employees to justify a worksite center, a state agency

may join in a consortium arrangement using utiliEing available

state facilities with not-for-profit corporations or other

public employers to provide child care services to~ public

employees and employees of private sector employers. The

consortium agreement must first address the unmet child care

needs of the children of the public employees whose employers

are members of the consortiumT and then address the child care

needs of private-sector private seotor employees.

(7) The Department of Hanagement SePJioes may adopt any

rules neoessary to aohieve the purposes of this seotion.

Section 60. Section 110.181, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.919, Florida Statutes,

and paragraph (b) of subsection (1) and paragraphs (d) and (e)

of subsection (2) of that section are amended to read:

112.919 110.181 Florida State Employees' Charitable

Campaign.-

(1) CREATION AND ORGANIZATION OF CAMPAIGN.

Page 114 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

3193

3194

3195

3196

3197

3198

3199

3200

3201

3202

3203

3204

3205

3206

3207

3208

3209

3210

3211

3212

3213

3214

3215

3216

3217

3218

3219

3220

CS/HB 1261 2012

(b) State officers' and employees' contributions toward

the Florida State Employees' Charitable Campaign must be

entirely voluntary. State officers and employees must designate

a charitable organization to receive such contributions.

(2) SELECTION OF FISCAL AGENTS; COST.-

(d) A loeal steering eommittee shall be established in

eaeh fiseal agent area to assist in eondueting the eampaign and

to direet the distribution of undesignated funds remaining after

partial distribution pursuant to paragraph (e). The eommittee

shall be eomposed of state employees seleeted by the fiseal

agent from among reeommendations provided by interested

partieipating organisations, if any, and approved by the

Statmdde Steering Coffiftlittee.

(e) Partieipating eharitable organisations that provide

direet serviees in a loeal fiseal agent's area shall reeeive the

same pereentage of undesignated funds as the pereentage of

designated funds they reeeive. The undesignated funds remaining

follovJing alloeation to these eharitable organisations shall be

distributed by the loeal steering eommittee.

Section 61. Section 110.1225, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.920, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.920 110.1225 Furloughs.-If Whefl a deficit is projected

by the Revenue Estimating Conferenee pursuant to s. 216.136(3),

in any state agency fund that supports salary and benefit

appropriations, the agency Administration Commission may, upon

the approval by the Governor or the Chief Justice of the Supreme

Court, propose a furlough plan to the Legislative Budget

Page 115 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3221

3222

3223

3224

3225

3226

.3227

3228

3229

3230

3231

3232

3233

3234

3235

3236

3237

3238

3239

3240

3241

3242

3243

3244

3245

3246

3247

3248

Commission Legislature, which must approve or disapprove such

plan. The plan must identify all affected positions and ensure

that all affected employees within a budget entity are subject

to the same reduction of hours for the same number of pay

periods with a commensurate reduction in pay. If authorized by

the Legislature as a cost-savings measure to address anticipated

short-term shortfalls to funds that support salary and benefit

appropriations for a specified fiscal year, an agency may also

impose furloughs as directed by the Legislature in the General

Appropriations Act. For the purposes of this section, the term

"furlough" means a temporary reduction in the regular hours of

employment administered as leave without pay.

Section 62. Section 110.1155, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.921, Florida Statutes.

Section 63. Section 110.191, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.922, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.922 110.191 State employee leasing.-

(1) If In situations ''''here the Legislature has expressly

authorized a ~ state~ agency, or the judicial branch as

defined in s. 110.107 to lease employees, the Executive Office

of the Governor for the executive branch or the Chief Justice

for the judicial branch may authorize any of the following

actions related to such state employee leasing activities,

provided that the direct cost of such actions is to be paid or

reimbursed within 30 days after payment by the entity or person

to whom the employees are leased:

(a) Creation of Create a separate budget entity from which

Page 116 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3249

3250

3251

3252

3253

3254

3255

3256

3257

3258

3259

3260

3261

3262

3263

3264

3265

3266

3267

3268

3269

3270

3271

3272

3273

3274

3275

3276

leased employees are shall be paid and the transfer of the

positions authorized to be leased to that budget entity.

(b) Provide Increases in the operating budget entity.

(c) AuthoriEed Lump-sum salary bonuses to leased

employees~T However, any lump-sum salary bonus above the

automatic salary increases which may be contained in the General

Appropriations Act must be funded from private sources.

(d) Approve Increases in salary rate for positions that

vvhich are leased~T However, any salary rate above the automatic

salary increases which may be contained in the General

Appropriations Act must be funded from private sources.

(e) The waiver of Waive any requirement for automatic

salary increases which may be contained in the General

Appropriations Act.

(2) Positions that ""hich are in the Senior Management

Service System or the Selected Exempt Service System on the day

before the state employee lease agreement takes effect shall

remain in the respective system if the duties performed by the

position during the assignment of the state employee lease

agreement are comparable as determined by the department. Those

senior management service system or selected exempt service

system positions that 'dhich are not determined comparable by the

departmentL and positions that Hhich are in other pay plans on

the day before the lease agreement takes effectL shall have the

same salaries and benefits provided to employees of the Office

of the Governor pursuant to s. 110.205(2) (h)2. 110.205(2) (1)2.

Section 64. Section 110.1082, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.923, Florida Statutes,

Page 117 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

CS/HB 1261 2012

and amended to read:

112.923 110.1082 Telephone voice mail systems and

telephone menu options systems.-

(1) A Ne state employee may not use shall utiliEe a voice

mail system when the employee is at his or her regularly

assigned work station where his or her telephone is functional

and available for use, unless:

(a) The telephone deviee is in use, and/or;

(b) The Gueh voice mail system alerts the caller to, and

provides the caller with access tOL a nonelectronic attendant;

or

(c) The Gueh voice mail system automatically transfers the

caller to a nonelectronic attendant.

(2) Telephone menu options systems used by state agencies

must, departments, or other state government units ~iill alert

the caller to, and provide the caller with access to, a

nonelectronic attendant.

(3) Agency heads shall w4±± ensure compliance with ~

provisions of this section.

Section 65. Section 110.1165, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.924, Florida Statutes,

and subsections (1) and (2) of that section are amended to read:

112.924 110.1165 Executive branch personnel errors;

limitation of actions for compensation.-

(1) An agency of the executive branch, including the State

University System, shall establish procedures for the receipt,

consideration, and disposition of a claim regarding payor

benefits brought by an employee if the \,'hen that employee is

Page 118 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.

3277

3278

3279

3280

3281

3282

.3283

3284

3285

3286

3287

3288

3289,

3290

3291

3292

3293

3294

3295

3296

3297

3298

3299

3300

3301

3302

3303

3304

hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3305

3306

3307

3308

3309

3310

3311

3312

3313

3314

3315

3316

3317

3318

3319

3320

3321

3322

3323

3324

3325

3326

3327

3328

3329

3330

3331

3332

damaged as a result of being provided with erroneous written

information by the employing agency regarding his or her payor

benefitsT and the employee detrimentally relies upon such

written information. In order to qualify for ~ relief provided

by this seetion, the employee's reliance on the representation

must have been reasonable and based efl±y upon only the written

representations made by those persons authorized by the agency

head to make such representations. Furthermore, The erroneous

calculation and payment of an employee's salary, wages, or

benefits is not among the written representations that VJhich

w±±± trigger relief under this section.

(2) An agency of the executive branch, including the State

University System, may is authorized to take appropriate frU€fi

action as may be appropriate to provide a remedy for an employee

concerning his or her claim regarding detrimental reliance on

erroneous written information provided by the employing agency

relating to pay and benefits if, provided such remedy is within

the purview of the agency's authority. The agency may not has no

authority Hhatsoever to modify the state retirement system or

the state insurance program. Any monetary remedy afforded by the

agency must fall within the agency's budgetary authority. Any

person dissatisfied with the outcome of this process may file

either a grievance pursuant to the agency's internal grievance

process or an appeal to the Division of Administrative Hearings

pursuant to chapter 120, but not both.

Section 66. Section 110.113, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.925, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

Page 119 of 203

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3333

3334

3335

3336

3337

3338

.3339

3340

3341

3342

3343

3344

3345

3346

3347

3348

3349

3350

3351

3352

3353

3354

3355

3356

3357

3358

3359

3360

112.925 110.113 Pay periods for state officers and

employees; salary payments by direct deposit.-

(1) The normal pay period for salaries of state officers

and employees shall be 1 month. ~he Department of Financial

Services shall issue either monthly or biweekly salary payments

to state officers and employees by state ~larrants or by direct

deposit pursuant to s. 17.076 or make semimonthly salary

payments by direct deposit pursuant to s. 17.076, as requested

by each state employment system and the head of each state

agency and approved by the EJfecutive Office of the Governor and

~ Department of Financial Services.

(2) As a condition of employment, a person appointed to a

position in state employee must government is required to

participate in the direct deposit program pursuant to s. 17.076.

An employee may request an exemption from the provisions of this

subsection if the ~lhen such employee can demonstrate a hardship

or if the h'hen such omployee is in an other-personal-services

position.

Section 67. Section 110.114, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.926, Florida Statutes.

Section 68. Section 112.927, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.927 Human resource information system.-The department

may contract with other agencies or state governmental entities

outside the State Personnel System to establish and maintain

positions and use the human resource information system

established under s. 110.116 for its human resource

functionality as well as benefits administration. The use and

Page 120 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3361

3362

3363

3364

3365

3366

3367

3368

3369

3370

3371

3372

3373

3374

3375

3376

3377

3378

3379

3380

3381

3382

3383

3384

3385

3386

3387

3388

operation of the human resource information system shall be

based upon the design rules set forth by the department, and

such agencies and state governmental entities may be required to

conform their respective human resource business rules and

practices to the business rules and practices existing within

the human resource information system in order to minimize

additional system customization and to maximize system

efficiencies. Payment for usage shall be in accordance with s.

110.125(2) .

Section 69. Section 110.1127, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.928, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.928 110.1127 Employee background screening and

investigations security checks.-

(1) Except as provided in subsection (2), each state

agency shall designate those positions that, based on the

position duties, require security background screening. All

persons and employees in such positions must undergo employment

screening in accordance with chapter 435, using level 1

screening standards, as a condition of employment and continued

employment.

~+±+ Each state employing agency shall designate those

employee positions that, because of the special trust or

responsibility or sensitive location, require security

background investigations. All persons and employees in such

positions must undergo employment screening in accordance with

chapter 435, using level 2 screening standards of those

positions, require that persons occupying those positions be

Page 121 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3389

3390

3391

3392

3393

3394

.3395

3396

3397

3398

3399

3400

3401

3402

3403

3404

3405

3406

3407

3408

3409

3410

3411

3412

3413

3414

3415

3416

subject to a security background check, including

fingerprinting, as a condition of employment and continued

employment.

~(a) All positions within the Division of Treasury of

the Department of Financial Services are deemed to be positions

of special trust or responsibility. Individuals seeking or

holding such positions, and a person may be disqualified for

employment in any such position by reason of:

1. The conviction or prior conviction of a crime that

vvhich is reasonably related to the nature of the position sought

or held by the individual; or

2. The entering of a plea of nolo contendereL orT when a

jury verdict of guilty is rendered but adjudication of guilt is

withheld, with respect to a crime that vvhich is reasonably

related to the nature of the position sought or held by the

individual.

(b) All employees of the division shall be required to

undergo security background investigations, including

fingerprinting, as a condition of employment and continued

employment.

ill (3) (a) All positions in programs providing care to

children, the developmentally disabled, or vulnerable adults for

15 hours or more per week; all permanent and temporary employee

positions of the central abuse hotline; and all persons working

under contract who have access to abuse records are deemed to be

persons and positions of special trust or responsibility, and

require employment screening pursuant to chapter 435, using the

level 2 standards set forth in that chapter.

Page 122 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3417

3418

3419

3420

3421

3422

3423

3424

3425

3426

3427

3428

3429

3430

3431

3432

3433

3434

3435

3436

3437

3438

3439

3440

3441

3442

3443

3444

~+et The employing agency may grant exemptions from

disqualification from working with children, the developmentally

disabled, or vulnerable adults as provided in s. 435.07.

(c) All persons and employees in such positions of trust

or responsibility shall be required to undergo security

background investigations as a condition of emploJ'fflent and

continued emplol~ent. For the purposes of this subsection,

security background investigations shall be conducted as

provided in chapter 435, using the level 2 standards for

screening set forth in that chapter.

~+e+ It is a misdemeanor of the first degree, punishable

as provided in s. 775.082 or s. 775.083, for any person

willfully, knowingly, or intentionally to:

a.~ Fail, by false statement, misrepresentation,

impersonation, or other fraudulent means, to disclose in any

application for voluntary or paid employment a material fact

used in making a determination as to such person's

qualifications for a position of special trust;

b.~ Use records information contained in records for

purposes other than background screening or investigation for

employmentL or release such records information to other persons

for purposes other than preemployment screening or investigation

for emploJ'fflent.

~~ It is a felony of the third degree, punishable as

provided in s. 775.082, s. 775.083, or s. 775.084, for any

person willfully, knowingly, or intentionally to use juvenile

records information for any purposes other than those specified

in this section or to release such information to other persons

Page 123 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3445

3446

3447

3448

3449

3450

.3451

3452

3453

3454

3455

3456

3457

3458

3459

3460

3461

3462

3463

3464

3465

3466

3467

3468

3469

3470

3471

3472

for purposes other than those specified in this section.

J1l+4t Any person who is required to undergo such a

security background screening or investigation and who refuses

to cooperate in such screening or investigation or refuses to

submit fingerprints shall be disqualified for employment in such

position or, if employed, shall be dismissed.

l!l(5) Such Background screening and investigations shall

be conducted at the expense of the employing agency. If~

fingerprinting is required, the fingerprints of the effiployee or

applicant for emplol~ent shall be taken by the employing agency

or by an authorized law enforcement officerL ana submitted to

the Department of Law Enforcement for processingL andL-i!

forwarding, ',,'hen requested by the employing agency, forwarded to

the United States Department of Justice for processing. The

employing agency shall reimburse the Department of Law

Enforcement for any costs incurred for by it in the processing

~ the fingerprints.

Section 70. Section 110.117, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.929, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.929 110.117 Paid holidays and personal day.-

(1) The following holidays are shall be paid holidays

observed by all state branches and agencies:

(a) New Year's Day.

(b) Birthday of Martin Luther King, Jr., third Monday in

January.

(c) Memorial Day.

(d) Independence Day.

Page 124 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3473

3474

3475

3476

3477

3478

3479

3480

3481

3482

3483

3484

3485

3486

3487

3488

3489

3490

3491

3492

3493

3494

3495

3496

3497

3498

3499

3500

(e) Labor Day.

(f) Veterans' Day, November 11.

(g) Thanksgiving Day.

(h) Friday after Thanksgiving.

(i) Christmas Day.

(j) If any of these holidays falls on Saturday, the

preceding Friday shall be observed as a holiday. If any of these

holidays falls on Sunday, the following Monday shall be observed

as a holiday.

(2) The Governor may declare, if wfteR appropriate, a state

day of mourning in observance of the death of a person in

recognition of service rendered to the state or nation.

(3) Each full-time employee in an authorized and

established position is entitled to one personal day holiday

each year. Each part-time employee is entitled to a personal day

holiday each yearL which shall be calculated based on the full

time equivalency of the position proportionately to the personal

holiday alloHed to a full time employee. The~ personal day

holiday shall be credited to eligible employees on July 1 of

each year and must ~ be taken £y prior to June 30 of the

following year or forfeited. The personal day must be taken as a

whole day and may not be used incrementally. Members of the

teaching and research faculty of the State University System and

administrative and professional positions exempted under s.

110.205 (2) (d) are not eligible for this benefit.

(4) Other-personal-services employees are not eligible for

paid holidays or a personal day.

Section 71. Section 112.930, Florida Statutes, is created

Page 125 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3501

3502

3503

3504

3505

3506

3507

3508

3509

3510

3511

3512

3513

3514

3515

3516

3517

3518

3519

3520

3521

3522

3523

3524

3525

3526

3527

3528

to read:

112.930 Telework program.-

(1) For the purposes of this section, the term "telework"

means an alternative work arrangement that allows an employee to

conduct all or some of his or her work away from the official

worksite during all or a portion of the employee's established

work hours on a regular basis. The term does not include, and a

telework agreement is not required for:

(a) Performance of required work duties away from the

official worksite and outside of established work hours on an

occasional basis and sporadically working away from the official

worksite during all or some portion of the established work

hours. These arrangements may be used by an agency to

accommodate extenuating circumstances by allowing an employee to

maintain productivity away from the official worksite.

(b) Duties and responsibilities that, by their nature, are

performed routinely in the field away from the official

worksite.

(2) An agency may establish telework as an integral part

of the normal business operations of the agency and require that

specific work be performed through telework arrangements.

Telework may also be used as part of an agency's continuity of

operations plan where appropriate. An agency shall provide

telework as an optional alternative work arrangement to support

employee needs and implement telework arrangements where deemed

appropriate.

(3) Each agency shall review all established positions and

designate those positions that the agency deems appropriate for

Page 126 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3529

3530

3531

3532

3533

3534

3535

3536

3537

3538

3539

3540

3541

3542

3543

3544

3545

3546

3547

3548

3549

3550

3551

3552

3553

3554

3555

3556

telework. The agency shall ensure this information is current

and available to its employees and managers. In addition, each

agency shall identify all currently participating employees and

their respective positions in the human resource information

system used by that agency.

(4) Agencies that have a telework program shall develop an

agency plan that addresses the agency's telework policies and

procedures. At a minimum, an agency telework plan must:

(a) Establish criteria for evaluating the ability of

employees to satisfactorily perform in a telework arrangement.

(b) Establish performance standards that ensure that

employees participating in the program maintain satisfactory

performance levels.

(c) Ensure teleworkers are subject to the same rules and

disciplinary actions as other employees.

(d) Establish the reasonable conditions that the agency

plans to impose in order to ensure appropriate use and

maintenance of any equipment issued by the agency.

(e) Establish a system for monitoring the productivity of

teleworking employees which ensures that the work output remains

at a satisfactory level and that the duties and responsibilities

of the position remain suitable for a telework arrangement.

(f) Establish the appropriate physical and electronic

information security controls to be maintained by a teleworker

at the telework site.

(g) Prohibit employees engaged in telework from conducting

face-to-face state business at their residence.

(5) Agencies that approve employees to use telework as an

Page 127 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3557

3558

3559

3560

3561

3562

.3563

3564

3565

3566

3567

3568

3569

3570

3571

3572

3573

3574

3575

3576

3577

3578

3579

3580

3581

3582

3583

3584

optional alternative work arrangement shall:

(a) Require a written agreement between the teleworker and

the agency which specifies the terms and conditions of the

telework arrangement and provides for the termination of an

employee's participation in the program if the employee's

continued participation is not in the best interest of the

agency.

(b) Ensure that participation by an employee is voluntary

and that the employee may discontinue participation after

providing reasonable notice to the agency.

(6) Agencies that require certain employees to telework as

a part of normal business operations shall:

(a) Include the requirement to telework and the associated

terms and conditions as part of the position description,

specifying the minimum amount of telework time required.

(b) Provide at least 30 calendar days' written notice to

affected employees of intent to impose or remove a requirement

to telework.

(c) Provide at least 15 calendar days' written notice to

affected employees of intent to revise the terms and conditions

of their current telework arrangement.

(d) Provide equipment and supplies to an employee

necessary to carry out job functions from the telework site.

(e) Specify the telework requirement in any recruitment

activities.

(7) Agencies that have a telework program shall establish

and track performance measures that support telework program

analysis and report data annually to the department's Facilities

Page 128 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3585

3586

3587

3588

3589

3590

3591

3592

3593

3594

3595

3596

3597

3598

3599

3600

3601

3602

3603

3604

3605

3606

3607

3608

3609

3610

3611

3612

Program in accordance with s. 255.249(3) (d). Such measures must

include, but need not be limited to, those that quantify:

(a) Financial impacts associated with changes in office

space requirements resulting from the telework program. State

agencies operating in office space owned or managed by the

department shall consult the Facilities Program to ensure

consistency with the strategic leasing plan required under s.

255.249(3) (b).

(b) Energy consumption changes resulting from the telework

program.

(c) Greenhouse gas emission changes resulting from the

telework program.

(8) Agencies that have a telework program shall post the

agency telework plan and any pertinent supporting documents on

the agency website to allow access by employees and the public.

(9) Agencies may approve other-personal-services employees

to participate in telework programs.

(10) Each agency that is authorized to adopt rules

governing the terms and conditions of employment may adopt rules

necessary to administer this section.

Section 72. Section 112.931, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.931 Savings sharing program.-Each state agency that is

authorized to adopt rules governing the terms and conditions of

employment may adopt rules that prescribe procedures and promote

a savings sharing program for an individual or group of

employees who propose procedures or ideas that are adopted and

that result in eliminating or reducing state expenditures if

Page 129 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

3613

3614

3615

3616

3617

3618

3619

3620

3621

3622

3623

3624

3625

3626

3627

3628

3629

3630

3631

3632

3633

3634

3635

3636

3637

3638

3639

3640

such proposals are placed in effect and may be implemented under

current statutory authority.

(1) The agency head shall recommend employees individually

or by group for a monetary award that is directly related to the

cost savings realized. Each proposed award and the amount of the

award must be approved by the Legislative Budget Commission.

(2) Unless otherwise provided by law, all state agencies

may participate in the program. The Chief Justice may establish

a savings sharing program for employees of the judicial branch

within the parameters established under this section. The

program applies to all employees within the Civil Service and

the Selected Exempt Service and comparable employees within the

judicial branch.

(3) The department and the judicial branch shall annually

submit information to the President of the Senate and the

Speaker of the House of Representatives which outlines each

agency's level of participation in the program. At a minimum,

the information must include:

(a) The number of proposals made.

(b) The number of awards and amount of money awarded to

employees or groups for adopted proposals.

(c) The actual cost savings realized as a result of

implementing the proposals.

Section 73. Section 110.1156, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.932, Florida Statutes.

Section 74. Section 112.933, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.933 Penalties.-

Page 130 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3641

3642

3643

3644

3645

3646

3647

3648

3649

3650

3651

3652

3653

3654

3655

3656

3657

3658

3659

3660

3661

3662

3663

3664

3665

3666

3667

3668

(1) Any person who willfully violates any provision of

this part or any rules adopted pursuant to this part commits a

misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s.

775.082 or s. 775.083.

(2) Notwithstanding s. 112.011, any person who is

convicted of a misdemeanor under this part is ineligible for

appointment to or employment in a state position for 5 years. If

such person is an employee of the state, he or she must forfeit

his or her position.

(3) Imposition of the penalties provided in this section

may not be in lieu of any action that may be taken or penalties

that may be imposed pursuant to part III of this chapter.

Section 75. The Division of Statutory Revision is

requested to create part X of chapter 112, Florida Statutes,

consisting of ss. 112.940-112.952, Florida Statutes, to be

entitled "State Administered Benefits."

Section 76. Section 110.1227, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.940, Florida Statutes,

and paragraph (c) of subsection (1) of that section is amended

to read:

112.940 110.1227 Florida Employee Long-Term-Care Plan

Act.-

(1) The Legislature finds that state expenditures for

long-term-care services continue to increase at a rapid rate and

that the state faces increasing pressure in its efforts to meet

the long-term-care needs of the public.

(c) This section does not affect act in no way affects the

authority of the Department of Management Services Services'

Page 131 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3669

3670

3671

3672

3673

3674

.3675

3676

3677

3678

3679

3680

3681

3682

3683

3684

3685

3686

3687

3688

3689

3690

3691

3692

3693

3694

3695

3696

authority pursuant to s. 112.942 110.123.

Section 77. Section 110.1228, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.941, Florida Statutes,

and subsection (2) of that section is amended to read:

112.941 110.1228 Participation by small counties, small

municipalities, and district school boards located in small

counties.-

(2) The governing body of a small county or small

municipality or a district school board may apply for

participation in the state group health insurance program

authorized in s. 112.942 110.123 and the prescription drug

coverage program authorized by s. 112.946 110.12315 by

submitting an application along with a $500 nonrefundable fee to

the department.

Section 78. Section 110.123, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.942, Florida Statutes,

and paragraphs (f) and (h) of subsection (3) and paragraph (c)

of subsection (4) of that section are amended to read:

112.942 110.123 State group insurance program.

(3) STATE GROUP INSURANCE PROGRAM.-

(f) Except as provided for in subparagraph (h)2., the

state contribution toward the cost of any plan in the state

group insurance program shall be uniform with respect to all

state employees in a state collective bargaining unit

participating in the same coverage tier in the same plan. This

section does not prohibit the development of separate benefit

plans for officers and employees exempt from the Civil eareer

Service or the development of separate benefit plans for each

Page 132 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3697

3698

3699

3700

3701

3702

3703

3704

3705

3706

3707

3708

3709

3710

3711

3712

3713

3714

3715

3716

3717

3718

3719

3720

3721

3722

3723

3724

collective bargaining unit.

(h)l. In lieu of participating in the state group health

insurance plan, a person eligible to participate in the state

group insurance program may be authorized by department rules

adopted by the department, in lieu of participating in the state

group health insurance plan, to eJwrcise an option to elect

membership in a health maintenance organization (HMO) plan Hhich

4e under contract with the state in accordance with criteria

established by this section and adopted by said rules. The offer

of optional membership in an HMO a health maintenance

organization plan permitted by this paragraph may be limited or

conditioned by rule as may be necessary to meet the requirements

of state and federal laws.

2. The department shall contract with HMOs health

maintenance organizations seeking to participate in the state

group insurance program through a request for proposal or other

procurement process, as developed by the Department of

Management Services and determined to be appropriate.

a. The department shall establish a schedule of minimum

benefits for HMO health maintenance organization coverage which

includes, and that schedule shall include: physician services;

inpatient and outpatient hospital services; emergency medical

services, including out-of-area emergency coverage; diagnostic

laboratory and diagnostic and therapeutic radiologic services;

mental health, alcohol, and chemical dependency treatment

services meeting the minimum requirements of state and federal

law; skilled nursing facilities and services; prescription

drugs; age-based and gender-based wellness benefits; and other

Page 133 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3725

3726

3727

3728

3729

3730

.3731

3732

3733

3734

3735

3736

3737

3738

3739

3740

3741

3742

3743

3744

3745

3746

3747

3748

3749

3750

3751

3752

benefits as may be required by the department. Additional

services may be provided subject to the contract between the

department and the HMO. As used in this paragraph, the term

"age-based and gender-based wellness benefits" includes aerobic

exercise, education in alcohol and substance abuse prevention,

blood cholesterol screening, health risk appraisals, blood

pressure screening and education, nutrition education, program

planning, safety belt education, smoking cessation, stress

management, weight management, and women's health education.

b. The department may establish uniform deductibles,

copayments, coverage tiers, or coinsurance schedules for all

participating HMO plans.

c. The department may require detailed information from

each HMO health maintenanee organization participating in the

procurement process, including information pertaining to

organizational status, experience in providing prepaid health

benefits, accessibility of services, financial stability of the

plan, quality of management services, accreditation status,

quality of medical services, network access and adequacy,

performance measurement, ability to meet the department's

reporting requirements, and the actuarial basis of the proposed

rates and other data determined by the director to be necessary

for the evaluation and selection of HMO health maintenanee

organization plans and negotiation of appropriate rates for

these plans. Upon receipt of proposals by HMO health maintenanee

organization plans and the evaluation of those proposals, the

department may enter into negotiations with all of the plans or

a subset of the plans, as the department determines appropriate.

Page 134 of 203

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3753

3754

3755

3756

3757

3758

3759

3760

3761

3762

3763

3764

3765

3766

3767

3768

3769

3770

3771

3772

3773

3774

3775

3776

3777

3778

3779

3780

Hothing shall preclude The department may negotiate~

negotiating regional or statewide contracts with HMO health

maintenance organization plans if vJhen this lS cost-effective

and if when the department determines that the plan offers high

value to enrollees.

d. The department, may limit the number of HMOs that it

contracts with in each service area based on the nature of the

bids the department receives, the number of state employees in

the service area, or any unique geographical characteristics of

the service area. The department shall establish by rule service

areas throughout the state.

e. All persons participating in the state group insurance

program may be required to contribute toward towards a total

state group health premium that may vary depending upon the plan

and coverage tier selected by the enrollee and the level of

state contribution authorized by the Legislature.

3. The department may is authorized to negotiate and ~

contract with specialty psychiatric hospitals for mental health

benefits, on a regional basis, for alcohol, drug abuse, and

mental and nervous disorders. The department may establish,

Subject to the approval of the Legislature pursuant to

subsection (5), the department may establish afiY such regional

plan upon completion of an actuarial study to determine any

impact on plan benefits and premiums.

4. In addition to contracting pursuant to subparagraph 2.,

the department may enter into contract ',dth any HHO to

participate in the state group insurance program \lhieh:

a. Serves greater than 5,000 recipients on a prepaid basis

Page 135 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3781

3782

3783

3784

3785

3786

.3787

3788

3789

3790

3791

3792

3793

3794

3795

3796

3797

3798

3799

3800

3801

3802

3803

3804

3805

3806

3807

3808

under the Bedicaid program1

b. Does not currently meet the 25 percent non

Bedicare/non Bedicaid enrollment composition requirement

established by the Department of Health eJwluding participants

enrolled in the state group insurance program1

c. Beets the minimum benefit package and copayments and

deductibles contained in sub subparagraphs 2.a. and b.1

d. Is willing to participate in the state group insurance

program at a cost of premiums that is not greater than 95

percent of the cost of HBO premiums accepted by the department

in each service areal and

e. Beets the minimum surplus requirements of s. 641.225.

The department is authorized to contract with HBOs that meet the

requirements of sub subparagraphs a. d. prior to the open

enrollment period for state employees. The department is not

required to renCh' the contract '"ith the m40s as set forth in

this paragraph more than tvJice. Thereafter, the H~40s shall be

eligible to participate in the state group insurance program

only through the request for proposal or invitation to negotiate

process described in subparagraph 2.

4.~ All enrollees in a state group health insurance plan,

a TRICARE supplemental insurance plan, or an HMO any health

maintenance organization plan have the option of changing to

another any other health plan that is offered by the state

within an frftY open enrollment period designated by the

department. Open enrollment shall be held at least once each

calendar year.

Page 136 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3809

3810

3811

3812

3813

3814

3815

3816

3817

3818

3819

3820

3821

3822

3823

3824

3825

3826

3827

3828

3829

3830

3831

3832

3833

3834

3835

3836

5.~ If Wfiefi a contract between a treating provider and

the state-contracted HMO health maintenance organization is

terminated for any reason other than for cause, each party must

shall allow an eftY enrollee for whom treatment was active to

continue coverage and care when medically necessary, through

completion of treatment of a condition for which the enrollee

was receiving care at the time of the termination, until the

enrollee selects another treating provider, or until the next

open enrollment period offered, whichever is later longer, but

no later longer than 6 months after termination of the contract.

Each party to the terminated contract must shall allow an

enrollee who has initiated a course of prenatal care, regardless

of the trimester in which care was initiated, to continue care

and coverage until completion of postpartum care. This does not

prevent a provider from refusing to continue to provide care to

an enrollee who is abusive, noncompliant, or in arrears in

payments for services provided. For care continued under this

subparagraph, the program and the provider shall continue to be

bound by the terms of the terminated contract. Changes made

within 30 days before termination of a contract are effective

only if agreed to by both parties.

6.~ Any HMO participating in the state group insurance

program shall submit health care utilization and cost data to

the departmentT in such form and in such manner as the

department requires shall require, as a condition of

participating in the program. The department shall enter into

negotiations with its contracting HMOs to determine the nature

and scope of the data submission and the final requirements,

Page 137 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

3837

3838

3839

3840

3841

3842

.3843

3844

3845

3846

3847

3848

3849

3850

3851

3852

3853

3854

3855

3856

3857

3858

3859

3860

3861

3862

3863

3864

format, penalties associated with noncompliance, and timetables

for submission. These determinations shall be adopted by rule.

7.~ The department may establish and direct, with respect

to collective bargaining issues, a comprehensive package of

insurance benefits that may include supplemental health and life

coverage, dental care, long-term care, vision care, and other

benefits it determines necessary to enable state employees to

select from among benefit options that best suit their

individual and family needs.

a. Based upon a desired benefit package, the department

shall issue a request for proposal or invitation to negotiate

for health insurance providers interested in participating in

the state group insurance programr and the department shall

issue a request for proposal or invitation to negotiate for

insurance providers interested in participating in the non

health-related components of the state group insurance program.

Upon receipt of all proposals, the department may enter into

contract negotiations with insurance providers submitting bids

or negotiate a specially designed benefit package. Insurance

providers offering or providing supplemental coverage as of May

30, 1991, which qualify for pretax benefit treatment pursuant to

s. 125 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, with 5,500 or more

state employees currently enrolled may be included by the

department in the supplemental insurance benefit plan

established by the department without participating in a request

for proposal, submitting bids, negotiating contracts, or

negotiating a specially designed benefit package. These

contracts must shall provide state employees with the most cost-

Page 138 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3865

3866

3867

3868

3869

3870

3871

3872

3873

3874

3875

3876

3877

3878

3879

3880

3881

3882

3883

3884

3885

3886

3887

3888

3889

3890

3891

3892

effective and comprehensive coverage available; however, fie

state or agency funds may not shall be contributed toward the

cost of any part of the premium of such supplemental benefit

plans. With respect to dental coverage, the division shall

include in any solicitation or contract for any state group

dental program made after July 1, 2001, a comprehensive

indemni ty dental plan option that ',.'hieh offers enrollees a

completely unrestricted choice of dentists. If a dental plan is

endorsed, or in some manner recognized as the preferred product,

such plan must shall include a comprehensive indemnity dental

plan option that Hhieh provides enrollees with a completely

unrestricted choice of dentists.

b. Pursuant to the applicable provisions of s. 112.951

110.161, and s. 125 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, the

department shall enroll in the pretax benefit program those

state employees who voluntarily elect coverage in any of the

supplemental insurance benefit plans as provided by sub

subparagraph a.

c. This subparagraph does not Hothing herein contained

shall be construed to prohibit insurance providers from

continuing to provide or offer supplemental benefit coverage to

state employees as provided under existing agency plans.

(4) PAYMENT OF PREMIUMS; CONTRIBUTION BY STATE; LIMITATION

ON ACTIONS TO PAY AND COLLECT PREMIUMS.-

(c) During each policy or budget year, no state agency

shall contribute a greater dollar amount of the premium cost for

its officers or employees for any plan option under the state

group insurance program than any other agency for similar

Page 139 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3893

3894

3895

3896

3897

3898

.3899

3900

3901

3902

3903

3904

3905

3906

3907

3908

3909

3910

3911

3912

3913

3914

3915

3916

3917

3918

3919

3920

officers and employees, nor shall any greater dollar amount of

premium cost be made for employees in one state collective

bargaining unit than for those in any other state collective

bargaining unit. Nothing in this section prohibits the use of

different levels of state contributions for positions exempt

from Civil eareer Service.

Section 79. Section 110.12301, Florida Statutes is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.943, Florida Statutes,

and subsection (1) of that section is amended to read:

112.943 110.12301 Competitive procurement of postpayment

claims review services.-The Division of State Group Insurance is

directed to competitively procure:

(1) Postpayment claims review services for the state group

health insurance plans established pursuant to s. 112.942

110.123. Compensation under the contract shall be paid from

amounts identified as claim overpayments that are made by or on

behalf of the health plans and that are recovered by the vendor.

The vendor may retain that portion of the amount recovered as

provided in the contract. The contract must require the vendor

to maintain all necessary documentation supporting the amounts

recovered, retained, and remitted to the division; and

Section 80. Section 110.12302, Florida Statutes is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.944, Florida Statutes.

Section 81. Section 110.12312, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.945, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.945 110.12312 Open enrollment period for retirees.-On

or after July 1, 1997, the Department of Management Services

Page 140 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3921

3922

3923

3924

3925

3926

3927

3928

3929

3930

3931

3932

3933

3934

3935

3936

3937

3938

3939

3940

3941

3942

3943

3944

3945

3946

3947

3948

shall provide for an open enrollment period for retired state

employees who want to obtain health insurance coverage under ss.

112.942 and 112.946 110.123 and 110.12315. The options offered

during the open enrollment period must provide the same health

insurance coverage as the coverage provided to active employees

under the same premium payment conditions in effect for covered

retirees, including eligibility for health insurance subsidy

payments under s. 112.363. A person who separates from

employment subsequent to May 1, 1988, but whose date of

retirement occurs on or after August 1, 1995, is eligible as of

the first open enrollment period occurring after July 1, 1997,

with an effective date of January 1, 1998, as long as the

retiree's enrollment remains in effect.

Section 82. Section 110.12315, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.946, Florida Statutes.

Section 83. Section 110.1232, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.947, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.947 110.1232 Health insurance coverage for persons

retired under state-administered retirement systems before

January 1, 1976, and for spouses.-Notwithstanding any provisions

of law to the contrary, the Department of Management Services

shall provide health insurance coverage under the state group

insurance program for persons who retired before January 1,

1976, under any of the state-administered retirement systems and

who are not covered by social security and for the spouses and

surviving spouses of such retirees who are also not covered by

social security. Such health insurance coverage shall provide

Page 141 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3949

3950

3951

3952

3953

3954

3955

3956

3957

3958

3959

3960

3961

3962

3963

3964

3965

3966

3967

3968

3969

3970

3971

3972

3973

3974

3975

3976

the same benefits as provided to other retirees who are entitled

to participate under s. 112.942 110.123. The claims experience

of this group shall be commingled with the claims experience of

other members covered under s. 112.942 110.123.

Section 84. Section 110.1234, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.948, Florida Statutes.

Section 85. Section 110.1238, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.949, Florida Statues.

Section 86. Section 110.1239, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.950, Florida Statutes.

Section 87. Section 110.161, Florida Statutes, is

transferred and renumbered as section 112.951, Florida Statutes,

and paragraph (a) of subsection (6) of that section is amended

to read:

112.951 110.161 State employees; pretax benefits program.

(6) The Department of Management Services is authorized to

administer the pretax benefits program established for all

employees so that employees may receive benefits that are not

includable in gross income under the Internal Revenue Code of

1986. The pretax benefits program:

(a) Shall allow employee contributions to premiums for the

state group insurance program administered under s. 112.942

110.123 to be paid on a pretax basis unless an employee "elects

not to participate.

Section 88. Section ~12.952, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.952 Penalties.-

(1) Any person who willfully violates any provision of

Page 142 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

3977

3978

3979

3980

3981

3982

3983

3984

3985

3986

3987

3988

3989

3990

3991

3992

3993

3994

3995

3996

3997

3998

3999

4000

4001

4002

4003

4004

this part or any rules adopted pursuant to this part commits a

misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s.

775.082 or s. 775.083.

(2) Notwithstanding s. 112.011, any person who is

convicted of a misdemeanor under this part is ineligible for

appointment to or employment in a state position for 5 years

and, if an employee of the state, must forfeit his or her

position.

(3) Imposition of the penalties provided in this section

may not be in lieu of any action that may be taken or penalties

that may be imposed pursuant to part III of this chapter.

Section 89. The Division of Statutory Revision is

requested to renumber part IV of chapter 110, Florida Statutes,

as part XI of chapter 112, Florida Statutes, consisting of ss.

112.961-112.965, Florida Statutes, and to rename that part as

"State Volunteer Services."

Section 90. Section 110.501, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.961, Florida Statutes,

reordered, and amended to read:

112.961 110.501 Definitions.-As used in this part, the

term ~:

ill+±+ "Volunteer" means any person who, of his or her own

free will, provides goods or services, or conveys an interest in

or otherwise consents to the use of real property pursuant to

chapter 260, to any state department or agencYT or nonprofit

organization, with no monetary or material compensation. A

person registered and serving in Older American Volunteer

Programs authorized by the Domestic Volunteer Service Act of

Page 143 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4005 1973, as amended (Pub. L. No., 93-113), shall also be defined as

4006 a volunteer and shall incur no civil liability as provided by s.

4007 768.1355. A volunteer shall be eligible for payment of volunteer

4008 benefits as specified in Pub. L. No. 93-113, this section, and

4009 s. 430.204.

4010 (2) "Regular service volunteer" means any person engaged

4011 in specific voluntary service activities on an ongoing or

4012 continuous basis.

4013

4014

4015

4016

4017

4018

4019

4020

4021

4022

4023

4024

4025

4026

4027

4028

4029

4030

4031

4032

(3) "Occasional service volunteer" means any person Hho

offers to provide a one time or occasional voluntary service.

ill+4+- "Material donor" means any person who provides

funds, materials, employment, or opportunities for clients of

state departments or agencies, without monetary or material

compensation.

(2) "State agency" or "agency" means any official,

officer, commission, board, authority, council, committee, or

department of the executive branch or judicial branch of state

government as defined in chapter 216, unless otherwise exempted

by law.

Section 91. Section 110.502, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.962, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.962 110.502 Scope of act; status of volunteers.-

(1) Every state department or state agency may, with the

approval of the agency hea?, through the head of the department

or agency, secretary of the department, or executive director of

the department, is authorized to recruit, train, and accept,

without regard to the requirements of the Civil State Career

Page 144 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4033

4034

4035

4036

4037

4038

4039

4040

4041

4042

4043

4044

4045

4046

4047

4048

4049

4050

4051

4052

4053

4054

4055

4056

4057

4058

4059

4060

Service System as set forth in part II of this ehapter, the

services of volunteers, ineluding regular service volunteers,

occasional service volunteers, or material donorsT to assist in

programs administered by the department or agency.

(2) Volunteers recruited, trained, or accepted by ~ any

state department or agency are shall not ee subject to any

provisions of law relating to state employment, ~ to any

collective bargaining agreement between the state and an any

employees' association or union, or to any laws relating to

hours of work, rates of compensation, leave time, and employee

benefits, except those consistent with s. 112.964 110.504.

However, all volunteers shall comply with applicable department

Bf agency rules. Volunteers may be required by the agency to

submit to security background screenings.

(3) Every state department or agency using utili~ing the

services of volunteers is hereby authorized to provide auefi

incidental reimbursement or benefit consistent with s. 112.964

the provisions of s. 110.504, including transportation costs,

lodging, ana subsistence, identification and safety apparel,

recognition, and other accommodations as the department or

agency deems necessary to assist, recognize, reward, or

encourage volunteers in performing their functions. An Ne

department or agency may not shall expend or authorize an

expendi ture greater than therefor in mwess of the amount

provided for to the department or agency by appropriation in any

fiscal year.

(4) Persons working with state agencies pursuant to this

part are shall be considered ae unpaid independent volunteers

Page 145 of 203

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4061

4062

4063

4064

4065

4066

.4067

4068

4069

4070

4071

4072

4073

4074

4075

4076

4077

4078

4079

4080

4081

4082

4083

4084

4085

4086

4087

4088

and are shall not ee entitled to unemployment compensation.

Section 92. Section 110.503, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.963, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.963 110.503 Responsibilities of state departments and

agencies.-Each state department or agency using utilizing the

services of volunteers shall take such actions as are:

(1) Take sueh aetions as are Necessary and appropriate to

develop meaningful opportunities for volunteers involved in

state-administered programs.

(2) Necessary to ensure that volunteers are provided with

the state agency's policies and procedures applicable to their

volunteer activities. Comply ~vith the uniform rules adopted by

the Department of ~4anagement Serviees governing the reeruitment,

sereening, training, responsibility, use, and supervision of

volunteers.

(3) Take sueh aetions as are Necessary to ensure that

volunteers understand their duties and responsibilities.

(4) Necessary to ensure that a state employee whose

primary employment consists of duties and responsibilities

similar to those associated with volunteer activities is not

considered for volunteer work if such work would require payment

for overtime in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.

(4) Take sueh aetions as are neeessary and appropriate to

ensure a reeeptive elimate for eitizen volunteers.

(5) Provide for the recognition of volunteera \vho have

offered continuous and outstanding service to state administered

programs. Each department or agency using the services of

Page 146 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4089

4090

4091

4092

4093

4094

4095

4096

4097

4098

4099

4100

4101

4102

4103

4104

4105

4106

4107

4108

4109

4110

4111

4112

4113

4114

4115

4116

volunteers is authoriEed to incur expenditures not to exceed

$100 each plus applicable tmws for suitable framed

certificates, plaques, or other tokens of recognition to honor,

rmmrd, or encourage volunteers for their service.

(6) ReeogniEe prior volunteer service as partial

fulfillment of state employment requirements for training and

e}{perienee pursuant to rules adopted by the Department of

Management Services.

Section 93. Section 110.504, Florida Statutes, is

transferred, renumbered as section 112.964, Florida Statutes,

and amended to read:

112.964 110.504 Volunteer benefits.-

(1) Meals may be furnished without charge to regular

service volunteers serving state agencies if departments,

provided the scheduled assignment extends over an established

meal period, and to occasional service volunteers at the

discretion of the department head. An agency may not Ne

department shall expend or authorize any expenditure greater

than in e}{eess of the amount provided for by appropriation in

any fiscal year.

(2) Lodging, if available, may be furnished temporarily,

in case of an agency a department emergency, at no charge to

regular service volunteers.

(3) Transportation reimbursement may be furnished to those

volunteers whose presence is determined to be necessary to the

agency department. Volunteers may use utiliEe state vehicles in

the performance of agency-related department related duties. An

agency may not Ho department shall expend or authorize an

Page 147 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4117

4118

4119

4120

4121

4122

.4123

4124

4125

4126

4127

4128

4129

4130

4131

4132

4133

4134

4135

4136

4137

4138

4139

4140

4141

4142

4143

4144

expenditure greater than in eJ{eess of the amount appropriated in

any fiscal year.

(4) Volunteers are shall be covered by state liability

protection in accordance with the definition of a volunteer and

the provisions of s. 768.28.

(5) Volunteers are shall be covered by workers'

compensation in accordance with chapter 440 .

(6) Incidental recognition benefits or incidental

nonmonetary awards may be furnished to volunteers serving in

state agencies departments to award, recognize, or encourage

volunteers for their service. The awards may not cost more than

$150 in eJwess of $100 each plus applicable taxes.

(7) Volunteers, including volunteers receiving a stipend

as provided by the Domestic Service Volunteer Act of 1973, as

amendedL +Pub. L. No. 93-113+, are shall be covered by s.

768.1355, the Florida Volunteer Protection Act.

Section 94. Section 112.965, Florida Statutes, is created

to read:

112.965 Penalties.-

(1) Any person who willfully violates any provision of

this part or any rules adopted pursuant to this part commits a

misdemeanor of the second degree, punishable as provided in s.

775.082 or s. 775.083.

(2) Notwithstanding s. 112.011, any person who is

convicted of a misdemeanor under this part is ineligible for

appointment to or employment in a state position for 5 years

and, if an employee of the state, must forfeit his or her

position.

Page 148 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

4145

4146

4147

4148

4149

4150

4151

4152

4153

4154

4155

4156

4157

4158

4159

4160

4161

4162

4163

4164

4165

4166

4167

4168

4169

4170

4171

4172

CS/HB 1261 2012

(3) Imposition of the penalties provided in this section

may not be in lieu of any action that may be taken or penalties

that may be imposed pursuant to part III of this chapter.

Section 95. Sections 110.115, 110.118, 110.124, 110.129,

110.1521, 110.1522, 110.1523, 110.171, 110.2035, 110.21,

110.406, 110.603, 110.604, and 110.606, Florida Statutes, are

repealed.

Section 96. Paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of section

11.13, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

11.13 Compensation of members.-

(1 )

(b) On Effective July 1, 1986, and each July 1 of each

year thereafter, the annual salaries of members of the Senate

and House of Representatives shall be adjusted by the average

percentage increase in the salaries of civil state career

service employees for the fiscal year just concluded. The

Appropriations Committee of each house shall certify to the

Office of Legislative Services the average percentage increase

in the salaries of civil state career service employees before

July 1 of each year. The Office of Legislative Services shall,

as of July 1 of each year, determine the adjusted annual

salaries as provided in this paragraph herein.

Section 97. Paragraph (c) of subsection (1) of section

20.055, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

20.055 Agency inspectors general.-

(1) For the purposes of this section:

(c) "Individuals substantially affected" means natural

persons who have established a real and sufficiently immediate

Page 149 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4173

4174

4175

4176

4177

4178

4179

4180

4181

4182

4183

4184

4185

4186

4187

4188

4189

4190

4191

4192

4193

4194

4195

4196

4197

4198

4199

4200

injury in fact due to the findings, conclusions, or

recommendations of a final report of a state agency inspector

general, who are the subject of the audit or investigation, and

who do not have or are not currently afforded an existing right

to an independent review process. The term does not include:

1. Employees of the state, including civil eareer service,

probationary, other personal service, selected exempt service,

and senior management service employees, are not sovered by this

definition. This definition also does not sover

2. Former employees of the state if the final report of

the state agency inspector general relates to matters arising

during a former employee's term of state employment. ~

definition does not apply to

3. Persons who are the subject of audits or investigations

conducted pursuant to ss. 112.3187-112.31895 or s. 409.913 or

which are otherwise confidential and exempt under s. 119.07.

Section 98. Subsection (6) of section 20.21, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

20.21 Department of Revenue.-There is created a Department

of Revenue.

(6) Notwithstanding s.112.942 the provisions of s.

110.123, relating to the state group insurance program, the

department may pay, or participate in the payment of, premiums

for health, accident, and life insurance for its full-time out

of-state employees, pursuant to such rules as it may adopt,

which and sush payments are shall be in addition to the

employees' regular salaries of sush full time out of state

employees.

Page 150 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4201

4202

4203

4204

4205

4206

4207

4208

4209

4210

4211

4212

4213

4214

4215

4216

4217

4218

4219

4220

4221

4222

4223

4224

4225

4226

4227

4228

Section 99. Paragraph (e) of subsection (1) and subsection

(6) of section 20.23, Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

20.23 Department of Transportation.-There is created a

Department of Transportation which shall be a decentralized

agency.

(1 )

(e) The Afty secretary appointed after July 5, 1989, and

~ assistant secretaries are shall be exempt from part IV ~

provisions of part III of chapter 110 and shall receive

compensation commensurate with their qualifications and

competitive with compensation for comparable responsibility in

the private sector.

(6) Notwithstanding the provisions of s. 110.205, the

Department of Management Services may is authoriEed to exempt

positions within the Department of Transportation that ;vhieh are

comparable to positions within the Senior Management Service

pursuant to s. 110.205(2) (g) 110.205(2) (j) or positions that

;.hieh are comparable to positions in the Selected Exempt Service

under s. 110.205 (2) (i) 110.205 (2) (m).

Section 100. Subsection (2) of section 20.255, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

20.255 Department of Environmental Protection.-There is

created a Department of Environmental Protection.

(2) (a) There shall be three deputy secretaries who are to

be appointed by and shall serve at the pleasure of the

secretary. The secretary may assign any deputy secretary the

responsibility to supervise, coordinate, and formulate policy

for any division, office, or district. The following special

Page 151 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

offices are established and headed by managers, each of whom is

to be appointed by and serve at the pleasure of the secretary:

l. Office of Chief of Staff;

2 . Office of General Counsel;

3. Office of Inspector General;

4. Office of External Affairs;

5. Office of Legislative Affairs;

6. Office of Intergovernmental Programs; and

7. Office of Greenways and Trails.

(b) There shall be six administrative districts involved

in regulatory matters of waste management, water resource

4229

4230

4231

4232

4233

4234

4235

4236

4237

4238

4239

4240 management, wetlands, and air resources, which shall be headed

4241 by managers, each of whom is to be appointed by and serve at the

4242 pleasure of the secretary. Divisions of the department may have

4243 one assistant or two deputy division directors, as required to

4244 facilitate effective operation.

4245

4246 The managers of all divisions and offices specifically named in

4247 this section and the directors of the six administrative

4248 districts are exempt from part II of chapter 110 and are

4249 included in the Senior Management Service in accordance with s.

4250 110.205(2) (g) 110.205(2) (j).

4251

4252

4253

4254

4255

Section 101. Paragraph (d) of subsection (19) of section

24.105, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

24.105 Powers and duties of department.-The department

shall:

(19) Employ division directors and other staff as may be

4256 necessary to carry out the provisions of this act; however:

Page 152 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4257

4258

4259

4260

4261

4262

4263

4264

4265

4266

4267

4268

4269

4270

4271

4272

4273

4274

4275

4276

4277

4278

4279

4280

4281

4282

4283

4284

(d) The department shall establish and maintain a

personnel program for its employees, including a personnel

classification and pay plan that Hhich may provide any or all of

the benefits provided in the Senior Management Service or

Selected Exempt Service. Each officer or employee of the

department is shall be a member of the Florida Retirement

System. The retirement class of each officer or employee is

shall be the same as other persons performing comparable

functions for other agencies. Employees of the department shall

serve at the pleasure of the secretary and are shall be subject

to suspension, dismissal, reduction in pay, demotion, transfer,

or other personnel action at the discretion of the secretary.

Such personnel actions are exempt from the provisions of chapter

120. All employees of the department are exempt from the Civil

Career Service System provided in chapter 110 and,

notwithstanding the provisions of s. 110.205(3) 110.205(5), are

not included in either the Senior Management Service or the

Selected Exempt Service. However, all employees of the

department are subject to all standards of conduct adopted by

rule for civil career service and senior management employees

pursuant to chapter 110. In the event of a conflict between

standards of conduct applicable to employees of the Department

of the LotterYL the more restrictive standard applies shall

apply. Interpretations as to the more restrictive standard may

be provided by the Commission on Ethics upon request of an

advjsory opinion pursuant to s. 112.322(3) (a), and for purposes

of this subsectionL the opinion shall be considered final

action.

Page 153 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4285

4286

4287

4288

4289

4290

.4291

4292

4293

4294

4295

4296

4297

4298

4299

4300

4301

4302

4303

4304

4305

4306

4307

4308

4309

4310

4311

4312

Section 102. Paragraph (d) of subsection (4) of section

24.122, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

24.122 Exemption from taxation; state preemption;

inapplicability of other laws.-

(4) Any state or local law providing any penalty,

disability, restriction, or prohibition for the possession,

manufacture, transportation, distribution, advertising, or sale

of any lottery ticket, including chapter 849, shall not apply to

the tickets of the state lottery operated pursuant to this act;

nor shall any such law apply to the possession of a ticket

issued by any other government-operated lottery. In addition,

activities of the department under this act are exempt from the

provisions of:

(d) Section 112.907 110.131, relating to other personal

services.

Section 103. Paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of section

30.071, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

30.071 Applicability and scope of act.-

(1) This act applies to all deputy sheriffs, with the

following exceptions:

(b) Deputy sheriffs ina county that, by special act of

the Legislature, local charter, ordinance, or otherwise, has

established a civil or eareer service system that whieh grants

collective bargaining rights for deputy sheriffs, including, but

not limited to, deputy she~iffs in the following counties:

Broward, Miami-Dade, Duval, Escambia, and Volusia.

Section 104. Subsection (4) of section 43.16, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

Page 154 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4313

4314

4315

4316

4317

4318

4319

4320

4321

4322

4323

4324

4325

4326

4327

4328

4329

4330

4331

4332

4333

4334

4335

4336

4337

4338

4339

4340

43.16 Justice Administrative Commission; membership,

powers and duties.-

(4) (a) The Justice Administrative Commission shall employ

an executive director and fix his or her salary. The executive

director shall employ any necessary personnel for the efficient

performance of the commission according to a classification and

pay plan annually approved by the commission.

(b) Pursuant to s. 110.205(2) (r), all employees of &r

Hithin the commission are exempt from the Civil Career Service

System provided in ehapter 110 and, notwithstanding s.

110.205(3) 110.205(5), are not included in the Senior Management

Service or the Selected Exempt Service. The commission shall

annually approve a classification plan and salary and benefits

plan.

(c) Employees in permanent positions must be offered

benefits comparable to those offered under the Civil Career

Service System.

(d) The commission may offer benefits greater than ±fi

e}{eess of those offered under the Civil Career Service System

only to employees who are appointed to positions designated as

having managerial or policymaking duties or positions requiring

membership in The Florida Bar.

(e) By January ~ ~ of each year, the commission shall

submit to the Executive Office of the Governor, the President of

the Senate, and the Speaker of the House of Representatives a

listing of all positions receiving benefits greater than those

benefits offered under the Civil Career Service System. Any

change in the positions that are offered greater benefits or any

Page 155 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

4341

4342

4343

4344

4345

4346

.4347

4348

4349

4350

4351

4352

4353

4354

4355

4356

4357

4358

4359

4360

4361

4362

4363

4364

4365

4366

4367

4368

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4369

4370

4371

4372

4373

4374

4375

4376

4377

4378

4379

4380

4381

4382

4383

4384

4385

4386

4387

4388

4389

4390

4391

4392

4393

4394

4395

4396

the commission are shall be subject to part III ¥ of chapter

110.

Section 107. Subsection (4) of section 112.044, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

112.044 Public employers, employment agencies, labor

organizations; discrimination based on age prohibited;

exceptions; remedy.-

(4) APPEAL; CIVIL SUIT AUTHORIZED.-Any employee of the

state vJho is within the Civil Career Service System established

by chapter 110 afl& who is aggrieved by a violation of this act

may appeal to the Public Employees Relations Commission under

the conditions and following the procedures prescribed in part

II of chapter 447. Any person other than an employee Hho is

within the Civil Career Service System established by chapter

~, or any person employed by the Public Employees Relations

Commission, who is aggrieved by a violation of this act may

bring a civil action in any court of competent jurisdiction for

such legal or equitable relief as will effectuate the purposes

of this act.

Section 108. Section 112.0805, Florida Statutes, is

amended to read:

112.0805 Employer notice of insurance eligibility to

employees who retire.-An Any employer who provides insurance

coverage under s. 112.942 110.123 or s. 112.0801 shall notify

those employees who retire of their eligibility to participate

in either the same group insurance plan or self-insurance plan

as provided in ss. 112.942 110.123 and 112.08017 or the

insurance coverage afr provided by this law.

Page 157 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4397

4398

4399

4400

4401

4402

4403

4404

4405

4406

4407

4408

4409

4410

4411

4412

4413

4414

4415

4416

4417

4418

4419

4420

4421

4422

4423

4424

Section 109. Paragraph (a) of subsection (9) of section

112.313, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

112.313 Standards of conduct for public officers,

employees of agencies, and local government attorneys.-

(9) POSTEMPLOYMENT RESTRICTIONS; STANDARDS OF CONDUCT FOR

LEGISLATORS AND LEGISLATIVE EMPLOYEES.-

(a)l. It is the intent of the Legislature to implement by

statute the provisions of s. 8(e), Art. II of the State

Constitution relating to legislators, statewide elected

officers, appointed state officers, and designated public

employees.

2. As used in this paragraph:

a. "Employee" means:

(I) Any person employed in the executive or legislative

branch of government holding a position in the Senior Management

Service as defined ins. 110.402 or any person holding a

position in the Selected Exempt Service as defined in s.

110.3021 110.602 or any person having authority over policy or

procurement employed by the Department of the Lottery.

(II) The Auditor General, the director of the Office of

Program Policy Analysis and Government Accountability, the

Sergeant at Arms and Secretary of the Senate, and the Sergeant

at Arms and Clerk of the House of Representatives.

(III) The executive director and deputy executive director

of the Commission on Ethics.

(IV) An executive director, staff director, or deputy

staff director of each joint committee, standing committee, or

select committee of the Legislature; an executive director,

Page 158 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4425

4426

4427

4428

4429

4430

4431

4432

4433

4434

4435

4436

4437

4438

4439

4440

4441

4442

4443

4444

4445

4446

4447

4448

4449

4450

4451

4452

staff director, executive assistant, analyst, or attorney of the

Office of the President of the Senate, the Office of the Speaker

of the House of Representatives, the Senate Majority Party

Office, Senate Minority Party Office, House Majority Party

Office, or House Minority Party Office; or any person, hired on

a contractual basis, having the power normally conferred upon

such persons, by whatever title.

(V) The Chancellor and Vice Chancellors of the State

University System; the general counsel to the Board of Governors

of the State University System; and the president, provost, vice

presidents, and deans of each state university.

(VI) Any person, including an other-personal-services

employee, having the power normally conferred upon the positions

referenced in this sub-subparagraph.

b. "Appointed state officer" means any member of an

appointive board, commission, committee, council, or authority

of the executive or legislative branch of state government whose

powers, jurisdiction, and authority are not solely advisory and

include the final determination or adjudication of any personal

or property rights, duties, or obligations, other than those

relative to its internal operations.

c. "State agency" means an entity of the legislative,

executive, or judicial branch of state government over which the

Legislature exercises plenary budgetary and statutory control.

3. ~ He member of the Legislature, appointed state

officer, or statewide elected officer may not shall personally

represent another person or entity for compensation before the

government body or agency of which the individual was an officer

Page 159 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4453

4454

4455

4456

4457

4458

4459

4460

4461

4462

4463

4464

4465

4466

4467

4468

4469

4470

4471

4472

4473

4474

4475

4476

4477

4478

4479

4480

or member for a period of 2 years following vacation of office.

~ We member of the Legislature may not shall personally

represent another person or entity for compensation during his

or her term of office before any state agency other than

judicial tribunals or in settlement negotiations after the

filing of a lawsuit.

4. An agency employee, including an agency employee who

was employed on July 1, 2001, in a civil Career service System

position that was transferred to the Selected Exempt Service

System under chapter 2001-43, Laws of Florida, may not

personally represent another person or entity for compensation

before the agency with which he or she was employed for a period

~ 2 years following vacation of position, unless employed by

another agency of state government.

5. Any person violating this paragraph is shall be subject

to the penalties provided in s. 112.317 and a civil penalty ~

an amount equal to the compensation that ';Jhieh the person

receives for the prohibited conduct.

6. This paragraph is not applicable to:

a. A person employed by the Legislature or other agency

before prior to July 1, 1989~

b. A person who was employed by the Legislature or other

agency on July 1, 1989, whether or not the person was a defined

employee on July 1, 1989;

c. A person who was ~ defined employee of the State

University System or the Public Service Commission who held such

employment on December 31, 1994;

d. A person who has reached normal retirement age as

Page 160 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4481

4482

4483

4484

4485

4486

4487

4488

4489

4490

4491

4492

4493

4494

4495

4496

4497

4498

4499

4500

4501

4502

4503

4504

4505

4506

4507

4508

defined in s. 121.021(29), and who has retired under ~

provisions of chapter 121 by July 1, 1991; or

e. Any appointed state officer whose term of office began

before January 1, 1995, unless reappointed to that office on or

after January 1, 1995.

Section 110. Paragraph (b) of subsection (1) of section

112.3145, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

112.3145 Disclosure of financial interests and clients

represented before agencies.-

(1) For purposes of this section, unless the context

otherwise requires, the term:

(b) "Specified state employee" means:

1. Public counsel created by chapter 350, an assistant

state attorney, an assistant public defender, a full-time state

employee who serves as counselor assistant counsel to any state

agency, the Deputy Chief Judge of Compensation Claims, a judge

of compensation claims, an administrative law judge, or a

hearing officer.

2. Any person employed in the office of the Governor or in

the office of any member of the Cabinet if that person is exempt

from the Civil Career Service System, except persons employed in

clerical, secretarial, or similar positions.

3. The State Surgeon General or each appointed secretary,

assistant secretary, deputy secretary, executive director,

assistant executive director, or deputy executive director of

each state department, commission, board, or council; unless

otherwise provided, the division director, assistant division

director, deputy director, bureau chief, and assistant bureau

Page 161 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4509

4510

4511

4512

4513

4514

.4515

4516

4517

4518

4519

4520

4521

4522

4523

4524

4525

4526

4527

4528

4529

4530

4531

4532

4533

4534

4535

4536

chief of any state department or division; or any person having

the power normally conferred upon such persons, by whatever

title.

4. The superintendent or institute director of a state

mental health institute established for training and research in

the mental health field or the warden or director of any major

state institution or facility established for corrections,

training, treatment, or rehabilitation.

5. Business managers, purchasing agents having the power

to make any purchase exceeding the threshold amount provided for

in s. 287.017 for CATEGORY ONE, finance and accounting

directors, personnel officers, or grants coordinators for any

state agency.

6. Any person, other than a legislative assistant exempted

by the presiding officer of the house that employs by Hhich the

legislative assistant is employed, who is employed in the

legislative branch of government, except persons employed in

maintenance, clerical, secretarial, or similar positions.

7. Each employee of the Commission on Ethics.

Section 111. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section

112.363, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

112.363 Retiree health insurance subsidy.-

(2) ELIGIBILITY FOR RETIREE HEALTH INSURANCE SUBSIDY.

(a) A person who is retired under a state-administered

retirement system, or a beneficiary who is a spouse or financial

dependent entitled to receive benefits under a state

administered retirement system, is eligible for health insurance

subsidy payments provided under this section; except that

Page 162 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4537

4538

4539

4540

4541

4542

4543

4544

4545

4546

4547

4548

4549

4550

4551

4552

4553

4554

4555

4556

4557

4558

4559

4560

4561

4562

4563

4564

pension recipients under ss. 121.40, 238.07(18) (a), and 250.22,

recipients of health insurance coverage under s. 112.947

110.1232, or recipients of any other special pension or relief

act are shall not ee eligible for such payments.

Section 112. Subsections (11) and (38) of section 121.021,

Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

121.021 Definitions.-The following words and phrases as

used in this chapter have the respective meanings set forth

unless a different meaning is plainly required by the context:

(11) "Officer or employee" means any person receiving

salary payments for work performed in a regularly established

position and, if employed by a municipality, a metropolitan

planning organization, or a special district, employed in a

covered group. The term does not apply to state employees

covered by a leasing agreement under s. 112.922 110.191, other

public employees covered by a leasing agreement, or a coemployer

relationship.

(38) "Continuous service" means creditable service as a

member, beginning with the first day of employment with an

employer covered under a state-administered retirement system

consolidated herein and continuing for as long as the member

remains in an employer-employee relationship with the aft

employer covered under this chapter. An absence of 1 calendar

month or more from an employer's payroll is shall be considered

a break in continuous service, except for periods of absence

during which an employer-employee relationship continues to

exist and such period of absence is creditable under this

chapter or under one of the existing systems consolidated

Page 163 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4565

4566

4567

4568

4569

4570

.4571

4572

4573

4574

4575

4576

4577

4578

4579

4580

4581

4582

4583

4584

4585

4586

4587

4588

4589

4590

4591

4592

herein. However, a law enforcement officer as defined in s.

121.0515(3) (a) who was a member of a state-administered

retirement system under chapter 122 or chapter 321 and who

resigned and was subsequently reemployed in a law enforcement

position within 12 calendar months after ~ such resignation by

an employer under ~ ~ state-administered retirement system is

shall be deemed not to have ~ experienced a break in service .

Further, with respect to a state-employed law enforcement

officer who meets the criteria specified in s. 121.0515 (3) (a),

if the absence from the employer's payroll is the result of a

"layoff" as defined in s. 110.1054 110.107 or a resignation to

run for an elected office that meets the criteria specified in

s. 121.0515 (3) (a), no break in continuous service shall be

deemed to have occurred if the member is reemployed as a state

law enforcement officer or is elected to an office that Hhich

meets the criteria specified in s. 121.0515(3) (a) within 12

calendar months after the date of the layoff or resignation,

notwithstanding the fact that such period of layoff or

resignation is not creditable service under this chapter. A

withdrawal of contributions constitutes Hill constitute a break

in service. Continuous service also includes past service

purchased under this chapter if, provided such service is

continuous within this definition and the rules established by

the administrator. The administrator may establish

administrative rules and p~ocedures for applying this definition

to creditable service authorized under this chapter. Any

correctional officer, as defined in s. 943.10, whose

participation in the state-administered retirement system is

Page 164 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4593

4594

4595

4596

4597

4598

4599

4600

4601

4602

4603

4604

4605

4606

4607

4608

4609

4610

4611

4612

4613

4614

4615

4616

4617

4618

4619

4620

terminated due to the transfer of a county detention facility

through a contractual agreement with a private entity pursuant

to s. 951.062 is, shall be deemed an employee with continuous

service in the Special Risk Class if, provided return to

employment with the former employer takes place within 3 years

due to contract termination or the officer is employed by a

covered employer in a special risk position within 1 year after

his or her initial termination of employment by such transfer of

its detention facilities to the private entity.

Section 113. Paragraph (f) of subsection (2) of section

121.051, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

121.051 Participation in the system.

(2) OPTIONAL PARTICIPATION.-

(f)l. If an employer that participates in the Florida

Retirement System undertakes the transfer, merger, or

consolidation of governmental services or assumes the functions

and activities of an employing governmental entity that was not

an employer under the system, the employer must notify the

department at least 60 days before such action and provide

documentation as required by the department. Such ~ transfer,

merger, eT consolidationL of governmental serviees or assumption

of governmental funetions and aetivities must occur between

public employers. The current or former employer may pay the

employees' past service cost, unless prohibited under this

chapter. This subparagraph does not apply to the transfer,

merger, or consolidation of governmental services or assumption

of functions and activities of a public entity under a leasing

agreement having a coemployer relationship. Employers and

Page 165 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4621

4622

4623

4624

4625

4626

.4627

4628

4629

4630

4631

4632

4633

4634

4635

4636

4637

4638

4639

4640

4641

4642

4643

4644

4645

4646

4647

4648

employees of a public governmental employer whose service is

covered by a leasing agreement under s. 112.922 110.191, any

other leasing agreement, or a coemployer relationship may not

are not eligible to participate in the Florida Retirement

System.

2. If the agency to which a member's employing unit is

transferred, merged, or consolidated does not participate in the

Florida Retirement System, a member may elect in writing to

remain in the Florida Retirement system or to transfer to the

local retirement system operated by the agency. If the agency

does not participate in a local retirement system, the member

shall ·continue membership in the Florida Retirement System. In

either case, membership continues for as long as the member is

employed by the agency to which his or her unit was transferred,

merged, or consolidated.

Section 114. Paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of section

121.055, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

121.055 Senior Management Service Class.-There is hereby

established a separate class of membership within the Florida

Retirement System to be known as the "Senior Management Service

Class," which shall become effective February 1, 1987.

(1) (a) Participation in the Senior Management Service

Class is shall be limited to and compulsory for any member of

the Florida Retirement System who holds a position in the Senior

Management Service of the ?tate of Florida, established under ey
part IV ~ of chapter 110, unless such member elects, within

the time specified herein, to participate in the Senior

Management Service Optional Annuity Program as established in

Page 166 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4649

4650

4651

4652

4653

4654

4655

4656

4657

4658

4659

4660

4661

4662

4663

4664

4665

4666

4667

4668

4669

4670

4671

4672

4673

4674

4675

4676

subsection (6).

Section 115. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section

121.35, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

121.35 Optional retirement program for the State

University System.-

(2) ELIGIBILITY FOR PARTICIPATION IN OPTIONAL PROGRAM.

(a) Participation in the optional retirement program is

provided by this section shall be limited to persons who are

otherwise eligible for membership or renewed membership in the

Florida Retirement System and who are employed in one of the

following State University System positions:

1. Positions classified as instructional and research

faculty which are exempt from the Civil career Service under ~

provisions of s. 110.205(2) (d).

2. Positions classified as administrative and professional

which are exempt from the Civil career Service under ~

provisions of s. 110.205(2) (d).

3. The Chancellor and the university presidents.

Section 116. Section 145.19, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

145.19 Annual percentage increases based on increase for

civil state career service employees; limitation.

(1) As used in this section, the term:

(a) "Annual factor" means 1 plus the lesser of:

1. The average percentage increase in the salaries of

civil state career service employees for the current fiscal year

as determined by the Department of Management Services or as

provided in the General Appropriations Act; or

Page 167 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4677

4678

4679

4680

4681

4682

4683

4684

4685

4686

4687

4688

4689

4690

4691

4692

4693

4694

4695

4696

4697

4698

4699

4700

4701

4702

4703

4704

2. Seven percent.

(b) "Cumulative annual factor" means the product of all

annual factors certified under this act before prior to the

fiscal year for which salaries are being calculated.

(c) "Initial factor" means a factor of 1.292, which is a

product, rounded to the nearest thousandth, of an earlier cost

of-living increase factor authorized by chapter 73-173, Laws of

Florida, and intended by the Legislature to be preserved in

adjustments to salaries made before the prior to enactment of

chapter 76-80, Laws of Florida, multiplied by the annual

increase factor authorized by chapter 79-327, Laws of Florida.

(2) Each fiscal year, the salaries of all officials listed

in this chapter, s. 1001.395, and s. 1001.47 shall be adjusted.

The adjusted salary rate is shall be the product, rounded to the

nearest dollar, of the salary rate granted by the appropriate

section of this chapter, s. 1001.395, or s. 1001.47 multiplied

first by the initial factor, then by the cumulative annual

factor, and finally by the annual factor. The Department of

Management Services shall certify the annual factor and the

cumulative annual factors. Any special qualification salary

received under this chapter,s. 1001.47, or the annual

performance salary incentive available to elected

superintendents under s. 1001.47 shall be added to the~

adjusted salary rate. The special qualification salary is shall

:ee $2,000, but shall not e}weed $2,000.

Section 117. Subsection (2) of section 216.011, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

216.011 Definitions.-

Page 168 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

4705

4706

4707

4708

4709

4710

4711

4712

4713

4714

4715

4716

4717

4718

4719

4720

4721

4722

4723

4724

4725

4726

4727

4728

4729

4730

4731

4732

CS/HB 1261 2012

(2) For purposes of this chapter, terms related to the

State Personnel System are personnel affairs of the state shall

ee defined as set forth in s. 110.1054 110.107.

Section 118. Paragraph (b) of subsection (10) of section

216.181, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

216.181 Approved budgets for operations and fixed capital

outlay.-

(10)

(b) Lump-sum salary bonuses may be provided only if

specifically appropriated or provided pursuant to s. 110.1245 or

s. 216.1815.

Section 119. Subsection (2) of section 260.0125, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

260.0125 Limitation on liability of private landowners

whose property is designated as part of the statewide system of

greenways and trails.-

(2) ~ Afty private landowner who consents to designation of

his or her land as part of the statewide system of greenways and

trails pursuant to s. 260.016 (2) (d) without compensation is

shall be considered a volunteer, as defined in s. 112.961

110.501, and is shall be covered by state liability protection

pursuant to s. 768.28, including s. 768.28(9).

Section 120. Section 287.175, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

287.175 Penalties.-A violation of this part or a rule

adopted hereunder, pursuant to applicable constitutional and

statutory procedures, constitutes misuse of public position as

defined in s. 112.313(6)7 and is punishable as provided in s.

Page 169 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4733

4734

4735

4736

4737

4738

4739

4740

4741

4742

4743

4744

4745

4746

4747

4748

4749

4750

4751

4752

4753

4754

4755

4756

4757

4758

4759

4760

112.317. The Chief Financial Officer shall report incidents of

suspected misuse to the Commission on Ethics, and the commission

shall investigate possible violations of this part or rules

adopted hereunder when reported by the Chief Financial Officer,

notwithstanding the provisions of s. 112.324. Any violation of

this part or a rule is adopted hereunder shall be presumed to

have been committed with wrongful intent, but such presumption

is rebuttable. Nothing in This section is not intended to deny

rights provided to civil eareer service employees by s. 110.227.

Section 121. Paragraph (a) of subsection (4) of section

295.07, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

295.07 Preference in appointment and retention.-

(4) The following positions are exempt from this section:

(a) Those positions that are exempt from the Civil state

Career Service System under s. 110.205~~ However, all

positions under the University Support Personnel System of the

State University System as well as all civil Career service

System positions under the Florida Community College System and

the School for the Deaf and the Blind, or the equivalent of such

positions at state universities, community colleges, or the

School for the Deaf and the Blind, are included.

Section 122. Paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of section

295.09, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

295.09 Reinstatement or reemployment; promotion

preference.-

(1) (a) If Wfteft an employee of the state or any of its

political subdivisions employed in a position subject or not

subject to a civil career service system or other merit-type

Page 170 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4761

4762

4763

4764

4765

4766

4767

4768

4769

4770

4771

4772

4773

4774

4775

4776

4777

4778

4779

4780

4781

4782

4783

4784

4785

4786

4787

4788

system, with the exception of those positions that \/hieh are

exempt pursuant to s. 295.07(4), has served in the Armed Forces

of the United States and is discharged or separated therefrom

with an honorable discharge, the state or its political

subdivision shall reemploy or reinstate such person to the same

position that he or she held before prior to such service in the

armed forces, or to an equivalent position, if provided such

person returns to the position within 1 year after ~ his or her

date of separation or, in cases of extended active duty, within

1 year after ~ the date of discharge or separation subsequent

to the extension. Such person shall also be awarded preference

in promotion and shall be promoted ahead of all others who are

as well qualified or less qualified for the position. If Wheft an

examination for promotion is used utilized, such person shall be

awarded preference points, as provided in s. 295.08, and shall

be promoted ahead of all those who appear in an equal or lesser

position on the promotional register if, provided he or she

first successfully passes the examination for the promotional

position.

Section 123. Subsection (3) of section 296.04, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

296.04 Administrator; duties and qualifications;

responsibilities.-

(3) The administrator position shall be assigned to the

Selected Exempt Service under part III ¥ of chapter 110. The

director shall give veterans' preference in selecting an

administrator, as provided in ss. 295.07 and 295.085. In

addition, the administrator must have at least a 4-year degree

Page 171 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4789

4790

4791

4792

4793

4794

4795

4796

4797

4798

4799

4800

4801

4802

4803

4804

4805

4806

4807

4808

4809

4810

4811

4812

4813

4814

4815

4816

from an accredited university or college and 3 years of

administrative experience in a health care facility, or any

equivalent combination of experience, training, and education

totaling 7 years in work relating to administration of a health

care facility.

Section 124. Subsection (2) of section 296.34, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

296.34 Administrator; qualifications, duties, and

responsibilities.-

(2) The position shall be assigned to the Selected Exempt

Service under part III ¥ of chapter 110. The director shall give

veterans' veterans preference in selecting an administrator, as

provided in ss. 295.07 and 295.085. The administrator, at the

time of entering employment and at all times while employed as

the administratorL must hold a current valid license as a

nursing home administrator under part II of chapter 468.

Section 125. Subsection (2) of section 381.00315, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

381.00315 Public health advisories; public health

emergencies.-The State Health Officer is responsible for

declaring public health emergencies and issuing public health

advisories.

(2) Individuals who assist the State Health Officer at his

or her request on a volunteer basis during a public health

emergency are entitled to the benefits specified in s.

112.964(2)-(5) 110.504(2), (3), (4), and (5).

Section 126. Paragraph (e) of subsection (3) of section

381.85, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

Page 172 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

4817

4818

4819

4820

4821

4822

4823

4824

4825

4826

4827

4828

4829

4830

4831

4832

4833

4834

4835

4836

4837

4838

4839

4840

4841

4842

4843

4844

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4845

4846

4847

4848

4849

4850

4851

4852

4853

4854

4855

4856

4857

4858

4859

4860

4861

4862

4863

4864

4865

4866

4867

4868

4869

4870

4871

4872

110.1127(3),393.0655(1),394.457(6), 397.451, 402.305(2), and

409.175(6), are shall not Be required to be refingerprinted or

rescreened in order to comply with any caretaker screening or

fingerprinting requirements.

Section 129. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section

402.55, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

402.55 Management fellows program.-

(2) The departments are authorized to establish a

management fellows program in order to provide highly qualified

career candidates for key administrative and managerial

positions in the departments. Such program shall include, but is

not limited to:

(a) The identification annually by the secretaries, the

assistant secretaries, and the district administrator in each

district of one high-potential civil eareer service employee

each, to be designated and appointed to serve as a full-time

health and rehabilitative services management fellow for a

period of 1 year.

Section 130. Subsection (4) of section 402.7305, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

402.7305 Department of Children and Family Services;

procurement of contractual services; contract management.-

(4) CONTRACT MONITORING REQUIREMENTS AND PROCESS.-The

department shall establish contract monitoring units staffed by

civil career service employees who report to a member of the

Selected Exempt Service or Senior Management Service and who

have been properly trained to perform contract monitoring. At

least one member of the contract monitoring unit must possess

Page 174 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4873

4874

4875

4876

4877

4878

4879

4880

4881

4882

4883

4884

4885

4886

4887

4888

4889

4890

4891

4892

4893

4894

4895

4896

4897

4898

4899

4900

specific knowledge and experience in the contract's program

area. The department shall establish a contract monitoring

process that includes, but is not limited to, the following

requirements:

(a) Performing a risk assessment at the start of each

fiscal year and preparing an annual contract monitoring schedule

that considers the level of risk assigned. The department may

monitor any contract at any time regardless of whether such

monitoring was originally included in the annual contract

monitoring schedule.

(b) Preparing a contract monitoring plan, including

sampling procedures, before performing onsite monitoring at

external locations of a service provider. The plan must include

a description of the programmatic, fiscal, and administrative

components that will be monitored on site. If appropriate,

clinical and therapeutic components may be included.

(c) Conducting analyses of the performance and compliance

of an external service provider by means of desk reviews if the

external service provider will not be monitored on site during a

fiscal year.

(d) Unless the department sets forth in writing the need

for an extension, providing a written report presenting the

results of the monitoring within 30 days after the completion of

the onsite monitoring or desk review.

(e) Developing and maintaining a set of procedures

describing ,the contract monitoring process.

Notwithstanding any other provision of this section, the

Page 175 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4901

4902

4903

4904

4905

4906

.4907

4908

4909

4910

4911

4912

4913

4914

4915

4916

4917

4918

4919

4920

4921

4922

4923

4924

4925

4926

4927

4928

department shall limit monitoring of a child-caring or child

placing services provider under this subsection to only once per

year. Such monitoring may not duplicate administrative

monitoring that is included in the survey of a child welfare

provider conducted by a national accreditation organization

specified under s. 402.7306(1).

Section 131. Subsection (2) of section 402.731, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

402.731 Department of Children and Family Services

certification programs for employees and service providers;

employment provisions for transition to community-based care.-

(2) The department shall develop and implement employment

programs to attract and retain competent staff to support and

facilitate the transition to privatized community-based care.

Such effiployffient programs must shall include lump-sum bonuses,

salary incentives, relocation allowances, or severance pay. The

department shall also contract for the delivery or

administration of outplacement services. The department shall

establish time-limited exempt positions as provided in s.

110.205 (2) (f) 110.205 (2) (i) , in accordance with the authority

provided in s. 216.262(1) (c)l. Employees appointed to fill such

exempt positions shall have the same salaries and benefits as

civil career service employees.

Section 132. Section 409.1757, Florida Statutes, is

amended to read:

409.1757 Persons not required to be refingerprinted or

rescreened.-Notwithstanding any other provision of law to the

contrary notHithstanding, human resource personnel who have been

Page 176 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4929

4930

4931

4932

4933

4934

4935

4936

4937

4938

4939

4940

4941

4942

4943

4944

4945

4946

4947

4948

4949

4950

4951

4952

4953

4954

4955

4956

fingerprinted or screened pursuant to chapters 393, 394, 397,

402, and this chapter, and teachers who have been fingerprinted

pursuant to chapter 1012, who have not been unemployed for more

than 90 days thereafter, and who under the penalty of perjury

attest to the completion of such fingerprinting or screening and

to compliance with the provisions of this section and the

standards for good moral character as contained in~

provisions as ss. 112.928 110.1127(3), 393.0655(1), 394.457(6),

397.451, 402.305(2), and 409.175(6), are shall not Be required

to be refingerprinted or rescreened in order to comply with any

caretaker screening or fingerprinting requirements.

Section 133. Subsection (1) of section 409.9205, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

409.9205 Medicaid Fraud Control Unit.-

(1) Except as provided in s. 110.205, all positions in the

Medicaid Fraud Control Unit of the Department of Legal Affairs

are hereby transferred to the Civil Gareer Service System.

Section 134. Section 414.37, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

414.37 Public assistance overpayment recovery

privatization; reemployment of laid-off career serviee

employees.-Should civil career service employees of the

Department of Children and Family Services be subject to layoff

after July 1, 1995, due to the privatization of public

assistance overpayment recovery functions, the privatization

contract must shall require the contracting firm to give

priority consideration to employment of such employees. In

addition, a task force composed of representatives from the

Page 177 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4957

4958

4959

4960

4961

4962

.4963

4964

4965

4966

4967

4968

4969

4970

4971

4972

4973

4974

4975

4976

4977

4978

4979

4980

4981

4982

4983

4984

Department of Children and Family Services and the Department of

Management Services shall be established to provide reemployment

assistance to such employees.

Section 135. Subsection (7) of section 427.012, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

427.012 The Commission for the Transportation

Disadvantaged.-There is created the Commission for the

Transportation Disadvantaged in the Department of

Transportation.

(7) The commission shall appoint an executive director who

shall serve under the direction, supervision, and control of the

commission. The executive director, with the consent of the

commission, shall employ such personnel as may be necessary to

perform adequately the functions of the commission within

budgetary limitations. Employees of the commission are exempt

from the Civil Career Service System.

Section 136. Paragraph (0) of subsection (1) of section

440.102, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

440.102 Drug-free workplace program requirements.-The

following provisions apply to a drug-free workplace program

implemented pursuant to law or to rules adopted by the Agency

for Health Care Administration:

(1) DEFINITIONS.-Except where the context otherwise

requires, as used in this act:

(0) "Safety-sensitive position" means, with respect to a

public employer, a position in which a drug impairment

constitutes an immediate and direct threat to public health or

safety, such as a position that requires the employee to carry a

Page 178 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

4985

4986

4987

4988

4989

4990

4991

4992

4993

4994

4995

4996

4997

4998

4999

5000

5001

5002

5003

5004

5005

5006

5007

5008

5009

5010

5011

5012

firearm, perform life-threatening procedures, work with

confidential information or documents pertaining to criminal

investigations, or work with controlled substances; a position

subject to s. 112.928 110.1127; or a position in which a

momentary lapse in attention could result in injury or death to

another person.

Section 137. Subsection (2) of section 447.203, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

447.203 Definitions.-As used in this part:

(2) "Public employer" or "employer" means the state or any

county, municipality, or special districtL or any subdivision or

agency thereofL which the commission determines has sufficient

legal distinctiveness properly to properly carry out the

functions of a public employer. With respect to all public

employees determined by the commission as properly belonging to

a statewide bargaining unit composed of state civil Career

service System employees or selected exempt Professional service

employees, the Governor is shall be deemed to be the public

employer; and the Board of Governors of the State University

System, or the board's designee, is shall be deemed to be the

public employer with respect to all public employees of each

constituent state university. The board of trustees of a

community college is shall be deemed to be the public employer

with respect to all employees of the community college. The

district school board is shall be deemed to be the public

employer with respect to all employees of the school district.

The Board of Trustees of the Florida School for the Deaf and the

Blind is shall be deemed to be the public employer with respect

Page 179 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5013

5014

5015

5016

5017

5018

5019

5020

5021

5022

5023

5024

5025

5026

5027

5028

5029

5030

5031

5032

5033

5034

5035

5036

5037

5038

5039

5040

to the academic and academic administrative personnel of the

Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind. The Governor is shall

be deemed to be the public employer with respect to all

employees in the Correctional Education Program of the

Department of Corrections established pursuant to s. 944.801.

Section 138. Subsections (8) and (9) of section 447.207,

Florida Statutes, are amended to read:

447.207 Commission; powers and duties.-

(8) The commission or its designated agent shall hear

appeals arising out of any suspension, reduction in pay,

demotion, or dismissal of any permanent employee in the Civil

State Career Service System in the manner provided in s.

110.227.

(9) Pursuant to s. 447.208, the commission or its

designated agent shall hear appeals, and enter such orders as it

deems appropriate, arising out of:

(a) Seetion 110.124, relating to termination or transfer

of State Career Serviee System employees aged 65 or older.

~~ Section 112.044(4), relating to age discrimination.

iQl+e+ Section 295.11, relating to reasons for not

employing a preferred veteran applicant.

Section 139. Section 447.209, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

447.209 Public employer's rights.-It is the right of the

public employer to determine unilaterally the purpose of each of

its constituent agencies, set standards of services to be

offered to the public, and exercise control and discretion over

its organization and operations. It is also the right of the

Page 180 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5041

5042

5043

5044

5045

5046

5047

5048

5049

5050

5051

5052

5053

5054

5055

5056

5057

5058

5059

5060

5061

5062

5063

5064

5065

5066

5067

5068

public employer to direct its employees, take disciplinary

action for proper cause, and relieve its employees from duty

because of lack of work or for other legitimate reasons.

However, the exercise of such rights does shall not preclude

employees or their representatives from raising grievancesT

should decisions on the above matters have the practical

consequence of violating the terms and conditions of any

collective bargaining agreement in force or any civil or career

service rule regulation.

Section 140. Section 447.401, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

447.401 Grievance procedures.-Each public employer and

bargaining agent shall negotiate a grievance procedure to be

used for the settlement of disputes between employer and

employee, or group of employees, involving the interpretation or

application of a collective bargaining agreement. Such grievance

procedure shall have as its terminal step a final and binding

disposition by an impartial neutral, mutually selected by the

parties; however, if when the issue under appeal is an

allegation of abuse, abandonment, or neglect by an employee

under s. 39.201 or s. 415.1034, the grievance may not be decided

until the abuse, abandonment, or neglect of a child has been

judicially determined. However, an arbiter or other neutral may

shall not have the power to add to, subtract from, modify, or

alter the terms of a collective bargaining agreement. If an

employee organization is certified as the bargaining agent of a

unit, the grievance procedure~ in existence may be the

subject of collective bargaining, and any agreement that vvhich

Page 181 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5069

5070

5071

5072

5073

5074

.5075

5076

5077

5078

5079

5080

5081

5082

5083

5084

5085

5086

5087

5088

5089

5090

5091

5092

5093

5094

5095

5096

is reached supersedes shall supersede the previously existing

procedure. All public employees shall have the right to a fair

and equitable grievance procedure administered without regard to

membership or nonmembership in any organization, except that

certified employee organizations may shall not be required to

process grievances for employees who are not members of the

organization. A civil career service employee may use shall have

the option of utilizing the civil service appeal procedure, an

unfair labor practice procedure, or a grievance procedure

established under this section, but such employee may not avail

is precluded from availing himself or herself of ~ more than

one of these procedures.

Section 141. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) of section

456.048, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

456.048 Financial responsibility requirements for certain

health care practitioners.-

(2) The board or department may grant exemptions upon

application by practitioners meeting any of the following

criteria:

(a) Any person licensed under chapter 457, s. 458.3475, s.

459.023, chapter 460, chapter 461, s. 464.012, chapter 466, or

chapter 467 who practices exclusively as an officer, employee,

or agent of the Federal Government or of the state or its

agencies or its subdivisions. For the purposes of this

subsection, an agent of the state, its agencies, or its

subdivisions is a person who is eligible for coverage under any

self-insurance or insurance program authorized by the provisions

~ s. 768.28(16) or who is a volunteer as defined in s. 112.961

Page 182 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5097

5098

5099

5100

5101

5102

5103

5104

5105

5106

5107

5108

5109

5110

5111

5112

5113

5114

5115

5116

5117

5118

5119

5120

5121

5122

5123

5124

under o. 110.501(1).

Section 142. Section 551.116, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

551.116 Days and hours of operation.-Slot machine gaming

areas may be open daily throughout the year. The slot machine

gaming areas may be open a total cumulative affiount of 18 hours

per day on Monday through FridaYL ttftd 24 hours per day on

Saturday and SundaYL and on those holidays specified in s.

112.929 110.117(1).

Section 143. Subsection (29) of section 570.07, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

570.07 Department of Agriculture and Consumer Services;

functions, powers, and duties.-The department shall have and

exercise the following functions, powers, and duties:

(29) To advance funds monthly to civil career service

employees to be used for the purchase of official state samples

for state examination. Each monthly advance shall be in an

affiount equal to one-twelfth of the actual expenses paid the

position for samples in the previous fiscal year or, in the case

of a new position, one-twelfth of the expenses paid for samples

of a similar classification in the previous fiscal year;

however, in the event of unusual circumstances, such advances

may be increased for up to a period not to exceed 60 days.

Advances shall be granted only to civil career service employees

who have executed a proper power of attorney with the department

to ensure the collection of such advances if not timely repaid.

Section 144. Paragraph (b) of subsection (3) of section

601.10, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

Page 183 of 203

CODING: Words strioken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REP RES E N TAT I V E S

2012

5125

5126

5127

5128

5129

5130

5131

5132

5133

5134

5135

5136

5137

5138

5139

5140

5141

5142

5143

5144

5145

5146

5147

5148

5149

5150

5151

5152

601.10 Powers of the Department of Citrus.-The Department

of Citrus shall have and shall exercise such general and

specific powers as are delegated to it by this chapter and other

statutes of the state, which powers shall include, but shall not

be confined to, the following:

(3) To employ and, at its pleasure, discharge an executive

director as it deems necessary and to outline his or her powers

and duties and fix his or her compensation.

(b) The Department of Citrus may pay, or participate in

the payment of, premiums for health, accident, and life

insurance for its full-time employees, pursuant to such rules er

regulations as it may adopt; and such payments are in addition

to the regular salaries of such full-time employees. The payment

of such or similar benefits to its employees in foreign

countries, including, but not limited to, social security,

retirement, and other similar fringe benefit costs, may be in

accordance with laws in effect in the country of employment,

except that fie benefits ~vill be payable to employees not

authorized for other state employees are not payable to its

employees, as provided in the Civil Career Service System.

Section 145. Subsection (6) of section 624.307, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

624.307 General powers; duties.-

(6) The department and office may each employ actuaries

who shall be at-will employees and who shall serve at the

pleasure of the Chief Financial Officer, in the case of

department employees, or at the pleasure of the director of the

office, in the case of office employees. Actuaries employed

Page 184 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5153

5154

5155

5156

5157

5158

5159

5160

5161

5162

5163

5164

5165

5166

5167

5168

5169

5170

5171

5172

5173

5174

5175

5176

5177

5178

5179

5180

pursuant to this paragraph must shall be members of the Society

of Actuaries or the Casualty Actuarial Society and are shall be

exempt from the Civil Career Service System established under

chapter 110. The salaries of the actuaries employed pursuant to

this paragraph shall be set in aeeordance vvith s.

216.251(2) (a)5. and shall be set at levels \thich are

commensurate with those salary levels paid to actuaries by the

insurance industry.

Section 146. Subsection (3) of section 624.437, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

624.437 "Multiple-employer welfare arrangement" defined;

certificate of authority required; penalty.-

(3) This section does not apply to a multiple-employer

welfare arrangement that Hhich offers or provides benefits that

which are fully insured by an authorized insurer, to an

arrangement that Vihich is exempt from state insurance regulation

in accordance with Pub. L. No. 93-406, the Employee Retirement

Income Security Act, or to the state group health insurance

program administered under s. 112.942 pursuant to s. 110.123.

Section 147. Paragraph (h) of subsection (4) of section

627.6488, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

627.6488 Florida Comprehensive Health Association.

(4) The association shall:

(h) Contract with preferred provider organizations and

health maintenance organizations giving due consideration to

those the preferred provider organizations and health

maintenance organizations that ,..hich have contracted with the

state group health insurance program pursuant to s. 112.942

Page 185 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5181

5182

5183

5184

5185

5186

5187

5188

5189

5190

5191

5192

5193

5194

5195

5196

5197

5198

5199

5200

5201

5202

5203

5204

5205

5206

5207

5208

110.123. If cost-effective and available in the county where the

policyholder resides, the board, upon application or renewal of

a policy, shall place a high-risk individual, as established

under s. 627.6498(4) (a)4., with the plan case manager who shall

determine the most cost-effective quality care system or health

care provider and shall place the individual in such system or

with such health care provider. If cost-effective and available

in the county where the policyholder resides, the board, with

the consent of the policyholder, may place a low-risk or medium

risk individual, as established under s. 627.6498(4) (a)4., with

the plan case manager who may determine the most cost-effective

quality care system or health care provider and shall place the

individual in such system or with such health care provider.

Before Prior to and during the implementation of case

management, the plan case manager shall obtain input from the

policyholder, parent, or guardian.

Section 148. Paragraph (a) of subsection (1) of section

627.649, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

627.649 Administrator.-

(1) The board shall select an administrator, through a

competitive bidding process, to administer the plan. The board

shall evaluate bids submitted under this subsection based on

criteria established by the board, which criteria shall include:

(a) The administrator's proven ability to handle large

group accident and health insurance~, and Due consideration

shall be given to an afiY administrator who has acted as a third

party administrator for the state group health insurance program

pursuant to s. 112.942 110.123.

Page 186 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5209

5210

5211

5212

5213

5214

5215

5216

5217

5218

5219

5220

5221

5222

5223

5224

5225

5226

5227

5228

5229

5230

5231

5232

5233

5234

5235

5236

Section 149. Paragraph (a) of subsection (2) and

subsection (3) of section 627.6498, Florida Statutes, are

amended to read:

627.6498 Minimum benefits coverage; exclusions; premiums;

deductibles.-

(2) BENEFITS.-

(a) The plan shall offer major medical expense coverage

similar to that provided by the state group health insurance

program under s. 112.942, as defined in s. 110.123 except as

specified in subsection (3)L to every eligible person who is not

eligible for Medicare. Major medical expense coverage offered

under the plan must shall pay an eligible person's covered

expenses, subject to limits on the deductible and coinsurance

payments authorized under subsection (4), up to a lifetime limit

of $500,000 per covered individual. The maximum limit may under

this paragraph shall not be altered by the board, and an fie

actuarially equivalent benefit may not be substituted by the

board.

(3) COVERED EXPENSES.-The coverage to be issued by the

association must shall be patterned after the state group health

insurance program as in s. 112.942 defined in s.

110.123, including its benefits, exclusions, and other

limitations, except as otherwise provided in this act. The plan

may cover the cost of experimental drugs that ,,'hieh have been

approved for use by the Food and Drug Administration on an

experimental basis if the cost is less than the usual and

customary treatment. Such coverage applies shall only apply to

those insureds who are in the case management system upon the

Page 187 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5237

5238

5239

5240

5241

5242

.5243

5244

5245

5246

5247

5248

5249

5250

5251

5252

5253

5254

5255

5256

5257

5258

5259

5260

5261

5262

5263

5264

approval of the insured, the case manager, and the board.

Section 150. Subsection (4) of section 627.6617, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

627.6617 Coverage for home health care services.-

(4) The provisions of This section does shall not apply to

a multiple-employer welfare arrangement as defined in s .

624.437(1) and in the State Health Plan as provided in s.

112.942 110.123.

Section 151. Paragraph (d) of subsection (2) of section

627.6686, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

627.6686 Coverage for individuals with autism spectrum

disorder required; exception.-

(2) As used in this section, the term:

(d) "Health insurance plan" means a group health insurance

policy or group health benefit plan offered by an insurer which

includes the state group insurance program provided under s.

112.942 110.123. The term does not include ~ ftBY health

insurance plan offered in the individual market which, any

health insurance plan that is individually underwrittenT or ftBY

health insurance plan provided to a small employer.

Section 152. Paragraph (b) of subsection (7) of section

849.086, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

849.086 Cardrooms authorized.-

(7) CONDITIONS FOR OPERATING A CARDROOM.-

(b) A Afly cardroom operator may operate a cardroom at the

pari-mutuel facility daily throughout the year, if the

permitholder meets the requirements under paragraph (5) (b). The

cardroom may be open a total cumulative affiount of 18 hours per

Page 188 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5265

5266

5267

5268

5269

5270

5271

5272

5273

5274

5275

5276

5277

5278

5279

5280

5281

5282

5283

5284

5285

5286

5287

5288

5289

5290

5291

5292

day on Monday through FridaYL~ 24 hours per day on Saturday

and SundaYL and on the holidays specified in s. 112.929

110.117(1).

Section 153. Paragraph (a) of subsection (4) of section

943.0585, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

943.0585 Court-ordered expunction of criminal history

records.-The courts of this state have jurisdiction over their

own procedures, including the maintenance, expunction, and

correction of judicial records containing criminal history

information to the extent such procedures are not inconsistent

with the conditions, responsibilities, and duties established by

this section. Any court of competent jurisdiction may order a

criminal justice agency to expunge the criminal history record

of a minor or an adult who complies with the requirements of

this section. The court shall not order a criminal justice

agency to expunge a criminal history record until the person

seeking to expunge a criminal history record has applied for and

received a certificate of eligibility for expunction pursuant to

subsection (2). A criminal history record that relates to a

violation of s. 393.135, s. 394.4593, s. 787.025, chapter 794,

s. 796.03, s. 800.04, s. 810.14, s. 817.034, s. 825.1025, s.

827.071, chapter 839, s. 847.0133, s. 847.0135, s. 847.0145, s.

893.135, s. 916.1075, a violation enumerated in s. 907.041, or

any violation specified as a predicate offense for registration

as a sexual predator pursuant to s. 775.21, without regard to

whether that offense alone is sufficient to require such

registration, or for registration as a sexual offender pursuant

to s. 943.0435, may not be expunged, without regard to whether

Page 189 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5293

5294

5295

5296

5297

5298

.5299

5300

5301

5302

5303

5304

5305

5306

5307

5308

5309

5310

5311

5312

5313

5314

5315

5316

5317

5318

5319

5320

adjudication was withheld, if the defendant was found guilty of

or pled guilty or nolo contendere to the offense, or if the

defendant, as a minor, was found to have committed, or pled

guilty or nolo contendere to committing, the offense as a

delinquent act. The court may only order expunction of a

criminal history record pertaining to one arrest or one incident

of alleged criminal activity, except as provided in this

section. The court may, at its sole discretion, order the

expunction of a criminal history record pertaining to more than

one arrest if the additional arrests directly relate to the

original arrest. If the court intends to order the expunction of

records pertaining to such additional arrests, such intent must

be specified in the order. A criminal justice agency may not

expunge any record pertaining to such additional arrests if the

order to expunge does not articulate the intention of the court

to expunge a record pertaining to more than one arrest. This

section does not prevent the court from ordering the expunction

of only a portion of a criminal history record pertaining to one

arrest or one incident of alleged criminal activity.

Notwithstanding any law to the contrary, a criminal justice

agency may comply with laws,court orders, and official requests

of other jurisdictions relating to expunction, correction, or

confidential handling of criminal history records or information

derived therefrom. This section does not confer any right to the

expunction of any criminal history record, and any request for

expunction of a criminal history record may be denied at the

sole discretion of the court.

(4) EFFECT OF CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD EXPUNCTION.-Any

Page 190 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5321

5322

5323

5324

5325

5326

5327

5328

5329

5330

5331

5332

5333

5334

5335

5336

5337

5338

5339

5340

5341

5342

5343

5344

5345

5346

5347

5348

criminal history record of a minor or an adult which is ordered

expunged by a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to this

section must be physically destroyed or obliterated by any

criminal justice agency having custody of such record; except

that any criminal history record in the custody of the

department must be retained in all cases. A criminal history

record ordered expunged that is retained by the department is

confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and

s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution and not available to

any person or entity except upon order of a court of competent

jurisdiction. A criminal justice agency may retain a notation

indicating compliance with an order to expunge.

(a) The person who is the subject of a criminal history

record that is expunged under this section or under other

provisions of law, including former s. 893.14, former s. 901.33,

and former s. 943.058, may lawfully deny or fail to acknowledge

the arrests covered by the expunged record, unless eneept Hhen

the subject of the record:

1. Is a candidate for employment with a criminal justice

agency;

2. Is a defendant in a criminal prosecution;

3. Concurrently or subsequently petitions for relief under

this section or s. 943.059;

4. Is a candidate for admission to The Florida Bar;

5. Is seeking to be employed or licensed by or to contract

with the Department of Children and Family Services, the Agency

for Health Care Administration, the Agency for Persons with

Disabilities, or the Department of Juvenile Justice or to be

Page 191 of 203

CODING: Words stricKen are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5349

5350

5351

5352

5353

5354

.5355

5356

5357

5358

5359

5360

5361

5362

5363

5364

5365

5366

5367

5368

5369

5370

5371

5372

5373

5374

5375

5376

employed or used by such contractor or licensee in a sensitive

position having direct contact with children, the

developmentally disabled, the aged, or the elderly as provided

in s. 112.928110.1127(3), s. 393.063, s. 394.4572(1), s.

397.451, s. 402.302(3), s. 402.313(3), s. 409.175(2) (i), s.

415.102(5), chapter 916, s. 985.644, chapter 400, or chapter

429 ;

6. Is seeking to be employed or licensed by the Department

of Education, any district school board, any university

laboratory school, any charter school, any private or parochial

school, or any local governmental entity that licenses child

care facilities; or

7. Is seeking authorization from a seaport listed in s.

311.09 for employment within or access to one or more of such

seaports pursuant to s. 311.12.

Section 154. Paragraph (a) of subsection (4) of section

943.059, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

943.059 Court-ordered sealing of criminal history

records.-The courts of this state shall continue to have

jurisdiction over their own procedures, including the

maintenance, sealing, and correction of judicial records

containing criminal history information to the extent such

procedures are not inconsistent with the conditions,

responsibilities, and duties established by this section. Any

court of competent jurisdiction may order a criminal justice

agency to seal the criminal history record of a minor or an

adult who complies with the requirements of this section. The

court shall not order a criminal justice agency to seal a

Page 192 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5377

5378

5379

5380

5381

5382

5383

5384

5385

5386

5387

5388

5389

5390

5391

5392

5393

5394

5395

5396

5397

5398

5399

5400

5401

5402

5403

5404

criminal history record until the person seeking to seal a

criminal history record has applied for and received a

certificate of eligibility for sealing pursuant to subsection

(2). A criminal history record that relates to a violation of s.

393.135, s. 394.4593, s. 787.025, chapter 794, s. 796.03, s.

800.04, s. 810.14, s. 817.034, s. 825.1025, s. 827.071, chapter

839, s. 847.0133, s. 847.0135, s. 847.0145, s. 893.135, s.

916.1075, a violation enumerated in s. 907.041, or any violation

specified as a predicate offense for registration as a sexual

predator pursuant to s. 775.21, without regard to whether that

offense alone is sufficient to require such registration, or for

registration as a sexual offender pursuant to s. 943.0435, may

not be sealed, without regard to whether adjudication was

withheld, if the defendant was found guilty of or pled guilty or

nolo contendere to the offense, or if the defendant, as a minor,

was found to have committed or pled guilty or nolo contendere to

committing the offense as a delinquent act. The court may only

order sealing of a criminal history record pertaining to one

arrest or one incident of alleged criminal activity, except as

provided in this section. The court may, at its sole discretion,

order the sealing of a criminal history record pertaining to

more than one arrest if the additional arrests directly relate

to the original arrest. If the court intends to order the

sealing of records pertaining to such additional arrests, such

intent must be specified in the order. A criminal justice agency

may not seal any record pertaining to such additional arrests if

the order to seal does not articulate the intention of the court

to seal records pertaining to more than one arrest. This section

Page 193 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5405

5406

5407

5408

5409

5410

.5411

5412

5413

5414

5415

5416

5417

5418

5419

5420

5421

5422

5423

5424

5425

5426

5427

5428

5429

5430

5431

5432

does not prevent the court from ordering the sealing of only a

portion of a criminal history record pertaining to one arrest or

one incident of alleged criminal activity. Notwithstanding any

law to the contrary, a criminal justice agency may comply with

laws, court orders, and official requests of other jurisdictions

relating to sealing, correction, or confidential handling of

criminal history records or information derived therefrom. This

section does not confer any right to the sealing of any criminal

history record, and any request for sealing a criminal history

record may be denied at the sole discretion of the court.

(4) EFFECT OF CRIMINAL HISTORY RECORD SEALING.-A criminal

history record of a minor or an adult which is ordered sealed by

a court of competent jurisdiction pursuant to this section is

confidential and exempt from the provisions of s. 119.07(1) and

s. 24(a), Art. I of the State Constitution and is available only

to the person who is the subject of the record, to the subject's

attorney, to criminal justice agencies for their respective

criminal justice purposes, which include conducting a criminal

history background check for approval of firearms purchases or

transfers as authorized by state or federal law, to judges in

the state courts system for the purpose of assisting them in

their case-related decisionmaking responsibilities, as set forth

in s. 943.053(5), or to those entities set forth in

subparagraphs (a)l., 4., 5., 6., and 8. for their respective

licensing, access authorization, and employment purposes.

(a) The subject of a criminal history record sealed under

this section or under other provisions of law, including former

s. 893.14, former s. 901.33, and former s. 943.058, may lawfully

Page 194 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5433

5434

5435

5436

5437

5438

5439

5440

5441

5442

5443

5444

5445

5446

5447

5448

5449

5450

5451

5452

5453

5454

5455

5456

5457

545.8

5459

5460

deny or fail to acknowledge the arrests covered by the sealed

record, unless eJwept '.vhen the subj ect of the record:

1. Is a candidate for employment with a criminal justice

agency;

2. Is a defendant in a criminal prosecution;

3. Concurrently or subsequently petitions for relief under

this section or s. 943.0585;

4. Is a candidate for admission to The Florida Bar;

5. Is seeking to be employed or licensed by or to contract

with the Department of Children and Family Services, the Agency

for Health Care Administration, the Agency for Persons with

Disabilities, or the Department of Juvenile Justice or to be

employed or used by such contractor or licensee in a sensitive

position having direct contact with children, the

developmentally disabled, the aged, or the elderly as provided

in s. 112.928110.1127(3), s. 393.063, s. 394.4572(1), s.

397.451, s. 402.302(3), s. 402.313(3), s. 409.175(2) (i), s.

415.102(5), s. 415.103, chapter 916, s. 985.644, chapter 400, or

chapter 429;

6. Is seeking to be employed or licensed by the Department

of Education, any district school board, any university

laboratory school, any charter school, any private or parochial

school, or any local governmental entity that licenses child

care facilities;

7. Is attempting to purchase a firearm from a licensed

importer, licensed manufacturer, or licensed dealer and is

subject to a criminal history check under state or federal law;

or

Page 195 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5461

5462

5463

5464

5465

5466

5467

5468

5469

5470

5471

5472

5473

5474

5475

5476

5477

5478

5479

5480

5481

5482

5483

5484

5485

5486

5487

5488

8. Is seeking authorization from a Florida seaport

identified in s. 311.09 for employment within or access to one

or more of such seaports pursuant to s. 311.12.

Section 155. Subsection (2) of section 945.043, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

945.043 Department-operated day care services.

(2) The department is exempt from s. 112.918 ~

requirements of s. 110.151.

Section 156. Subsection (1) of section 946.525, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

946.525 Participation by the corporation in the state

group health insurance and prescription drug programs.-

(1) The board of directors of the corporation established

under this part may apply for participation in the state group

health insurance program authorized under s. 112.942 in s.

110.123 and the prescription drug coverage program authorized

under s. 112.946 by s. 110.12315 by submitting an application

along with a $500 nonrefundable fee to the Department of

Management Services.

Section 157. Paragraph (e) of subsection (4) of section

985.045, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

985.045 Court records.-

(4) A court record of proceedings under this chapter is

not admissible in evidence in any other civil or criminal

proceeding, except that:

(e) Records of proceedings under this chapter may be used

to prove disqualification under ss. 112.928 110.1127, 393.0655,

394 . 457, 397. 451, 402. 305, 402. 313, 409. 175, 409. 176, and

Page 196 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5489

5490

5491

5492

5493

5494

5495

5496

5497

5498

5499

5500

5501

5502

5503

5504

5505

5506

5507

5508

5509

5510

5511

5512

5513

5514

5515

5516

985.644.

Section 158. Paragraph (k) of subsection (2) of section

1001.705, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

1001.705 Responsibility for the State University System

under s. 7, Art. IX of the State Constitution.-

(2) CONSTITUTIONAL DUTIES OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS OF THE

STATE UNIVERSITY SYSTEM.-In accordance with s. 7, Art. IX of the

State Constitution, the Board of Governors of the State

University System has the duty to operate, regulate, control,

and be fully responsible for the management of the whole

publicly funded State University System and the board, or the

board's designee, has responsibility for:

(k) Establishing a personnel system for all state

university employees; however, the Department of Management

Services shall retain authority over state university employees

for programs established in ss. 112.942 110.123, 112.947

110.1232, 112.948 110.1234, 112.949 110.1238, and 112.951

110.161, and in chapters 121, 122, and 238.

Section 159. Paragraph (b) of subsection (6) of section

1001.706, Florida Statutes, is amended to read:

1001.706 Powers and duties of the Board of Governors.

(6) POWERS AND DUTIES RELATING TO PERSONNEL.-

(b) The Department of Management Services shall retain

authority over state university employees for programs

established in ss. 112.942 110.123, 112.947 110.1232, 112.948

110.1234, 112.949 110.1238, and 112.951 110.161 and in chapters

121, 122, and 238. Unless specifically authorized by law,

neither the Board of Governors nor a state university may offer

Page 197 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/H81261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5517

5518

5519

5520

5521

5522

.5523

5524

5525

5526

5527

5528

5529

5530

5531

5532

5533

5534

5535

5536

5537

5538

5539

5540

5541

5542

5543

5544

group insurance programs for employees as a substitute for or as

an alternative to the health insurance programs offered pursuant

to chapter 112 ~.

Section 160. Paragraph (f) of subsection (4) and paragraph

(f) of subsection (8) of section 1002.36, Florida Statutes, are

amended to read:

1002.36 Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.

(4) BOARD OF TRUSTEES.-

(f) The board of trustees shall:

1. Prepare and submit legislative budget requests for

operations and fixed capital outlay, in accordance with chapter

216 and ss. 1011.56 and 1013.60, to the Department of Education

for review and approval. The department must analyze the amount

requested for fixed capital outlay to determine if the request

is consistent with the school's campus master plan, educational

plant survey, and facilities master plan. Projections of

facility space needs may exceed the norm space and occupant

design criteria established in the State Requirements for

Educational Facilities.

2. Approve and administer an annual operating budget in

accordance with ss. 1011.56 and 1011.57.

3. Require all funds received other than gifts, donations,

bequests, funds raised by or belonging to student clubs or

student organizations, and funds held for specific students or

in accounts for individual students to be deposited in the State

Treasury and expended as authorized in the General

Appropriations Act.

4. Require all purchases to be in accordance with ~

Page 198 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5545

5546

5547

5548

5549

5550

5551

5552

5553

5554

5555

5556

5557

5558

5559

5560

5561

5562

5563

5564

5565

5566

5567

5568

5569

5570

5571

5572

provisions of chapter 287 except for purchases made with funds

received as gifts, donations, or bequests; funds raised by or

belonging to student clubs or student organizations; or funds

held for specific students or in accounts for individual

students.

5. Administer and maintain personnel programs for all

employees of the board of trustees and the Florida School for

the Deaf and the Blind who shall be state employees, including

the personnel classification and pay plan established in

accordance with ss. 110.205(2) (s) 110.205(2) (d) and

216.251(2) (a)2. for academic and academic administrative

personnel, the provisions of chapter 110, and the provisions of

law that grant authority to the Department of Management

Services over such programs for state employees.

6. Give preference in appointment and retention in

positions of employment as provided within s. 295.07(1).

7. Ensure that the Florida School for the Deaf and the

Blind complies with s. 1013.351 concerning the coordination of

planning between the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind

and local governing bodies.

8. Ensure that the Florida School for the Deaf and the

Blind complies with s. 112.061 concerning per diem and travel

expenses of public officers, employees, and authorized persons

with respect to all funds other than funds received as gifts,

donations, or bequests; funds raised by or belonging to student

clubs or student organizations; or funds held for specific

students or in accounts for individual students.

9. Adopt a master plan that 'n'hieh specifies the mission

Page 199 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5573

5574

5575

5576

5577

5578

.5579

5580

5581

5582

5583

5584

5585

5586

5587

5588

5589

5590

5591

5592

5593

5594

5595

5596

5597

5598

5599

5600

and objectives of the Florida School for the Deaf and the Blind.

The plan shall include, but not be limited to, procedures for

systematically measuring the school's progress toward meeting

its objectives, analyzing changes in the student population, and

modifying school programs and services to respond to such

changes. The plan shall be for a period of 5 years and shall be

reviewed for needed modifications every 2 years. The board of

trustees shall submit the initial plan and subsequent

modifications to the Speaker of the House of Representatives and

the President of the Senate.

10. Designate a portion of the school as "The Verle Allyn

Pope Complex for the Deaf," in tribute to the late Senator Verle

Allyn Pope.

(8) CAMPUS POLICE.-

(f) The board of trustees shall adopt rules, including,

without limitation, rules for the appointment, employment, and

removal of campus police in accordance with the Civil State

Career Service under chapter 110, System and shall establish in

writing a policy manualr that includes, without limitation,

procedures for managing routine law enforcement situations and

emergency law enforcement situations. The board of trustees

shall furnish a copy of the policy manual to each of the campus

police officers it employs. A campus police officer appointed by

the board of trustees must have completed the training required

by the school in the special needs and proper procedures for

dealing with students served by the school.

Section 161. Section 1012.62, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

Page 200 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5601

5602

5603

5604

5605

5606

5607

5608

5609

5610

5611

5612

5613

5614

5615

5616

5617

5618

5619

5620

5621

5622

5623

5624

5625

5626

5627

5628

1012.62 Transfer of sick leave and annual leave.-In

implementing the provisions of ss. 402.22(1) (d) and

1001.42 (4) (m), educational personnel in Department of Children

and Family Services residential care facilities who are employed

by a district school board may request, and the district school

board shall accept, a lump-sum transfer of accumulated sick

leave for such personnel to the maximum allowed by policies of

the district school board, notwithstanding the provisions of s.

112.913 110.122. Educational personnel in Department of Children

and Family Services residential care facilities who are employed

by a district school board under the provisions of s.

402.22(1) (d) may request, and the district school board shall

accept, a lump-sum transfer of accumulated annual leave for each

person employed by the district school board in a position in

the district eligible to accrue vacation leave under the

policies of the district school board.

Section 162. Subsection (5) of section 1012.79, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

1012.79 Education Practices Commission; organization.-

(5) The commission, by a vote of three-fourths of the

membership, shall employ an executive director, who shall be

exempt from the Civil eareer Service. The executive director may

be dismissed by a majority vote of the membership.

Section 163. Subsection (6) of section 1012.88, Florida

Statutes, is amended to read:

1012.88 Florida College System institution police.

(6) The Florida College System institution, with the

approval of the Department of Law Enforcement, shall adopt

Page 201 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5629

5630

5631

5632

5633

5634

.5635

5636

5637

5638

5639

5640

5641

5642

5643

5644

5645

5646

5647

5648

5649

5650

5651

5652

5653

5654

5655

5656

rules, including, without limitation, rules for the appointment,

employment, and removal of Florida College System institution

police in accordance with the Civil state Career Service under

chapter 110, System and shall establish in writing a policy

manualT that includes, without limitation, procedures for

managing routine law enforcement situations and emergency law

enforcement situations. The Florida College System institution

shall furnish a copy of the policy manual to each of the police

officers it employs.

Section 164. Section 1012.96, Florida Statutes, is amended

to read:

1012.96 IFAS extension personnel; federal health insurance

programs not'dithstanding the provisions of s. 110.123.

Notwithstanding s. 112.942, the Institute of Food and

Agricultural Sciences at the University of Florida may pay the

employer's share of premiums to the Federal Health Benefits

Insurance Program from its appropriated budget for any

cooperative extension employee of the institute having both

state and federal appointments and participating in the Federal

Civil Service Retirement System.

Section 165. On or before December 31, 2012, the

Department of Management Services shall provide to the Executive

Office of the Governor, the President of the Senate, and the

Speaker of the House of Representatives a proposal to

restructure and modernize the leave benefits of the State

Personnel System. The proposal shall consider current leave

policies of the state's private-sector employers and provide

recommendations that will more closely align the state's leave

Page 202 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



FLORIDA

CS/HB 1261

H 0 USE o F REPRESENTATIVES

2012

5657

5658

5659

5660

5661

benefits with those of the private sector, ensure better

management of benefits, and leverage leave benefit expenditures

to maximize the state's return on investment to competitively

recruit and retain a high-performing workforce.

Section 166. This act shall take effect July 1, 2012.

Page 203 of 203

CODING: Words stricken are deletions; words underlined are additions.
hb1261-01-c1



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 1

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Mayfield offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove lines 301-303 and insert:

7 ill+&+ Nothing in this chapter shall be construed either

8 to infringe upon or to supersede the rights guaranteed public

9 employees under chapter 447.

10

11

12

Remove lines 627-629

250465 - hl261-line 301-1.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:52:40 PM

Page 1 of 1



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 2

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Mayfield offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove lines 1980-1989 and insert:

7 The length of the probationary period may not exceed 18 months.

8 An employee who has not attained merit status in his or her

9 current position serves at the pleasure of the agency head and

10 may be dismissed at the discretion of the agency head.

11 (3) If an employee who has received an internal agency

12 promotion from a position in which the employee held merit

13 status is to be dismissed from the promotional position for

14 failure to meet the established performance standards of the

15 promotional position while in probationary status, the agency,

16 before dismissal, shall return the employee to his or her former

17 position, or to a position with substantially similar duties and

18

448037 - h1261-line 1980-2.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 6:53:47 PM

Page 1 of 1



1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 3

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Mayfield offered the following:

4

5 Amendment

6 Remove lines 3215-3232 and insert:

7 112.920 110.1225 Furloughs.-If Wfiefl a deficit is certified

8 or projected to occur by the Revenue Estimating Conference

9 pursuant to s. 216.221 216.136(3), in any state fund that

10 supports salary and benefit appropriations for state employees,

11 the affected state agency or the judicial branch may propose,

12 upon approval by the Governor or the Chief Justice of the

13 Supreme Court, as appropriate, a furlough plan and related

14 budget amendments for consideration by the Legislative Budget

15 Commission. The Legislative Budget Commission, after

16 consultation with the Revenue Estimating Conference regarding

17 the projected deficit, may approve or disapprove the plan and

18 budget amendments in total. This subsection is subject to the

19 notice and review procedures set forth in s. 216.177

962875 - h1261-line 3215-3.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:01:29 PM

Page 1 of 2



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 3
20 Administration Commission may propose a furlough plan to the

21 Legislature, whieh must approve or disapprove such plan. The

22 plan must identify all affected positions and ensure that all

23 affected employees within a budget entity are subject to the

24 same reduction of hours for the same number of pay periods with

25 a commensurate reduction in pay.

26 (2) If authorized by the Legislature as a cost-savings

27 measure to address anticipated short-term shortfalls to funds

28 that support salary and benefit appropriations for state

29 employees for a specified fiscal year, a state agency or the

30 judicial branch may also impose furloughs as directed by the

31 Legislature in the General Appropriations Act.

32 (3) For the purposes of this section, the term "furlough"

33 means a temporary reduction in the regular hours of employment

34 administered as leave without pay.

962875 - h1261-line 3215-3.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:01:29 PM

Page 2 of 2



11I1111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 4

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE ACTION

ADOPTED (Y/N)

ADOPTED AS AMENDED

ADOPTED W/O OBJECTION

FAILED TO ADOPT

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

(Y/N)

WITHDRAWN

OTHER

(Y/N)

1 Committee/Subcommittee hearing bill: Rulemaking & Regulation

2 Subcommittee

3 Representative Mayfield offered the following:

4

5

6

7

Amendment (with title amendment)

Remove lines 263-268 and insert:

Section 1. Chapter 110, Florida Statutes, is renamed

8 "State Personnel System."

9 Section 2. Part I of chapter 110, Florida Statutes, is

10 renamed "General Provisions."

11

12 Remove lines 505-512 and insert:

13 110.1055 Rules and rulemaking authority.-

14 The department of Management Services shall adopt rules as

15 necessary to effectuate the provisions of this chapter~

16 amended by this act, and in accordance with the authority

17 granted to the department in this chapter. All existing rules

18 relating to this chapter are statutorily repealed January 1,

19 2002, unless otherwise readopted.

473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 1 of 9



20

1111111111111111111111111111

Amendment No. 4

COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

21 Remove lines 630-634 and lines 707-708 and lines 824-825

22 and lines 942-943 and lines 1054-1055 and lines 1104-1105 and

23 lines 1120-1121 and lines 1140-1141 and lines 1210-1211 and

24 lines 1710-1711 and lines 1759-1760 and lines 1847-1848 and

25 lines 1888-1889 and lines 1909-1910 and lines 1942-1943 and

26 lines 2126-2127 and lines 2332-2333 and lines 3602-3604

27

28

29

Remove lines 769-773 and insert:

(5) The Department of Management Services, in consultation

30 with the agencies and, to the extent applicable, with Florida's

31 public community colleges, public career centers, and public

32 universities, shall adopt rules to administer this section.

33

34

35

Remove lines 893-896 and insert:

(6) The department shall review and monitor executive

36 agency actions in carrying out the rules adopted by the

37 department pursuant to this section.

38

39

40

41

42

43

Remove line 909 and insert:

The department of Management Services shall establish

Remove lines 1312-1314 and insert:

Section 22. Part II of chapter 110, Florida Statutes, is

44 renamed "Civil Service."

45

46 Remove lines 1866-1869 and insert:

473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 2 of 9



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 4
47 (4) All recruitment literature involving state position

48 vacancies shall contain the phrase "An Equal Opportunity

49 Employer/Affirmative Action Employer."

50

51

52

Remove lines 2151-2154 and insert:

(3) The department may adopt rules to administer the

53 public employee performance evaluation system 'ilhich establish

54 procedures for performance evaluation, review periods, and

55 forms.

56

57

58

Remove lines 2345-2349 and insert:

Section 36. Part V of chapter 110, Florida Statutes, is

59 renumbered as part III of that chapter, consisting of ss.

60 110.302-110.3023, Florida Statutes, and is renamed "Selected

61 Exempt Service."

62

63

64

Remove lines 2498-2502 and insert:

Section 41. Part III of chapter 110, Florida Statutes, is

65 renumbered as part IV of that chapter, consisting of ss.

66 110.401-110.4035, Florida Statutes, and is renamed "Senior

67 Management Service."

68

69 Remove lines 2701-2704 and insert:

70 Section 46. Part IX of chapter 112, Florida Statutes,

71 consisting of ss. 112.906-112.934, Florida Statutes, is created

72 and entitled "State Employment."

73

74

473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 3 of 9



1111I11111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 4
75 Remove lines 2915-2917 and insert:

76 harassment is a form of discrimination. Each state agency with

77 authority to govern the terms and conditions of employment for

78 its employees The department shall adopt uniform sexual

79 harassment

80

81 Remove lines 2937-2938 and insert:

82 (2) Each state agency with authority to govern the terms

83 and conditions of employment for its employees The employing

84

85 Remove lines 3653-3656 and insert:

86 Section Section 112.934, Florida Statutes, is created

87 to read:

88 Section 112.934 Rulemaking authority.

89 (1) Except as provided in subsections (2) and (3), each

90 state agency with authority to govern the terms and conditions

91 of employment for its employees is authorized to adopt rules as

92 necessary to implement the provisions of this part.

93 (2) The department is authorized to adopt rules as

94 necessary to implement ss. 112.915, 112.916, 112.919, 112.922,

95 112.926, 112.927, 112.929, F.S.

96 (3) Except as may be specifically provided therein, no

97 rulemaking is authorized for ss. 112.908, 112.917, 112.920,

98 112.921, and 112.925.

99 (4) On the effective date of this act, any rule adopted by

100 the department that implements a statute incorporated into this

101 part shall remain in force, and may be followed by any agency

473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 4 of 9



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 4
102 authorized to adopt rules under this section, until that agency

103 adopts a replacement rule.

104 Section 75. Part X of chapter 112, Florida Statutes,

105 consisting of ss. 112.940-112.953, Florida Statutes, is created

106 and entitled "State Administered Benefits. "

107

108 Remove lines 3988-3992 and insert:

109 Section Section 112.953, Florida Statutes, is created

110 to read:

111 112.953 Definition; rulemaking authority.-

112 (1) For purposes of this part, "department" means the

113 Department of Management Services.

114 (2) The department is authorized to adopt rules as

115 necessary to implement the provisions of this part.

116 Section 89. Part IV of chapter 110, Florida Statutes, is

117 renumbered as part XI of chapter 112, Florida Statutes,

118 consisting of ss. 112.961-112.966, Florida Statutes, and is

119 renamed "State Volunteer Services."

120

121 Between lines 4147 and 4148, insert:

122 Section Section 112.966, Florida Statutes, is created

123 to read:

124 112.966 Rulemaking authority.-

125 Each state agency with authority to govern the terms and

126 conditions of employment for its employees is authorized to

127 adopt rules as necessary to implement the provisions of this

128 part. On the effective date of this act, any rule adopted by the

129 department that implements a statute incorporated into this part
473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 5 of 9



II11111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 4
130 shall remain in force, and may be followed by any agency

131 authorized to adopt rules under this section, until that agency

132 adopts a replacement rule.

133

134

135

136 -----------------------------------------------------

137 TIT LEA MEN D MEN T

138 Remove lines 2-3 and insert:

139 renaming ch. 110, F.S.; renaming part I of ch. 110, F.S.;

140

141 Remove lines 20-110 and insert:

142 act; amending s. 110.1099, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

143 educational opportunities for employees; transferring,

144 renumbering, and amending s. 110.235, F.S.; revising provisions

145 relating to training employees; amending s. 110.112, F.S.;

146 revising provisions relating to equal employment opportunities;

147 creating s. 110.1135, F.S.; requiring state agencies to keep

148 accurate records of work performed and leave; amending s.

149 110.116, F.S.; revising provisions relating to maintaining human

150 resource information; amending s. 110.1245, F.S.; revising

151 provisions relating to bonuses and other awards; amending s.

152 110.125, F.S.; revising provisions relating to payment for the

153 administrative costs of operating the personnel program;

154 amending s. 110.126, F.S.; revising provisions relating to the

155 department's authority to administer oaths; amending s. 110.127,

156 F.S.; revising provisions relating to penalties; transferring,

157 renumbering, and amending s. 110.2037, F.S.; revising provisions
473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 6 of 9



11II111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 4
158 relating to tax-sheltered and special compensation benefits;

159 transferring, renumbering, and amending s. 110.201, F.S.,

160 relating to personnel rules, records, and reports; deleting

161 provisions requiring the department, in consultation with

162 affected agencies, to develop certain personnel rules,

163 guidelines, records, and reports relating to employees and

164 positions in the career service; creating s. 110.184, F.S.;

165 revising provisions relating to the department's annual

166 workforce report; renaming part II of ch. 110, F.S.; creating s.

167 110.202, F.S.; providing a declaration of policy with respect to

168 the establishment of the Civil Service; amending s. 110.205,

169 F.S.; revising provisions relating to the list of positions that

170 are exempted from the Civil Service; creating s. 110.208, F.S.;

171 providing for a uniform classification system for civil service

172 positions; creating s. 110.2085, F.S.; providing a pay plan for

173 civil service positions; directing the department to adopt

174 rules; amending s. 110.211, F.S.; revising provisions relating

175 to recruitment; amending s. 110.213, F.S.; revising provisions

176 relating to selecting a candidate for employment; amending s.

177 110.2135, F.S.; revising provisions relating to veterans'

178 preference; amending s. 110.215, F.S.; revising provisions

179 relating to employing persons with disabilities; amending s.

180 110.217, F.S.; revising provisions relating to a change in an

181 employee's position status; amending s. 110.219, F.S.; revising

182 provisions relating to attendance and leave policies; amending

183 s. 110.221, F.S.; conforming provisions to changes made by the

184 act; amending s. 110.224, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

185 employee evaluation; amending s. 110.227, F.S.; revising

473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 7 of 9



11I1111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

186

187

188
(..

189

190

191

192

193

194

195

196

197

198

199

200

201

202

203

204

205

206

207

208

209

210

211

Amendment No. 4
provisions relating to employee grievances; renumbering and

renaming part V of ch. 110, F.S.; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.601, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

selected exempt service policy; transferring, renumbering, and

amending s. 110.602, F.S.; revising provisions relating to the

creation of the Selected Exempt Service; transferring,

renumbering, and amending s. 110.605, F.S.; revising provisions

relating to the powers and duties of the department; creating s.

110.3023, F.S.; providing for the recruitment of selected exempt

service staff; renumbering and renaming part III of ch. 110,

F.S.; amending s. 110.401, F.S.; revising provisions relating to

policies for senior management employees; amending s. 110.402,

F.S.; revising provisions relating to the establishment of the

Senior Management Service; amending s. 110.403, F.S.; revising

provisions relating to the duties of the department with respect

to the Senior Management Service; creating s. 110.4035, F.S.;

providing recruitment requirements for senior management service

employees; creating part IX of ch. 112, F.S.; creating s.

112.906, F.S.;

Remove lines 180-181 and insert:

relating to state employment; creating s. 112.934, F.S.;

providing a definition; authorizing rulemaking; creating part X,

ch. 112, F.S.; transferring,

Remove lines 206-207 and insert:

473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 8 of 9



1111111111111111111111111111 COMMITTEE/SUBCOMMITTEE AMENDMENT

Bill No. CS/HB 1261 (2012)

Amendment No. 4
212 penalties; creating s. 112.953, F.S.; authorizing- the department

213 to adopt rules; transferring and renumbering part IV, ch. 112,

214 F.S.; transferring, renumbering,

215

216 Remove line 217 and insert:

217 F.S.; providing for penalties; creating s. 112.966, F.S.;

218 authorizing rulemaking; repealing s. 110.115,

219

473319 - h1261-line263-4.docx
Published On: 2/2/2012 7:38:26 PM

Page 9 of 9




